
HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD  
FULL BOARD REGULAR MEETING  

February 13, 2025  
6:00 P.M.  

CITY HALL, HEARING ROOM # 1  
ONE FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA   

OAKLAND, CA 94612  
  

AGENDA  
  
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
The public may observe or participate in this meeting in many ways.   
  
OBSERVE:  
• To observe the meeting by video conference, please click on the link below:  
When: February 13, 2025 06:00 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada)  
Please click the link below to join the webinar:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87885207996 
One tap mobile:  
+16694449171,87885207996# US, +16699009128,87885207996# US (San Jose) 
Or by telephone:  
+1 669 444 9171 US, +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose), +1 253 205 0468 US, +1 253 
215 8782 US (Tacoma), +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston), +1 719 359 4580 US, +1 646 
558 8656 US (New York), +1 646 931 3860 US, +1 689 278 1000 US, +1 301 715 8592 
US (Washington DC), +1 305 224 1968 US, +1 309 205 3325 US, +1 312 626 6799 US 
(Chicago), +1 360 209 5623 US, +1 386 347 5053 US, +1 507 473 4847 US, +1 564 
217 2000 US 
 
Webinar ID: 878 8520 7996 
 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kvb4ghnLI 
 
The Zoom link is to view/listen to the meeting only, not for participation.    
   
  
PARTICIPATION/COMMENT:  
There is one way to submit public comments:  
• To participate/comment during the meeting, you must attend in-person. Comments on 
all agenda items will be taken during public comment at the beginning of the meeting. 
Comments for items not on the agenda will be taken during open forum towards the end 
of the meeting.   
  
If you have any questions, please email hearingsunit@oaklandca.gov  
  
  

  

000001

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87885207996
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kvb4ghnLI
mailto:hearingsunit@oaklandca.gov


HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD MEETING 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. PUBLIC COMMENT
a. Comments on all agenda items will be taken at this time. Comments for 

items not on the agenda will be taken during open forum.

4. CONSENT ITEMS
a. Approval of Board Minutes, 01/09/2025 (pp.4-6)

5. APPEALS*
a. T23-0075, Willis v. Godwin Property (pp.7-334)

6. INFORMATION AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
a. Board Training Session- Rules of Evidence & Appeals (pp.335-348)

7. NEW BOARD BUSINESS

8. SCHEDULING AND REPORTS
a. Next meeting: February 27. Officer Elections

9. OPEN FORUM
a. Comments from the public on all items will be taken at this time.

10.  ADJOURNMENT

*Staff appeal summaries will be available to review at the end of the packet. The Rent
Adjustment Program and the Clerk’s office has at least 72 hours prior to the meeting to
post all
meeting materials pursuant to O.M.C. 2.20.080.C and 2.20.090

As a reminder, alternates in attendance (other than those replacing an absent board 
member) will not be able to take any action, such as with regard to the consent 
calendar.  

Accessibility:  Contact us to request disability-related accommodations, American Sign 
Language (ASL), Spanish, Cantonese, Mandarin, or another language interpreter at 
least five (5) business days before the event. Rent Adjustment Program (RAP) staff can 
be contacted via email at RAP@oaklandca.gov or via phone at (510) 238-3721. 
California relay service at 711 can also be used for disability-related accommodations.   
  

000002

mailto:RAP@oaklandca.gov


Si desea solicitar adaptaciones relacionadas con discapacidades, o para pedir un 
intérprete de en Español, Cantones, Mandarín o de lenguaje de señas (ASL) por favor 
envié un correo electrónico a RAP@oaklandca.gov o llame al (510) 238-3721 o 711 por 
lo menos cinco días hábiles antes de la reunión.    

需要殘障輔助設施, 手語, 西班牙語, 粵語或國語翻譯服務, 請在會議前五個工作天電郵

  RAP@oaklandca.gov 或致電 (510) 238-3721 或711 California relay service.  

000003

mailto:RAP@oaklandca.gov
mailto:RAP@oaklandca.gov


HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD 
FULL BOARD REGULAR MEETING 

January 9, 2025 
6:00 P.M. 

CITY HALL 
1 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, HEARING ROOM #1 

 OAKLAND, CA 94612 

MINUTES 

1. CALL TO ORDER

a. The Board meeting was administered in-person by Nyila Webb from the
Rent Adjustment Program (RAP), Housing and Community Development
Department. Nyila Webb explained the procedure for conducting the
meeting. The HRRRB meeting was called to order by Nyila Webb at 6:15
p.m.

2. ROLL CALL

a. 

MEMBER STATUS PRESENT ABSENT EXCUSED 
D. WILLIAMS Tenant X 
C. MUNOZ RAMOS Tenant X 
Vacant Tenant Alt. 
M. GOOLSBY Tenant Alt. X 
C. OSHINUGA Undesignated    X 
M. CUCULLU LIM Undesignated X 
Vacant Undesignated 

Alt. 
K. BRODFUEHRER   Landlord X 
C. JACKSON Landlord X 

 Vacant Landlord Alt. 

Staff Present 
Oliver Luby  Deputy City Attorney 
Marguerita Fa-Kaji Senior  Hearing Officer (RAP) 
Nyila Webb  Administrative Assistant II (RAP) 

b. Deputy City Attorney Oliver Luby informed the Board that, in the absence
of a Chair, Robert's Rules of Order permit the Board to make a motion to
appoint an eligible member as Chair pro tem. The Chair pro tem would
then preside over the meeting for the evening.

000004



c. Member C. Munoz Ramos made a motion to appoint Member M.
Cucullu Lim as pro tem. Member K. Brofuhrer seconded.

The Board voted as follows: 

Aye:  C. Munoz Ramos, M. Brodfueher, C. Jackson, D. Williams, M.
Cucullu Lim 

Nay: None 
Abstain: None 

The motion was approved. 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT
a. No speaker cards were submitted.

4. CONSENT ITEMS
a. Approval of Board Minutes, 11/14/2024:

Member K. Brodfueher made a motion to approve the Board 
Minutes from 11/14/2024. Member D. Williams seconded the 
motion.  

The Board voted as follows: 

Aye: C. Munoz Ramos, M. Brodfueher, C. Jackson, D. Williams
Nay: None
Abstain: M. Cucullu Lim

The motion was approved. 

5. APPEALS*
a. L24-0025, Sun v. Tenants (pp.8-64)

Member K. Brodfueher made a motion remand case back for a hearing on the 
merits. Member D. Williams seconded  

The Board voted as follows: 

Aye:  C. Munoz Ramos, M. Brodfueher, C. Jackson, D. Williams, M.
Cucullu Lim 

Nay: None 
Abstain: None 

The motion was approved. 

000005



b. L24-0026, Samaniego v. Tenants (pp.65-144)

Member M. Cucullu Lim made a motion to remand the petition back to the hearing 
officer to determine whether all tenants were included in the petition and whether 
all tenants were served the petition. And should the hearing office determine that 
all tenants were not included or served, to then determine the impact, if any on 
the failure to include and or serve all tenants. If the hearing officer determines the 
petition may move forward, the hearing officer shall provide an analysis as to the 
evidentiary standard for rent increase based on fair return.  Member C. Jackson 
seconded.  

The Board voted as follows: 

Aye:  C. Munoz Ramos, M. Brodfueher, C. Jackson, D. Williams, M.
Cucullu Lim 

Nay: None 
Abstain: None 

The motion was approved. 

6. INFORMATION AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
a. Member C. Munoz Ramos informed public of resources City of

Oakland offer.

7. NEW BOARD BUSINESS
a. The Board invited RAP staff to upcoming meeting and potential RAP

training/overview of department updates.

8. SCHEDULING AND REPORTS
a. Reiterating reaching out to RAP for any upcoming training for Board.

9. OPEN FORUM
a. No speaker cards were submitted.

10. ADJOURNMENT
a. Meeting adjourned at 8:28PM.

000006



CHRONOLOGICAL CASE REPORT 

Case No.:      T23-0075  

Case Name:    Willis v. Godwin Properties 

Property Address:    260 Lee Street Unit 205, Oakland, CA 94610 

Parties:       Larry Butac (Tenant) 
   James Willis (Tenant) 
   Melanie Godwin-Properties (Owner) 

TENANT APPEAL: 

Activity Date 

Tenant Petition filed May 26, 2023 

Tenant Exhibits Submitted July 1, 2023  

Updated Tenant Petition Attachments August 14, 2023 

Remote Hearing Date Scheduled August 22, 2023  

Hearing Decision Mailed  November 30, 2023 

Owner Appeal Filed December 14, 2023 

Tenant Response to Owner Appeal  January 3, 2024  

Appeal Decision  March 11, 2024 

000007



Remote Settlement & Remand Hearing June 4, 2024 

Remand Hearing Decision   August 1, 2024 

Owner Appeal Submitted    August 17, 2024 

 

  

000008



Page 1 of 4
Tenant Petition 
Rev. 09/14/2022 

TENANT PETITION 

Please fill out this form as completely as you can. Use this form to contest a rent increase, seek a rent decrease, and/or 
contest an owner exemption from the Rent Adjustment Program. Failure to provide the required information may result in your 
petition being rejected or delayed. See the last pages of this petition packet (“Important Information Regarding Filing Your 
Petition”) or the RAP website for more information. CONTACT A HOUSING COUNSELOR TO REVIEW YOUR PETITION 
BEFORE SUBMITTING. To make an appointment email RAP@oaklandca.gov. 

Rental Unit Information 

______________    ________________________________________    ___________    Oakland, CA  _____________ 

Street Number   Street Name   Unit Number    Zip Code  

Move-in Date: ________________   Initial Rent at Move-In: $________________   Current Rent: $________________

Is your rent subsidized or controlled by a government agency (such as HUD or Section 8), other 

than Oakland Rent Adjustment Program? (See page 5 “Jurisdiction” for more information) 

❑ Yes

❑ No

❑ Not sure

Are you current on rent? ❑ Yes

❑ No*

(*Note: You must be current on your rent or lawfully withholding rent in order to file a petition. 

Checking “No” without providing an adequate explanation may result in your petition being 
dismissed.) 

If not current on rent, explain why: ________________________________________________________________________ 

When (if ever) did the property owner first provide you with 
the City form, NOTICE TO TENANTS OF THE RESIDENTIAL 

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM (“RAP Notice”)? 

❑ I first received the RAP Notice on: ___________________

❑ I was never provided with the RAP Notice

❑ I do not remember if I ever received the RAP Notice

Case number(s) of any relevant prior Rent Adjustment case(s): 

Tenant Information  (List each tenant petitioner in unit. If you need more space, attach additional sheet.) 

__________________________________________   ______________________________________________________ 

First Name  Last Name 

Mailing Address (if different from above): ____________________________________________________________________ 

Primary Telephone: ____________________ Other Telephone: ____________________ Email: ________________________ 

__________________________________________   ______________________________________________________ 

First Name  Last Name 

Mailing Address (if different from above): ____________________________________________________________________ 

Primary Telephone: ___________________ Other Telephone: ____________________ Email: _________________________ 

Tenant Representative  (Check one):  ❑ No Representative  ❑  Attorney   ❑ Non-Attorney

_____________________________   _________________________________   _______________________________ 

First Name       Last Name     Firm/Organization (if any) 

Mailing Address: _______________________________________________________________________________________ 

Phone Number: ________________________________  Email: _________________________________________________ 

CITY OF OAKLAND 

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 
Oakland, CA 94612-0243 
(510) 238-3721
CA Relay Service 711
www.oaklandca.gov/RAP

For Rent Adjustment Program date stamp. 

260 LEE STREET 205 94610

08/26/2022 1945.00 1945.00

x

x

x 08/20/2022

James Willis

3187894326 jrw1011@gmail.com

Larry Butac

larrybutac@gmail.com5599205791

CITY OF OAKLAND 

000009

jrw1011@gmail.com
Free text
x



Page 2 of 4
Tenant Petition 
Rev. 09/14/2022 

GROUNDS FOR PETITION 

Select the grounds for this petition from the list below. Check all that apply. You must check at least one box. To contest a 
rent increase, select item(s) from Category A. If you have experienced a decrease in housing services and/or have issues with 
the condition of your unit, or are being charged for utilities in violation of the law, select item(s) from Category B. For more 
information on each of the grounds, see Oakland Municipal Code (O.M.C.) Sections 8.22.070 and 8.22.090 (Rent Adjustment 
Ordinance) and the corresponding Regulations. A copy of the Ordinance and Regulations are available here: 
www.oaklandca.gov/resources/read-the-oakland-rent-adjustment-program-ordinance. 

A.

Unlawful Rent  
Increase(s) 

(Complete section A 
on page 3) 

❑ (A1) I received a rent increase above the allowable amount. 

❑ (A2) I received a rent increase that I believe is unlawful because I was not given 

proper notice, was not properly served, and/or was not provided with the required 

RAP Notice (“Notice to Tenants of the Residential Rent Adjustment Program”). 

❑ (A3) I received a rent increase and do not believe I should be required to pay it 

because a government agency has cited my unit for serious health, safety, fire, or 

building code violations. (You must attach a copy of the citation to your petition.) 

B.

Decreased 
Housing 
Services 

(Complete section B 
on page 3) 

❑ (B1) The property owner is providing me with fewer housing services than I 

previously received and/or I am being charged for services originally paid for by the 

owner. (Check this box for petitions based on bad conditions/failure to repair.) 

❑ (B2) I am being unlawfully charged for utilities. 

C. Other

❑ (C1) My rent was not reduced after a prior rent increase period for capital 

improvements or after an additional tenant for whom the owner was allowed an 

increase, vacated from the premises. 

❑ (C2) I wish to contest an exemption from the Rent Adjustment Ordinance because the 

exemption was based on fraud or mistake. 

❑ (C3) The initial rent amount when I first moved in was unlawful because the property 

owner was not permitted to set the initial rent without limitation. O.M.C. § 8.22.080 (C). 

Property Owner Information 

Property Owner  

_________________________________________         _______________________________________________________ 

First Name  Last Name 

Company/LLC/LP (if applicable): __________________________________________________________________________

Mailing Address: _______________________________________________________________________________________ 

Phone Number: ________________________________  Email: _________________________________________________ 

Property Manager (if applicable) 

_____________________________   ________________________________    ________________________________ 

First Name   Last Name    Name of Management Company 

Mailing Address: _______________________________________________________________________________________ 

Phone Number: ________________________________  Email: _________________________________________________ 

Melanie Godwin-Rosales

Godwin Properties  

PO Box 2128 Livermore, CA 94551

9252945860 godwinprop@aol.com

Christina Nelson Godwin Properties

266 Adams Street, North Lake Tower Apartments #205 Oakland, CA 94610

5102509663 and 5103938252 nelson.christina30@gmail.com



000010



Page 3 of 4 
Tenant Petition 
Rev. 09/14/2022 

- 
 

A. Unlawful Rent Increase(s) 

(Complete this section if any of the grounds for petition fall under category A, above) 

List all rent increases you wish to contest. Begin with the most recent increase and work backwards. If you never received 
the RAP Notice, you can contest all past increases. See the “Important Information” page at the end of this petition packet for 
more information on time limits for contesting rent increases. If you need additional space, attach a separate sheet or an 
additional copy of this form. 

• For petitions contesting a rent increase on the grounds that the unit has been cited by a government agency for
serious health, safety, fire, or building code violations, you must attach a copy of the citation to your petition.
Failure to attach a copy of the citation may result in your petition being dismissed.

Date received rent 
increase notice: 

Date rent increase 
went into effect: 

Amount of increase: Received RAP Notice with 
notice of rent increase? 

(Month/Day/Year) (Month/Day/Year) FROM TO YES NO 
$ $ ❑ ❑

$ $ ❑ ❑

$ $ ❑ ❑

$ $ ❑ ❑

$ $ ❑ ❑

B. Decreased Housing Services 

(Complete this section if any of the grounds for petition fall under category B, above) 

List all the conditions that you believe entitle you to a rent decrease. If your petition is based on problems related to 
your unit, or because the owner has taken away service(s) or is charging for services originally provided by the owner, you 
must complete this section. If you need more space, attach a separate sheet or an additional copy of this form.  

• You are strongly encouraged to submit documentary evidence (photographs, inspection reports,
correspondence with your landlord, etc.) together with your petition. Evidence may be submitted up to seven
calendar days prior to your hearing.

• You may wish to have a City inspector come inspect your unit for possible code violations in advance of your
hearing. Copies of any inspection report(s) may be submitted in support of your petition. To schedule an
inspection, contact the City of Oakland Code Enforcement Unit at (510) 238-3381, or file a complaint online at
https://www.oaklandca.gov/services/file-a-complaint-with-code-enforcement. Note: if additional items are cited in
an inspection report that were not included in your original petition (below), you must file an additional petition
listing those items in order for RAP staff to consider them as a part of your claim.

Description of problem or 
decreased housing service 
(list separately):

Date problem or 
decreased service 
started:   
(Month/Day/Year) 

Date first notified 
owner or manager 
of problem: 
(Month/Day/Year) 

Date problem or 

service was 

fixed, if ever:  
(Month/Day/Year) 

What is the 
dollar value of 
your claimed 
loss?

1. $ 

2. $ 

3. $ 

4. $ 

Bathroom Ceiling Leak 10/28/2022 10/28/2022

Inadequate Heating 08/26/2022 08/26/2022 231.12+

Broken Window/No Screens,
Repair & Deduct

08/26/2022 08/26/2022 369.66+

Mold/Expansion Gap 08/26/2022 03/29/2022

Please note, additional issues are on the attachment included.

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle

jrw1011@gmail.com
Free text
04/26/2023

jrw1011@gmail.com
Free text
4,332

jrw1011@gmail.com
Free text
2,123

jrw1011@gmail.com
Free text
283

jrw1011@gmail.com
Free text


jrw1011@gmail.com
Free text
306

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle

jrw1011@gmail.com
Free text
08/26/2022



Page 4 of 4
Tenant Petition 

Rev. 09/14/2022 

-END OF PETITION-

TENANT VERIFICATION 
(Required) 

I/We declare under penalty of perjury pursuant to the laws of the State of California that everything I/we said in 
this Tenant Petition is true and that all of the documents attached to the Petition are true copies of the originals. 

Tenant 1 Signature Date 

Tenant 2 Signature Date 

CONSENT TO ELECTRONIC SERVICE 
(Highly Recommended) 

Check the box below if you agree to have RAP staff and the OTHER PARTY/PARTIES send you documents related to 
your case electronically. If you agree to electronic service, the RAP may send certain documents only electronically 
and not by first class mail. 

❑ I/We consent to receiving notices and documents in this matter from the RAP and from the OTHER
PARTY/IES electronically at the email address(es) provided in this response.

MEDIATION PROGRAM 

Mediation is an optional process offered by RAP to assist parties in settling the issues related to their Rent Adjustment 
case as an alternative to the formal hearing process. A trained third party will work with the parties prior to the hearing 
to see if a mutual agreement can be reached. If a settlement is reached, the parties will sign a binding agreement and 
there will not be a formal hearing. If no settlement is reached, the case will go to a formal hearing with a Rent 
Adjustment Hearing Officer, who will then issue a hearing decision. 

Mediation will only be scheduled if both parties agree to mediate. Sign below if you agree to mediation in your case. 

I agree to have the case mediated by a Rent Adjustment Program staff mediator. 

__________________________________________   __________________ 
Tenant Signature        Date

INTERPRETATION SERVICES 

If English is not your primary language, you have the right to an interpreter in your primary language/dialect at the Rent 
Adjustment hearing and mediation session. You can request an interpreter by completing this section.

❑ I request an interpreter fluent in the following
language at my Rent Adjustment proceeding:

❑ Spanish (Español)
❑ Cantonese (廣東話)

❑ Mandarin (普通话)

❑ Other: ____________________________

X

04/12/2023

04/12/2023

~tu~ 

1~r8~~-

000012

jrw1011@gmail.com
Free text
08/26/2022

jrw1011@gmail.com
Free text
08/26/2022

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle

jrw1011@gmail.com
Free text
4,332

jrw1011@gmail.com
Free text
05/26/2023

jrw1011@gmail.com
Free text
05/26/2023



[AFFIX THIS PAGE TO FRONT OF PETITION WHEN SERVING PROPERTY OWNER] 

[AFFIX THIS PAGE TO FRONT OF PETITION WHEN SERVING PROPERTY OWNER] 

NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNER OF TENANT 
PETITION 

ATTENTION: IMMEDIATE ACTION REQUIRED 

If you are receiving this NOTICE together with a completed TENANT PETITION form, it means 
that a tenant has filed a case against you with the Oakland Rent Adjustment Program (“RAP”) 
(commonly referred to as the “Rent Board”). 

➢ YOU MUST FILE A RESPONSE WITHIN 35 CALENDAR DAYS AFTER THE PETITION

WAS MAILED TO YOU (30 DAYS IF DELIVERED IN-PERSON).

➢ TO RESPOND:

1) Complete a PROPERTY OWNER RESPONSE form found on the RAP website.

(https://www.oaklandca.gov/services/respond-to-a-tenant-petition-for-the-rent-adjustment-

program)

2) Serve a copy of your PROPERTY OWNER RESPONSE form on the tenant (or the

tenant’s representative listed on the petition) by mail or personal delivery.

3) Complete a PROOF OF SERVICE form (which is attached to the Response form and also

available on the website) and provide a copy to the tenant (or tenant’s representative)

together with your PROPERTY OWNER RESPONSE form.

4) Submit your PROPERTY OWNER RESPONSE form and completed PROOF OF

SERVICE* form to RAP through RAP’s online portal, via email, or by mail.

*Note: The Response will not be considered complete until a PROOF OF SERVICE is
filed indicating that the tenant has been served with a copy.

DOCUMENT REVIEW: The tenant is required to serve on you all documents the tenant filed in 
this case in addition to the petition. Additionally, all documents are available for review at RAP. 

FOR ASSISTANCE: Contact a RAP Housing Counselor at (510) 238-3721 or by email at 
RAP@oaklandca.gov. Additional information is also available on the RAP website and on the 
PROPERTY OWNER RESPONSE form.

CITY OF OAKLAND 

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 Oakland, CA 

94612-0243 

(510) 238-3721

CA Relay Service 711

www.oaklandca.gov/RAP
CITY OF OAKLAND 

000013



Page 1 of 2 
Proof of Service 
Rev. 5/21/2021 

CITY OF OAKLAND 

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 
Oakland, CA 94612-0243 
(510) 238-3721
CA Relay Service 711
www.oaklandca.gov/RAP

For Rent Adjustment Program date stamp. 

PROOF OF SERVICE

NOTE: YOU ARE REQUIRED TO SERVE A COPY OF YOUR PETITION (PLUS ANY ATTACHMENTS) 
ON THE PROPERTY OWNER PRIOR TO FILING YOUR PETITION WITH RAP. You must include a 
copy of the RAP form “NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNER OF TENANT PETITION” (the preceding 
page of this petition packet) and a completed PROOF OF SERVICE form together with your 
Petition. 

1) Use this PROOF OF SERVICE form to indicate the date and manner of service and the person(s) served.

2) Note: Email is not a form of allowable service on a party of a petition or response pursuant to the Ordinance.
3) Provide a completed copy of this PROOF OF SERVICE form to the person(s) being served together with the

documents being served.

4) File a completed copy of this PROOF OF SERVICE form with RAP together with your Petition. Your Petition
will not be considered complete until this form has been filed indicating that service has occurred.

On the following date: _____/_____/_____ I served a copy of (check all that apply): 

❑ TENANT PETITION plus _14_____ attached pages (number of pages attached to Petition not 
counting the Petition form, NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNER OF TENANT PETITION, or 
PROOF OF SERVICE) 

❑ NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNER OF TENANT PETITION

❑ Other: ___________________________________________

by the following means (check one):

❑ United States Mail. I enclosed the document(s) in a sealed envelope or package addressed
to the person(s) listed below and at the address(es) below and deposited the sealed envelope
with the United States Postal Service, with the postage fully prepaid.

❑ Personal Service. I personally delivered the document(s) to the person(s) at the address(es)
listed below or I left the document(s) at the address(es) with some person not younger than
18 years of age.

/// 

/// 

/// 

X

04 14 2023

X

X

CITY OF OAKLAND 

000014

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle

jrw1011@gmail.com
Free text
05

jrw1011@gmail.com
Free text
26

jrw1011@gmail.com
Free text
131



Page 2 of 2 
Proof of Service 

Rev. 5/21/2021 

PERSON(S) SERVED: 

Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and 
correct. 

_______________________________________________ 

 PRINTED NAME 

 __________________________________________ ____________________ 

SIGNATURE DATE SIGNED

Melanie Godwin-Rosales

PO Box 2128 

Livermore, CA 94551

James Willis 

04/12/2023

000015

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle

jrw1011@gmail.com
Free text
05

jrw1011@gmail.com
Free text
26

jrw1011@gmail.com
Free text
, Larry Butac

jrw1011@gmail.com
Stamp

jrw1011@gmail.com
Stamp



 1 

 Description     of     problem     or 
 decreased     housing     service 
 (list     separately): 

 Date 
 problem     or 
 decreased 
 service 
 started: 
 (Month/Day/ 
 Year) 

 Date     first 
 notified 
 owner     or 
 manager 
 of     problem: 
 (Month/Day/Y 
 ear) 

 Date 
 problem     or 
 service 
 was 
 fixed,     if 
 ever: 
 (Month/Day/ 
 Year) 

 What     is 
 the 
 dollar 
 value     of 
 your 
 claimed 
 loss? 

 5.  Garage     Pipe     Leak     and     Feces 
 Leakage     on     Garage     Door 

 11/14/22  11/14/22  12/06/22  $262 

 6.  Baby     Pest     Issue  02/09/23  02/09/23  $377 

 7.  Broken     Mailbox  08/26/22  08/26/22  $246 

 8.  Incorrect     Garage     Assignment  08/26/22  08/26/22  04/02/23  $136 

 9.  Unfinished 
 Work-Kitchen/Dining     Area 

 08/26/22  08/26/22  $367 

 10.  Unfinished     Work-Living 
 Room 

 08/26/22  08/26/22  $148 

 11.  Unfinished     Work-Bathroom  08/26/22  08/26/22  $294 

 12.  Unfinished     Work-Bedroom  08/26/22  08/26/22  $168 

 13.  Kitchen     Breaker     for 
 Microwave     Outlet     and 
 Hoodfan 

 08/26/22  08/26/22  10/03/22  $136 

 14.  Security     Cameras 
 Malfunctioning 

 11/23/22  11/26/22  $147 

 15.  Elevator     Break-Ins,     Urination 
 and     Defecation 

 02/15/23  02/15/23  $136 

 16.  Bedroom     Walk     in     Closet 
 Light     Fixture 

 08/26/22  10/03/22  $234 

 17.  Broken     Garage     Door     J  02/16/23  02/17/23  04/02/23  $78 

 18.  Upstairs     Domestic     Violence 
 Disturbance     (Unit     305) 

 08/26/22  09/08/22  $233 

 19.  Upstairs     Pet     Disturbance 
 (Unit     305) 

 03/15/23  03/15/23  03/25/23  $553 

000016



 2 

 James     Willis,     Larry     Butac 
 260     Lee     Street,     Apt     205 
 Oakland,     CA     94610 
 318-789-4326,     559-920-5791 
 jrw1011@gmail.com  ,  larrybutac@gmail.com 

 March     27,     2023     (Updated     May     26,     2023) 

 Lease     Dates:     08/26/2022-08/25/2023     (1     year) 

 Melanie     Godwin-Rosales,  Godwin     Properties 
 PO     Box     2128 
 Livermore,     CA     94551 
 925-294-5860 
 godwinprop@aol.com 
 www.godwinproperties.net 

 Attention:     Property     Management 

 To:     Melanie     Godwin-Rosales 

 Subject:     Incomplete     Maintenance     Issues. 

 A.  Issues 
 a.  Resolved:     6 
 b.  Unresolved:     13 

 i.  1     is     in     violation     with     the     state     and     city     laws/code. 
 c.  Total:     19 

 B.  Unfinished     work     from     before,     during,     and     after     move-in     date     of     08/26/2022. 
 a.  After     the     holding     deposit     was     paid,     Property     Manager,     Christina     Nelson,     agreed 

 to     have     unfinished     work     completed     before     the     move-in     date.     Covid     delayed     the 
 progress     for     about     2-3     weeks. 

 b.  Move-in     inspection     was     completed     with     unfinished     work     still     undone     and     Property 
 Manager,     Christina     Nelson,     agreed     to     completing     them     within     the     first     30     days     of 
 the     tenancy.     She     expressed     that     Tenants,     James     Willis     and     Larry     Butac,     need     not 
 put     in     maintenance     requests     to     the     management     online     portal.     All     the     unfinished 
 work     was     not     completed. 

 C.  Selective     responses     to     certain     issues     but     not     responding     to     all     issues. 
 a.  Property     Owner,     Melanie     Godwin-Rosales     has     seldomly     responded     to     issues 

 prior     to     Tuesday,     03/28/2023     and     has     not     returned     any     phone     calls     at     all;     no 
 response     to     emails     since     10/28/2022     regarding     the     bathroom     leak. 

 b.  Property     Owner,     Melanie     Godwin-Rosales     hasn’t     returned     any     of     the     22     phone 
 calls/6     voicemails     the     Tenants     left. 

000017

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:larrybutac@gmail.com
http://294-5860www.godwinproperties.net/


 3 

 c.  Melanie     Godwin-Rosales,     the     owner,     sent     her     husband,     Chris     Rosales,     the 
 maintenance     supervisor     over     to     look     at     the     cameras     and     make     sure     we     were     ok. 
 Mr.     Rosales     blamed     all     issues     on     Christina     Nelson,     the     property     manager,     then 
 said     that     he     would     check     in     with     Mrs.     Rosales     and     Ms.     Nelson     about     a     plan     of 
 action. 

 d.  Melanie     Godwin-Rosales     credited     the     Tenants     rental     account     3%     ($58.35)     in     April 
 2023     for     dealing     with     all     the     issues. 

 D.  Property     Manager,     Christina     Nelson,     incompetence     and     lack     of     followthrough. 
 a.  Nelson     stopped     returning     the     Tenants’     calls     in     February     2023.     Resumed     returning 

 Tenants’     calls     on     04/14/2023. 
 E.  Tenant,     James     Willis,     offered     to     assist     with     management     on     12/06/2022;     no 

 response     from     Property     Management/Owner     about     the     email. 
 F.  Rent     and     Garage     Fee     has     always     been     paid     on     time     despite     unresolved/ongoing 

 issues. 

 1.  ISSUE:     Bathroom     Ceiling     Leak 
 DATE(S):     10/28/2022 
 LENGTH     OF     TIME:     210     days     (7     months) 
 RESOLVED/PENDING:     Pending. 

 REASON:     The     plumbers     never     came     to     apartment     205. 
 NOTES:     The     plumbers     went     upstairs     to     305.     The     leaks     inside     the     wall     deflated     48hrs     later,     but 
 the     wall     was     not     inspected. 
 MAINTENANCE     TICKET     #:     1075-1;     Attached     photo     to     online     maintenance     portal. 
 Communication     with     Property     Manager,     Christina     Nelson     and     Property     owner,     Melanie 
 Godwin-Rosales     via     email/text     messages. 

 2.  ISSUE:     Baby     Pest     Issue 
 DATE(S):     02/09/2023 
 LENGTH     OF     TIME:     106     days     (3.53     months) 
 RESOLVED/PENDING:     Pending. 

 REASON:     Property     Owner,     Melanie     Godwin-Rosales,     said     that     pest     control     would     give 
 me     a     call     and     come     out. 
 NOTES:     There     are     what     appears     to     be     baby     roaches     or     wood     bugs     inside     the     apartment     unit. 
 Mountings     were     discovered     inside     the     kitchen     cabinets.     There     are     also     cracks/access     points 
 inside     the     wood     of     the     kitchen     cabinetry.     Also,     there     are     bugs     that     fall     from     the     bathroom     fan     into 

000018



 4 

 the     face     bowl/sink.      Pest     Control     has     not     called     nor     visited     the     unit     but     there     was     a     card     hanger 
 on     the     washroom     door     on     Monday,      04/03/2023.     (photo     attached).     They     visited     the     property     and 
 treated     the     outside     but     did     not     call     the     Tenant     nor     come     inside     the     Tenant’s     unit.     Alameda 
 County     Vector     Control     Biologist     visited     the     unit     on     05/16/2023     and     verified     that     the     insects     in     the 
 photos     are     cockroaches.     Insect     casings     were     located     in     the     dishware     kitchen     cabinet. 
 MAINTENANCE     TICKET     #:     1156-1;     Photos     attached.     Attached     photos     to     online     maintenance 
 portal.     Communication     with     Property     Manager,     Christina     Nelson     and     Property     owner,     Melanie 
 Godwin-Rosales     via     email/text     messages. 

000019



 5 

 3.  ISSUE:     Broken     Garage     Door     J 
 DATE(S):     02/16/2023 
 LENGTH     OF     TIME:     45     days     (1.5     months) 
 RESOLVED/PENDING:     Resolved. 

 REASON:     A     transfer     from     Garage     J     to     Garage     I     took     place.     Property     Manager-Christina 
 Nelson     Christina     put     on     a     new     lock     on     Garage     door     I     and     provided     a     key     on     Sunday, 

www.patriotpest4U.com 

choosepatrlot@gmail.com 

4713 N. First Street #154 • Pleasanton, CA 94566 

793 S. Tracy Blvd., #135 • Tracy, CA 95376 

Your Patriot Technician, at11'-"'--A~&::""--=~-
serviced your property today at: 

--Z./eo &e, ,_,r 
We used the following material(s} 

p, ,'h 
In the following areas: 

P«1f".1:fW} d_(2dl'" h:1""15 

000020



 6 

 04/02/2023.     The     Landlord/Owner-Melanie     Godwin-Rosales     credited     the     Tenant’s     rental 
 account     $50     (30     day     credit).     The     credit     was     applied     to     the     April     2023     rent     payment. 

 NOTES:  The     initial     maintenance     ticket     #:     1160-1     was  removed     by     management     from     the 
 management     online     portal;     it’s     no     longer     visible     to     the     Tenants.  A     fair     credit     would     have 
 been     at     least     $75     (1.5     month)     because     the     door     wasn’t     functional     for     45     days.     This     could     have 
 been     resolved     in     2-3     days;     it     took     Christina     3     days     to     get     a     new     lock     and     key     for     Garage     I,     which 
 was     the     original     assigned     garage     for     the     unit,     according     to     the     lease.     The     door     is     too     heavy     to     lift 
 with     the     broken     cable     not     functioning     properly.     Tenant,     James     Willis,     requested     use     of     Garage     I 
 until     Garage     J     was     fixed;     a     key     was     not     provided.     On     2/27/2023,     Pedro     and     Abraham     from     R&S 
 Overhead     Garage     Door,     Inc.     attempted     to     fix     the     door.     They     stated     that     the     door     was     completed 
 and     left     without     testing     it     with     the     key.     Instead     of     replacing     the     broken     frame     and     broken     cable, 
 they     tried     to     salvage     the     broken     cable.      The     door     did     not     lock     properly;     it     took     2-3x     to     turn     then 
 lock.     The     cable     came     off     the     door     again.     The     door’s     cable     is     on     the     garage     floor     (photo 
 attached).     The     2     keys     were     returned     to     Christina     on     Sunday,     04/02/2023     (photo     attached).     R     & 
 S     Garage     Door     has     not     returned     to     fix     Garage     J.     Garage     I     had     carpeting     and     wood     inside     the 
 storage     area     (photo     attached);     it     was     placed     inside     the     storage     area     in     Garage     J.     The     Tenants 
 moved     their     belongings     from     Garage     J     to     I.     Garage     J     is     empty     (photo     attached). 
 MAINTENANCE     TICKET     #:     1160-1,     1183-1;     Attached     photos     to     online     maintenance     portal. 
 communication     with     Property     Manager,     Christina     Nelson     and     Property     owner,     Melanie 
 Godwin-Rosales     via     email/text     messages. 

000021



 7 

 4.  ISSUE:     Upstairs     Pet     Disturbance     (Unit     305) 
 DATE(S):     03/15/2023 
 LENGTH     OF     TIME:     10     days 
 RESOLVED/PENDING:     Resolved. 

 REASON:     Melanie     Godwin-Rosales,     Owner/Landlord,     contacted     the     tenant. 
 NOTES:  The     original     maintenance     ticket     #:     1184-1     was  removed     from     the     management 
 online     portal;     it’s     no     longer     visible     to     the     Tenants.  The     tenant     in     Unit     305     was     hosting     a 
 guest     that     had     a     dog.     The     dog’s     walking     and     barking     throughout     the     day     and     night     was     very 
 disturbing.     According     to     the     Lease     agreement;     pets     and     pet     sitting     isn’t     allowed.     “2.2     PETS. 
 PETS:     No     dog,     cat,     bird,     fish,     or     other     domestic     pet     or     animal     of     any     kind     may     be     kept     on,or 
 about,     the     premises     without     Landlord’s     prior     written     consent,     nor     shall     Tenant     do     any     “pet     sitting” 
 for     others     on     the     premises.”     “Apartment     and     Building     House     Rules,     QUIET     ENJOYMENT, 
 COMPLIANCE     WITH     LAWS,     TENANT     OBLIGATIONS     AND     CONDUCT:     4.     No     pets     will     be 
 allowed     in     the     unit,     at     any     time,     by     the     tenant,     or     by     the     tenants'     guests.”     The     guest     with     the     dog, 
 Sean     (also     known     as     Jay     via     social     media)     is     photographed     below     with     the     background     of     Unit 
 305     and     admitting     in     a     text     conversation     that     he     was     in     Unit     305.     Sean’s     profile     says 
 “dogperson”     in     the     hashtag     section.     The     social     media     app     showed     that     Sean     was     100     ft     away 
 from     unit     205,     meaning     he     was     inside     unit     305.     Tenant     James     in     205     offered     Sean     his     number     to 
 verify     that     he     was     in     305     and     Sean     did     so.     Sean     admitted     that     he     stays     there     then     said     it’s     his 
 “sister’s     house”. 

1\?-,~ 

(( 5 
'E'\ 

1Jcb LE 

~ 

000022



 8 

 MAINTENANCE     TICKET     #:     1184-1;     communication     with     Property     Manager,     Christina     Nelson 
 and     Property     owner,     Melanie     Godwin-Rosales     via     email/text     messages. 

000023



 9 

000024



 10 

 5.  ISSUE:     Broken     Mailbox 
 DATE(S):     08/26/2022 
 LENGTH     OF     TIME:     9     months     (270     days) 
 RESOLVED/PENDING:     Pending. 

 REASON:     There’s     a     repeat     theft     subject     that     continuously     steals     mail     and     packages     from 
 residents     at     this     property.     Packages     and     mail     are     still     being     stolen.     Management     plans     to 
 install     mailboxes     inside     the     laundry     room;     no     update     on     that.     A     report     was     filed     with 
 USPS.     The     mailbox     key     hole     is     not     secure;     it     doesn’t     always     lock     and     any     key     can     open 
 it.     A     USPS     Supervisor     left     a     notice     for     management     on     05/11/2023.     The     notice     was 
 uploaded     to     the     management     portal     system     and     sent     to     the     Owner/Landlord’s     email; 
 they     acknowledge     receipt     of     it.     The     online     management     portal     says     the     request     has 
 been     completed;     The     mailboxes     have     not     been     fixed. 

 NOTES:     Multiple     mailboxes     (8     out     of     15)     are     broken     into     and     haven’t     been     replaced.     Residents 
 have     been     victims     of     identity     theft     as     well. 
 MAINTENANCE     TICKET     #:     #1192-1     and  #1231-1  ;     communication  with     Property     Manager, 
 Christina     Nelson     and     Property     owner,     Melanie     Godwin-Rosales     via     email/text     messages. 

guests(s) complete an "application for rent" form, and if approved by Owner, add said Cuest(s) to the rental agreement. Owner reserves the 
right to make adjustments to Tenant's rent accord ingly, so as to compensate for added wear and tear on the premises caused by additional 
persons present in the unit. If Owner does not approve Lhe applica tion(s), tenant agrees to have guests leave the premises wit hin forty eight 
(48) hours of notice from Landlord to do so. Tenant agrees to be responsible fo r any damage incurred by guests while on the premises, and 
to hold Landlord harmless for any damage or injury tenant or tenant's guest may incur or cause. 

POSSESSION: If Tenant shall be unable to enter into and occupy the premises at the commencement date, Owner shall not be liable for 
damages to Tenant caused thereby, nor shall this Agreement be voidable, but during the period Tenant is unable to occupy sa id premises, 
Tenant shall not be liable for rent. 

PETS: o dog, cat, bird, fish, or other domestic pet or animal of any kind may be kept on, or about, the premises without Landlord's prior 
written consent, nor shall Tenan t do any "pet sitting" for others on the premisei 

charge. 
2. Personal checks that are returned fo r any reason require a return check fee of $15.00, in ad dition 
check has more than two returned checks, owner will no longer accept tenant's personal checks, and I 
order. 

QUIET ENJOYMENT, COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, TE ANT OBLIGATIO SAND CONDUCT: 
3. Only those tenants whose names are listed on the renta l agreement will be allowed as occupants. 
4. No ets will be allowed in the unit, at any time, b the tenant, orb the tenants' ests. 
5. Do not put garbage, sanitary napkins, cigare ttes, rice, matches, rags, or paper towels down the toil 

000025



 11 

 6.  ISSUE:     Elevator     Break-in,     Urination     and     Defecation 
 DATE(S):     02/15/2023 
 LENGTH     OF     TIME:     100     days     (3.33     months) 
 RESOLVED/PENDING:     Pending. 

 REASON:     The     elevator     door     has     no     door     seal,     like     the     laundry     room     door;     therefore,     it’s 
 easy     for     anyone     to     pick     the     lock     and     breakin. 

 NOTES:     This     is     a     safety     concern     because     anyone     can     access     the     elevator.     The     same     subject 
 who     steals     packages     and     breaks     in     the     mailboxes     is     the     same     person     who     breaks     in     the 
 elevator.     The     subject     is     a     repeat     offender     and     has     broken     into     the     elevator     numerous     times.     The 

Your Mailbox Needs 
Attention 

-- I _// 11.ijJf;d 
~ 1 ),{a,NJJJ,,Vv Z~o /»_ ~ • 

I . 
¥ WHICH ONE 

f il.. LOOKS LIKE 
~. YOUR MAIL 

\, 
I 

.Y a,,, 

1 • 

() ~ 
BOX? .... 

" 
. 

Postal regulations require customers to provid d • 
'f'fl<lil• lDor.'es ,,.;tslch me~ftiffit:lal·'Standards A e an, . erect at their own expense rural 
faults. • ·reca~. inspection d1sclosed'the Tallowing 

1. Your box is not an approved bo~ 
10. The Signal Flag needs aHenlion 

11. Your box is too near the road . 
2, The door needs attenlion 12. Your box is too far from the road 

3. B?x must be located so carrier can serve it 
13. Your box should face the road. 

without leavlng vehicle 14. Your box should be securely fastened to its 
support 

4. Your box is not waterproof 15. Your box should be made lelfel, and the post 
firmly planted 

5. Your box should be raised 
inches 16. A new post for your box should be provided 

6. Your box should be lowered 17. The rural box number must be printed in 
inches numerals not less than one inch high on the 

7. Your box mus\ be located on lhe right-hand 
side of the box visible to the carrier as they 

side of the road m the carrier's direction of 
approach It or on the box door 1f the boxes 

travel 
are grouped 

8. The approach to your box should be fi lled and 18. Your box should be painted to pre•,ent 

properly graded & kepi unobstructed al all rusting 

times 19. Your house number must be clearly 

9. The approach to your box should be kept displayed __ . an ycur flouse 

clear of snow, v~hicles, and other obstacles. or on your box 

Please help us prov· e yo 
by_-b<~.,...,,-"-'~~fJ-~'------------- - -
After this date, delivery se may be suspended until the fau lts are 
corrected. Your cooperatio greatly appreciated . 

PS Form 4056, February 1991 

000026



 12 

 subject     also     urinates     and     defecates     inside     the     elevator.     The     subject     sleeps,     camps     out     and 
 stores     items     inside     the     elevator.     A     report     was     filed     with     the     Oakland     Police     Department     by     the 
 Property     Manager     and     Tenants     on     2/15/2023     over     the     phone.     The     most     recent     break     in     was     on 
 May     5th     2023;     the     subject's     photo     and     police     report     information     is     below.     MAINTENANCE 
 TICKET     #:     #1193-1     and  #1229-1  ;     Communication     with  Property     Manager,     Christina     Nelson     and 
 Property     owner,     Melanie     Godwin-Rosales     via     email/text     messages.     Attached     photos     to     online 
 maintenance     portal. 

Officer:') \10\,h"""'"" 
Sedal #:~Date: 1:;, f"'"''-\ 1'=' 
RD#: :r: lj C <:;, ({/=, 

00 
. l5 

000027



 13 

 7.  ISSUE:     Security     Cameras     Malfunctioning
 DATE(S):     11/23/2022
 LENGTH     OF     TIME:     184     days     (6.13     months)
 RESOLVED/PENDING:     Pending.

 REASON:     No     new     update     from     property     management/owner. 
 NOTES:     Tenant,     James     Willis,     Inquired     (via     text)     about     the     security     cameras     to     Property 
 Management,     Melaine     Godwin-Rosales     on     03/23/2023;     no     response.     Property     Manager, 
 Christina     Nelson,     stated     that     a     company     would     come     out     in     March     2023     to     look     at     them;     they     did 
 not     come     out.     No     update     from     management. 
 MAINTENANCE     TICKET     #:     #1194-1;     Communication     with     Property     Manager,     Christina     Nelson 
 and     Property     owner,     Melanie     Godwin-Rosales     via     email/text     messages.     Chris     Rosales     came     by 
 on     03/38/2023     to     observe     the     cameras. 

 8.  ISSUE:     Garage     Pipe     Leak     and     Feces     Leakage     on     Garage  Door
 DATE(S):     11/14/2022-12/06/2022
 LENGTH     OF     TIME:     22     days
 RESOLVED/PENDING:     Resolved.

 REASON:     Plumbing     company     came     and     fixed     the     leak;     however,     Property     Manager, 
 Christina     Nelson     didn’t     properly     clean     the     feces     leakage     off     the     entire     garage     door. 
 Tenant,     James     Willis,     sent     photos     afterwards.     Because     the     feces     water     dried     up,     it     could 
 not     be     cleaned     with     wet     wipes.     Tenant     James     purchased     a     water     hose,     washed     and 
 cleaned     the     garage     door     himself.     The     water     hose     on     the     premises     that     belongs     to     the 
 property     did     not     reach     far     enough     to     clean     the     garage     door. 

 NOTES:     Tenant     James     had     to     open     and     close     a     garage     for     22     days     with     feces     water     on     it     and 
 smelly.. 
 MAINTENANCE     TICKET     #:     N/A;     Communication     with     Property     Manager,     Christina     Nelson     and 
 Property     owner,     Melanie     Godwin-Rosales     via     email/text     messages. 

000028



 14 

 9.  ISSUE:     Bedroom     Walk     in     Closet     Light     Fixture 
 DATE(S):     08/26/2022-10/03/2022 
 LENGTH     OF     TIME:     38     days     (1.27     months) 
 RESOLVED/PENDING:     Resolved. 

 REASON:     The     light     fixture     in     the     bedroom     did     not     work.     After     constantly     following     up 
 multiple     times     with     Property     Manager,     Chrisitina     Nelson,     she     came     and     fixed     it. 

 NOTES:     Had     to     use     a     flashlight,     the     room     light     to     see     into     the     closet     for     38     days     after     move-in. 
 MAINTENANCE     TICKET     #:     N/A;     communication     with     Property     Manager,     Christina     Nelson     and 
 Property     owner,     Melanie     Godwin-Rosales     via     email/text     messages. 

 10.  ISSUE:     Kitchen     Breaker     for     Microwave     Outlet     and  Hoodfan 
 DATE(S):     08/26/2022,     10/03/2022 
 LENGTH     OF     TIME:     224     days     (7.47     months) 
 RESOLVED/PENDING:     Pending. 

 REASON:     On     Monday,     04/03/2023     Property     Owner,     Melanie     Godwin-Rosales     texted 
 asking     if     Christina     had     taken     a     look     at     it.     Property     Manager,     Christina     Nelson,     has     not     followed 
 up/through. 
 NOTES:     Unable     to     use     multiple     appliances     at     once     without     the     breaker     going     out.     Went     38     days 
 without     a     functioning     microwave     outlet     and     hood     fan.     Property     Manager,     Christina     Nelson, 
 rigged     the     outlet     to     make     it     and     the     hoodfan     work     but     the     kitchen     did     not     allow     for     multiple 
 appliances     to     be     used     without     the     breaker     going     out.     It     was     fixed     sometime     between     April     6     and 
 7th;     although     those     days     were     not     days     that     permission     was     allowed     to     enter     the     unit,     we 
 noticed     that     the     breaker     no     longer     went     out     when     using     multiple     appliances     at     once.     It     may     have 
 been     fixed     outside     the     unit     or     something,     not     sure     how     it     got     fixed. 

FREE Prime Delivery 

Delivered 

Ovareo Garden Hose, 
Flexible and 
Expandable Garden 
Hoses, Heavy Duty .. . 
Qty: 1 

Sold By: LightHose 

$19.99 

000029



 15 

 MAINTENANCE     TICKET     #:     1195-1;     communication     with     Property     Manager,     Christina     Nelson 
 and     Property     owner,     Melanie     Godwin-Rosales     via     email/text     messages. 

 11.  ISSUE:     Unfinished     Work-Kitchen/Dining     Area 
 DATE(S):     08/26/2022 
 LENGTH     OF     TIME:     9     months     (270     days) 
 RESOLVED/PENDING:     Pending 

 REASON:     No     follow     up/follow     through. 
 NOTES:     Kitchen     window     needs     a     screen,     blinds,     and     screen     clips.     Tenant,     Larry     Butac,     bought 
 screen     clips.     Cabinetry     is     missing     latches.     Backsplash     is     missing     caulking.     All     this     is     in     the     move 
 in     inspection. 
 MAINTENANCE     TICKET     #:     1196-1;     Communication     with     Property     Manager,     Christina     Nelson 
 via     text     messages.     Attached     photos     to     online     maintenance     portal. 

 12.  ISSUE:     Unfinished     Work-Living     Room 
 DATE(S):      08/26/2022 
 LENGTH     OF     TIME:     Pending 
 RESOLVED/PENDING:     9     months     (270     days) 

 REASON:     No     follow     up/follow     through. 
 NOTES:     Living     room     window     needed     a     screen     and     screen     clips.     Tenant,     Larry     Butac,     bought 
 screen     clips.     Tenant     James     Willis     purchased     polycarbonate     sheets     to     cover     the     windows     that 
 had     no     screens.     Window     does     not     fully     close;     the     opening     causes     more     cold     air     to     enter     inside 
 the     apartment     and     more     heat     to     leave     the     apartment     when     on;     resulting     in     a     high     electric     bill. 
 The     windows     are     single     pane.     The     tenants     purchased     heavy     velvet     curtains     to     help     keep     out 
 some     of     the     cold     air.     Counter     is     missing     a     countertop.     A     mirror     is     used     to     cover     the     hole. 
 Furnace     was     left     unclean     and     not     working.     All     of     this     was     in     the     move     in     inspection.     The 
 management     still     has     not     provided     a     copy     to     the     tenants.     The     City     of     Oakland     inspector     visited 
 the     property     on     5/10/23     and     discovered     that     the     broken     window     does     not     close     properly     then 
 completed     a     Request     for     Service:     Tenant     complaint     form     to     contact     the     Owner/Landlord. 
 MAINTENANCE     TICKET     #:     1197-1;     Communication     with     Property     Manager,     Christina     Nelson 
 and     Property     owner,     Melanie     Godwin-Rosales     via     email/text     messages.     Attached     photos     to 
 online     maintenance     portal. 

000030



 16 

CITY OF OAKLAND 

250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA ■ SUITE 2340 • OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 94612-2031 
Planning & Building Department 
Bureau of Building 
Building Pennits, Inspections and Code Enforcement Services 
inspectioncounter@oaklandnet.com 

( 510) 238-6402 
FAX:(510) 238-2959 
TDD:(5 I 0) 238-3254 

Request for Service: Tenant Complaint 

Property Address: d{,IJ t. ff sT Unit No. ~ Inspection Date: s;/loj~ · 
Complaint No. ; 3t1~11/.3 . lnspector: __ 7'--· .L>e....L.1.:,,c.-ca..:..1' _ _____ Phone No. C•04) .J ,L¥· 2,.a 'I 
Complainant's Name: \..)t.V>i,s t:>ttt,=s Phone No. /"vt~J U2·Y1:i 
Owner/Manager: HelPJ>,£ Go.,/.,iM,,. Phone No. l"'l~~) • :l'i'l-,ra,a. 

INSPECTION: 
PROPERTY MAINTENANCE: 

D Overgrown vegetation: _________ _ 
D Trash & debris: ___ _ _ ______ _ 

□ Lack of/Inadequate garbage service: _ ___ _ 
D Uoapprove open storage _ _______ _ 
□ Unapproved parking __________ _ 

}rJ) Window defects: J{J R>z 'i ,-/.oi;,I! .L:11?•~2 /"t. 
I I / 

D Lack of window egress: 

□ Lacks of light/ventilation: 

D Mice/rodents/roaches: 

□ Roof leaking/damaged: 
f □ Doors/locks: 
I □ Stairs/decks/railing: 

BUILDING MAINTENANCE: □ Exterior walls/windows/trim: 

□ Blocked exits: 

□ No resident manager (required 16 units or more) 

D Unperrnitted work: 

□ Unperrnitted work: 

D Undocumented residential unit: 

0 Electrical: 
D Plumbing: _____________ _ 

D Plumbing leak: _ _ _ ___ ______ _ 

D Clogged sink/toilet: _ _________ _ 

D . Building sewer blockage: - - - - - - - ---,-
□ Lack of/defective beating system: _____ _ 
D Mechanical: _ ____ ___ _____ _ 

D Wall/ceiling/floor defects: 

D Missing/Inoperative smoke/carbon monoxide 
detectors: _ _ _ _ _ __________ 

1 

□ Others: ----- ----- - ------------- ------ - ------1 

□ Others: - - ------ - - - --- ------- ---- - - -----------1 
D Others:----------- --------- --=------- -------~ 

D Surface mold present on----- - ------------------ - - ---- - - --, 
See brochure for remediation guideli nes. (Description required, e.g. bedroom wall under window, tub ceiling) 

Note: Items identified on this form above are for investigation purposes only. If they are determined to be code 
violations, they will be specified in an official Notice of Violation by the inspector. 

Complainant Only: I certify that I have notified the owner/manager of the above identified item(s) and I will allo 
:he owner or agents with proper notice as governed by State law to enter my unit in order to make all necessary 
·epairs . 

. equest for Serv· 

000031



 17 

 13.  ISSUE:     Unfinished     Work-Bathroom 
 DATE(S):      08/26/2022 
 LENGTH     OF     TIME:     9     months     (270     days) 
 RESOLVED/PENDING:     Pending 

 REASON:     No     follow     up/follow     through 
 NOTES:     Painting     of     walls,     ceiling,     and     door     left     unfinished.     No     caulk     or     transition     strip     between 
 floor     and     bathtub.     One     towel     rack     isn’t     secured.     Bathroom     heater     was     left     uncleaned.     Unable     to 
 use     face     bowel     stopper     in     sink     because     the     lever     behind     the     faucet     can’t     be     lifted;     the     lever     is 
 flushed     with     the     granite.     Bathroom     fan     needs     cleaning     and     insects     fall     from     the     fan     into     the     sink. 
 This     was     mentioned     in     the     move-in     inspection. 
 MAINTENANCE     TICKET     #:     1198-1;     communication     with     Property     Manager,     Christina     Nelson 
 and     Property     owner,     Melanie     Godwin-Rosales     via     email/text     messages. 

000032



 18 

 14.  ISSUE:     Unfinished     Work-Bedroom
 DATE(S):      08/26/2022
 LENGTH     OF     TIME:     9     months     (270     days)
 RESOLVED/PENDING:     Pending.

 REASON:     No     follow     up/follow     through. 
 NOTES:     Bedroom     window     needed     a     screen,     and     screen     clips.     Tenant,     Larry     Butac,     bought 
 screen     clips.     No     transition     strip     at     bedroom     door     or     closet     door.     Bedroom     door     is     also 
 misaligned     and     doesn't     close     properly.     Ceiling     paint     spots     are     incomplete.     No     transition     strip 
 between     carpet     and     floor     for     door     entrance     and     the     closet     door.     The     carpet     is     unraveling.     This 
 was     in     the     move-in     inspection. 
 MAINTENANCE     TICKET     #:     1199-1;     Communication     with     Property     Manager,     Christina     Nelson 
 and     Property     owner,     Melanie     Godwin-Rosales     via     email/text     messages. 

000033



 19 

 15.  ISSUE:     Mold     in     Bathroom 
 DATE(S):     08/26/2022 
 LENGTH     OF     TIME:     9     months 
 RESOLVED/PENDING:     Pending. 

 REASON:     Melanie     Godwin-Rosales,     the     Owner/Landlord,     said     they     would     decide     which 
 is     most     important     and     start.     No     one     has     started     on     it     yet. 
 NOTES:     There’s     rust     and     black     colored     mold     in     the     expansion     gap     between     the     wood     floor     and 
 tub.     The     implied     warranty     of     habitability     Cal.     Civ.     Code     §     1941.1(a)     is     in     violation     and     has     been 
 since     08/26/2023     (7     months+)     due     to     lack     of     proper     waterproofing     for     the     expansion     gap     and     the 
 floor     not     being     in     good     repair.     This     was     preventable     as     it     was     addressed     during     the     inspection. 
 Installing     a     vinyl     plank     or     transition     strip     would     have     prevented     this.     The     bathroom     doesn’t     have 
 a     window     so     when     showering/bathing,     the     tenants     use     the     bathroom     fan     and     leave     the     door 
 open     as     agreed     upon     in     the     lease.     One     of     the     tenants     is     allergic     to     mold.     The     expansion     gap 
 was     mentioned     in     the     move-in     inspection. 
 MAINTENANCE     TICKET     #:     1200-1;     Communication     with     Property     Manager,     Christina     Nelson 
 and     Property     owner,     Melanie     Godwin-Rosales     via     email/text     messages.     Attached     photos     to 
 online     maintenance     portal. 

 16.  ISSUE:     Incorrect     Garage     Assignment 
 DATE(S):     08/26/2022 
 LENGTH     OF     TIME:     220     Days     (7.23     months) 
 RESOLVED/PENDING:     Resolved. 

 REASON:     Christina     Nelson,     said     she     would     provide     the     tenant     with     the     key     but     didn’t 
 until     Sunday,     04/02/2023. 
 NOTES:     The     lease     agreement     says     garage     "I"     on     page     2.     And     it     says     that     "Any     change     in 
 Tenant's     parking     space     is     to     first     be     approved     by     the     Owner     in     writing".      I     was     initially     assigned 
 garage     I     on     move-in     day     but     Christina     gave     me     the     wrong     key     and     just     told     me     to     go     ahead     and 
 use     garage     J.     It     was     never     in     writing. 
 MAINTENANCE     TICKET     #:     1201-1;     Communication     with     Property     Manager,     Christina     Nelson 
 and     Property     owner,     Melanie     Godwin-Rosales     via     email/text     messages. 

000034



 20 

 17.  ISSUE:     Inadequate     Heating 
 DATE(S):     08/26/2022 
 LENGTH     OF     TIME:     8     months     (240     days) 
 RESOLVED/PENDING:     Resolved. 

 REASON:  HVAC     (Les     &     Frank)     visited     Monday,     04/03/2023.  They     did     an     assessment     on 
 the     heaters     only     and     said     they     would     share     details     with     property     management     and     the     owner. 
 Nothing     was     cleaned     nor     fixed.     They     are     awaiting     instructions     from     Godwin     Properties.     The 
 Tenants     proposed     using     the     repair     and     deduct     remedy;     no     response     from     property 
 management/owner. 
 NOTES:     Under     the     implied     warranty     of     habitability,     landlords     must     provide     renters     with     a     unit 
 suitable     for     habitation.     Under     local     and     state     laws,     this     means     providing     essential     services, 
 including     heat.     There     isn’t     adequate     heating     in     Unit     205     at     260     Lee     St.     The     implied     warranty     of 
 habitability     Cal.     Civ.     Code     §     1941.1(a)     is     in     violation     and     has     been     since     08/26/2023     (8     months) 
 due     to     lack     of     limited     heating     facilities     and     the     only     heating     facilities     (living     room     wall     heater)     in 
 the     unit     is     not     in     good     working     order/well-maintained.     This     was     preventable     as     it     was     addressed 
 during     the     initial     inspection. 
 California     Code     of     Regulations     (25     CCR     §     34)     is     in     violation.     Every     dwelling     unit     and     guest     room 
 used     or     offered     for     rent     or     lease     shall     be     provided     with     heating     facilities     capable     of     maintaining     a 
 minimum     room     temperature     of     70     degrees     F     at     a     point     three     feet     above     the     floor     in     all     habitable 
 rooms.     The     bedroom,     living     room     and     kitchen/dining     room     are     habitable     rooms;     there’s     no     heat 
 facility     provided     by     the     landlord     for     the     bedroom     and     kitchen/dining     rooms.     And     the     living     room 
 wall     heater     is     not     working     and     not     in     good     condition.      The     temperature     of     the     habitable     rooms     in 
 the     unit     are     below     70     degrees     F;     see     attached     photo.     In     a     rental     unit,     rooms     such     as     bedrooms, 
 the     living     room     and     kitchen     require     heat.     Bathrooms,     closets,     hallways     and     storage     rooms     may 
 remain     unheated. 
 Oakland     Housing     Ordinances     Healthy     Homes     Provisions     City     of     Oakland,     California-Chapter 
 15.08     OAKLAND     HOUSING     CODE     is     in     violation.     15.08.340     Inadequate     Sanitation.     Buildings     or 
 portions     thereof     shall     be     deemed     substandard     when     they     are     unsanitary.     Inadequate     sanitation 

Lease v 

:•· .. ::•· ··•·"'"'' ... 
minimum vehicle insurance for liability, property 
times, and to be kept in good operable condition 
abandoned and subject to being towed at vehicle 
ranee ways or drive ways of others, will be cited 

1ant's vehicle has a leak of any type, upon notice 
;, and to have said leak repaired prior to returning 
Tenant is not to do any type of work, mechanical 
ehicle on the premises. Vehicles herein referred 
, boats, trailers, motor homes, any other type of 
roperly locked up and if so, they do at their own 

r any other part of their vehicle on, or near, the 
1ot to run an automotive repair or sales business 
:reet. Tenant to use parking stall marked as_!_, as 
r month in addition to the monthly rental charge. 
this parking space is a garage with an automatic 

000035



 21 

 shall     include,     but     not     be     limited     to,     the     following:     6.     lack     of     adequate     heating     facilities.     Facilities 
 is     plural,     meaning     more     than     one. 
 The     landlord     has     failed     to     maintain     the     property     and     conduct     repairs     upon     the     request     of     the 
 tenant     (generally     the     landlord     is     given     a     30     day     grace     period).     It’s     been     over     7     months.     The 
 tenant     may     perform     the     repair     and     subtract     the     cost     from     the     rent     owed,     or     he     or     she     may 
 vacate     the     premises     and     be     freed     from     any     outstanding     obligations     under     his     lease     [CA     Civil 
 Code     Sec.     1942]. 
 Bedroom     Temperature     without     heat-67.2     F 
 Living     Room     Temperature     without     heat-68.9     F 

 It’s     past     the     30     day     grace     period     for     the     landlord     to     correct     these     violations.     The     tenants 
 are     interested     in     seeking     the     legal     remedy     of     the     “repair     and     deduct”     method.     The     tenants     have 
 been     using     3     portable     heaters     to     keep     the     habitable     rooms     warm     (bedroom,     dining     room/kitchen 
 area,     living     room)     throughout     the     fall/winter     months     while     Godwin     Properties     didn’t     respond     by 
 phone,     texts     and     emails. 
 MAINTENANCE     TICKET     #:     1205-1;     Communication     with     Property     Manager,     Christina     Nelson 
 and     Property     owner,     Melanie     Godwin-Rosales     via     email/text     messages.     Photos     attached     to     the 

 online     portal     and     included     below. 

000036



 22 

000037



 23 

 18.  ISSUE:     Upstairs     Domestic     Violence     Disturbance  (Unit     305) 
 DATE(S):     08/26/2022 
 LENGTH     OF     TIME:     9     months 
 RESOLVED/PENDING:     Pending. 

 REASON:     The     Tenant     (Unit     305)     continues     allowing     the     husband     to     come     back     to     the 
 unit. 
 NOTES:     This     is     a     violation     of     the     Lease;     “8.     Apartment     and     Building     House     Rules,     QUIET 
 ENJOYMENT,     COMPLIANCE     WITH     LAWS,     TENANT     OBLIGATIONS     AND     CONDUCT:     3.     Only 

Order summary 

Order subtotal : 

Careplan & Services: 

Walmart shipping 

Total tax 

Order total 

Billing information 

Billing 
address 

Payment 
method(s) 

$143.72 

$14.00 

FREE 

$12.00 

$155.72 

James Willis Gift Card ending in 9861 

Item Qty Total 

Mainstays 1500W Electric 2 $129.72 

Infrared Cabinet 

DF1911 

$64.86 

Walmart Protection Plan 
Delivery 

Item Qty Total 

2-Year Protection Plan For $7.00 

Hardware $60-$79.99 

$7.00 

2-Year Protection Plan For 

Hardware $60-$79.99 

$7.00 

$7.00 

000038



 24 

 those     tenants     whose     names     are     listed     on     the     rental     agreement     will     be     allowed     as     occupants.” 
 Oakland     Police,     4     officers,     visited     unit     205     on     09/07/2022     at     approximately     2am     knocking     on     the 
 window     with     flashlights     and     knocking     on     the     door     until     we     answered.     The     officers     were     looking 
 for     a     black     male     adult     about     a     break-in     dispatched     at     this     address.     The     dispatcher     redirected     the 
 officers     to     unit     305.     The     husband     of     the     tenant     in     unit     305     allegedly     attempted     to     break-in     the 
 unit     because     the     tenant     denied     the     suspect     access.     Tenant,     James     Willis,     notified     Property 
 Manager,     Christina     Nelson,     on     several     occasions     and     also     called     Oakland     Police     on     12/13.2022 
 when     the     Tenant     (Unit     305)     was     yelling/screaming     for     the     alleged     aggressor     (the     husband)     to     let 
 go.     There     were     sounds     of     throwing     objects,     banging     on     the     walls,      arguing,     screaming,     running 
 sounds     on     the     floors.     Property     Manager,     Chrisitina     Nelson,     mentioned     sending     a     letter     to     the 
 Tenant     (Unit     305)     on     01/15/2023.     The     most     recent     domestic     violence     activity     occurred     on 
 03/29/2023     at     approximately     12pm;     04/01/2023     at     approximately     10pm.     A     short     voice     recording 
 was     sent     to     the     property     management     on     12/22/2022.     Three     short     voice     recordings     of     the 
 altercation     between     the     tenant     in     305     and     her     husband     (6     photos     of     him)     were     sent     to     property 
 owner     and     management. 
 MAINTENANCE     TICKET     #:     1202-1;     Communication     with     Property     Manager,     Christina     Nelson 
 and     Property     owner,     Melanie     Godwin-Rosales     via     email/text     messages. 

000039



 25 

 19.  ISSUE:     Broken     Window/No     Screens 
 DATE(S):     08/26/2022 
 LENGTH     OF     TIME:     9     months 
 RESOLVED/PENDING:     No     decision. 

 REASON:     No     update     from     management. 
 NOTES:     Under     the     implied     warranty     of     habitability,     landlords     must     provide     renters     with     a     unit 
 suitable     for     habitation.     Under     local     and     state     laws,     this     means     providing     essential     services,     such 
 as     effective     weather     protection.     There     is     a     broken     window     and     windows     without     screens     in     Unit 
 205     at     260     Lee     St.     This     was     preventable     as     it     was     addressed     during     the     initial     inspection     on 
 8/26/2022. 
 The     implied     warranty     of     habitability     Cal.     Civ.     Code     §     1941.1(a)(1)     is     presently     being     violated     and 
 has     been     since     08/26/2022     (7     months+)     due     to     a     broken     window.     The     window     is     faulty     due     to 
 the     fact     that     it     is     broken. 
 Godwin     Properties     is     in     further     violation     according     to     Healthy     Homes     Provisions     of     City     of 
 Oakland,     California     OAKLAND     HOUSING     CODE.     Within     the     code,     Article     X     Substandard 
 Buildings     15.08.340     states     the     following:     H.     Faulty     Weather     Protection.     Buildings     or     portions 
 thereof     shall     be     considered     substandard     when     they     have     faulty     weather     protection     which     shall 
 include,     but     not     be     limited     to,     the     following:     2.     deteriorated     or     ineffective     waterproofing     of     exterior 
 walls,     roof,     foundations     or     floors,     including     broken     windows     or     doors.     As     previously     indicated, 
 the     window     in     question     is     substandard     because     of     faulty     weather     protection.     Again,     this     was 
 addressed     during     the     initial     inspection     on     08/26/2022     and     has     yet     to     be     fixed.     The     maintenance 
 supervisor,     Chris     Rosales,     saw     the     broken     window     and     window     covers     during     his     visit     on 
 Tuesday,     03/28/2023.     The     tenants     purchased     3     custom     polycarbonate     panes      specific     to     the 
 dimensions     of     the     windows     that     also     assist     with     properly     ventilating     the     unit.     In     addition,     the 
 tenants     purchased     2     packs     of     screen     fasteners. 
 $348.40     (3     covers     for     the     windows     without     screens) 
 $7.92     2     (packs     of     screen     fasteners) 
 $1.64     ($0.585     cent     per     mile*     x     (round     trip     from     unit     to     Ace     Hardware     in     Piedmont,     CA     2.8     miles)) 
 $11.70     ($0.585     cent     per     mile*     x     (round     trip     from     unit     to     TAP     Plastics     in     El     Cerrito,     CA     20     miles)) 
 MAINTENANCE     TICKET     #:     It’s     connected     to     tickets     1196-1,     1197-1     and     1199-1;Communication 
 with     Property     Manager,     Christina     Nelson     and     Property     owner,     Melanie     Godwin-Rosales. 

000040



 26 

CITY OF OAKLAND 

250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA ■ SUITE 2340 • OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 94612-2031 
Planning & Building Department 
Bureau of Building 
Building Pennits, Inspections and Code Enforcement Services 
inspectioncounter@oaklandnet.com 

( 510) 238-6402 
FAX:(510) 238-2959 
TDD:(5 I 0) 238-3254 

Request for Service: Tenant Complaint 

Property Address: d{,IJ t. ff sT Unit No. ~ Inspection Date: s;/loj~ · 
Complaint No. ; 3t1~11/.3 . lnspector: __ 7'--· .L>e....L.1.:,,c.-ca..:..1' _ _____ Phone No. C•04) .J ,L¥· 2,.a 'I 
Complainant's Name: \..)t.V>i,s t:>ttt,=s Phone No. /"vt~J U2·Y1:i 
Owner/Manager: HelPJ>,£ Go.,/.,iM,,. Phone No. l"'l~~) • :l'i'l-,ra,a. 

INSPECTION: 
PROPERTY MAINTENANCE: 

D Overgrown vegetation: _________ _ 
D Trash & debris: ___ _ _ ______ _ 

□ Lack of/Inadequate garbage service: _ ___ _ 
D Uoapprove open storage _ _______ _ 
□ Unapproved parking __________ _ 

}rJ) Window defects: J{J R>z 'i ,-/.oi;,I! .L:11?•~2 /"t. 
I I / 

D Lack of window egress: 

□ Lacks of light/ventilation: 

D Mice/rodents/roaches: 

□ Roof leaking/damaged: 
f □ Doors/locks: 
I □ Stairs/decks/railing: 

BUILDING MAINTENANCE: □ Exterior walls/windows/trim: 

□ Blocked exits: 

□ No resident manager (required 16 units or more) 

D Unperrnitted work: 

□ Unperrnitted work: 

D Undocumented residential unit: 

0 Electrical: 
D Plumbing: _____________ _ 

D Plumbing leak: _ _ _ ___ ______ _ 

D Clogged sink/toilet: _ _________ _ 

D . Building sewer blockage: - - - - - - - ---,-
□ Lack of/defective beating system: _____ _ 
D Mechanical: _ ____ ___ _____ _ 

D Wall/ceiling/floor defects: 

D Missing/Inoperative smoke/carbon monoxide 
detectors: _ _ _ _ _ __________ 

1 

□ Others: ----- ----- - ------------- ------ - ------1 

□ Others: - - ------ - - - --- ------- ---- - - -----------1 
D Others:----------- --------- --=------- -------~ 

D Surface mold present on----- - ------------------ - - ---- - - --, 
See brochure for remediation guideli nes. (Description required, e.g. bedroom wall under window, tub ceiling) 

Note: Items identified on this form above are for investigation purposes only. If they are determined to be code 
violations, they will be specified in an official Notice of Violation by the inspector. 

Complainant Only: I certify that I have notified the owner/manager of the above identified item(s) and I will allo 
:he owner or agents with proper notice as governed by State law to enter my unit in order to make all necessary 
·epairs . 

. equest for Serv· 

000041



 27 

 Call     Log     Property     Owner/Landlord     (925)     294-5860 

 Date     (Pacific)  Number  Destination  Minutes 

 08/10/2022     12:08 
 PM 

 (925) 
 294-5860 

 to 
 Livermore/CA  1     Min 

 08/15/2022     2:29     PM 
 (925) 
 294-5860 

 to 
 Livermore/CA  1     Min 

 08/15/2022     3:29     PM 
 (925) 
 294-5860 

 to 
 Livermore/CA  1     Min 

 08/15/2022     3:56     PM 
 (925) 
 294-5860 

 to 
 Livermore/CA  1     Min 

 08/16/2022     2:48     PM 
 (925) 
 294-5860 

 to 
 Livermore/CA  1     Min 

 08/16/2022     2:50     PM 
 (925) 
 294-5860 

 to 
 Livermore/CA  2     Min 

 08/19/2022     2:26     PM 
 (925) 
 294-5860 

 to 
 Livermore/CA  1     Min 

 08/21/2022     1:50     PM 
 (925) 
 294-5860 

 to 
 Livermore/CA  1     Min 

< Transaction Details 

I! 
TAP PLASTICS 

-$348.40 

Transaction details 

Type Card 

EL CERRITO, CA 94530 

Description 

Also known as 

Merchant type 

Method 

Category 

TAP PLASTICS INC #28 EL CERRITO 
CA 

TAP PLASTICS 

Nondurable goods 

In person 

Shopping 

< Details 

0. How can we help? 

GRAND LAKE ACE 
HDWE 
PURCHASE 
PIEDMONT CA 

Amount 

> 

-$7.92 

Type Debit Card 

Merchant name <D 

ACE HARDWARE 

Transaction category 

Home & Utilities: Home Improvement 

i secureArea Privacy Security Advert is;n9Practices 

Legalln !o&Disclosures EoualHousingLender G} 

Bank of America, N.A. Member FDIC. © 2023 Bank of America Corpora tion 

> 

000042



 28 

 08/22/2022     2:48     PM 
 (925) 
 294-5860 

 to 
 Livermore/CA  2     Min 

 10/25/2022     10:44 
 PM 

 (925) 
 294-5860 

 to 
 Livermore/CA  3     Min 

 10/26/2022     4:38     PM 
 (925) 
 294-5860 

 to 
 Livermore/CA  1     Min 

 10/27/2022     5:14     PM 
 (925) 
 294-5860 

 to 
 Livermore/CA  1     Min 

 10/27/2022     7:28     PM 
 (925) 
 294-5860 

 to 
 Livermore/CA  1     Min 

 02/21/2023     1:52     PM 
 (925) 
 294-5860 

 to 
 Livermore/CA  2     Min 

 02/21/2023     1:55     PM 
 (925) 
 294-5860 

 to 
 Livermore/CA  2     Min 

 02/21/2023     1:56     PM 
 (925) 
 294-5860 

 to 
 Livermore/CA  2     Min 

 02/21/2023     1:59     PM 
 (925) 
 294-5860 

 to 
 Livermore/CA  3     Min 

 02/22/2023     12:37 
 PM 

 (925) 
 294-5860 

 to 
 Livermore/CA  2     Min 

 02/27/2023     1:25     PM 
 (925) 
 294-5860 

 to 
 Livermore/CA  1     Min 

 03/29/2023     1:33     PM 
 (925) 
 294-5860 

 to 
 Livermore/CA  2     Min 

 03/30/2023     4:37     PM 
 (925) 
 294-5860 

 to 
 Livermore/CA  2     Min 

 05/20/2023     10:38 
 AM 

 (925) 
 294-5860 

 to 
 Livermore/CA  2     Min 

 Call     Log     Property     Manager     (510)     393-8252     Phone     1 
 Date     (Pacific)  Number  Destination  Minutes 

 08/26/2022     10:33 
 AM 

 (510) 
 393-8252  Incoming  2     Min 

 08/26/2022     12:11 
 PM 

 (510) 
 393-8252 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  1     Min 

 08/26/2022     5:38     PM 
 (510) 
 393-8252 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  1     Min 

 08/26/2022     6:08     PM 
 (510) 
 393-8252  Incoming  3     Min 

 08/27/2022     11:23  (510)  to     Okld  1     Min 

000043



 29 

 AM  393-8252  Mn-pd/CA 

 08/27/2022     11:41 
 AM 

 (510) 
 393-8252 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  1     Min 

 09/02/2022     12:31 
 PM 

 (510) 
 393-8252 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  1     Min 

 09/08/2022     11:48 
 AM 

 (510) 
 393-8252 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  8     Min 

 09/15/2022     4:17     PM 
 (510) 
 393-8252 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  4     Min 

 09/30/2022     2:24     PM 
 (510) 
 393-8252 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  1     Min 

 10/03/2022     10:45 
 AM 

 (510) 
 393-8252 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  1     Min 

 10/03/2022     11:20 
 AM 

 (510) 
 393-8252  Incoming  1     Min 

 10/15/2022     5:03     PM 
 (510) 
 393-8252 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  1     Min 

 10/29/2022     10:14 
 AM 

 (510) 
 393-8252  Incoming  2     Min 

 11/16/2022     11:40 
 AM 

 (510) 
 393-8252 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  1     Min 

 11/16/2022     4:26     PM 
 (510) 
 393-8252  Incoming  24     Min 

 11/26/2022     2:30     PM 
 (510) 
 393-8252 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  4     Min 

 12/13/2022     10:56 
 AM 

 (510) 
 393-8252 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  1     Min 

 12/21/2022     8:18     PM 
 (510) 
 393-8252  Incoming  1     Min 

 12/29/2022     8:52     AM 
 (510) 
 393-8252 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  2     Min 

 02/02/2023     5:11     PM 
 (510) 
 393-8252 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  1     Min 

 02/02/2023     5:14     PM 
 (510) 
 393-8252  Incoming  5     Min 

 04/13/2023     11:33 
 AM 

 (510) 
 393-8252 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  1     Min 

 04/14/2023     4:38     PM 
 (510) 
 393-8252  Incoming  6     Min 

000044



 30 

 05/20/2023     10:36 
 AM 

 (510) 
 393-8252 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  1     Min 

 05/23/2023     9:10     PM 
 (510) 
 393-8252  Incoming  3     Min 

 Call     Log      Property     Manager     (510)     250-9663     Phone     2 

 Date     (Pacific)  Number  Destination  Minutes 

 02/15/2023     5:31     PM 
 (510) 
 250-9663 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  1     Min 

 02/21/2023     1:58     PM 
 (510) 
 250-9663 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  2     Min 

 02/22/2023     12:39 
 PM 

 (510) 
 250-9663 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  2     Min 

 02/28/2023     8:13     AM 
 (510) 
 250-9663 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  1     Min 

 03/02/2023     1:20     PM 
 (510) 
 250-9663 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  1     Min 

 03/31/2023     11:57 
 AM 

 (510) 
 250-9663 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  1     Min 

 04/14/2023     3:38     PM 
 (510) 
 250-9663 

 to     Okld 
 Mn-pd/CA  1     Min 

 +1     (218)     585-3389     Text     Thread     between     1     Tenant     and     Property     Owner/Landlord 
 +1     (218)     585-3389     Text     Thread     1 

000045



 31 

000046



 32 

000047



 33 

000048



 34 

000049



 35 

000050



 36 

000051



 37 

000052



 38 

000053



 39 

 +1     (218)     585-3389     Text     Thread     with     both     Tenants     and     Property     Owner/LandLord
 +1     (218)     585-3389     Text     Thread     2

000054



 40 

 +1     (510)     393-8252     Text     Thread     between     1     Tenant     and     Property     Manager 
 +1     (510)     393-8252     Text     Thread     1 

000055



 41 

000056



 42 

000057



 43 

000058



 44 

000059



 45 

000060



 46 

000061



 47 

000062



 48 

000063



 49 

000064



 50 

000065



 51 

000066



 52 

000067



 53 

000068



 54 

000069



 55 

000070



 56 

 +1     (510)     393-8252     Text     Thread     between     Both     Tenants     and     Property     Manager 
 +1     (510)     393-8252     Text     Thread     2 

000071



 57 

000072



 58 

000073



 59 

000074



 60 

000075



 61 

000076



 62 

000077



 63 

000078



 64 

000079



 65 

000080



 66 

000081



 67 

000082



 68 

000083



 69 

000084



 70 

 +1     (510)     219-1021     Text     Thread     between     Tenant     and     HVAC     (Heating     Company) 

000085



 71 

000086



 72 

000087



 73 

000088



 74 

 +1     (559)     417-7256     Text     Thread     with     Tenant     and     Plumber     for     Garage     Leak 

000089



 75 

000090



5/26/23, 3:50 AM Godwin Properties - Maintenance

https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders 1/7

Property Address 260 Lee Street, #205, Oakland, CA 94610 Log Out

menu

Maintenance

Maintenance Requests

Request Maintenance

RECEIVED

Hello Godwin Properties,
The soft-story building we reside in, 260 Lee Street, Oakland, CA 94610, has not been seismically retrofitted.
While connecting with Sarah from SPUR (the San Francisco Bay Area Planning and Urban Research)
Association, I was informed that the city of Oakland has funding available for landlords to conduct these retrofits.
Please see link below and please look into this asap because there are deadlines and The Bay Area is past due for
a major earthquake. There are 2 additional programs for funding at the bottom of the link's page.
https://www.oaklandca.gov/news/2023/grants-up-to-13k-for-earthquake-retrofits-of-soft-story-homes
Requested by You on 05/08/2023 6:03PM

Maintenance Request #1230-1

This request was received on 05/08/2023.

View details
Request Cancellation

RECEIVED

The implied warranty of habitability Cal. Civ. Code § 1941.1(a) is in violation and has been since 08/26/2023 (7
months+) due to lack of limited heating facilities and the only heating facilities (living room wall heater) is not in
good working order/well-maintained. California Code of Regulations (25 CCR § 34) is in violation. Every

Skip to main content
Hello

James Willis

Home
Payments
Maintenance
Contact Us
Shared Documents
Insurance
Property Details
Account Profile
Help
Log Out

• 
• - ----
• 
• 
• 
• 
• ----
• 
• 
• -- ---

000091

https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/signout
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/new
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1230-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1230-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1230-1/edit
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1205-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/users/edit
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/payments
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/contact_us
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/shared_documents
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/insurance
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/info
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/users/edit
https://www.appfolio.com/help/online-portal
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/signout


5/26/23, 3:50 AM Godwin Properties - Maintenance

https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders 2/7

dwelling unit and guest room used or offered for rent or lease shall be provided with heating facilities capable of
maintaining a minimum room temperature of 70 degrees F at a point three feet above the floor in all habitable
rooms. The bedroom, living room and kitchen/dining room are habitable rooms; there’s no heating facility
provided by the landlord for the bedroom and kitchen/dining rooms. The living room wall heater is not working
and not in good condition. Oakland Housing Ordinances Healthy Homes Provisions City of Oakland, California-
Chapter 15.08 OAKLAND HOUSING CODE is in violation. 15.08.340.
Requested by You on 03/30/2023 6:01PM

Maintenance Request #1205-1

This request was received on 03/30/2023.
View details
Request Cancellation

RECEIVED

There’s rust and black colored mold in the expansion gap between the wood floor and tub. The implied warranty
of habitability Cal. Civ. Code § 1941.1(a) is in violation and has been since 08/26/2023 (7 months+) due to lack
of proper waterproofing for the expansion gap and the floor not being in good repair. This was preventable as it
was addressed during the inspection. Installing a vinyl plank or transition strip would have prevented this. The
bathroom doesn’t have a window so when showering/bathing, the tenants use the bathroom fan and leave the
door open as agreed upon in the lease. One of the tenants is allergic to mold.
Requested by You on 03/29/2023 3:58PM

Maintenance Request #1200-1

This request was received on 03/29/2023.

View details
Request Cancellation

RECEIVED

Unfinished Work-Bedroom. Bedroom window needs a screen, blinds, and screen clips. No transition strips at
bedroom door or closet door. Bedroom door is also misaligned and doesn't close properly. Ceiling paint spots are
incomplete.
Requested by You on 03/27/2023 12:37PM

Maintenance Request #1199-1

This request was received on 03/27/2023.

View details
Request Cancellation

RECEIVED

Unfinished Work-Bathroom. Painting of walls, ceiling, and door left unfinished. No caulk between floor and
bathtub. One towel rack is weak and faulty. Bathroom heater was left uncleaned. Unable to use face bowel
stopper in sink because the lever behind the faucet can’t be lifted; the lever is fleshed with the granite. Hood fan
needs cleaning and bugs fall from the hood fan into the sink.

-- ---- --------- ----------

·---------

000092

https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1205-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1205-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1205-1/edit
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1200-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1200-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1200-1/edit
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1199-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1199-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1199-1/edit
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1198-1


5/26/23, 3:50 AM Godwin Properties - Maintenance

https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders 3/7

Requested by You on 03/27/2023 12:34PM

Maintenance Request #1198-1

This request was received on 03/27/2023.
View details
Request Cancellation

RECEIVED

Unfinished Work-Living Room. Living room window needs a screen and screen holders. Window does not fully
close. Counter is missing a countertop. A mirror is used to cover the hole. Furnace was left unclean.
Requested by You on 03/27/2023 12:32PM

Maintenance Request #1197-1

This request was received on 03/27/2023.

View details
Request Cancellation

RECEIVED

Unfinished Work-Kitchen/Dining Area. Kitchen window needs a screen, blinds, and screen clips. Cabinetry is
missing latches. Backsplash is missing caulking.
Requested by You on 03/27/2023 12:29PM

Maintenance Request #1196-1

This request was received on 03/27/2023.

View details
Request Cancellation

RECEIVED

Kitchen Breaker for Microwave outlet. Unable to use multiple appliances at once without the breaker going out.
Property Manager, Christina Nelson, rigged the outlet to make them work but now the kitchen does not allow for
multiple appliance use without the breaker going out.
Requested by You on 03/27/2023 12:25PM

Maintenance Request #1195-1

This request was received on 03/27/2023.

View details
Request Cancellation

RECEIVED

Security cameras not working. Footage from all theft and security incidents were requested.

--- --- - -------------------

000093

https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1198-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1198-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1198-1/edit
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1197-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1197-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1197-1/edit
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1196-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1196-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1196-1/edit
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1195-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1195-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1195-1/edit
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1194-1


5/26/23, 3:50 AM Godwin Properties - Maintenance

https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders 4/7

Requested by You on 03/27/2023 12:21PM

Maintenance Request #1194-1

This request was received on 03/27/2023.
View details
Request Cancellation

RECEIVED

Elevator Break-in. The elevator door has no door seal, like the laundry room door; therefore, it’s easy for anyone
to pick the lock and break-in. This is a safety concern because anyone can access the elevator. The same subject
who steals packages and breaks in the mailboxes is the same person who breaks in the elevator. The subject is a
repeat offender and has broken into the elevator numerous times. The subject also urinates and defecates inside
the elevator. The subject camps out and stores items inside the elevator sometimes A report was filed with the
Oakland Police Department.
Requested by You on 03/27/2023 12:20PM

Maintenance Request #1193-1

This request was received on 03/27/2023.

View details
Request Cancellation

RECEIVED

Stolen Packages and Mailbox break-ins. There’s a repeat theft subject that continuously steals packages from
residents at this property. Packages are still being stolen. On 12/12/2022, the USPS mail carrier Melvin requested
a key for the laundry room to leave packages there. Multiple mailboxes are broken into and haven’t been
replaced. Residents have been victims of identity theft.
Requested by You on 03/27/2023 12:16PM

Maintenance Request #1192-1

This request was received on 03/27/2023.

View details
Request Cancellation

RECEIVED

260 Lee Street-Garage J door is broken again. Please see images. The right side cable is off the frame. The cable
wraps around inside when door is up and comes outside, In front of the door when closed. Also, the door does
not lock properly. When the company came to fix the door, the first time, they left without actually testing the
door to ensure it locked. They just called and said they were done and they left. Please provide accommodations
until the issue is resolved.
Requested by You on 03/16/2023 10:07PM

Maintenance Request #1183-1

000094

https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1194-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1194-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1194-1/edit
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1193-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1193-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1193-1/edit
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1192-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1192-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1192-1/edit
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1183-1


5/26/23, 3:50 AM Godwin Properties - Maintenance

https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders 5/7

This request was received on 03/16/2023.
View details
Request Cancellation

RECEIVED

Baby Pest Issue
Requested by You on 02/09/2023 7:16AM

Maintenance Request #1156-1

This request was received on 02/09/2023.

View details
Request Cancellation

Showing 13 of 13 | Show more

Closed Maintenance Requests

COMPLETED

Please see attached notice from USPS about the mailboxes at 260 Lee Street. This request is also a follow up to
Maintenance Request #1192-1 on 03/27/2023.
Requested by You on 05/11/2023 7:21PM

Maintenance Request #1231-1

This request was completed on 05/12/2023

COMPLETED

Repeat subject attempting an elevator break-in, again. OPD arrived Approx 10:20pm; incident time 12:30pm
OPD Incident #565
Officer J. Hartman, Oakland Police will be reaching out to Melanie and Christina. Please see photo attached.
Requested by You on 05/05/2023 10:42PM

Maintenance Request #1229-1

This request was completed on 05/12/2023

COMPLETED

Washing machine coin receiver is jammed, again. Please see attached photo.
Requested by You on 04/26/2023 12:21PM

Maintenance Request #1224-1

000095

https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1183-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1183-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1183-1/edit
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1156-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1156-1
https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders/1156-1/edit


5/26/23, 3:50 AM Godwin Properties - Maintenance

https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders 6/7

This request was completed on 05/05/2023

COMPLETED

Neighbor in 305; allegedly arguing/fighting with husband. Please see attached images and recording will be sent
via email. Went on for about 45min. Noise disturbances.
Requested by You on 04/20/2023 11:12AM

Maintenance Request #1219-1

This request was completed on 05/05/2023

COMPLETED

Elevator not in service. The light inside is on but it’s not functioning. It was out on 4/18. It was an inconvenience;
had to drag packages to garage. Was too heavy to carry up stairs.
Requested by You on 04/20/2023 11:03AM

Maintenance Request #1218-1

This request was completed on 05/05/2023

COMPLETED

Oakland Police, 4 officers, visited unit 205 on 09/07/2022 at approximately 2am knocking on the window with
flashlights and knocking on the door until we answered. The officers were looking for a black male adult about a
break-in dispatched at this address. The dispatcher redirected the officers to unit 305. The husband of the tenant
in unit 305 allegedly attempted to break-in the unit because the tenant denied the suspect access. Tenant, James
Willis, notified Property Manager, Christina Nelson, on several occasions and also called Oakland Police on
12/13.2022 when the Tenant (Unit 305) was yelling/screaming for the alleged aggressor (the husband) to let go.
There were sounds of throwing objects, banging on the walls, arguing, screaming, running sounds on the floors.
Property Manager, Chrisitina Nelson, mentioned sending a letter to the Tenant (Unit 305) on 01/15/2023. The
most recent domestic violence activity occurred on 03/29/2023.
Requested by You on 03/29/2023 4:48PM

Maintenance Request #1202-1

This request was completed on 04/03/2023

Showing 6 of 6 | Show more

Godwin Properties

925/294-5860

Help · Terms · Privacy

000096

tel:9252945860
https://www.appfolio.com/help/online-portal
https://www.appfolio.com/terms/homeowner_tenant_portal
https://www.appfolio.com/privacy


5/26/23, 3:50 AM Godwin Properties - Maintenance

https://godwinproperties.appfolio.com/connect/online_work_orders 7/7
000097



5/26/23, 5:16 AM Gmail - Lease Signed. Questions?

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1741806626961840425&simpl=msg-f:1741806626961840425 1/1

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Lease Signed. Questions?
1 message

James Ray Willis <jrw1011@gmail.com> Sun, Aug 21, 2022 at 2:10 PM
To: godwinprop
<6496d04a612bfac7b3daa8d531382a602616e1c52372185d8eb049c4e50beaaf@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us>
Cc: Larry Butac <larrybutac@gmail.com>

Hello Melanie,

We hope all is well on your end. We understand some of the team had Covid which caused a delay on work.

Larry and I visited the space on Friday with Christina. There are some pending cosmetics that are not complete. And
some of the unit inventory items checked off on the lease were not present-drapes/blinds (throughout), screens
throughout, fire extinguisher and there’s a tear in the carpet already. 

When will the estoppel certificate be provided/completed?

Larry has signed the lease already and I will finish signing it shortly after this. Just wanted to ensure that things will be
taken care of soon after the lease is signed. We are open to an additional addendum if needed.

I’ve been calling for the past week; no answer.

Thanks for your time.

Best,
James Willis
jrw1011@gmail.com

> On Aug 16, 2022, at 3:08 PM, James Ray Willis <jrw1011@gmail.com> wrote:
>
>  Hey Melanie,
>
> Thanks for the response. I’ve called a few times to clarify some things.
>
> Christina is planning to show us the space this Friday, 8/19; it wasn’t completed when we first saw it on 8/3. Larry and
I will be ready to complete the lease and pay after seeing to space this Friday.
>
> I understand the reasoning for no portable washers; the reduced water pressure and possibility of a leak.
>
> Larry and I come from residences that have both a washer and dryer, without use of coins. The portable washer was
purchased not long ago. It will have to be sold because I can’t return it for a refund. Is a small portable dryer okay to
use? Because maybe I can get store credit to return the washer and purchase a small portable dryer.
>
> Best,
> James Willis
> jrw1011@gmail.com
>
>> On Aug 16, 2022, at 1:38 PM, godwinprop <6496d04a612bfac7b3daa8d531382a602616e1c52372185d8eb049c4e50
beaaf@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us> wrote:

Gmail 

000098

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:6496d04a612bfac7b3daa8d531382a602616e1c52372185d8eb049c4e50beaaf@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us


5/26/23, 5:18 AM Gmail - Re: Signed Holding deposit agreement

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1741251829293978184&simpl=msg-f:17412518292939781… 1/4

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Re: Signed Holding deposit agreement
3 messages

godwinprop
<47d0f9ff4552b6d9800e6b6a3552e1ab5a51c5e2887692d4b52f72ba9df0e803@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us>

Mon,
Aug 15,
2022 at

11:12
AM

To: jrw1011@gmail.com

Hi James, it is a shared garage space on the first floor of the building. The garage is gated and tenants use a remote to
enter. Would you like to rent a parking space? 

Melanie Godwin-Rosales
Godwin Properties
925/294-5860www.godwinproperties.net

-----Original Message-----
From: James Ray Willis
To: godwinprop@aol.com
Sent: Sat, Aug 13, 2022 11:18 am
Subject: Re: Signed Holding deposit agreement

Hey Melanie,

Please see attachment for my vehicle insurance.

Best,
James
jrw1011@gmail.com

> On Aug 12, 2022, at 5:10 PM, James Ray Willis wrote:
>
>  Hey Melanie,
>
> Is the parking space enclosed, like a garage type? If so, I would like to do it for the extra $50 a month.
>
> Best,
> James
> jrw1011@gmail.com
>
>>> On Aug 12, 2022, at 11:55 AM, godwinprop <9fd81aeed2807d9d72e80d0de6d20ec56b14a64d916e70b0d16cc1bd219
8fe4e@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us> wrote:
>>>
>>  Ok, sounds good. We'll have space for you if you ever decide to get a car. The parking is $50 per month.
>> I'll be sending over the link to the lease shortly.
>>
>> Melanie Godwin-Rosales
>> Godwin Properties
>> 925/294-5860www.godwinproperties.net
>>
>> -----Original Message-----
>> From: James Ray Willis <10ee5708a53a84862019a98337807e893bd5f67aeb478a96690265bb6a7
c61ce@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us>

Gmail 

000099

http://294-5860www.godwinproperties.net/
mailto:godwinprop@aol.com
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:9fd81aeed2807d9d72e80d0de6d20ec56b14a64d916e70b0d16cc1bd2198fe4e@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us
http://294-5860www.godwinproperties.net/
mailto:10ee5708a53a84862019a98337807e893bd5f67aeb478a96690265bb6a7c61ce@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us


5/26/23, 5:18 AM Gmail - Re: Signed Holding deposit agreement

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1741251829293978184&simpl=msg-f:17412518292939781… 2/4

>> To: godwinprop@aol.com
>> Sent: Thu, Aug 11, 2022 7:21 pm
>> Subject: Re: Signed Holding deposit agreement
>>
>> Hello Melanie,
>> >
>> >
>> > Thanks for your response. We do not have a vehicle. I have a scooter but I can park it on the street. Just curious,
how much extra is parking?
>> >
>> > Best,
>> > James Willis
>> > jrw1011@gmail.com
>> >
>> >>> On Aug 11, 2022, at 1:12 PM, Larry Butac wrote:
>> >>>
>> >>  
>> >>
>> >>
>> >> ---------- Forwarded message ---------
>> >> From:
>> >> Date: Thu, Aug 11, 2022 at 12:44 PM
>> >> Subject: Re: Signed Holding deposit agreement
>> >> To: larrybutac@gmail.com
>> >>
>> >>
>> >> Thank you. I'll get your lease out to you both today or tomorrow. Do either of you have a car and are you
interested in a parking space?
>> >>
>> >> Melanie Godwin-Rosales
>> >> Godwin Properties
>> >> 925/294-5860
>> >> www.godwinproperties.net
>> >>
>> >>
>> >> -----Original Message-----
>> >> From: Larry Butac
>> >> To: godwinprop@aol.com
>> >> Cc: James (Nugget) Ray Willis
>> >> Sent: Wed, Aug 10, 2022 8:04 pm
>> >> Subject: Signed Holding deposit agreement
>> >>
>> >> Hello Melanie,
>> >> Thanks for your response. Please see signed holding deposit file attached below.
>> >>
>> >> Thanks,
>> >> Larry Butac and James Willis
>> >>
>> >>
>> >>
>> >>> On Aug 10, 2022, at 3:51 PM, Larry Butac wrote:
>> >>>
>> >>>  
>> >>>
>> >>> ---------- Forwarded message ----------
>> >>> From:
>> >>> Date: Wednesday, August 10, 2022
>> >>> Subject: Holding deepest agreement
>> >>> To: "larrybutac@gmail.com"
>> >>>
>> >>> 000100

mailto:godwinprop@aol.com
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:larrybutac@gmail.com
http://www.godwinproperties.net/
mailto:godwinprop@aol.com
mailto:larrybutac@gmail.com


5/26/23, 5:18 AM Gmail - Re: Signed Holding deposit agreement

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1741251829293978184&simpl=msg-f:17412518292939781… 3/4

>> >>> Hi Larry, yes I'm sorry, we keep a signed second sheet and just fill in the first page. It's fine to sign.
>> >>> I can send another one if you'd like, but this is just for the holding deposit. The lease won't be backdated of
course.
>> >>>
>> >>> Melanie Godwin-Rosales
>> >>> Godwin Properties
>> >>> 925/294-5860
>> >>> www.godwinproperties.net
>> >>>
>> >>>
>> >>> -----Original Message-----
>> >>> From: Larry Butac
>> >>> To: godwinprop@aol.com
>> >>> Sent: Tue, Aug 9, 2022 7:24 pm
>> >>> Subject: Re: Holding deepest agreement
>> >>>
>> >>> Hi Melanie,
>> >>>
>> >>> Is it ok to still sign even though the signature is backdated in March?
>> >>>
>> >>> Best,
>> >>> Larry
>> >>>
>> >>> On Tue, Aug 9, 2022 at 4:09 PM wrote:
>> >>> Hi Larry and James, here is the holding deposit agreement. Please sign and either fax, 925/294-5841, or email
back the last page.
>> >>>
>> >>> Thank you.
>> >>>
>> >>> Melanie Godwin-Rosales
>> >>> Godwin Properties
>> >>> 925/294-5860
>> >>> www.godwinproperties.net
>> >>>

James Ray Willis <jrw1011@gmail.com> Mon, Aug 15, 2022 at 4:00 PM
To: godwinprop
<47d0f9ff4552b6d9800e6b6a3552e1ab5a51c5e2887692d4b52f72ba9df0e803@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us>
Cc: Larry Butac <larrybutac@gmail.com>

Hello Melanie,

I’m not sure I understand because you mentioned “shared”; what does that mean?

I called several times today; no answer. Could you give me a call please at 3187894326?

Best,
James Willis
jrw1011@gmail.com

> On Aug 15, 2022, at 11:12 AM, godwinprop <47d0f9ff4552b6d9800e6b6a3552e1ab5a51c5e2887692d4b52f72ba9df
0e803@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us> wrote:
>

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com> Tue, Mar 28, 2023 at 6:11 PM
To: godwinprop@aol.com, Larry John Butac <larrybutac@gmail.com>, nelson.christina30@gmail.com

000101

http://www.godwinproperties.net/
mailto:godwinprop@aol.com
http://www.godwinproperties.net/
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:47d0f9ff4552b6d9800e6b6a3552e1ab5a51c5e2887692d4b52f72ba9df0e803@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us


5/26/23, 5:18 AM Gmail - Re: Signed Holding deposit agreement

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f:1741251829293978184&simpl=msg-f:17412518292939781… 4/4

Request to call below.

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: James Ray Willis <jrw1011@gmail.com>
Date: Mon, Aug 15, 2022 at 4:00 PM
Subject: Re: Signed Holding deposit agreement
[Quoted text hidden]
[Quoted text hidden]

--
James Willis 
jrw1011@gmail.com

000102

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com


5/26/23, 5:20 AM Gmail - Re: Signed Holding deposit agreement

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1741357284335599511&simpl=msg-f:1741357284335599511 1/1

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Re: Signed Holding deposit agreement

James Ray Willis <jrw1011@gmail.com> Tue, Aug 16, 2022 at 3:08 PM
To: godwinprop
<6496d04a612bfac7b3daa8d531382a602616e1c52372185d8eb049c4e50beaaf@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us>
Cc: Larry Butac <larrybutac@gmail.com>

Hey Melanie,

Thanks for the response. I’ve called a few times to clarify some things.

Christina is planning to show us the space this Friday, 8/19; it wasn’t completed when we first saw it on 8/3. Larry and I
will be ready to complete the lease and pay after seeing to space this Friday.

I understand the reasoning for no portable washers; the reduced water pressure and possibility of a leak.

Larry and I come from residences that have both a washer and dryer, without use of coins. The portable washer was
purchased not long ago. It will have to be sold because I can’t return it for a refund. Is a small portable dryer okay to
use? Because maybe I can get store credit to return the washer and purchase a small portable dryer.

Best,
James Willis
jrw1011@gmail.com

> On Aug 16, 2022, at 1:38 PM, godwinprop <6496d04a612bfac7b3daa8d531382a602616e1c52372185d8eb049c4e50
beaaf@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us> wrote:
>

Gmail 

000103

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:6496d04a612bfac7b3daa8d531382a602616e1c52372185d8eb049c4e50beaaf@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us


5/26/23, 5:21 AM Gmail - Re: Question?

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1747719630676712853&simpl=msg-f:17477196306767128… 1/2

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Re: Question?

James Ray Willis <jrw1011@gmail.com> Tue, Oct 25, 2022 at 8:35 PM
To: godwinprop
<02d1fefe9965681acdbe447dd3338090b48c03c40204f08edde3cc110f99f3ee@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us>
Cc: Larry Butac <larrybutac@gmail.com>

Hello Melanie, 

Hope all is well. Larry and I have been residents for 2 months now. There are still things that need to be completed that
were promised to be completed within 30 days. A few things have been completed by Christina, so far. Do we need to
keep in contact with her to finish things up or is there something else we can do? 

Best, 
James Willis
jrw1011@gmail.com

On Aug 22, 2022, at 1:03 PM, godwinprop <02d1fefe9965681acdbe447dd3338
090b48c03c40204f08edde3cc110f99f3ee@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us> wrote:

 Hi James, thanks for your response and apologies. We do check VM's but are far more responsive on
email. I've reached out to Christina in regards to the screens, window coverings and fire extinguisher. As
for the carpet, I'm not sure if its new or not. If its not, you can certainly list the tear as part of your move-in
inspection. 
I'll get back to you. 

Melanie Godwin-Rosales
Godwin Properties
925/294-5860www.godwinproperties.net

-----Original Message-----
From: James Ray Willis <616a47a6573f8e371c967da8c1fb2fddda4c95fc841dd72b5584dd33905
440ca@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us>
To: godwinprop@aol.com
Sent: Sun, Aug 21, 2022 2:10 pm
Subject: Lease Signed. Questions?

Hello Melanie,

We hope all is well on your end. We understand some of the team had Covid which caused a delay on
work.

Larry and I visited the space on Friday with Christina. There are some pending cosmetics that are not
complete. And some of the unit inventory items checked off on the lease were not present-drapes/blinds
(throughout), screens throughout, fire extinguisher and there’s a tear in the carpet already.

When will the estoppel certificate be provided/completed?

Larry has signed the lease already and I will finish signing it shortly after this. Just wanted to ensure that
things will be taken care of soon after the lease is signed. We are open to an additional addendum if
needed.

I’ve been calling for the past week; no answer.

Gmail 

000104

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:02d1fefe9965681acdbe447dd3338090b48c03c40204f08edde3cc110f99f3ee@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us
http://294-5860www.godwinproperties.net/
mailto:616a47a6573f8e371c967da8c1fb2fddda4c95fc841dd72b5584dd33905440ca@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us
mailto:godwinprop@aol.com


5/26/23, 5:21 AM Gmail - Re: Question?

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1747719630676712853&simpl=msg-f:17477196306767128… 2/2

Thanks for your time.

Best,
James Willis
jrw1011@gmail.com

> On Aug 16, 2022, at 3:08 PM, James Ray Willis wrote:
>
>  Hey Melanie,
>
> Thanks for the response. I’ve called a few times to clarify some things.
>
> Christina is planning to show us the space this Friday, 8/19; it wasn’t completed when we first saw it on
8/3. Larry and I will be ready to complete the lease and pay after seeing to space this Friday.
>
> I understand the reasoning for no portable washers; the reduced water pressure and possibility of a leak.
>
> Larry and I come from residences that have both a washer and dryer, without use of coins. The portable
washer was purchased not long ago. It will have to be sold because I can’t return it for a refund. Is a small
portable dryer okay to use? Because maybe I can get store credit to return the washer and purchase a
small portable dryer.
>
> Best,
> James Willis
> jrw1011@gmail.com
>
>> On Aug 16, 2022, at 1:38 PM, godwinprop <6496d04a612bfac7b3daa8d531382
a602616e1c52372185d8eb049c4e50beaaf@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us> wrote:

000105

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:6496d04a612bfac7b3daa8d531382a602616e1c52372185d8eb049c4e50beaaf@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us


5/26/23, 5:22 AM Gmail - Property Manager Position Inquiry/Interest

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-a:r8145912114602826351&simpl=msg-a:r814591211460282… 1/1

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Property Manager Position Inquiry/Interest

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com> Tue, Dec 6, 2022 at 3:21 PM
To: "godwinprop@aol.com" <godwinprop@aol.com>
Cc: nelson.christina30@gmail.com
Bcc: Larry John Butac <larrybutac@gmail.com>

Hello Melanie, 

I hope this email finds you well. My name is James Willis, I live in the 260 Lee Street Building in Oakland. If the
Property Manager position is still available, I would like to be considered for the position. 

I have a diverse background that required managing, involving corporations and small businesses. Overall, my
background fields included-Retail, Marketing/Public Relations/Advertising, Transportation and Office Administration.
Most of my experience (besides my former Customer Service Manager position at Walmart) does not include the title
"Manager"; however, I was assigned roles that required managing. Managing was required for the following roles-
Administrative Specialist, Retail Supervisor, Marketing Coordinator for Business Development, Communications
Specialist, Marketing Assistant and Office Coordinator.

In addition to my work experience, I took the initiative and acted as the Property Manager for the duplex residence I lived
at for 8 years before moving to 260 Lee Street. The landlord lived in Pacifica,CA and traveled often; so, I took on the
responsibility of managing the property. My work history spans for more than eleven years. For the sake of time, please
see attached resume with only former positions that required the most extensive management skills.

Thanks for your time. 

Best, 
--
James Willis 
jrw1011@gmail.com
3187894326

Resume-Property Mananger - Google Docs.pdf
66K

Gmail 

000106

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=662740582e&view=att&th=184e9be5de6e2fcf&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=f_lbcufsnd0&safe=1&zw


5/26/23, 5:23 AM Gmail - Please Contact ASAP

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1758480790895660566&simpl=msg-f:17584807908956605… 1/2

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Please Contact ASAP

James Ray Willis <jrw1011@gmail.com> Tue, Feb 21, 2023 at 2:19 PM
To: godwinprop
<02d1fefe9965681acdbe447dd3338090b48c03c40204f08edde3cc110f99f3ee@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us>
Cc: Larry Butac <larrybutac@gmail.com>

Hello Melanie, 

None of my emails and calls to you, since end of August have not been responded to. 

Larry and I have been residents for 6 months now. There are unfinished things that were promised to be completed
before we moved in and things that have happened that we put in online tickets for that have not been tended to. Every
time I speak with Christina about updates, she mentions a schedule; however, nothing has been done and new things are
starting to build up like the pest, broken garage door and extremely disturbing upstairs neighbor. Is it possible for us to
come to some sort of resolution? May I receive a returned phone call or email? 

Best, 
James Willis 
jrw1011@gmail.com

On Oct 25, 2022, at 8:35 PM, James Ray Willis <jrw1011@gmail.com> wrote:

 Hello Melanie, 

Hope all is well. Larry and I have been residents for 2 months now. There are still things that need to be
completed that were promised to be completed within 30 days. A few things have been completed by
Christina, so far. Do we need to keep in contact with her to finish things up or is there something else we
can do? 

Best, 
James Willis
jrw1011@gmail.com

On Aug 22, 2022, at 1:03 PM, godwinprop <02d1fefe9965681acdbe447dd3338
090b48c03c40204f08edde3cc110f99f3ee@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us> wrote:

 Hi James, thanks for your response and apologies. We do check VM's but are far more
responsive on email. I've reached out to Christina in regards to the screens, window
coverings and fire extinguisher. As for the carpet, I'm not sure if its new or not. If its not, you
can certainly list the tear as part of your move-in inspection. 
I'll get back to you. 

Melanie Godwin-Rosales
Godwin Properties
925/294-5860www.godwinproperties.net

-----Original Message-----
From: James Ray Willis <616a47a6573f8e371c967da8c1fb2
fddda4c95fc841dd72b5584dd33905440ca@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us>

Gmail 

000107

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:02d1fefe9965681acdbe447dd3338090b48c03c40204f08edde3cc110f99f3ee@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us
http://294-5860www.godwinproperties.net/
mailto:616a47a6573f8e371c967da8c1fb2fddda4c95fc841dd72b5584dd33905440ca@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us


5/26/23, 5:23 AM Gmail - Please Contact ASAP

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1758480790895660566&simpl=msg-f:17584807908956605… 2/2

To: godwinprop@aol.com
Sent: Sun, Aug 21, 2022 2:10 pm
Subject: Lease Signed. Questions?

Hello Melanie,

We hope all is well on your end. We understand some of the team had Covid which caused a
delay on work.

Larry and I visited the space on Friday with Christina. There are some pending cosmetics
that are not complete. And some of the unit inventory items checked off on the lease were
not present-drapes/blinds (throughout), screens throughout, fire extinguisher and there’s a
tear in the carpet already.

When will the estoppel certificate be provided/completed?

Larry has signed the lease already and I will finish signing it shortly after this. Just wanted to
ensure that things will be taken care of soon after the lease is signed. We are open to an
additional addendum if needed.

I’ve been calling for the past week; no answer.

Thanks for your time.

Best,
James Willis
jrw1011@gmail.com

> On Aug 16, 2022, at 3:08 PM, James Ray Willis wrote:
>
>  Hey Melanie,
>
> Thanks for the response. I’ve called a few times to clarify some things.
>
> Christina is planning to show us the space this Friday, 8/19; it wasn’t completed when we
first saw it on 8/3. Larry and I will be ready to complete the lease and pay after seeing to
space this Friday.
>
> I understand the reasoning for no portable washers; the reduced water pressure and
possibility of a leak.
>
> Larry and I come from residences that have both a washer and dryer, without use of coins.
The portable washer was purchased not long ago. It will have to be sold because I can’t
return it for a refund. Is a small portable dryer okay to use? Because maybe I can get store
credit to return the washer and purchase a small portable dryer.
>
> Best,
> James Willis
> jrw1011@gmail.com
>
>> On Aug 16, 2022, at 1:38 PM, godwinprop <6496d04a612bfac7b3daa8d531382
a602616e1c52372185d8eb049c4e50beaaf@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us> wrote:

000108

mailto:godwinprop@aol.com
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:6496d04a612bfac7b3daa8d531382a602616e1c52372185d8eb049c4e50beaaf@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us


5/26/23, 5:25 AM Gmail - R and S Doors Response

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1761758381805897701&dsqt=1&simpl=msg-f:1761758381… 1/3

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

R and S Doors Response

James Ray Willis <jrw1011@gmail.com> Wed, Mar 29, 2023 at 7:35 PM
To: Christina Nelson <nelson.christina30@gmail.com>
Cc: godwinprop@aol.com, Larry John Butac <larrybutac@gmail.com>

Hey Christina, 

Thanks for your response. 

Pedro and Abraham put the same broken cable back on; it wasn’t replaced. Took about 15min. They called and told me
they were leaving after they finished; they didn’t use they key to ensure it was completely fixed. They were driving away
as I came outside. 

The lock never worked correctly. I usually have to turn the key and handle 2-3x to lock it and the cable came off again;
the cable wraps around at the top then comes outside the door. Please see attached photos. 

Gmail 

000109



5/26/23, 5:25 AM Gmail - R and S Doors Response

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1761758381805897701&dsqt=1&simpl=msg-f:1761758381… 2/3

Best, 
James Willis
jrw1011@gmail.com

On Mar 29, 2023, at 6:11 PM, Christina Nelson <nelson.christina30@gmail.com> wrote:

Hi James, 

Here is the response from R & S Doors.  I recieved today. Please confirm its been repaired. 

Good morning Christina, 

I received your voicemail regarding the property at 260 Lee St. I just wanted to clarify a few things before

calling the tenant. 

When we went out to the property on February 27th, it didn't look like anything was left pending. My

technician was able to get the door flush and also placed the cables back on properly. 

000110

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:nelson.christina30@gmail.com


5/26/23, 5:25 AM Gmail - R and S Doors Response

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1761758381805897701&dsqt=1&simpl=msg-f:1761758381… 3/3

Was there another attempted break in after our initial service call?

Thank you, 

On Tue, Mar 28, 2023, 6:11 PM Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com> wrote:
Request to call below.

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: James Ray Willis <jrw1011@gmail.com>
Date: Mon, Aug 15, 2022 at 4:00 PM
Subject: Re: Signed Holding deposit agreement
To: godwinprop <47d0f9ff4552b6d9800e6b6a3552e1ab5a51c5e2887692d4b52f72ba9df
0e803@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us>
Cc: Larry Butac <larrybutac@gmail.com>

Hello Melanie,

I’m not sure I understand because you mentioned “shared”; what does that mean?

I called several times today; no answer. Could you give me a call please at 3187894326?

Best,
James Willis
jrw1011@gmail.com

> On Aug 15, 2022, at 11:12 AM, godwinprop <47d0f9ff4552b6d9800e6b6a3552e
1ab5a51c5e2887692d4b52f72ba9df0e803@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us> wrote:
>

--
James Willis 
jrw1011@gmail.com

000111

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:47d0f9ff4552b6d9800e6b6a3552e1ab5a51c5e2887692d4b52f72ba9df0e803@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us
mailto:larrybutac@gmail.com
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:47d0f9ff4552b6d9800e6b6a3552e1ab5a51c5e2887692d4b52f72ba9df0e803@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com


5/26/23, 5:26 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1761553702804746967&simpl=msg-f:17615537028047469… 1/1

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Incomplete Maintenance Issues

Jim W (via Google Docs) <jrw1011@gmail.com> Mon, Mar 27, 2023 at 1:21 PM
Reply-To: Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>
To: jrw1011@gmail.com
Cc: godwinprop@aol.com, larrybutac@gmail.com, nelson.christina30@gmail.com

Jim W a�ached a document

Jim W (jrw1011@gmail.com) has attached the following document:

Hello,

Please see attached Letter

Best,

James

Incomplete Maintenance Issues

This is a courtesy copy of an email for your record only. It's not the same email
your collaborators received. Click here to learn more.

Incomplete Maintenance Issues.pdf
17239K

Gmail 

Google™ 

000112

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
https://support.google.com/drive/?p=courtesy_copy
https://www.google.com/
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=662740582e&view=att&th=18724bc2747372d7&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw


5/26/23, 5:27 AM Gmail - [URGENT] USPS Notice for Owner

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-a:r-3868109699400485382&simpl=msg-a:r-3868109699400… 1/1

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

[URGENT] USPS Notice for Owner

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com> Thu, May 11, 2023 at 7:17 PM
To: godwinprop@aol.com
Cc: Larry John Butac <larrybutac@gmail.com>, Christina Nelson <nelson.christina30@gmail.com>
Bcc: Nadia Mashni <nmashni@gmail.com>

Melaine, 

Please see attached notice from USPS about the mailboxes at 260 Lee Street.

--
James Willis 
jrw1011@gmail.com

USPSLetter.jpg
3810K

Gmail 

000113

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=662740582e&view=att&th=1880dc034d3df6be&attid=0.1&disp=inline&realattid=f_lhjxfi6r0&safe=1&zw
jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle



5/26/23, 5:28 AM Gmail - Violation-Inadequate Heating and “Repair and Deduct”.

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1761843933615143122&simpl=msg-f:17618439336151431… 1/3

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Violation-Inadequate Heating and “Repair and Deduct”.

James Ray Willis <jrw1011@gmail.com> Thu, Mar 30, 2023 at 6:14 PM
To: godwinprop@aol.com
Cc: Larry Butac <larrybutac@gmail.com>, nelson.christina30@gmail.com, godwinprop@aol.com
Bcc: Nmashni@gmail.com

Under the implied warranty of habitability, landlords must provide renters with a unit suitable for habitation. 
Under local and state laws, this means providing essential services, including heat. There isn’t adequate 
heating in Unit 205 at 260 Lee St. The implied warranty of habitability Cal. Civ. Code § 1941.1(a) is in 
violation and has been since 08/26/2023 (7 months+) due to lack of limited heating facilities and the only 
heating facilities (living room wall heater) in the unit is not in good working order/well-maintained. This was 
preventable as it was addressed during the initial inspection. 

California Code of Regulations (25 CCR § 34) is in violation. Every dwelling unit and guest room used or 
offered for rent or lease shall be provided with heating facilities capable of maintaining a minimum room 
temperature of 70 degrees F at a point three feet above the floor in all habitable rooms. The bedroom, 
living room and kitchen/dining room are habitable rooms; there’s no heat facility provided by the 
landlord for the bedroom and kitchen/dining rooms. And the living room wall heater is not working 
and not in good condition.  The temperature of the habitable rooms in the unit are below 70 degrees F; 
see attached photo. In a rental unit, rooms such as bedrooms, the living room and kitchen require heat. 
Bathrooms, closets, hallways and storage rooms may remain unheated.

Oakland Housing Ordinances Healthy Homes Provisions City of Oakland, California-Chapter 15.08 
OAKLAND HOUSING CODE is in violation. 15.08.340 Inadequate Sanitation. Buildings or portions thereof 
shall be deemed substandard when they are unsanitary. Inadequate sanitation shall include, but not be 
limited to, the following: 6. lack of adequate heating facilities. Facilities is plural, meaning more than one. 

The landlord has failed to maintain the property and conduct repairs upon the request of the tenant 
(generally the landlord is given a 30 day grace period). It’s been over 7 months. The tenant may perform the 
repair and subtract the cost from the rent owed, or he or she may vacate the premises and be freed from 
any outstanding obligations under his lease [CA Civil Code Sec. 1942].

It’s past the 30 day grace period for the landlord to correct these violations. The tenants are interested in 
seeking the legal remedy of the “repair and deduct” method. The tenants have been using 3 portable heaters
to keep the habitable rooms warm (bedroom, dining room/kitchen area, living room) throughout the 
fall/winter months while Godwin Properties didn’t respond by phone, texts and emails. 

Bedroom Temperature without heat-67.2 F
Living Room Temperature without heat-68.9 F

Gmail 

000114

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle



5/26/23, 5:28 AM Gmail - Violation-Inadequate Heating and “Repair and Deduct”.

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1761843933615143122&simpl=msg-f:17618439336151431… 2/3

Photos attached. 

000115



5/26/23, 5:28 AM Gmail - Violation-Inadequate Heating and “Repair and Deduct”.

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1761843933615143122&simpl=msg-f:17618439336151431… 3/3

James Willis
3187894326
jrw1011@gmail.com

000116

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com


5/26/23, 5:29 AM Gmail - Audio Recordings and Photos for Maintenance Request #1219-1

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1763720773809402469&simpl=msg-f:17637207738094024… 1/2

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Audio Recordings and Photos for Maintenance Request #1219-1

James Ray Willis <jrw1011@gmail.com> Thu, Apr 20, 2023 at 11:26 AM
To: godwinprop@aol.com
Cc: Christina Nelson <nelson.christina30@gmail.com>, Larry Butac <larrybutac@gmail.com>
Bcc: Nmashni@gmail.com

Melanie,
Could you all do something about the situation?
It’s been weekly and ongoing. These recordings are from unit 305 that can be heard in our unit. It is very disturbing. The
husband eventually left; he typically returns. It’s unfortunate that tenants on this property can not enjoy time at home in
peace. I hope that you all understand that these walls are thin and the single pane windows do not reduce outside noise. 
I hope you all can find a resolution with the tenant.

Respectfully,
James
jrw1011@gmail.com

9 attachments

image0.jpeg
44K

image1.jpeg
29K

Gmail 

000117

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=662740582e&view=att&th=1879feb2fde2f265&attid=0.6&disp=inline&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=662740582e&view=att&th=1879feb2fde2f265&attid=0.7&disp=inline&safe=1&zw
jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle



5/26/23, 5:29 AM Gmail - Audio Recordings and Photos for Maintenance Request #1219-1

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1763720773809402469&simpl=msg-f:17637207738094024… 2/2

image2.jpeg
31K

image3.jpeg
36K

image4.jpeg
30K

image5.jpeg
30K

Monte Lee Apartments 6.m4a
528K

Monte Lee Apartments 5.m4a
347K

Monte Lee Apartments 7.m4a
229K

000118

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=662740582e&view=att&th=1879feb2fde2f265&attid=0.8&disp=inline&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=662740582e&view=att&th=1879feb2fde2f265&attid=0.9&disp=inline&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=662740582e&view=att&th=1879feb2fde2f265&attid=0.10&disp=inline&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=662740582e&view=att&th=1879feb2fde2f265&attid=0.11&disp=inline&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=662740582e&view=att&th=1879feb2fde2f265&attid=0.1&disp=attd&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=662740582e&view=att&th=1879feb2fde2f265&attid=0.3&disp=attd&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=662740582e&view=att&th=1879feb2fde2f265&attid=0.5&disp=attd&safe=1&zw


5/26/23, 5:30 AM Gmail - Re: Unit at 260 Lee St

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1740452501318998126&simpl=msg-f:17404525013189981… 1/1

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Re: Unit at 260 Lee St

godwinprop
<1df92aaea8491097a1de53f9e67016a48bc79be274c510878f1303ccbcab3401@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us>

Sat,
Aug

6,
2022

at
3:27
PM

To: jrw1011@gmail.com

Ok great. The next steps would be to discuss your moving timeline. We can hold the unit for you for up to 3 weeks, but
we do require a holding deposit to do so in the amount of $500. This money holds the unit and will come off your total
move-in costs. The unit is available for move-in sooner however, just let me know what your plans are. 

Melanie Godwin-Rosales
Godwin Properties
925/294-5860www.godwinproperties.net

-----Original Message-----
From: James Ray Willis
To: godwinprop@aol.com
Sent: Sat, Aug 6, 2022 2:23 pm
Subject: Re: Unit at 260 Lee St

Hello Melanie,

Thank you! Larry and I are happy to be pre-approved and moving forward with the process.

I contacted my previous and current landlords. Patrick Sturgis said he received the form and would complete it. I have
not heard back from Bill Chan yet but will follow up with him again soon.

What are the next steps?

Thanks for your time.

Best,
James Willis
jrw1011@gmail.com

> On Aug 5, 2022, at 4:58 PM, Melanie Rosales wrote:
>  Hi Larry and James, thanks for applying to our unit at 260 Lee St. Your applications look great and we can approve you
for the unit. We are still awaiting for your resident verification, but we can give you a preliminary approval while we wait
to hear back from your current and previous landlords. If still interested, please let us know and we cam discuss your
moving plans.
>
> Thanks again, we look forward to hearing back from you.
>
> Melanie Godwin-Rosales
> Manager. Godwin Properties

Gmail 

000119

http://294-5860www.godwinproperties.net/
mailto:godwinprop@aol.com
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle



5/26/23, 5:31 AM Gmail - Violation-Broken Window/No Screens, Repair & Deduct Proposal

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-a:r-798067178942460001&simpl=msg-a:r-79806717894246… 1/2

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Violation-Broken Window/No Screens, Repair & Deduct Proposal

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com> Wed, Apr 12, 2023 at 5:31 PM
To: godwinprop@aol.com
Cc: Christina Nelson <nelson.christina30@gmail.com>, Larry John Butac <larrybutac@gmail.com>
Bcc: Nadia Mashni <nmashni@gmail.com>

Under the implied warranty of habitability, landlords must provide renters with a unit suitable for habitation. 
Under local and state laws, this means providing essential services, such as effective weather protection. 
There is a broken window and windows without screens in Unit 205 at 260 Lee St. This was preventable as 
it was addressed during the initial inspection on 8/26/2022.

The implied warranty of habitability Cal. Civ. Code § 1941.1(a)(1) is presently being violated and has been 
since 08/26/2022 (7 months+) due to a broken window. The window is faulty due to the fact that it is broken. 

Godwin Properties is in further violation according to Healthy Homes Provisions of City of Oakland, 
California OAKLAND HOUSING CODE. Within the code, Article X Substandard Buildings 15.08.340 states 
the following: H. Faulty Weather Protection. Buildings or portions thereof shall be considered substandard 
when they have faulty weather protection which shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 2. 
deteriorated or ineffective waterproofing of exterior walls, roof, foundations or floors, including broken 
windows or doors. As previously indicated, the window in question is substandard because of faulty weather 
protection. Again, this was addressed during the initial inspection on 08/26/2022 and has yet to be fixed. The 
maintenance supervisor, Chris Rosales, saw the broken window and window covers during his visit on 
Tuesday, 03/28/2023.

As these violations have not been corrected, the tenants would like to pursue the repair and deduct method 
to remedy the situation. The tenants purchased 3 custom polycarbonate panes  specific to the dimensions 
of the windows that also assist with properly ventilating the unit. In addition, the tenants purchased 2 packs 
of screen fasteners.

$348.40 (3 covers for the windows without screens)
$7.92 2 (packs of screen fasteners)
$1.64 ($0.585 cent per mile* x (round trip from unit to Ace Hardware in Piedmont, CA 2.8 miles))
$11.70 ($0.585 cent per mile* x (round trip from unit to TAP Plastics in El Cerrito, CA 20 miles))
$369.66-TOTAL AMOUNT 

Gmail 

000120

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle



5/26/23, 5:31 AM Gmail - Violation-Broken Window/No Screens, Repair & Deduct Proposal

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-a:r-798067178942460001&simpl=msg-a:r-79806717894246… 2/2

*California Standard Mileage Reimbursement Rate
--
James Willis 
jrw1011@gmail.com

< Transaction Details 

TAP PLASTICS 

-$348.40 

Transaction details 

Type Card 

EL CERRITO, CA 94530 

Description 

Also known as 

Merchant type 

Method 

Category 

TAP PLASTICS INC #28 EL CERRITO 
CA 

TAP PLASTICS 

Nondurable goods 

In person 

Shopping 

< Details 

Q How can we help? 

GRAND LAKE ACE 
HDWE 
PURCHASE 
PIEDMONT CA 

Amount 

> 

-$7.92 

Type Debit Card 

Merchant name <D 

ACE HARDWARE 

Transaction category 

Home & Utilities: Home Improvement 

ii SKurl l."911 :i11<1acy S.cultf Ad•,.,11$lng Pr.let Ci!$ 

I l"l!-"l lofo f'. n 1~r1,1"'""' Friu~I Ho11~in,1 1 ,.,-.rt~ '@ 

Dank of America, N.A. Member r o C. :i) 2023 Denk of Ameri~e Corp~r11:101. 

> 

000121

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com


5/26/23, 5:33 AM Gmail - Audio Recordings and Photos for Maintenance Request #1219-1

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1766438777294270227&simpl=msg-f:17664387772942702… 1/3

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Audio Recordings and Photos for Maintenance Request #1219-1

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com> Sat, May 20, 2023 at 11:28 AM
To: godwinprop@aol.com
Cc: nelson.christina30@gmail.com, larrybutac@gmail.com
Bcc: nmashni@gmail.com, blair.auguste@gmail.com

Hi Melanie, 
Thanks for your response. 
Around 10am this morning,5/20, there was arguing going on in unit 305. Around 10:15am. I turned on music to distract my space from the
noise. The arguing got louder so I turned the music off and knocked on the ceiling. The tenant said that she was aware that I had been
reporting her, accused me of disturbing and harassing her and mentioned a lot of obscenities and threats. I’ve never ever exchanged any words
with her throughout my tenancy. I have not ever received any letters from you all stating that I'm a disturbance.
I contacted Christina and I understand she’s on medical leave. Christina referred both she and I to you. It's after 11am and the tenant is still
being a nuisance. This has been going on for 9 months. I understand your mentioning that there’s not much you all can do. 

Gmail 

000122

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle



5/26/23, 5:33 AM Gmail - Audio Recordings and Photos for Maintenance Request #1219-1

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1766438777294270227&simpl=msg-f:17664387772942702… 2/3
000123



5/26/23, 5:33 AM Gmail - Audio Recordings and Photos for Maintenance Request #1219-1

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1766438777294270227&simpl=msg-f:17664387772942702… 3/3

Best, 
James Willis
jrw1011@gmail.com

On Apr 20, 2023, at 3:30 PM, godwinprop@aol.com wrote:

[Quoted text hidden]

000124

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:godwinprop@aol.com


5/26/23, 5:34 AM Gmail - [URGENT] USPS Notice for Owner

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1765703474274566280&simpl=msg-f:17657034742745662… 1/1

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

[URGENT] USPS Notice for Owner

godwinprop@aol.com <godwinprop@aol.com> Fri, May 12, 2023 at 8:40 AM
Reply-To: godwinprop@aol.com
To: "jrw1011@gmail.com" <jrw1011@gmail.com>
Cc: "larrybutac@gmail.com" <larrybutac@gmail.com>, "nelson.christina30@gmail.com" <nelson.christina30@gmail.com>

Thanks. We know, they called us as well. 

Melanie Godwin-Rosales
Godwin Properties
925/294-5860
www.godwinproperties.net

-----Original Message-----
From: Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>
To: godwinprop@aol.com
Cc: Larry John Butac <larrybutac@gmail.com>; Christina Nelson <nelson.christina30@gmail.com>
Sent: Thu, May 11, 2023 7:17 pm
Subject: [URGENT] USPS Notice for Owner

[Quoted text hidden]

Gmail 

000125

http://www.godwinproperties.net/
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:godwinprop@aol.com
mailto:larrybutac@gmail.com
mailto:nelson.christina30@gmail.com


5/26/23, 5:44 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1761649074613218544&simpl=msg-f:17616490746132185… 1/1

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Incomplete Maintenance Issues

James Ray Willis <jrw1011@gmail.com> Tue, Mar 28, 2023 at 2:37 PM
To: "Jim W (via Google Docs)" <jrw1011@gmail.com>, godwinprop@aol.com
Cc: larrybutac@gmail.com, nelson.christina30@gmail.com

Hello Melanie, 

I’m still awaiting a returned phone call from you Melanie. I have not received a returned phone call since the beginning of
the lease, over 7 months ago. 

It’s clear the email was received despite no returned email, phone call nor text message. Your husband, Chris Rosales
(Maintenance Supervisor), visited the unit at approximately 11am, without prior notice. The ongoing issues were
discussed-pertaining to the unit, the overall building safety, property management communication, and follow through. A
walked through was performed with Chris. As next steps, Chris assured us that the building surveillance would be
attended to ASAP. He also said that all issues would be ameliorated in a timely manner along with active
communication. 

James Willis
jrw1011@gmail.com
3187894326

On Mar 27, 2023, at 1:22 PM, Jim W (via Google Docs) <jrw1011@gmail.com> wrote:

[Quoted text hidden]
<Incomplete Maintenance Issues.pdf>

Gmail 

000126

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com


5/26/23, 5:50 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1761650344825468270&simpl=msg-f:17616503448254682… 1/1

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Incomplete Maintenance Issues

godwinprop@aol.com <godwinprop@aol.com> Tue, Mar 28, 2023 at 2:58 PM
Reply-To: godwinprop@aol.com
To: "jrw1011@gmail.com" <jrw1011@gmail.com>
Cc: "larrybutac@gmail.com" <larrybutac@gmail.com>, "nelson.christina30@gmail.com" <nelson.christina30@gmail.com>

James, you never requested a phone call from me. I've looked back on communication I've
received and I have responded to all the messages that have come in. If not directly, I have
forwarded them to Christina. 

Regarding the cameras, Chris went out there to check the cameras and decided to knock on your
door, in case you were home. He planned to tell me today if the cameras were in fact down and if
they are back up. Once I knew I would've responded to you. 

I'm sure Chris told you that we are locking the elevator and further covering the latch to get it open
and will provide the mailman with a key to the laundry room for packages. We also are planning to
move the mailboxes into the laundry as well. 

As for the issues in your apartment, Chris and I will go over which are most important and begin to
address them. We won't be doing any cosmetic work inside your apartment at this time, as we are
stretched thin due to the rain right now, but we will address any functional or habitable issues. 

Melanie Godwin-Rosales
Godwin Properties
925/294-5860
www.godwinproperties.net
[Quoted text hidden]

Gmail 

000127

http://www.godwinproperties.net/


5/26/23, 5:51 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-a:s:490762669431526469&simpl=msg-a:s:49076266943152… 1/2

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Incomplete Maintenance Issues

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com> Tue, Mar 28, 2023 at 6:07 PM
To: godwinprop@aol.com
Cc: larrybutac@gmail.com, nelson.christina30@gmail.com

Melanie, I am still awaiting a returned phone call. 3187894326

Misspeaking about me, shifting things to Christina and lacking accountability is not very effective. 

The phone records from August 2022 until now are attached below. I’ve called you 19 times and left 3 Voicemails/5
Attempted Voicemails (in bold) in over 7 months. Some of the voicemails may not have reached you because the box
was sometimes full; however, I was able to leave 3 recorded voicemails. I’ll also note and forward all the emails that I
sent to you that got no response and the ones that you responded to, selectively, while not addressing everything
mentioned to you. Even if you did forward emails to Christina, I did not receive a response for those nor any flow up. I
asked Chris why you hadn't been responsive by phone, he stated that you don't do well with phone calls and that you
prefer text and emails. 

When Christina is unreachable and unresponsive, I reach out to you. Regardless of what Christina's
duties/responsibilities are, our lease is with the landlord/property owner-Godwin Properties and your signature is on the
lease; therefore, it is your duty and responsibility to respond to us as tenants. This unresponsive mood going on is a
constant with other tenants in this building as well.

I was not aware that I could text the 218-585-3389 number until 03/15/2023. We communicated about the dog upstairs
and the garage door. You stopped responding by text message on last Thursday 03/23/2023 when I inquired about the
security cameras; photo attached below.

I am a member of the Oakland Tenants Union. Godwin Properties are in breach of the California implied warranty of
habitability law and has been for over 7 months. May all the habitable things be fixed soon. 

What’s the update on the garage door? I asked for the use of garage "I" until you all take care of garage "J" . That door
is extremely heavy to lift with the cable broken and it's not functional. It needs to be accessible daily. We pay to rent it,
yet it is not functional. I requested that in the maintenance request online. 

James Willis
3187894326
jrw1011@gmail.com

On Mar 28, 2023, at 2:58 PM, godwinprop@aol.com wrote:

[Quoted text hidden]

2 attachments

Gmail 

--- -------------------

-----------------

000128

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:godwinprop@aol.com


5/26/23, 5:51 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-a:s:490762669431526469&simpl=msg-a:s:49076266943152… 2/2

IMG_5624.PNG
647K

Phone Log to (925) 294-5860 Godwin Properties.pdf
46K

000129

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=662740582e&view=att&th=1872ae78a61b75ba&attid=0.2&disp=inline&realattid=f_lfsy230e1&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=662740582e&view=att&th=1872ae78a61b75ba&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=f_lfsxjxc10&safe=1&zw


5/26/23, 5:52 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1761724845868890283&simpl=msg-f:17617248458688902… 1/1

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Incomplete Maintenance Issues

godwinprop@aol.com <godwinprop@aol.com> Wed, Mar 29, 2023 at 10:42 AM
To: "jrw1011@gmail.com" <jrw1011@gmail.com>
Cc: "larrybutac@gmail.com" <larrybutac@gmail.com>, "nelson.christina30@gmail.com" <nelson.christina30@gmail.com>

James, I didn't misspeak about you. Some of those emails I never saw and forwarding them to
Christina is precisely what we usually do, as she is the manager. If an email went into spam or was
lost there is nothing I can do about it. We have had multiple vacancies listed and tons of calls,
which is why my voicemail says to email me directly. You received a visit from Chris, representing
our office, today,  to address your issues, so lets just move forward. 

The garage company told me they would reach out to you. If they haven't yet, we will call them
back. Please let me know because the repair is still under warranty. 

I already told you what we plan to do to address some of the theft going on and Christina and Chris
will coordinate to address your unit. As I said we will focus on the functional and habitability issues
first. 

Can you pls tell me if you have heard the dog from 305. She said it was visiting and she removed
it. 

Melanie Godwin-Rosales
Godwin Properties
925/294-5860
Apartment Homes for Rent in Oakland, Castro Valley, CA 

Apartment Homes for Rent in Oakland,
Castro Valley, CA
Choose apartments for rent from cozy studios to penthouses with
terrific views. We offer East Bay Area living spaces in Oakland
&#38; Castro Valley.

[Quoted text hidden]

Gmail 

000130

http://www.godwinproperties.net/
http://www.godwinproperties.net/


5/26/23, 5:52 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-a:r2452766652155457851&simpl=msg-a:r24527666521554… 1/2

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Incomplete Maintenance Issues

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com> Wed, Mar 29, 2023 at 2:34 PM
To: "godwinprop@aol.com" <godwinprop@aol.com>
Cc: "larrybutac@gmail.com" <larrybutac@gmail.com>, "nelson.christina30@gmail.com" <nelson.christina30@gmail.com>,
godwinprop@aol.com, Melanie Rosales
<c2ce820794f48fbd2dae71c17b829d2e868fd4aa6b7d5af8eaec569d8b5fc35a@godwinproperties.mailer.appfolio.us>
Bcc: Nadia Mashni <nmashni@gmail.com>, godwinprop@aol.com

Melanie, your not returning calls is blatant at this point. You indeed misspoke about me when you said I never requested
a call from you, when I requested a call from you multiple times and ways. Instead of apologizing, you continue to make
excuses. You just misspoke in the email before this one, you said "You received a visit from Chris, representing our
office, today,.. " Chris came by the unit yesterday, not today. You continue to create excuses each time factual
information is provided. I called today and left a voicemail. How about you move forward, return phone calls or respond
with tangible or complete solutions? There is indeed something you can do about the emails now because I re-sent them
all to you. 

The emails were re-sent to you; still no response from you on those, even the ones that you initially responded to.
Christina responded saying she'd catch up to them.

Chris's visit was a waste of time. If he came to represent you, what he did could have been a phone call or an email. He
didn't provide us with anymore information than what we were already aware of. I had already provided photos and
information on what needed to be done. As he stated, he stopped by to see if there were cameras and wanted to talk to
make sure we were ok. We pretty much went over all the issues. We even witnessed a guest of 305 attempting to use
the elevator. He blamed everything on Christina and said that she was responsible for not following up and not
completing the issues. He stated that you all had never had this issue with Christina before; meanwhile, other residents
in this build have expressed Godwin Properties non-responsiveness. At least Chris had the courage to apologize about
Godwin Properties' lack of responsibility and communication. I also sent a verbal request with him to have you call me. 

No one at Godwin has said anything about getting me access to another garage until the one I'm assigned is functional
again. No one has even offered to credit or reduce the rent fee for the garage since it's not functional  but you all expect
me to communicate with the garage company. 

The garage company has not reached out to me at this time. Whenever, the garage company reaches out, I will redirect
them to you all because there's nothing I can do. I did my part as the tenant and reported it to you all. It's not my job to
be here or arrange a time for them to come fix it. That's on you all. You all should have a key. I was initially assigned
garaged I on move-in day but Christina gave me the wrong key and just told me to go ahead and use garage J.

The document I sent over, in the initial email on 03/27, provides the time span of the dog situation in 305.

I've already met with some of the residents here. I'm well aware of how you all operate. 

Melanie you might not ever return my call/voicemails; however, the City of Oakland will be reaching out to you.  

Apologies should be in the form of corrected action, not just words. And the things that need to be completed can be
done in-spite of the rain. Even the garage company came by last time in the rain. 

James Willis
3187894326
jrw1011@gmail.com 
[Quoted text hidden]
--
James Willis 
jrw1011@gmail.com

Gmail 

000131

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle



5/26/23, 5:54 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-a:r-8602316742653645996&simpl=msg-a:r-8602316742653… 1/1

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Incomplete Maintenance Issues

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com> Wed, Mar 29, 2023 at 2:57 PM
To: Christina Nelson <nelson.christina30@gmail.com>
Cc: larrybutac@gmail.com, godwinprop@aol.com

Hi Christina, 

Thanks for your response. Chris came over yesterday and blamed everything on you; however, I know who the real issue
is and has always been Melanie. It's beyond clear at this point. Yes, Melanie I have you cc'd on this email. Although
Godwin Properties lack of communication has been consistent since the beginning of this tenancy, Christina has
been the most responsive out of anyone at Godwin. 

No one at Godwin still hasn't said anything about getting me access to another garage until the one I'm assigned is
functional again. No one has even offered to credit or reduce the rent fee for the garage since it's not functional  but you
all expect me to communicate with the garage company.

The garage company has not reached out to me at this time. Whenever the garage company reaches out, I will redirect
them to you all because there's nothing I can do. I did my part as the tenant and reported it to you all. It's not my job to
be here or arrange a time for them to come fix it. That's on you all. You all should have a key. I was initially assigned
garage I on move-in day but Christina gave me the wrong key and just told me to go ahead and use garage J.

The lease agreement says garage "I" on page 2. And it says that "Any change in Tenant's parking space is to first be
approved by the Owner in writing" I need a key to garage I asap. 

James Willis
3187894326
jrw1011@gmail.com
[Quoted text hidden]
--
James Willis 
jrw1011@gmail.com

Gmail 

000132

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com


5/26/23, 5:55 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1761840002098010996&simpl=msg-f:17618400020980109… 1/2

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Incomplete Maintenance Issues

godwinprop@aol.com <godwinprop@aol.com> Thu, Mar 30, 2023 at 5:12 PM
Reply-To: godwinprop@aol.com
To: "jrw1011@gmail.com" <jrw1011@gmail.com>, "nelson.christina30@gmail.com" <nelson.christina30@gmail.com>
Cc: "larrybutac@gmail.com" <larrybutac@gmail.com>

James, Christina should be the one in most contact with you because that's her job. She holds the
keys to the garages, she makes appts with the vendors. She is listed as your contact point on your
lease, I knew nothing about the leftover items inside your apartment until a few days ago, except
the garage and the dog complaint, which we have been texting about. I will take ownership and
apologize for not responding to a few emails, although several were viewed and forwarded to be
handled. I agree a response back to you was warranted. With Christina being busy and sick, she
wasn't able to handle your issues and we did ask her if she needed any help with anything. I will
say this is a communication breakdown on all sides, but our lease is pretty transparent as to how to
submit maintenance requests and my outgoing VM does say to email me rather than leave a
message. 

Having said that, you are in contact with the most appropriate members of our staff. Once I became
aware of your maintenance issues, I sent Chris directly to you. Chris is our maintenance supervisor
and oversees all our maintenance. He went there to discuss with you and see the problems for
himself and you imply it was a waste of time? Chris knows 100 times more about maintenance than
I do and he was the exact right person to talk to you. Yes you sent us pictures, and we appreciate
that, but sometimes we need to inspect before we schedule repairs, as pictures don’t show the
whole situation.   

As for the garage, it made more sense to me to have them call you directly and arrange a
convenient time to come and schedule the repair. We don't know your schedule and you knew
more about what was done on their first attempt to fix the problem. We are not passing that off on
you but merely trying to make it convenient. If you want to switch garages that is fine with us. I
assumed your garage was working manually still, but Christina can get you the key for garage I.

If you want to blame me that is fine. I'll accept responsibility for the missing communication but our
company is comprised of several responsible people, many of whom are better equipped to help
you solve this problem than me. We'll credit your $50 parking fee for April, as a garage credit, as
well as a 3% rent reduction for April since you've had to deal with so many issues, so total off
$106.85, so just pay $1838.15 for April rent. We will discuss your repairs and decide whether
Christina or Chris will be taking the lead.  

Having said all that, your emails to me are taunting and borderline harassing, implying I'm
deliberately ignoring you, which is false. I have texted you multiple times recently and sent the most
appropriate person to you once I became aware of your issues. I prefer to continue our
conversations in writing from now on and will let you know the plan for your unit once we all talk. 

Melanie Godwin-Rosales
Godwin Properties

Gmail 

000133



5/26/23, 5:55 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1761840002098010996&simpl=msg-f:17618400020980109… 2/2

925/294-5860
Apartment Homes for Rent in Oakland, Castro Valley, CA 

Apartment Homes for Rent in Oakland,
Castro Valley, CA
Choose apartments for rent from cozy studios to penthouses with
terrific views. We offer East Bay Area living spaces in Oakland
&#38; Castro Valley.

-----Original Message-----
From: Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>
[Quoted text hidden]

000134

http://www.godwinproperties.net/
http://www.godwinproperties.net/
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com


5/26/23, 5:55 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1761910740691236280&simpl=msg-f:17619107406912362… 1/7

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Incomplete Maintenance Issues

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com> Fri, Mar 31, 2023 at 11:56 AM
To: godwinprop@aol.com
Cc: nelson.christina30@gmail.com, larrybutac@gmail.com
Bcc: nmashni@gmail.com

Melanie, I still haven't received the assigned key for garage I. I first requested the key when garage door J broke 42 days ago and I’ve asked
about a solution several times. Christina, what's the status of getting a key for garage I?  

Thanks for taking ownership for not responding to the older emails. I understand that you may forward them to Christina; I typically cc her on
emails that I send you or send them afterwards. Whenever I've emailed you in the past, prior to 03/27/2023, I would connect with or attempt to
connect with Christina multiple times. 

Melaine, may I ask you to think about this-we would not be here at this point if everyone, including you, had done what they were supposed to
do. The grace period for completing non-habitable repairs is 30 days; habitable issues are supposed to be corrected asap. It's been over 7
months, that's a total of 7 grace periods. It would have been compassionate to have seen the initial email from you lead with something like,
"Thanks for reaching out by email. I apologize for this inconvenience and will look into all these matters soon. Thanks for your patience and
continuing to pay your rent on-time." or something of that nature but instead you opened with "James, you never requested a call from me."
And that was not true; even if you weren't aware that I requested a call by email, phone, Christina and Chris, it wasn't true. And instead of
correcting that second email, it was defensive and you doubled down on not misspeaking about me when in fact you did. 

On Thursday, October 27, 2022, 5 months ago, at 3:17pm, I texted Christina-"Hey, how are you? Does Godwin ever answer their phone or
return messages?" Photo attached. 
At 5:24pm, Christina responded, "No..what do you need? Maybe I can help" Photo attached.

Never have I ever rented from a landlord/property owner who I did not meet in person or speak with over the phone. I'm in no way saying that I
desire to meet you in person; I just think that it's odd to rent from someone I've never even had a phone conversation with and now you will not
return any of the calls made to you. I told Christina this back in October 2022, 5 months ago. Christina's response via text was, "All issues are
handled the the managers unless it's an issue about the manager. I've agreed to stay on in a limited capacity. Kevin is taking over all
maintenance. I am creating him schedule for next week to address all outstanding issues and will mark yours a priority." Photo attached.

Who is Kevin? Where is Kevin? 

Christina has told me from September 2022 til February 2023, 5 months, that a schedule was being generated. After 30 days of no schedule,
plans or actions, a phone call and email to you was warranted and done; neither was returned. There’s no office info; just a post office box.
You acknowledged not returning the few emails, 6 to be exact; but, you did not acknowledge not returning the phone calls and voice
messages. 

Regardless of what the lease says about who to contact, Christina being the manager and your voicemail saying to email you, that does not
rule out a phone call or a returned call. If an elderly person was renting from you who doesn't know how to use email then a phone call would be
the way to go. We know you don't like talking on the phone when dealing with the residential stuff, we get it, even Chris was transparent about
it. Christina, Larry and I don't like talking over the phone about this either. Christina and I started sending voice memos to each other at one
point. It's discomforting to even have to type this email at this time. You say that you weren't aware of the other issues; however, Christina was
aware and I emailed the both of you. Yes, you did text about the dog and the garage but you stopped responding when I inquired an update on
the cameras. 

Chris is the maintenance supervisor and your husband. He explicitly stated that he came over to check the cameras and make sure we were
ok. Larry and I voluntarily showed him what needed to be done. He did not ask to inspect anything. He was apologetic and answered all our
questions, yet nothing changed during his visit. It's interesting that this is the first time I've met or seen Chris. Never seen him or his vehicle at
this property; maybe he's been here while I was not home. No one has ever referenced him here other than Christina. Yes, pictures may not
show the whole situation; however, Christina was aware of what needed to be done so you all could have got with her and saved that trip he
made over here. Chris's visit still didn't seem productive; everything that needs to be done, he said Christina could and would do it.  He also
mentioned that Christina has another job and that was taking up most of her time. He said that he’d wish he could give us something more
definite about the issues but he needed to speak with you and Christina. 

As for the garage, it makes no sense to have them call me directly and arrange a convenient time to come and schedule the repair. That is not
my job as a tenant.  Godwin Properties should have a backup key to provide to the vendor, as you said-that's Christina's job. My schedule has
no dependence on whether or not the garage gets repaired. I already responded to the email Christina sent about the garage stuff. I told her
what I knew and the technician names. Asking me to arrange a time with the garage people is an inconvenience for me. What would be
convenient is for Christina to let me know when the key for the garage I will be ready and I'll come pick it up from her building myself. The
garage door is too heavy for one person to lift with the cable off; I told Christina and Chris that I injured my arm last month trying to lift it alone.
A garage door usually weighs about 130lbs; I'm not going to stress my body over the door when there's a more simple solution-the key to the
original assigned garage I. I could lift 130lbs in a correct squat form, but lifting a garage door is bad form and can cause injury. 

Gmail 

000135

jrw1011@gmail.com
Rectangle



5/26/23, 5:55 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1761910740691236280&simpl=msg-f:17619107406912362… 2/7

So, you claim to accept responsibility for missing communication yet explicitly still decide each day not to return phone calls. Is your company
really comprised of several responsible people, because look where we and other tenants are now? Who are the responsible people you speak
of, because it’s been over 7 months? The terms of the lease and state/local laws  are not being honored. 

Apology not accepted. Apologies come in the form of corrected actions and fair compensation. Thanks for crediting the account for the garage
fee for the month of April ($50) ; however, 3% ($56.85)  off the rent for dealing with issues for 7+ months isn't just. That $106.85 credit only
covers the garage door not being fully functional for a total of 64 days. Mind you, I had to use gloves twice a day for 22 days to open and close
a garage door with fresh dripped feces water on it had to smell it everyday even with a face mask on. And cleaned it off myself because
Christina didn’t clean it completely.  

Feces Leak on Garage Door-22 days
Broken Garage Door-42 days and counting until I get a key to Garage I
Total Days-64
$50 a month garage fee divided by 30 days equals 1.66666667 times 64 days is $106.67.

What makes my emails to you taunting and borderline harassing? 
Taunting is defined as intending to provoke someone in an insulting or contemptuous manner. 
What is it you think I'm trying to provoke you in an insulting or contemptuous manner?
Harassing is defined as the action of subjecting someone to aggressive pressure or intimidation.
What action is borderline subjecting you to aggressive pressure or intimidation?

I understand that most people are so used to others being indirect and phony that clear and direct communication sounds aggressive. 

Melanie, you are deliberately ignoring my calls because you have not returned them and are aware that I’ve called. I specifically stated these
things as reminders, 
"I’m still awaiting a returned phone call from you Melanie. I have not received a returned phone call since the beginning of the lease, over 7
months ago."
"Melanie, I am still awaiting a returned phone call. 3187894326"
"Melanie, your not returning calls is blatant at this point."

I did not imply that you're deliberately ignoring me. I clearly stated the above in quotes. And still to this day, you have not returned my calls,
that is factual. And you have no plans to because you stated what you prefer. I preferred a phone call to alleviate all the emails but we're here
now. I try to have conversations with people before things get to the level of documentation, allowing people a fair opportunity to be impeccable
with their word. 

James Willis
3187894326
jrw1011@gmail.com

000136

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com


5/26/23, 5:55 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1761910740691236280&simpl=msg-f:17619107406912362… 3/7
000137



5/26/23, 5:55 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1761910740691236280&simpl=msg-f:17619107406912362… 4/7
000138



5/26/23, 5:55 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1761910740691236280&simpl=msg-f:17619107406912362… 5/7
000139



5/26/23, 5:56 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1762198641563981205&simpl=msg-f:17621986415639812… 1/7

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Incomplete Maintenance Issues

James Ray Willis <jrw1011@gmail.com> Mon, Apr 3, 2023 at 4:12 PM
To: godwinprop@aol.com
Cc: nelson.christina30@gmail.com, larrybutac@gmail.com

Melanie, the following things below are updated so far.

1. Garage Door I-Christina put on a new lock on the door and provided a key on Sunday, 04/02/20223. 
2. Garage Door J-still not fixed. The door’s cable is on the garage floor (photo attached). The 2 keys 

were returned to Christina on Sunday, 04/02/2023 (photo attached). R & S Garage Door has not 
returned to fix it. I hope everything works out with getting Garage J Door fixed. 

3. Garage Transfer from J to I-Garage I had carpeting and wood inside the storage area (photo 
attached); it was placed inside the storage area in Garage J. Larry and I moved all of our belongings 
from Garage J to I. Garage J is empty (photo attached). 

4. Heating-HVAC (Les & Frank) visited Monday, 04/03/2023. They did an assessment on the heaters 
only and said they would share details with property management and the owner. Nothing was 
cleaned nor fixed. They are awaiting instructions from you all. 

5. Pest Control-they have not called nor visited our unit but there is a card hanger on the washroom 
door. (photo attached).

6. Kitchen Breaker-no changes. 

Gmail 

000140



5/26/23, 5:56 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1762198641563981205&simpl=msg-f:17621986415639812… 2/7

Cg /)\~~,(s E -(( • 'l) l ~ 

I 1 t 
"'e~s 

1. __ Cct, L.E.e. ~~~ 

~~f+J '--\\t,2.:~ 

000141



5/26/23, 5:56 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1762198641563981205&simpl=msg-f:17621986415639812… 3/7

•. -- - .. 

000142



5/26/23, 5:56 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1762198641563981205&simpl=msg-f:17621986415639812… 4/7
000143



5/26/23, 5:56 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1762198641563981205&simpl=msg-f:17621986415639812… 5/7
000144



5/26/23, 5:56 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1762198641563981205&simpl=msg-f:17621986415639812… 6/7
000145



5/26/23, 5:56 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1762198641563981205&simpl=msg-f:17621986415639812… 7/7

Best, 
James Willis
3187894326
jrw1011@gmail.com

On Mar 31, 2023, at 11:57 AM, Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com> wrote:

[Quoted text hidden]
[Quoted text hidden]
<image0.png>
<image1.png>
<image2.png>

[Quoted text hidden]

(209) 835-8005 • (929) 4'1'-7100 • (916) 740.51)1)9 

www.patriotpest4U.com 
choosepalrlol@gmall.com 

4713 N. Flral Streel #154 • Pleasanton, CA ~566 

793 S. Tracy Blvd., #135 • Tracy, CA 95376 

IP~TR.I OT 
PES T MANAGEMENT 

.-! e;;,~ INC -::-
Your Patriot Technician, _,/'4,-=.,_.Afc,..,_ ____ _ 

serviced your property today et: 

-Zwo lu, =z C 
Wo used the fotlowlng mato~el(s) 

13,-h 
In tho following areas: 

j?tii'".I ti' 1-y] a;t1Q'r h:' ..,5, tcu/1 <p,,1<1 

C v,-111';}, <'n,, ,,.,..,..'? 
You Were Protected 
by PATRIOT Today! 

1 w today's lnvolc•. 
For additional Information, to rev 8 

l)O t today's sorvlco, 
or to toavo comments a O t· 

1 account onllne t'l • 
please access vour persona 

palrlot.pestportals.com 
. ttach•d In lhO 

or you can follow the ltnk a on 
II Patriot will be sending you up 

e-ma • service. 
completion of today• 

tr(II' ,,t00~22-1ztt 
unRtfd SUtff Polt.on COf'I • 

000146

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com


Page 1 of 2 
Proof of Service 
Rev. 5/21/2021 

CITY OF OAKLAND 

RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 
Oakland, CA 94612-0243 
(510) 238-3721
CA Relay Service 711
www.oaklandca.gov/RAP

For Rent Adjustment Program date stamp. 

PROOF OF SERVICE

NOTE: YOU ARE REQUIRED TO SERVE A COPY OF YOUR PETITION (PLUS ANY ATTACHMENTS) 
ON THE PROPERTY OWNER PRIOR TO FILING YOUR PETITION WITH RAP. You must include a 
copy of the RAP form “NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNER OF TENANT PETITION” (the preceding 
page of this petition packet) and a completed PROOF OF SERVICE form together with your 
Petition. 

1) Use this PROOF OF SERVICE form to indicate the date and manner of service and the person(s) served.

2) Note: Email is not a form of allowable service on a party of a petition or response pursuant to the Ordinance.
3) Provide a completed copy of this PROOF OF SERVICE form to the person(s) being served together with the

documents being served.

4) File a completed copy of this PROOF OF SERVICE form with RAP together with your Petition. Your Petition
will not be considered complete until this form has been filed indicating that service has occurred.

On the following date: _____/_____/_____ I served a copy of (check all that apply): 

❑ TENANT PETITION plus _14_____ attached pages (number of pages attached to Petition not
counting the Petition form, NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNER OF TENANT PETITION, or 
PROOF OF SERVICE) 

❑ NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNER OF TENANT PETITION

❑ Other: ___________________________________________

by the following means (check one):

❑ United States Mail. I enclosed the document(s) in a sealed envelope or package addressed
to the person(s) listed below and at the address(es) below and deposited the sealed envelope
with the United States Postal Service, with the postage fully prepaid.

❑ Personal Service. I personally delivered the document(s) to the person(s) at the address(es)
listed below or I left the document(s) at the address(es) with some person not younger than
18 years of age.

/// 

/// 

/// 

X

04 14 2023

X

X

05 26

131

CITY OF OAKLAND 

000147



Page 2 of 2 
Proof of Service 

Rev. 5/21/2021 

PERSON(S) SERVED: 

Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and 
correct. 

_______________________________________________ 

 PRINTED NAME 

 __________________________________________ ____________________ 

SIGNATURE DATE SIGNED

Melanie Godwin-Rosales

PO Box 2128 

Livermore, CA 94551

James Willis 

04/12/202305 26

, Larry Butac

000148



 July 1, 2023 

 Godwin Properties 
 P.O. Box 2128 
 Livermore, CA 94551 

 The Property Owner Response to the Tenant Petition was received by mail June 29, 2023. As of July 1,2023, the Property Owner 
 Response has not been uploaded to the City of Oakland Rent Adjustment Program dashboard. 

 Larry Godwin is listed as the Property Owner in the Property Owner Response. Larry Godwin is not listed on the Lease. The Tenants 
 have not had any contact with anyone at Godwin Properties with the name Larry Godwin. 

 The Property Owner Larry Godwin requested the mediation program through RAP on the Property Owner Response. The Lessor & 
 General Manager Melanie Godwin-Rosales has not returned any of the Tenants phone calls since the beginning of the lease and 
 has not sought out any means to mediate with the Tenants prior to the Property Owner’s Response. The tenants followed up with 
 Property Manager Christina Nelson about Godwin’s lack of response to email and calls when she admitted that they do not return 
 calls. See page 47 of the original petition attachment. 

 The uncompleted issues listed in the move-in inspection and the issues filed in the maintenance portal were not completed within 30 
 days. The uncompleted issues and some of the completed issues were not completed within 35 days after filing the petition. 

 The attachments to the Owner’s response to the Tenant petition lacked the evidence, proof and documentation needed to support 
 their claims of “In progress”. The only evidence provided was the notice to enter the unit and some of the email thread for the 
 bathroom mold remediation process. 

 The online maintenance portal is for issues that took place during the tenancy. The Tenants reported issues that happened during 
 the tenancy. The issues that were present at the time of move-in and during the move-in inspection were not the responsibility of the 
 Tenants to enter into the online portal; it was Godwin’s responsibility to fix them, whether it be the property manager, maintenance 
 supervisor or maintenance technician. After Management refused to resolve the issues after 7 months, that’s when the Tenants 
 entered the issues in the online portal. Even the maintenance issues that the Tenants entered during the tenancy, like the bathroom 
 leak, weren't resolved until June 2023 (7.5 months later). 

 The Tenants requested submission of the initial move-in inspection to the Property Manager, Christina Nelson in August 2022. 
 Property manager Christina Nelson made an oral agreement with the Tenants to finish all the work that wasn’t completed before 
 move in, to be completed within 30 days after moving in. Property Manager informed the Tenants not to use the online portal for the 
 maintenance requests if they were already documented in the move-in inspection. That’s why the move-in issues from August of 
 2022 were not entered into the maintenance portal until March 2023 because after 7 months of not completing the issues the 
 Tenants needed to make sure it was on the portal although those issues happened before move in. 

 The Tenants followed up with Godwin Properties via several phone calls. Godwin Properties has not returned any calls as of 
 07/01/2023. The Tenants followed up with Godwin via email about the unresolved move in issues on 08/22/2022, 10/25/2022, 
 2/21/2023.  See pages 27-28 of the original petition attachments. The Tenants made contact with Godwin Properties before the 
 move-in issues were entered in the online maintenance portal. 

 All evidence of communication prior to May 26, 2023 was attached to the petition, except the inspection report. The inspection report 
 was removed from the premises when problem # 13 was addressed. The Tenants have requested a copy of the move-in inspection 
 on March 28, 2023 and June 29, 2023 during Maintenance Supervisor Chris Rosales’ visits, and via email on June 30, 2023 to 
 Lessor Melaine Godwin-Rosales. 

 Little progress has been made since the maintenance requests and the petition request has been filed; however, more than half of 
 the issues are still uncompleted. Only 1 of completed issues received a decrease in rent for the delay. Godwin Properties has not 
 not provided any tangible plans nor schedules have been offered for the remaining repairs or issues. 

 The 260 Lee Street property does not have an on-site manager. The term “On-site” manager was used to refer to the new 
 Maintenance Technician Brian Qualls in the supplemental document to the property owners response to the petition. Maintenance 
 Technician Brian Qualls lives on the 266 Adams Street property; therefore, he is not the “On-site” manager for the property at 260 
 Lee Street. Godwin Properties stretches him between multiple properties. 

 Item #  Response 

000149



 1.  Brian’s stopped working in the bathroom Monday, 06/26/2023. 

 There’s now a small leak under the bathroom sink. Maintenance Request #1267-1. 

 Rent Credits for Bathroom Remediation/Work- 
 12 days (06/15-06/26) 
 $1945 rent divided by 30 days=$64.83 
 $64.83 a day times 12 days=$777.96 

 Rent Credits for Water Damage Treatment delayed repairs  - 
 $1945 rent times 6%=$116.70 
 $116.70 times 7.5 months delay=$875.25 
 $777.96 plus $875.25=$1,653.21 
 $1945 rent minus $1,653.21=$291.79 

 Grand Total of Credits=$1,653.21 granted on 06/28/2023 and 06/29/2023 by Lessor Melanie 
 Godwin-Rosales. 
 Rent deduction was honored due to delay. 

 2.  Completed. 
 Heating was inspected during April 2023. Repairs inside the unit were completed on April 26, 2023. See 
 pages 71-73 of the original petition attachments. The $106.85 credit was not for the heat. Lessor Melanie 
 Godwin-Rosales said in an email on Mar 30, 2023, 5:12 PM “as well as a 3% rent reduction for April since 
 you've had to deal with so many issues, so total off $106.85”. She credited the Tenants as a whole, not for 
 just the heat. Rent deduction is requested due to delay. See attachment for email. 

 3.  Uncompleted. 
 Lesser Melanie Godwin Rosales was sent an update by the tenants on 06/22/2023. No one has  come out to 
 measure the broken window and/or replace the screens. The City of Oakland Code Inspector called and 
 visited the unit to inspect the window again on 06/21/2023 and said Godwin Properties hadn’t responded to 
 their calls or mail.  Rent deduction is requested due  to delay. 

 4.  Uncompleted. 
 Expansion gap refers to the gap between the flooring in the bathroom and the bathtub. There’s rust and black 
 colored mold within the expansion gap. It was suggested that the gap be covered. Spoke with Maintenance 
 Supervisor Chris Rosales during the walk through visit on 03/28/2023. Rent deduction is requested due to 
 delay. 

 5.  Completed. 
 Tenants are still requesting a decrease in rent for the delay and reimbursement on the supplies used to 
 resolve the issue. 

 6.  Uncompleted. 
 The pest company arrived on April 3, 2023. They treated the following areas around the property: perimeter, 
 door trims, downspouts, cracks, and crevices. We notified Godwin Properties on the same day. Please see 
 the 132th page of the original petition attachments titled “Incomplete Maintenance Issues” from Mon, Apr 3, 
 2023 at 4:12 PM. We updated Lessor Melanie Godwin Rosales on 06/22/2023, again. Tenants are still 
 requesting a decrease in rent for the delay and supplies used to temporarily add the issue. 

 7.  Uncompleted. 
 Mailbox is still broken. An update was provided in the petition attachment. Status hasn’t changed since the 
 initial report. A USPS supervisor left a notice about the mailbox. See page 11 of the original petition 
 attachment. It was also attached to maintenance request #1231-1 on May 11, 2023 in addition to 
 maintenance request #1192-1 on March 27, 2023. Lessor Melanie Godwin Rosales mentioned, in several 
 emails starting with one dated Tue, Mar 28, 2023 at 2:58 PM, plans to order mailboxes and install inside 
 them the laundry room. No progress or action has been taken. Rent deduction is requested due to delay. 

 8.  Completed. 
 It was resolved on April 2, 2023. Rent deduction is requested due to delay. 

 9.  Uncompleted. 
 An update was provided in the petition attachment. Status hasn’t changed since the initial report. Lessor 
 Melanie Godwin-Rosales has not requested an update from the tenants since the petition was filed 

000150



 05/26/2023. As of 07/01/2023, no notice, plans or arrangements have been made with the Tenants. Rent 
 deduction is requested due to delay. 

 10.  Uncompleted. 
 An update was provided in the petition attachment. Status hasn’t changed since the initial report. Lessor 
 Melanie Godwin-Rosales has not requested an update from the tenants since the petition was filed 
 05/26/2023. As of 07/01/2023, no notice, plans or arrangements have been made with the Tenants. Rent 
 deduction is requested due to delay. 

 11.  Uncompleted. 
 As of 07/01/2023, a few things were spontaneously done during the mold remediation from problem #1 
 between 6/15 and 6/26; however, everything wasn’t completed. As of 07/01/2023, no notice, plans or 
 arrangements have been made with the Tenants. Rent deduction is requested due to delay. 

 12.  Uncompleted. 
 An update was provided in the petition attachment. Status hasn’t changed since the initial report. Lessor 
 Melanie Godwin-Rosales has not requested an update from the tenants since the petition was filed 
 05/26/2023. As of 07/01/2023, no notice, plans or arrangements have been made with the Tenants. Rent 
 deduction is requested due to delay. 

 13.  Uncompleted. 
 An update was provided in the petition attachment. Status hasn’t changed since the initial report. Lessor 
 Melanie Godwin-Rosales has not requested an update from the tenants since the petition was filed 
 05/26/2023. As of 07/01/2023, no notice, plans or arrangements have been made with the Tenants.  Tenants 
 are still requesting a decrease in rent for the delay.  Please refer to pg. 14 of the petition for status  update. 
 Rent deduction is requested due to delay. 

 14.  Uncompleted. 
 Lessor Melanie Godwin-Rosales didn’t provide an update in their response to the petition. However they did 
 respond within an email dated June 28, 2023 after another security incident took place. It was addressed via 
 email on 06/28/2023. See attachment for email. Maintenance Supervisor Chris Rosales is supposed to be in 
 contact with the security camera company to schedule a visit to the property. The tenants were initially told 
 the company would visit the property in March 2023. Rent deduction is requested due to delay. 

 15.  Uncompleted. 
 The elevator doors need new locks and installed latch guards. 
 On June 29, 2023 at 3:10 PM, the tenants met with Chris Rosales, the maintenance supervisor, and Brian 
 Qualls, a maintenance worker, and they confirmed that the elevator door lock on the ground floor is still not 
 fixed. 

 16.  Completed. 
 It was resolved on October 3, 2022. Rent deduction is requested due to delay. 

 17.  Completed. 
 Rent deduction is requested due to delay. 

 18.  Addressed. 
 See attachments for emails. Rent deduction is requested due to delay. 

 19.  Addressed. 
 See pages 7-10 of the original petition attachment. Rent deduction is requested due to delay. 

 Respectfully, 

 James Willis, Larry Butac 
 Tenants 

000151



7/1/23, 11:12 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1761840002098010996&simpl=msg-f:17618400020980109… 1/2

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Incomplete Maintenance Issues
godwinprop@aol.com <godwinprop@aol.com> Thu, Mar 30, 2023 at 5:12 PM
Reply-To: godwinprop@aol.com
To: "jrw1011@gmail.com" <jrw1011@gmail.com>, "nelson.christina30@gmail.com" <nelson.christina30@gmail.com>
Cc: "larrybutac@gmail.com" <larrybutac@gmail.com>

James, Christina should be the one in most contact with you because that's her job. She holds the
keys to the garages, she makes appts with the vendors. She is listed as your contact point on your
lease, I knew nothing about the leftover items inside your apartment until a few days ago, except
the garage and the dog complaint, which we have been texting about. I will take ownership and
apologize for not responding to a few emails, although several were viewed and forwarded to be
handled. I agree a response back to you was warranted. With Christina being busy and sick, she
wasn't able to handle your issues and we did ask her if she needed any help with anything. I will
say this is a communication breakdown on all sides, but our lease is pretty transparent as to how
to submit maintenance requests and my outgoing VM does say to email me rather than leave a
message. 

Having said that, you are in contact with the most appropriate members of our staff. Once I
became aware of your maintenance issues, I sent Chris directly to you. Chris is our maintenance
supervisor and oversees all our maintenance. He went there to discuss with you and see the
problems for himself and you imply it was a waste of time? Chris knows 100 times more about
maintenance than I do and he was the exact right person to talk to you. Yes you sent us pictures,
and we appreciate that, but sometimes we need to inspect before we schedule repairs, as pictures
don’t show the whole situation.   

As for the garage, it made more sense to me to have them call you directly and arrange a
convenient time to come and schedule the repair. We don't know your schedule and you knew
more about what was done on their first attempt to fix the problem. We are not passing that off on
you but merely trying to make it convenient. If you want to switch garages that is fine with us. I
assumed your garage was working manually still, but Christina can get you the key for garage I.

If you want to blame me that is fine. I'll accept responsibility for the missing communication but our
company is comprised of several responsible people, many of whom are better equipped to help
you solve this problem than me. We'll credit your $50 parking fee for April, as a garage credit, as
well as a 3% rent reduction for April since you've had to deal with so many issues, so total off
$106.85, so just pay $1838.15 for April rent. We will discuss your repairs and decide whether
Christina or Chris will be taking the lead.  

Having said all that, your emails to me are taunting and borderline harassing, implying I'm
deliberately ignoring you, which is false. I have texted you multiple times recently and sent the
most appropriate person to you once I became aware of your issues. I prefer to continue our
conversations in writing from now on and will let you know the plan for your unit once we all talk. 

Melanie Godwin-Rosales
Godwin Properties
925/294-5860
Apartment Homes for Rent in Oakland, Castro Valley, CA 

Gmail 

000152

http://www.godwinproperties.net/
http://www.godwinproperties.net/


7/1/23, 11:12 AM Gmail - Incomplete Maintenance Issues

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1761840002098010996&simpl=msg-f:17618400020980109… 2/2

Apartment Homes for Rent in Oakland,
Castro Valley, CA
Choose apartments for rent from cozy studios to penthouses with
terrific views. We offer East Bay Area living spaces in Oakland
&#38; Castro Valley.

-----Original Message-----
From: Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>
[Quoted text hidden]

000153

http://www.godwinproperties.net/
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com


7/1/23, 11:28 AM Gmail - Trespassing

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f:1769977571277631114&simpl=msg-f:1769977571277631114 1/1

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>

Trespassing
godwinprop@aol.com <godwinprop@aol.com> Wed, Jun 28, 2023 at 12:55 PM
Reply-To: godwinprop@aol.com
To: "blair.auguste@gmail.com" <blair.auguste@gmail.com>, "nelson.christina30@gmail.com" <nelson.christina30@gmail.com>, "jrw1011@gmail.com"
<jrw1011@gmail.com>, "quallsbrian@gmail.com" <quallsbrian@gmail.com>

Thanks Blair, I'm very sorry that happened. We've always seen an uptick in crime during the summer months, but you did the right
thing in calling the cops. We would never ask our managers to confront anyone either, so it's best to call the authorities. There's not
much we can do except try to make the mail and elevator as secure as possible. 

We recently locked the elevator and are planning to move the mailboxes inside the laundry room. I've spoken with Chris and he will
order the mailbox today. We have tried to reach out to Reed Brothers to come and fix the cameras and will try again and ask for an
expedited appt. Cameras don't really deter anyone however, which has been our experience, but do give us something to hand over
to the police. Over the years we have enclosed the side walkway to deter homeless traffic. I will also talk to Amazon about a storage
box for packages. We've been thinking of doing that for awhile, but we've never wanted to hand over keys to anyone other than staff
and tenants, which is why we haven't moved forward yet. 

Please expect some of these things to get done as soon as we have bandwidth and finances to do so. 

Melanie Godwin-Rosales
Godwin Properties
925/294-5860
www.godwinproperties.net
[Quoted text hidden]

Gmail 

000154

http://www.godwinproperties.net/


7/1/23, 11:26 AM Gmail - Updates-Unidentified Male, Unit 302…Security Cameras…

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-a:mmiai-r-3482767904260641495&simpl=msg-a:s:-3492470105649125973&simpl=msg-a:r-8242507443483762… 3/5

Cc: Chris Rosales <cjrosales2112@gmail.com>, Christina Nelson <nelson.christina30@gmail.com>, Brian Qualls <quallsbrian11@gmail.com>, Larry Butac
<larrybutac@gmail.com>, Blair Auguste <blair.auguste@gmail.com>
Bcc: brittany@bettsonline.com, kjcarmouche1027 <kjcarmouche1027@gmail.com>, Nadia Mashni <nmashni@gmail.com>, Kai Walker <walkerka1@yahoo.com>

HI Melanie, 

The subject that was at unit 305's door was involved in the vehicular crime that occurred and the cops were looking for him. Oakland Police report #23-032771. If
the cameras are working, there should be a view of the subject fleeing the scene and entering the property. 
[Quoted text hidden]
--
James Willis 
jrw1011@gmail.com

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com> Wed, Jun 28, 2023 at 6:02 AM
To: Godwin Properties <godwinprop@aol.com>
Cc: Chris Rosales <cjrosales2112@gmail.com>, Christina Nelson <nelson.christina30@gmail.com>, Brian Qualls <quallsbrian11@gmail.com>, Larry Butac
<larrybutac@gmail.com>, Blair Auguste <blair.auguste@gmail.com>

*typo-Unit 302 not 305. The subject was running from the police trying to get into the elevator then tried to get into unit 302. Then eventually laid down on the
ground to hide.
[Quoted text hidden]
--
James Willis 
jrw1011@gmail.com

godwinprop@aol.com <godwinprop@aol.com> Wed, Jun 28, 2023 at 12:59 PM
Reply-To: godwinprop@aol.com
To: "jrw1011@gmail.com" <jrw1011@gmail.com>
Cc: "cjrosales2112@gmail.com" <cjrosales2112@gmail.com>, "nelson.christina30@gmail.com" <nelson.christina30@gmail.com>, "quallsbrian11@gmail.com"
<quallsbrian11@gmail.com>, "larrybutac@gmail.com" <larrybutac@gmail.com>, "blair.auguste@gmail.com" <blair.auguste@gmail.com>

Thanks James, I just read Blaire's account. Chris said he hasn't been able to reach the camera company. We have another bldg in
San Leandro that needs repair as well. He'll try again today. The best thing to do is call the cops. We would never ask our manager000155

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com


7/1/23, 11:26 AM Gmail - Updates-Unidentified Male, Unit 302…Security Cameras…

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=662740582e&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-a:mmiai-r-3482767904260641495&simpl=msg-a:s:-3492470105649125973&simpl=msg-a:r-8242507443483762… 4/5

or tenant to confront anyone or take this on themselves. When we know about the camera appt I'll let you know. 

Melanie Godwin-Rosales
Godwin Properties
925/294-5860
www.godwinproperties.net
[Quoted text hidden]

Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com> Wed, Jun 28, 2023 at 9:07 PM
To: godwinprop@aol.com
Cc: Larry Butac <larrybutac@gmail.com>, Blair Auguste <blair.auguste@gmail.com>

Hi Melanie, 

Thanks for your response. 
I called the police when Blair called me. I didn’t approach the subject. I approached the police that were already on the street while on the phone with the
dispatcher and Blair. 

Thanks for the camera system update. 

Best, 
James Willis
jrw1011@gmail.com

On Jun 28, 2023, at 12:59 PM, godwinprop@aol.com wrote:

[Quoted text hidden]

godwinprop@aol.com <godwinprop@aol.com> Thu, Jun 29, 2023 at 3:41 PM
To: Jim W <jrw1011@gmail.com>
Cc: Larry Butac <larrybutac@gmail.com>, Blair Auguste <blair.auguste@gmail.com>

You're welcome. We hope to have a further update today. Chris planned to walk into their office and try and get an appt.

Melanie Godwin-Rosales
Godwin Properties
925/294-5860
www.godwinproperties.net

[Quoted text hidden] 000156

http://www.godwinproperties.net/
mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:godwinprop@aol.com
http://www.godwinproperties.net/


1

Description of problem or
decreased housing service
(list separately):

Date
problem or
decreased
service
started:
(Month/Day/
Year)

Date first
notified
owner or
manager
of problem:
(Month/Day/Y
ear)

Date
problem or
service
was
fixed, if
ever:
(Month/Day/
Year)

What is
the
dollar
value of
your
claimed
Loss?

1. Bathroom Wall Leak 10/28/2022 10/28/2022 06/26/2023 $1,699

2 Inadequate Heating 08/26/2022 08/26/2022 04/26/2023 $4,903

3. Broken Living Room
Window, No Screens

08/26/2022 08/26/2022 $1,349

4. Mold in Expansion Gap 08/26/2022 08/26/2022 $1,349

5. Garage Pipe Leak and Feces
Leakage on Garage Door

11/14/2022 11/14/2022 12/06/2022 $234

6. Baby Pest Issue 02/09/2023 02/09/2023 07/21/2023 $631

7. Broken Mailbox 08/26/2022 08/26/2022 $110

8. Incorrect Garage Assignment 08/26/2022 08/26/2022 04/02/2023 $22

9. Unfinished
Work-Kitchen/Dining Area

08/26/2022 08/26/2022 $608

10. Unfinished Work-Living
Room

08/26/2022 08/26/2022 $1,026

11. Unfinished Work-Bathroom 08/26/2022 08/26/2022 $182

12. Unfinished Work-Bedroom 08/26/2022 08/26/2022 $572

13. Kitchen Breaker for
Microwave Outlet and
Hoodfan

08/26/2022 08/26/2022 10/03/2022 $1

14. Security Cameras
Malfunctioning

11/23/2022 11/26/2022 07/10/2023 $21

15. Elevator Break-ins, Sleeping,
Smoking, Urination and
Defecation

02/15/23 02/15/23 $1

16. Bedroom Walk in Closet
Light Fixture

08/26/2022 08/26/2022 10/03/2022 $81

000157



2

17. Broken Garage Door J 02/16/2023 02/17/2023 04/02/2023 $42

18. Upstairs Domestic Violence
Disturbance (Unit 305)

08/26/2022 09/08/2022 05/21/2023 $168

19. Upstairs Pet Disturbance
(Unit 305)

03/15/2023 03/15/2023 03/25/2023 $458

James Willis, Larry Butac
260 Lee Street, Apt 205
Oakland, CA 94610
318-789-4326, 559-920-5791
jrw1011@gmail.com, larrybutac@gmail.com

August 13, 2023

Lease Dates: 08/26/2022-08/25/2023 (1 year)

To: Melanie Godwin-Rosales, General Manager of Godwin Properties
PO Box 2128
Livermore, CA 94551
925-294-5860
godwinprop@aol.com
www.godwinproperties.net

Subject: Petition Attachments Updates.
-Issues

a. Complete: 11 (8 before the petition was filed; 1 within 35 days after petition; 2
past the 35 days after petition.

b. Incomplete: 8
i. # 3 is in violation with the city code.

c. Total: 19.
-Requested copy of move-inspection; Godwin Properties has not been able to
provide one.
-General Manager Melanie Godwin-Rosales still has not returned the Tenants
phone calls.
-General Manager Melanie Godwin-Rosales issued partial credits for a few of the
issues.

000158

mailto:jrw1011@gmail.com
mailto:larrybutac@gmail.com
http://294-5860www.godwinproperties.net/


3

1. PROBLEM: Bathroom Ceiling Leak
DATE(S): 10/28/2022, 06/26/2023
LENGTH OF TIME: 7.92 months/241 days
STATUS: Complete.
UPDATE(S): The methane odor and plumber’s recommendations urged them to repair it. A mold
remediation took place from 06/15-26/2023 (12 days). Rent Credits for
MAINTENANCE TICKET(S)#: 1075-1; Attached photo to online maintenance portal.
Communication with Property Manager, Christina Nelson and Property owner, Melanie
Godwin-Rosales via email/text messages.
ESTIMATE: $1,699.
Bathroom Remediation/Work-

12 days (06/15-06/26)
$1945 rent divided by 30 days=$64.83

El 

~ Christina Nelson 
~ To: James Ray Willis > 

7/7/23 

Hi Melanie, 

Im looking for the move in 
inspection, however, when my 
truck was broken into, everything 
was stolen including all my 
paperwork. I can look for it 
thoroughly this weekend. 

6 Messages 
Copy of Move-In I .. . 

~ To: Christina & 4 more ... > 

Hi Christina and Melanie, 

Thanks for the update. The move
in inspection was submitted in 
August 2022 and the truck break
in was in December of 2022; 
paperwork sat in a truck for about 
4 months. Ok. 

James & Larry 
jrw1011@gmail.com 
larrybutac@gmail.com 

On Fri, Jul 7, 2023 c1t G 13AM 

Clrnsti11:1 Nclso11 

AA i zillow.com 

6 Messages 
Copy of Move-In I .. . 

~ To: Christina & 4 more ... > 

Hi Christina and Melanie, 

What's the update on locating the 
move-in inspection for unit 205? 

A copy was requested on March 
28, 2023, June 29, 2023 and 
June 30, 2023; it"s been 133 
days. 

On Fri. Jul 7, 2023 at 114PM Jim 

W <jrw1011@gmail.com> wrnte: 

< f!'!'I Zillow App 1::1 6.6M Ratings 

1 bd 1 ba 725 sqft 

260 Lee St #205, Oakland, CA 94610 

000159



4

$64.83 a day times 12 days=$777.96
Rent Credits for Water Damage Treatment delay-

$1945 rent times 6%=$116.70
$116.70 times 7.5 months delay=$875.25
$777.96 plus $875.25=$1,653.21
$1945 rent minus $1,653.21=$291.79

Grand Total of Credits=$1,653.21
Total Temporary Relocation Expenses=$1,554
Interest rate-6% times $1,554 equals $93.24
06/26/2023-08/13/2023 equals 48 days/1.58 months
1.58 months times $93.24 equals $145.32
Amount owed-$1,5554 plus $145.32 equals $1,699.32
SUPPORTING EVIDENCE:
Expense Report-
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/e/2PACX-1vTdGLzAeXfPr1Lb0yn_lHK1bz-xU1h-6pFR
qyx5HZ406-BhRDpEyJAF-rZ6K6dy3CrAKo97NBIstX77/pubhtml
Expense Report Attachments (Receipts)-
https://docs.google.com/document/d/e/2PACX-1vSen4eMw1KbUL1qGj5ERq48vhxIqX5XYJVor
ML6reIxvXLCryGiebl3vieps5EZqLH6PveE0JC_W9QP/pub

2. PROBLEM: Inadequate Heating
DATE(S): 08/26/2022, 04/26/2023
LENGTH OF TIME: 8.1 months/243 days
STATUS: Complete.
UPDATE(S): Neglected for 8 months. Inconvenience of not being able to close the door in the
bedroom at night. Purchased 3 heaters. 3 peak hours and 13 off peak hours (16 hours); heat not
in use during 8 hours work day. Peak hours M-F 5-8pm; Off Peak Hours 8:01pm-4:59pm. Once
fixed, the gas heater in the living room does not heat the entire apartment efficiently.
MAINTENANCE TICKET(S)#: 1205-1; Communication with Property Manager, Christina Nelson
and Property owner, Melanie Godwin-Rosales via email/text messages. Photos attached to the
online portal and included below.
ESTIMATE(S): $4,903.
1300 Watts and 2-1500 Watts
Peak hours-3 and Off Peak hours-13; 16 hours total
Residential Pricing Plan March 1st-April 26th 2023 (56 days)
41 days Peak time (123 hours) and 56 days Off Peak time (728 hours)
Peak $0.27/kWh and Off Peak $0.24/kWh
[For 1300 Watts heater] Peak usage 3.9 kWh, $1.05 per day times 41 days equals $43.05; Off
Peak usage 16.9 kWh, $4.06 per day times 56 days equals $227.36. Total $270.41
[For 2-1500 Watts heaters] Peak usage 4.5 kWh, $1.22 per day times 41 days equals $50.02
times 2 equals $100.04, Off Peak usage 19.5 kWh, $4.68 per day times 56 days equals $262.08
times 2 equals $524.16. $574.18
Residential Pricing Plan October 1st 2022-February 28th 2023 (150 days)
107 days Peak time (321 hours) and 150 days Off Peak time (1,950 hours)

000160

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/e/2PACX-1vTdGLzAeXfPr1Lb0yn_lHK1bz-xU1h-6pFRqyx5HZ406-BhRDpEyJAF-rZ6K6dy3CrAKo97NBIstX77/pubhtml
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/e/2PACX-1vTdGLzAeXfPr1Lb0yn_lHK1bz-xU1h-6pFRqyx5HZ406-BhRDpEyJAF-rZ6K6dy3CrAKo97NBIstX77/pubhtml
https://docs.google.com/document/d/e/2PACX-1vSen4eMw1KbUL1qGj5ERq48vhxIqX5XYJVorML6reIxvXLCryGiebl3vieps5EZqLH6PveE0JC_W9QP/pub
https://docs.google.com/document/d/e/2PACX-1vSen4eMw1KbUL1qGj5ERq48vhxIqX5XYJVorML6reIxvXLCryGiebl3vieps5EZqLH6PveE0JC_W9QP/pub


5

Peak $0.25/kWh and Off Peak $0.23/kWh
[For 1300 Watts heater] Peak usage 3.9 kWh, $0.98 per day times 107 days equals $166.60;
Off Peak usage 16.9 kWh, $3.89 per day times 150 days equals $583.50. Total $750.10
[For 2-1500 Watts heaters] Peak usage 4.5 kWh, $1.13 per day times 107 days equals $120.91
times 2 equals $241.82, Off Peak usage 19.5 kWh, $4.49 per day times 150 days equals
$673.50 times 2 equals $1347. Total $1,588.82
Residential Pricing Plan August 2022-September 30th 2022 (35 days)
26 days Peak time (78 hours) and 35 days Off Peak time (455 hours)
Peak $0.31/kWh and Off Peak $0.22/kWh
[For 1300 Watts heater] Peak usage 3.9 kWh, $1.21 per day times 26 days equals $31.46; Off
peak usage 16.9 kWh $3.72 per day times 35 days equals $130.20. Total $161.66
[For 2-1500 Watts heater] Peak usage 4.5 kWh, $1.40 per day times 26 days equals $36.40
times 2 equals $72.80; Off Peak usage 19.5 kWh, $4.29 per day times 35 days equals $154.44
times 2 equals $308.88. Total $381.68
Source: PG&E
https://www.pge.com/en_US/residential/rate-plans/rate-plan-options/time-of-use-base-plan/time-
of-use-plan.page#:~:text=Time%2Dof%2DUse%2(Peak%20
Pricing%205%20%2D%208%20p.m.,on%20weekends%20and%20most%20holidays.
https://www.pge.com/pge_global/common/pdfs/rate-plans/how-rates-work/Residential-Rates-Pla
n-Pricing.pdf
https://www.calculator.net/electricity-calculator.html
Maximum Energy Use from all 3 electric heaters: $3,727.
Cost of 3 heaters-Four Seasons $75.40 and 2 Mainstays $155.72 equals $231.12.
$1945 times 6% equals $116.70.
$116.70 times 8.1 months equals $945.27.
Total $3, 727 plus $231 plus $945 equals $4,903.

000161

https://www.pge.com/en_US/residential/rate-plans/rate-plan-options/time-of-use-base-plan/time-of-use-plan.page#:~:text=Time%2Dof%2DUse%20
https://www.pge.com/en_US/residential/rate-plans/rate-plan-options/time-of-use-base-plan/time-of-use-plan.page#:~:text=Time%2Dof%2DUse%20
https://www.pge.com/pge_global/common/pdfs/rate-plans/how-rates-work/Residential-Rates-Plan-Pricing.pdf
https://www.pge.com/pge_global/common/pdfs/rate-plans/how-rates-work/Residential-Rates-Plan-Pricing.pdf
https://www.calculator.net/electricity-calculator.html


6

SUPPORTING EVIDENCE:

000162



7

3. PROBLEM: Broken Window/No Screens
DATE(S): 08/26/2022
LENGTH OF TIME: 11.56 months/352 days
STATUS: Incomplete.
UPDATE(S): General Manager, Melanie Godwin-Rosales has only credited the tenants for the
window covers, screen fasteners and mileage. The tenants purchased 3 custom polycarbonate
panes specific to the dimensions of the windows that also assist with properly ventilating the
unit. In addition, the tenants purchased 2 packs of screen fasteners.

$75.40 total 
Target RedCard Debit "5106 

You Saved 

Start a return 

0 Purchased 
Ill 

at Oakland Broadway & 27th 

$79.99 Qty 1 

Four Seasons Medium-Large 

Order summary 

Order subtotal: 

Careplan & Services: 

Walmart shipping 

Total tax 

Order total 

Billing information 

Billing 
address 

Payment 
method(s) 

$143.72 

$14.00 

FREE 

$12.00 

$155.72 

James Willis Gift Card ending in 9861 

Item Qty Total 

Mainstays 1500W Electric 2 $129.72 

Infrared Cabinet 

DF1911 

$64.86 

Walmart Protection Plan 
Delivery 

Item Qty Total 

2-Year Protection Plan For $7.00 

Hardware $60-$79.99 

$7.00 

2-Year Protection Plan For $7.00 

$7.00 

000163



8

MAINTENANCE TICKET(S) #: It’s connected to tickets 1196-1, 1197-1 and 1199-1;
Communication with Property Manager, Christina Nelson and Property owner, Melanie
Godwin-Rosales.
ESTIMATE(S): $1,349.
$348.40 (3 covers for the windows without screens)
$7.92 2 (packs of screen fasteners)
$1.64 ($0.585 cent per mile* x (round trip from unit to Ace Hardware in Piedmont, CA 2.8 miles))
$11.70 ($0.585 cent per mile* x (round trip from unit to TAP Plastics in El Cerrito, CA 20 miles))

$1945 times 6% interest equals $116.70
$116.70 times 11.56 months equals $1,349.05
$348.40 plus 7.92 plus $1.64 plus $11.70 plus $1,349.05 equals $1,718.71
$1,718.71 minus the $369.66 credits equals $1,349.05
SUPPORTING EVIDENCE:

CITY OF OAKLAND 

250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA• SUITE 2340 • OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 94612-2031 
Planning & Building Department 

Bureau of Building 

Building Pennits, Inspections and Code Enforcement Services 

inspectioncounter@oaklandnet .com 

(510)238-6402 

PAX:(5 10) 238-2959 
TDD:(510) 238-3254 

Request for Service: Tenant Complaint 

Property Address: .Pto t t t sT 
Complaint No. ,; 3 o ,; 1 i/.3 . Inspector: 
Complainant's Name: '-,)..,,,,s tJ,11,'s 
Owner/Manager: He I(¥],£ G.,.,1.,.;., . 

INSPECTION: 
PROPERTY MAINTENANCE: 

0 Overgrown vegetation: _________ _ 
D Trash & debris: ___________ _ 
0 Lack of/Inadequate garbage service: _____ _ 
D Unapprove open storage ________ _ 

D Unapproved parking __________ _ 

BUILDING MAINTENANCE: 

0 Electrical: 
D Plumbing: _____________ _ 
D Plumbing leak: ____________ _ 
□ Clogged sink/toilet: __________ _ 
□ Building sewer blockage: ________ _ 
D Lack of/defective heating system: _____ _,__ 
□ Mechanical: _____________ _ 
D Wall/ceiling/floor defects: 

Unit No. ~ Inspection Date: r/;o/~ · 
7- 'f',,,. 1' --Phone No. C:04} d Ji )r:J 1 

Phone No. rvtl J 782· V :z 
Phone No. r'l:> ~) - :J 'i''I • $'.i'-;J. 

~ Window defects: //) "21 'i t/.o(e ,e,1•~ l'f 
t"-" J ~~ 
0 Lack of window egress: _________ _ 
D Lacks of light/ventilation: ________ _ 
0 Mice/rodents/roaches: _________ _ 

D Roof leaking/damaged:----------
□ Doors/locks: _____________ _ 
□ Stairs/decks/railing: __________ _ 
D Exterior walls/windows/trim: _______ _ 
D Blocked exits: ____________ _ 
0 No resident manager (required 16 units or more) 
□ Unpennitted work: ___________ _ 
□ Unperrnitted work: ___________ _ 
D Undocumented residential unit: ______ _ 

D Missing/Inoperative smoke/carbon monoxide 

detectors:-------------------< 

D Others: __________________________ _________ -, 

Others: ___________________________________ --<I 

D Others:----------- ------------- --------- -, 
D Surface mold present on _______________________________ --; 

See brochure for remediation guidelines. (Description required, e.g. bedroom wall under window, tub ceiling) 

Note: Items identified on this form above are for investigation purposes only. If they are determined to be code 
violations, they will be specified in an official Notice of Violation by the inspector. 

Complainant Only: I certify that I have notified the owner/manager of the above identified item(s) and l wiU allo 
:be owner or agents with proper notice as governed by State law to enter my unit in order to make all necessary 
·epairs. 

000164



9

4. PROBLEM: Mold in Bathroom/Expansion Gap
DATE(S): 08/26/2022
LENGTH OF TIME: 11.56 months/352 days
STATUS: Incomplete.
UPDATE(S): Scheduled to complete in August 2023. There’s rust and black colored mold in the
expansion gap between the wood floor and tub. Due to lack of proper waterproofing for the
expansion gap and the floor not being in good repair. This was preventable as it was addressed
during the inspection. Installing a vinyl plank or transition strip would have prevented this. The
bathroom doesn’t have a window so when showering/bathing, the tenants use the bathroom fan
and leave the door open as agreed in the lease. One of the tenants is allergic to mold. The
expansion gap was mentioned in the move-in inspection.
MAINTENANCE TICKET(S)#: 1200-1; Communication with Property Manager, Christina Nelson
and Property owner, Melanie Godwin-Rosales via email/text messages. Attached photos to
online maintenance portal.
ESTIMATE(S): $1,349.
$1945 times 6% is $116.70
$116.70 times 11.56 months is $1,349.05
SUPPORTING EVIDENCE:

< Transaction Details 

l!I 
TAP PLASTICS 

-$348.40 

Transaction details 

Type 

EL CERRITO, CA 94530 

Card 

Description 
TAP PLASTICS INC #28 EL CERRITO 

CA 

< Details 

Q How can we help? 

GRAND LAKE ACE 
HDWE 
PURCHASE 
PIEDMONT CA 

Amount 

Type 

Merchant name <D 

ACE HARDWARE 

Transaction category 

> 

-$7.92 

Debit Card 

000165



10

5. PROBLEM: Garage Pipe Leak and Feces Leakage on Garage Door
DATE(S): 11/14/2022-12/06/2022
LENGTH OF TIME: 22 days
STATUS: Complete.
UPDATE(S): Plumbing company came and fixed the leak; however, Property Manager, Christina
Nelson didn’t properly clean the feces leakage off the entire garage door. Tenant, James Willis,
sent photos afterwards. Because the feces water dried up, it could not be cleaned with wet
wipes. Tenant James purchased a water hose, washed and cleaned the garage door himself.
The water hose on the premises that belongs to the property did not reach far enough to clean
the garage door. Tenant James had to open and close a garage for 22 days with feces water on
it and smelly. Neglected for 22 days; the tenant cleaned it up.
MAINTENANCE TICKET(S) #: N/A; Communication with Property Manager, Christina Nelson
and Property owner, Melanie Godwin-Rosales via email/text messages.
ESTIMATE(S): $234.
Garage $50 a month divided 30 days is $1.66 per day. 22 days times $1.66 is $36.67.
Water hose $19.99
Cleaning cost $62.34
6% of $50 equals 3
$3 times 11.56 months is $34.68
$199 plus $34.68 equals $233.68
SUPPORTING EVIDENCE:

6. PROBLEM: Baby Pest Issue
DATE(S): 02/09/2023-07/21/2023

FREE Prime Delivery 

Delivered 

Ovareo Garden Hose, 
Flexible and 
Expandable Garden 
Hoses, Heavy Duty ... 
Qty: 1 

Sold By: lightHose 

$19.99 

000166



11

LENGTH OF TIME: 5.32 months/162 days
STATUS: Complete.
UPDATE(S): Patriot Pest Management sprayed and laid traps inside of the unit on 07/21/2023.
MAINTENANCE TICKET(S) #: 1156-1; Photos attached. Attached photos to online maintenance
portal. Communication with Property Manager, Christina Nelson and Property owner, Melanie
Godwin-Rosales via email/text messages.
ESTIMATE(S): $631.
Door insulation-$9.90.
$1945 rent times 6% interest rate equals $116.70.
$116.70 interest times 5.32 months equals $620.84.
$620.84 plus $9.90 door insulation equals $630.74.
SUPPORTING EVIDENCE:

000167



12

7.PROBLEM: Broken Mailbox
DATE(S): 08/26/2022
LENGTH OF TIME: 11.56months/352 days
STATUS: Incomplete.
UPDATE(S): There’s a repeat theft subject that continuously steals mail and packages from
residents at this property. Packages and mail are still being stolen. A report was filed with
USPS. The mailbox key hole is not secure; it doesn’t always lock and any key can open it if you
rig it well enough. A USPS Supervisor left a notice for management on 05/11/2023. The notice
was uploaded to the management portal system and sent to the Owner/Landlord’s email; they
acknowledge receipt of it. The online management portal says the request has been completed;
The mailboxes have not been fixed or replaced. Multiple mailboxes (8 out of 15) are broken into
and haven’t been replaced. Residents have been victims of identity theft as well. The Tenants
mailbox is not secured; repeatedly broken into. Unreliable lock.

Order 11 

Order total 

Shipment details 

FREE Prime Delivery 

Delivered 
Delivery Estimate 

ll5- l~L/5bl- / lb8Llb 

$9.90 (1 item) 

Thursday, May 18, 2023 by 10pm 

HomeProtect Door $8.98 
Draft Stopper 36 Inch -
Adjustable Under Door 
Draft ... 
Qty: 1 

Sold By: wmwmwm 

Payment information 

Payment Method 
Visa ending in 9118 

Billing Address 
260 LEE ST APT 205 
OAKLAND, CA 94610-4211 

000168



13

MAINTENANCE TICKET(S) #: #1192-1, #1231-1, #1288-1; communication with Property
Manager, Christina Nelson and Property owner, Melanie Godwin-Rosales via email/text
messages.
ESTIMATE(S): $110.
PO Box costs $4.50 a month times 12 months equals $54. Source:
https://www.usps.com/manage/po-boxes.html
Reimbursement for stolen package $50.
The 6% interest rate of $104 is $6.24.
$104 plus $6.24 for delay equals $110.24.

000169

https://www.usps.com/manage/po-boxes.html


14

SUPPORTING EVIDENCE:

000170



15

4Messages 

Godwin Properties 
To: Chris & 4 more. > 

Mailboxes 

Tuesday 

Thanks for letting us know. Chris told me you 
talked. He did have an idea to upgrade the 
mailboxes, but it does require some construction to 
install that version, so we'll most likely order a new, 
simple mailbox for the time being. 

Melanie Godwin-Rosales 
Godwin Properties 
925/294-5860 
www.godwinproperties.net 

On Tuesday. August 8. 2023. 03:19:37 PM PDT Jim W 

> wrote: 

Hello Melanie and Chr is. 

We spoke with the USPS supervisors at the Civic Center and 
West Grand locations in Oakland. They have no knowledge of 
you al l reaching out to them: however. that doesn t 

automatically mean yal l have not ca lled. I also spoke with the 
USPS theft inspection department as well: reference 

# USPS said they are only responsible for rep lacing 

the Master Key Lock and that the property owners are 
respons ib le for fixing the mailbox and individual box locks. 

They said they would order a master lock to have it replaced 
although the master lock to the mailbox that the mail carrier 

uses is not broken . Its the ind ividual mailboxes that are 
broken. Brian replaced the lock on unit 302's (Blair s) mai lbox 

and it broke again. The entire box is outdated and needs to be 
n~nl;:ir:P.rl WP. 1 inrlP.rst;:inrl th;:it v;:ill ;:irP. ;:iw;:irp· WP. snnkP. w ith 

000171



16

000172



17

8. PROBLEM: Incorrect Garage Assignment $22
DATE(S): 08/26/2022
LENGTH OF TIME: 7.23 months/220 Days
STATUS: Complete.
UPDATE(S): Property Manager, Christina Nelson, said she would provide the tenant with the
key but didn’t until Sunday, 04/02/2023. The lease agreement says garage "I" on page 2. And it
says that "Any change in Tenant's parking space is to first be approved by the Owner in writing".
I was initially assigned garage I on move-in day but Christina gave me the wrong key and just
told me to go ahead and use garage J. It was never in writing.

Your Mailbox Needs 
Attention 

Ow-/P~~,;,111:11:~. 
() " ~ . 

WHICH.ONE 
LOOKS LIKE 
YOUR MAIL 

BOX? .. .. 
\, 

I 

.Y ~--

1 • 

Postal regulations require customers to provid d • 
···mail• bo,,;i,5-w'i::lch meet'bffitial''Sta d d A e an . erect at thei r own expense rural 
faults. n ar s. ·reca:.t InspectIon d1sclos·ed'the·To11owing 

1. Yourbox is not an approved bo: 
10. The Signal Flag needs attention 

11 . Your box is too near the road . 
2. The door needs attention 12. Your box is too far from the road 

3. B?x must be located so carrier can serve it 
13. Your box should face the road. 

without leaving vehicle 14. Your box should be securely fastened to its 
support 

4. Your box is not waterproof 15. Your box should be made Ie,,eI, and the post 
firmly planted 

5. Your box should be raised 
inches 16. A new post for your box should be provided 

6. Your box should be lowered 17. The rural box number must be printed in 
inches numerals not less than one inch high on the 

7. Your box must be located o·n the right-hand 
side of the box visible lo the carrier as they 

side of the road in the carrier's direction of 
approach it or on the box door if the boxes 

travel 
are grouped 

8. The approach to your box should be filled and 
18. Your box should be painted to prevent 

properly graded & kept unobstructed at all rusting 

times 19. Your house number must be clearly 

9. The approach to your box should be kept displayed _ _ •on.,ycur ho1:1se 

clear of snow, vehicles, and other obstacles. or on your box 
., 

Please help us prov· e yo 
by_--b<~.,,,.z,-"-4~-'4,,fJ-~'------------- --
After this date, delivery se may be suspended until the faults are 

h better service by correcting these faults 

corrected. Your cooperatio greatl y appreciated. 

PS Form 4056, February 1991 

000173



18

MAINTENANCE TICKET(S)#: 1201-1; Communication with Property Manager, Christina Nelson
and Property owner, Melanie Godwin-Rosales via email/text messages.
ESTIMATE(S): $22.
$50 garage rent times 6% equals $3
$3 times 7.23 months equals $21.69
SUPPORTING EVIDENCE:

9. PROBLEM: Unfinished Work-Kitchen/Dining Area
DATE(S): 08/26/2022
LENGTH OF TIME: 11.56 months (352 days)
STATUS: Incomplete.
UPDATE(S): Scheduled to complete in August 2023. Kitchen/dining room window needs a
screen, blinds, and screen clips. Tenants, Larry Butac and James Willis, purchased screen clips
and window cover. All the cabinetry is missing latches. Backsplash is missing caulking. All this is
in the move in inspection.
MAINTENANCE TICKET(S)#: 1196-1; Communication with Property Manager, Christina Nelson
via text messages. Attached photos to online maintenance portal.
ESTIMATE(S): $608
Kitchen square footage is 68; Dining room square footage is 66. Total 134 square feet.
$1945 divided by 725 square feet (entire apartment) equals $2.68 per square foot
$2.68 a square foot times 134 square feet equals $359.12
$359.12 times 6% interest equals $21.55
$21.55 times 11.56 months equals $249.11
$359.12 plus $249.11 equals $608.24.
SUPPORTING EVIDENCE:

Lease v 

:• .... •· .. '. ". 
minimum vehicle insurance fo r liabili ty, property 

from Landlord, tenant agrees to immediately remove said lea king vehicle from the premise, limes, and 10 be kep_t in good operable cond ilion 
. . . . . abandoned and subiect to being towed at vehicle 11 to the premises, and to properly clean up the spill from the dnve way or parking space. d . f h .11 b . d 
or body, on their vehicle on the premises, or cause a third party to do work on tenant's v ranee ways or nve ways O ot ers, w i e cite 

to include, but are not limited to, ca rs, trucks, vans, bikes, motorcycles, scooters, planes 
recreational or personal vehicle. Tenant is not to store anytime in their garage that is not p ,ant's vehicle has a leak of any type, upon notice 
risk. ;, and to have said leak repaired prior to returning 

Tenant is not to do any type of work, mechanical 
Further, Tenant is not to wash, disassemble, change the oil, tires, brakes, spark plugs, o ehicle on the premises. Vehicles herein referred 
premises, nor is Tenant to fill or drain their vehicle's radiator on the premises. Tenant is 1 , boats, tra ilers, motor homes, any other type of 
from the premises. All visitors and guests are to park off the premises and on the publics roperly locked up and if so, they do at their own 
theiLexclusLve parking stall, andno other. e chargeJoLsaicLparking space wi!Lbe $0 pe 
Any change in Tenant's arking s ace is to first be a . _roved by the Owner in writing. If r any other part of their vehicle on, or near, the 
garage door opener, tenant 1s responsible for _mamtatru.ng the rem ote control~ good cond 10t to run an automotive repair or sales business 
the remote becomes lost or damaged, tenant 1s responsible for the cost of repair or replacer :reel. Tenant to use parking stall marked as.L, as 

r month in addition to the monthly rental charge. 
this parking space is a garage w ith an automatic 

000174



19

10. PROBLEM: Unfinished Work-Living Room
DATE(S): 08/26/2022
LENGTH OF TIME: 11.56 months/352 days
STATUS: Incomplete.
UPDATE(S): Scheduled to be completed in August of 2023. Living room window needed a
screen and screen clips. Tenant, Larry Butac, bought screen clips. Tenant James Willis
purchased polycarbonate sheets to cover the windows that had no screens. Window does not
fully close; the opening causes more cold air to enter inside the apartment and more heat to
leave the apartment when on; resulting in a high electric bill. The windows are single pane. The
tenants purchased heavy velvet curtains to help keep out some of the cold air. Counter is
missing a countertop. A mirror is used to cover the hole. The heater was left unclean and not
working. All of this was in the move in inspection. The management still has not provided a copy
to the tenants.
MAINTENANCE TICKET(S)#: 1197-1; Communication with Property Manager, Christina Nelson
and Property owner, Melanie Godwin-Rosales via email/text messages. Attached photos to
online maintenance portal.
ESTIMATE: $1,026.
Living Room square footage is 226.
$1945 rent cost times 725 square feet (entire apartment) is $2.68 per square foot.
$2.68 per square foot times 226 square feet equals $605.68.
$605.68 area cost times 6% interest rate equals $36.34.
$36.34 interest times 11.56 months equals $420.09.
$605.68 area cost plus $420.09 total interest equals $1,025.77.
SUPPORTING EVIDENCE:

000175



20

11. PROBLEM: Unfinished Work-Bathroom
DATE(S): 08/26/2022
LENGTH OF TIME: 11.56 months/352 days
STATUS: Incomplete.
UPDATE(S): Some of the work was done during the bathroom remediation in June; everything
isn’t completed and additional issues have happened. Some of the walls and ceiling were
painted. The lever behind the sink was replaced. The door painting was left unfinished. No
caulk or transition strip between floor and bathtub. One towel rack isn’t secured. Bathroom
heater was fixed and cleaned by the HVAC Company. Bathroom fan needs cleaning and insects
fall from the fan into the sink. This was mentioned in the move-in inspection. On 05/29/2023, a
strong odor began in the bathroom and is still in there; maintenance have made efforts to
resolve the smell; but, have not used all troubleshooting options. There’s a sink link from
06/26/2023. A new leak in the ceiling on 08/10/2023.
MAINTENANCE TICKET(S) #: 1198-1, 1244-1, 1245-1, 1267-1, 1297-1; communication with
Property Manager, Christina Nelson and Property Owner, Melanie Godwin-Rosales via
email/text messages.
ESTIMATE(S): $182.
Bathroom square footage-40 square feet.
$1945 rent divided by 725 square feet (entire apartment) equals $2.68 per square foot.
$2.68 a square foot times 40 square feet equals $107.31.
$107.31 area cost times 6% interest rate equals $6.44.
$6.44 times 11.56 months delay equals $74.43.
$107.31 area cost plus $74.43 interest equals $181.74.
SUPPORTING EVIDENCE:

000176



21

Pacific Gas and 
Electric Company" 

Valued Customer: 2.bo Lee. 

SERVICE REPORT 
PG&E Visited your Property Today, 

to Service Your ccount 
s .j.. v-\ I- -z.u 0e(0 ,// / 

Service Date/Time:._-=5..,_/_.,;Sd'4/'-'-2~3__,__ _____ A_d_d,_••-•---------~/P M 

Service Technician: - ~IM~"-'tJ---'r -=u'-'--c--_ (---' ____ Confirmation/Field Order#-------

Transaction Type: -----'1)'--,1_ }.,,~= Vl'---"o-=t...J=--'-V\-'----'u::_JJ""-"u'-'-i __________ _ 

□ SORRY WE MISSED YOU: Unfortunately we were not able to complete your service request 
because it requires your presence or the presence of an adult. Please call us at 1-800-743-5000 

D SORRY WE MISSED YOU: Please see reverse side for additional information 

Gas Service 

Service/Inspection of Gas Equipment 

ru -0 

§ l I 
ID 

¥ )_ al 

~ ~ ·a; 
ru.Q ~ ~ 
UC: u:: 0: 

Appliance Type 

Range 

Oven 

Water Heater 

Heating Appliance I 
Dryer 

Electric Service 

Service/Inspection of Electric Equipment 

Equipment Type 

Service Panel 

Voltage Problem 
Complete Outage 

Partial Outa e 

a.Jor-

000177



22

12. PROBLEM: Unfinished Work-Bedroom
DATE(S): 08/26/2022
LENGTH OF TIME: 11.56 months (352 days)
STATUS: Incomplete.
UPDATES: Scheduled to complete in August 2023. Bedroom window needed a screen and
screen clips. Tenants, Larry Butac & James Willis, purchased window cover and screen clips.
Bedroom door is misaligned and doesn't close properly. Ceiling paint spots are incomplete. No
transition strip between carpet and floor for bedroom and the closet door. The carpet is
unraveling. This was in the move-in inspection. The blinds provided do not cover the entire
window. The floor boards aren’t secure; it makes noises and is disturbing to the downstairs
neighbors.
MAINTENANCE TICKET(S) #: 1199-1; Communication with Property Manager, Christina Nelson
and Property owner, Melanie Godwin-Rosales via email/text messages.
ESTIMATE(S): $572.
The bedroom square footage-126 square feet.
$1945 rent divided by 725 square feet (entire apartment) equals $2.68 per square foot.

Pacific Gas and 
Electric Companye SERVICE REPORT 

PG&E Visited your Property Today 
to Service You Accoynt 

Valued Customer: 2 0 V L ..e g ,S 1 -:ti' 2 D S: U It- }() )} 1, ~ ~~~~=-'"'-A- --"--'--''-'-----:A--;-dd~re--"'ss__,_--.JLL..J!:-..:,~c:!!._l._.!!..:::::...__ 

SORRY WE MISSED YOU: Unfortunately we were not able to complete our service request because it requires your presence or the presence of an adult. Please call us at 1-800-743-5000 
D SORRY WE MISSED YOU: Please see reverse side for additional information 

Gas Service 
Service/Inspection of Gas Equipment 

Appliance Type 

Range 
Oven 

iii 
C: 

s 
-o CD 

~ 
a. 
"' E 

l 
"' E 

Electric Service 
Service/Inspection of Electric Equipment 

.. 
Equipment Type 

service Panel 
Voltage Problem 
Complete Outage 

Partial Outa e 
Electric Range 

- Electric Water Heater 

000178



23

$2.68 a square foot times 126 square feet equals $337.68.
$337.68 area cost times 6% interest rate equals $20.26.
$20.26 times 11.56 months equals $234.21
$337.68 plus $234.21 equals $571.89.
SUPPORTING EVIDENCE:

13. PROBLEM: Kitchen Breaker for Microwave Outlet and Hoodfan
DATE(S): 08/26/2022, 10/03/2022, 04/07/2023
LENGTH OF TIME: 7.36 months/224 days
STATUS: Complete.
UPDATE(S): Was unable to use multiple appliances at once without the breaker going out. Went
38 days without a functioning microwave outlet and hood fan. Property Manager, Christina
Nelson, rigged the outlet to make it and the hoodfan work but the kitchen did not allow for
multiple appliances to be used without the breaker going out. It was fixed sometime between
April 6 and 7th; although those days were not days that permission was allowed to enter the
unit, we noticed that the breaker no longer went out when using multiple appliances at once. It
may have been fixed outside the unit or something, not sure how it got fixed.
MAINTENANCE TICKET(S) #: 1195-1; communication with Property Manager, Christina Nelson
and Property Owner, Melanie Godwin-Rosales via email/text messages.
ESTIMAT(S):$1 (connected to “Unfinished Work-Kitchen)

14. PROBLEM: Security Cameras Malfunctioning

000179



24

DATE(S): 11/23/2022, 07/03/2023
LENGTH OF TIME: 7.29 months/222 days
STATUS: Complete.
UPDATE(S): The cameras were fixed on 07/03/023. Was unable to provide theft/incident
footage to police, USPS and Amazon during the time the cameras were down.
MAINTENANCE TICKET(S) #: #1194-1; Communication with Property Manager, Christina
Nelson and Property owner, Melanie Godwin-Rosales via email/text messages. Chris Rosales
came by on 03/38/2023 to observe the cameras.
ESTIMATE(S): $21.
Security camera monitoring cost range $10-50 a month/$30 average.
Source:https://www.forbes.com/home-improvement/home-security/home-security-system-cost/#:
~:text=All%20home%20security%20systems%20charge,how%20advanced%20the%20services
%20are.
$30 divided by 15 unit property equals $2 per unit.
$2 per unit times 7.29 months is $14.58.
Interest rate 6% of $14.58 is $0.87.
$0.87 interest rate times 7.29 month delay equals $6.34.
$14.58 cost of use plus $6.34 interest equals $20.92
SUPPORTING EVIDENCE:

15. PROBLEM: Elevator Break-ins, Sleeping, Smoking, Urination and Defecation
DATE(S): 02/15/2023, 05/05/2023, 06/28/2023, 08/01/2023, 08/11-13/2023
LENGTH OF TIME: 11.56 months/352 days
STATUS: Incomplete.
UPDATE(S): Neglecting to secure elevator entrance and property. The elevator door has no
door seal, like the laundry room door; therefore, it’s easy for anyone to pick the lock and
breakin. The third floor elevator door does not lock. This is a safety concern because anyone
can access the elevator. The same subject who steals packages and breaks in the mailboxes is
the same person who breaks in the elevator. The subject also smokes, sleeps, urinates and
defecates inside the elevator. The subject sometimes stores items inside the elevator. A report

000180

https://www.forbes.com/home-improvement/home-security/home-security-system-cost/#:~:text=All%20home%20security%20systems%20charge,how%20advanced%20the%20services%20are
https://www.forbes.com/home-improvement/home-security/home-security-system-cost/#:~:text=All%20home%20security%20systems%20charge,how%20advanced%20the%20services%20are
https://www.forbes.com/home-improvement/home-security/home-security-system-cost/#:~:text=All%20home%20security%20systems%20charge,how%20advanced%20the%20services%20are


25

was filed with the Oakland Police Department by the Property Manager and Tenants on
2/15/2023 over the phone. There was a prior incident where a subject who was running from the
police attempted to hide in the elevator then laid down on the top floor. The most recent break in
was the weekend of 08/11-13/2023; the subject's photo and police report information is below.
MAINTENANCE TICKET(S) #: #1193-1, #1229-1, #1218-1, #1226-1; Communication with
Property Manager, Christina Nelson and Property owner, Melanie Godwin-Rosales via email/text
messages. Attached photos to online maintenance portal.
ESTIMATE(S): $1. (Could not figure out how to calculate an amount here.)
SUPPORTING EVIDENCE:

Officecc -S r\c>.r-\-""1 <\ v\ 

Serial#; 9.:!.fil._. Date: b f"'.o-'-\ J? 
RD#, :i: JJ C <;,(oS 

000181



26

000182



27

16. PROBLEM: Bedroom Walk in Closet Light Fixture
DATE(S): 08/26/2022, 10/03/2022
LENGTH OF TIME: 1.27 months/38 days
STATUS: Complete.
UPDATE(S): The light fixture in the bedroom did not work. After constantly following up multiple
times with Property Manager, Chrisitina Nelson, she came and fixed it. Had to use a flashlight
and bedroom light to see into the closet for 38 days after move-in.
MAINTENANCE TICKET(S) #: N/A; communication with Property Manager, Christina Nelson
and Property owner, Melanie Godwin-Rosales via email/text messages.
ESTIMATE(S): $81.
Bedroom closet square footage-28 square feet.
$1945 rent cost divided by 725 square feet (entire apartment) equals $2.68 per square foot.
$2.68 per square foot times 28 square feet equals $75.04.
$75.04 area cost times 6% interest rate equals $4.50.
$4.50 times 1.27 delay equals $5.72.
$75.04 area cost plus $5.72 total interest equals $80.76.

17. PROBLEM: Broken Garage Door J
DATE(S): 02/16/2023, 04/02/2023
LENGTH OF TIME: 1.5 months/45 days
STATUS: Complete.
UPDATE(S): Neglected to provide access to the correct garage door. 45 days without a
functioning garage door. A transfer from Garage J to Garage I took place. Property
Manager-Christina Nelson Christina put on a new lock on Garage door I and provided a key on
Sunday, 04/02/2023. The Landlord/Owner-Melanie Godwin-Rosales credited the Tenant’s rental
account $50 (30 day credit). The credit was applied to the April 2023 rent payment. The initial
maintenance ticket #: 1160-1 was removed by management from the management online
portal; it’s no longer visible to the Tenants. A fair credit would have been at least $75 (1.5
month) because the door wasn’t functional for 45 days. This could have been resolved in 2-3
days; it took Christina 3 days to get a new lock and key for Garage I, which was the original
assigned garage for the unit, according to the lease. The door is too heavy to lift with the broken
cable not functioning properly. Tenant, James Willis, requested use of Garage I until Garage J
was fixed; a key was not provided. On 2/27/2023, Pedro and Abraham from R&S Overhead
Garage Door, Inc. attempted to fix the door. They stated that the door was completed and left
without testing it with the key. Instead of replacing the broken frame and broken cable, they tried
to salvage the broken cable. The door did not lock properly; it took 2-3x to turn then lock. The
cable came off the door again. The door’s cable is on the garage floor (photo attached). The 2
keys were returned to Christina on Sunday, 04/02/2023 (photo attached). R & S Garage Door
has not returned to fix Garage J. Garage I had carpeting and wood inside the storage area
(photo attached); it was placed inside the storage area in Garage J. The Tenants moved their
belongings from Garage J to I. Garage J is empty (photo attached).

000183



28

MAINTENANCE TICKET(S)#: 1160-1, 1183-1; Attached photos to online maintenance portal.
communication with Property Manager, Christina Nelson and Property owner, Melanie
Godwin-Rosales via email/text messages.
ESTIMATE(S): $42.
$50 a month to rent garage.
$50 rent divided by 30 days is $1.67 a day.
A $50 credit was issued by management in April.
45 days total minus 30 days equals 15 remaining days without credit/compensation.
15 days times $1.67 per day is $25.05.
6% interest of $25.05 is $1.50.
$1.50 times 11.56 months delay equals $17.34.
$25.05 plus $17.34 equals $42.39.
SUPPORTING EVIDENCE:

000184



29

18. PROBLEM: Upstairs Domestic Violence Disturbance (Unit 305)
DATE(S): 08/26/2022, 05/20/2023
LENGTH OF TIME: 9.04 months/275 days
STATUS: Complete.
UPDATE(S): Neglected to resolve issue for 9.2 months. Police were involved 3 times. There
hasn’t been anymore domestic violence issues or disturbances since 05/20/2023. General
Manager Melanie Godwin-Rosales responded to the issue via email.
MAINTENANCE TICKET(S) #: 1202-1, 1219-1; Communication with Property Manager,
Christina Nelson and Property owner, Melanie Godwin-Rosales via email/text messages.
ESTIMATE: $168.
Disturbances occurred at least an hour a week.
24 hours a day times 30 days is 720 hours a month.
$1945 rent per month divided by 720 hours a month equals $2.70 per hour.
40 weeks in 9.2 months.
40 weeks times $2.70 an hour equals $108.
6% interest of $108 is $6.48.
$6.48 interest times 9.2 months delay equals $59.62.
$108 time disrupted plus $59.62 interest for delay equals $167.62.
SUPPORTING EVIDENCE:

000185



30

19. PROBLEM: Upstairs Pet Disturbance (Unit 305)
DATE(S): 03/15/2023, 03/20/2023
LENGTH OF TIME: 10 days
STATUS: Complete.
UPDATE(S): Pets are not allowed on premises at all. Matter was not resolved within a
reasonable time. Constant dog noise (barking and walking on hardwood floors).
MAINTENANCE TICKET(S) #: 1184-1; communication with Property Manager, Christina Nelson
and Property owner, Melanie Godwin-Rosales via email/text messages.
ESTIMATE(S): $458.

000186



31

Dog noise (barking and walking) occurred for 2/3rds of each day for 10 days.
$1945 in rent per month divided by 30 days equals $64.83 a day.
2/3rds of $64.83 is $43.22 a day
$43.22 a day times 10 days is $432.20
6% interest rate times $432.20 equals $25.93.
$432.20 time disturbed plus $25.93 interest for delay equals $458.13.
SUPPORTING EVIDENCE:

:

AA i zillow.com C, 

ZillowApp 
6.6MRatings 

000187



32

000188



33

guests(s) complete an "applica tion for rent" form, and if approved by Owner, add said Cuest(s) to the rental agreement. Owner reserves the 
right to make adjustments to Tenant's rent accordingly, so as to compensate for added wear and tear on the premises caused by additional 
persons present in the unit. If Owner does not approve the application(s), tenant agrees to have guests leave the premises within forty eight 
(48) hours of notice from Landlord to do so. Tenant agrees to be responsible for any damage incurred by guests while on the premises, and 
to hold Landlord harmless for any damage or injury tenant or tenant's guest may incur or cause. 

POSSESSION: If Tenant shall be unable to enter into and occupy the premises at the commencement date, Owner shall not be liable for 
damages to Tenant caused thereby, nor shall this Agreement be voidable, but during the period Tenant is unable to occupy said premises, 
Tenant shall not be liable for ren t. 

PETS: No dog, cat, bird, fish, or other domestic pet or animal of any kind may be kept on, or about, the premises without Landlord's prior 
written consent, nor shall Tenant do any "pet sitting" for others on the premise~ 

charge. 
2. Personal checks that are returned for any reason require a return check fee of $15.00, in addition 
check has more than two re turned checks, owner will no longer accept tenant's personal checks, and 1 
order. 

QUIET ENJOYMENT, COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, TENANT OBLIGATIONS AND CONDUCT: 
3. Only those tenants whose names are listed on the rental agreement will be allowed as occu ants. 
4. No ets will be allowed in the unit, at any time, b the tenant, orb the tenants' uests. 
5. Do not put garbage, sanitary napkins, cigarettes, rice, matches, rags, or paper towels down the toil 

000189



 

City of Oakland 
Rent Adjustment Program 
Proof of Service Form 10.21.2020 
 

CITY OF OAKLAND 
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 
Oakland, CA 94612-0243 
(510) 238-3721 
CA Relay Service 711 
www.oaklandca.gov/RAP 

For Rent Adjustment Program date stamp. 
 
 

 

PROOF OF SERVICE 
 
NOTE: YOU ARE REQUIRED TO SERVE A COPY OF YOUR PETITION OR RESPONSE (PLUS ANY ADDITIONAL 
DOCUMENTS) ON THE OPPOSING PARTIES. 
 

➢ Use this PROOF OF SERVICE form to indicate the date and manner in which service took place, as well as 
the person(s) served.  

➢ Provide a copy of this PROOF OF SERVICE form to the opposing parties together with the document(s) 
served.  

➢ File the completed PROOF OF SERVICE form with the Rent Adjustment Program together with the document 
you are filing and any attachments you are serving. 

➢ Please number sequentially all additional documents provided to the RAP. 
 
PETITIONS FILED WITHOUT A PROOF OF SERVICE WILL BE CONSIDERED INCOMPLETE AND MAY BE 
DISMISSED. 

 
 
I served a copy of:      ____________________________ 

(insert name of document served) 
 And Additional Documents 

 
and (write number of attached pages) __________ attached pages (not counting the Petition or 
Response served or the Proof of Service) to each opposing party, whose name(s) and address(es) are 
listed below, by one of the following means (check one): 
 

❑ a. United States mail. I enclosed the document(s) in a sealed envelope or package 
addressed to the person(s) listed below and at the address(es) below and deposited the 
sealed envelope with the United States Postal Service, with the postage fully prepaid. 

❑ b.   Deposited it with a commercial carrier, using a service at least as expeditious as first 
class mail, with all postage or charges fully prepaid, addressed to each opposing party as 
listed below. 

❑ c. Personal Service. (1) By Hand Delivery: I personally delivered the document(s) to the 
person(s) at the address(es) listed below; or (2) I left the document(s) at the address(es) with 
some person not younger than 18 years of age. 

 
 
PERSON(S) SERVED: 

Name  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

 
 
 

CITY OF OAKLAND 

000190

http://www.oaklandca.gov/RAP
PO Box 2128

Updated Petition Attachments

Melanie Godwin-Rosales

X

Livermore, CA 94551

33



City of Oakland 
Rent Adjustment Program 
Proof of Service Form 10.21.2020 

-2- 

Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

To serve more than 8 people, copy this page as many times as necessary and insert in your proof of service document. If you are 
only serving one person, you can use just the first and last page. 

000191



City of Oakland 
Rent Adjustment Program 
Proof of Service Form 10.21.2020 
 
 

-3- 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and 
correct and the documents were served on __/__/____ (insert date served). 
 
 

_______________________________                      
PRINT YOUR NAME                  
 
_______________________________                       _______________   
SIGNATURE                           DATE  
 

000192

James Willis

08/14/2023

08/14/23



CITY OF OAKlANO 

Housing and Community Development Department 
Rent Adjustment Program 
250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 
Oakland, CA 94612-2034 

TEL (510) 238-3721 
FAX (510) 238-6181 
CA Relay 711 
www.Oaklandca.gov/RAP 

NOTICE OF REMOTE SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE AND HEARING 

File Name: 
Property Address: 
Case Number: 

Willis v. Godwin Properties 
260 LEE ST 205 Oakland, CA 
T23-0075 

Please take notice that in order to protect the health and welfare of the parties and City of 
Oakland employees, the Settlement Conference and Hearing will be held remotely, by audio or 
videoconferencing. • 

The Settlement Conference and/or Hearing (if there is no settlement conference) will begin on: 

Date: August 22, 2023 
Time: I 0:00 AM 
Place: REMOTELY 

.... Settlement Conference 

The Hearing Officer will conduct a Settlement Conference to attempt to resolve this matter unless the 
owner is seeking an exemption or if not all parties are present. If the Settlement Conference is not 
successful, the Hearing will begin immediately after the Settlement Conference. 

Remote Hearings 

In the next few weeks, the program analyst assigned to your case will contact you by telephone or 
email to determine whether you have access to a computer or a phone with video technology and 
either cellular service or hi-speed internet, so that the Hearing could be conducted using 
videoconferencing through Zoom, a free videoconferencing application. If you do not have access to 
these services or if any party does not have access, the Hearing will be conducted by Zoom as an 
"audio only" Hearing, which allows parties to use a toll-free number on a telephone to participate. 
There is no charge to use Zoom. 

Please be sure that the Rent Adjustment Program has a working email address and telephone 
number for you so that we can contact you when necessary. • 

Please note that if you do not have access to any of the necessary technology to be a participant in 
a remote Hearing, please call the analyst on your case (noted below.) 

000193



Order to Produce Evidence/Submission of Additional Documents 

You must submit all additional proposed tangible evidence (including but not limited to documents 
and photographs) you wish to have considered at least seven days before t'1e Hearing Please note 
that you may have been required to submit certain documents with your initial petition. Please number . 
sequentially all documents sent to the RAP. If possible, please submit your evidence by email. Please 
note that most smart phones have scanning capability. If you do not have access to scan and email 
your documents you may submit them by mail. (If you are mailing, always send copies and keep the 
originals for yourself.) Please notify the analyst if you have submitted your documents by mail. Black 
out all.sensitive information on the documents you submit, like bank or credit card account numbers 
and Social Security numbers. 

Proposed evidence presented late may be excluded from consideration unless there is good cause for 
the late filed evidence. The Hearing Officer can also use the official records of the City of Oakland and 
Alameda County Tax Assessor as evidence if provided by the parties for consideration. 

The analyst in your case is Brittni Lothlen and his/her email address is blothlen@oaklandca.gov. 
Submit all documents by email to the analyst in your case and, by mail to the opposing parties. 
Additionally; you must submit a document to the RAP entitled Proof of Service, establishing that you 
provided the s~e documents you submitted to the RAP to the opposing parties. 

Interpreter 
• The Hearing must be conducted in English. The Rent Adjustment Program will provide an interpreter on 

request providing the request is made at least 14 days in advan9e of the scheduled Hearing, including ASL 
interpreters. If you wish to bring someone to help you understand the proceeding, in addition to the 
official interpreter provided by the R.A.P ,, yu~ ~ay, bu~ .;1.l:r· t:i.0 official interpreter's interpretation. will be • 

•• cotisi3erea ruiipari ofthe record. • • • 

Request to Change Date . 
• A request for a change in the date or time of Settlement Conference and Hearing ("continuance") 
must be made on a form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The party requesting the • 
continuance must try to get an agreement for alternate dates from the opposing parties. If an 
agreement cannot be reached, check the appropriate box on the form. A continuance will be granted 
only for good cause. • • 

Hearing Record 
The Rent Adjustment Program makes an audio recording of the Hearing. Either party may bring a 
court reporter to record the hearing at their own expense. The Settlement Conference is not recorded. 
If the settlement is reached, the Hearing Officer will draft an Order listing the terms of the agreement. 

Inspections . . 
During the Hearing, the Hearing Officer may decide to conduct an inspection of the subject unit(s). 
The inspection· may be conducted on the same day as the Hearing or scheduled for a later date selected 
by the Hearing Officer or mutually agreed upon by the parties present at the Hearing. No testimony 
will be taken at the inspection. 

-2-

000194



Representatives 
Any party to a Hearing may designate a representative in writing prior to the Settlement Conference 
or on the record at the Hearing: 

Failure to Appear for Hearing 
If the petitioner fails to appear at the Hearing as scheduled, the Hearing Officer may either conduct 
the Hearing and render a decision without the petitioner's participation, or dismiss the petition. If the 
respondent fails to appear at the Hearing as scheduled, the Hearing Officer may either issue an 
administrative decision without a Hearing, or conduct the Hearing and render a decision without the 
respondent's participation .. 

Accessibility 
To request disability-related accommodations, please email the analyst on your case 
blothlen@oaklandca.gov or call (510) 238-6415 or California relay service at 711 at least five 
working days before the meeting. 

-3-

000195



CITY OF OAKLAND 

Housing and Community Development Department 
Rent Adjustment Program 
250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 
Oakland, CA 94612-2034 

July 10, 2023 

Petitioner 
Tenant 
J runes Willis 
260 Lee Street Unit 205 
Oakland, CA 94610 

Respondent 
Manager 
Christina Nelson, Godwin Properties 
266 Adams Street Unit 205 
Oakland, CA 94610 

Respondent 

Melanie Godwin-Rosales, Godwin Properties 
POBox2128 
Livermore, CA 94551 

RE: Notice to Parties of Petition Filed 

Dear Parties: 

TEL (510) 238-3721 
FAX (510) 238-6181 _, 
CA Relay 711 
www.Oaklandca.gov/RAP 

The Rent Adjustment Program has received a Petition filed by the Petitioner listed above. The Proof of Service 
filed with the Petition states that the Petition was served on the Respondent(s) listed above. If you are a 
Respondent, and you did not receive the Petition, please contact the case analyst (listed below). 

As instructed on the Petition, the Respondent(s) have 30 days from the date of service (if served personally) and 
35 days (if served by mail) to file a Response to the Petition. To file a Response, the Respondent(s) must serve 
a Response on the Petitioner and file the Response ( along with a Proof of Service) with the Rent Adjustment 
Program. 

Both the Tenant and Property Owner Response fonns can be found at 
https://apps.oaklandca.gov/rappetitions/Petitions.aspx. Each response fonn contains additional filing 
instructions. 

-1-

[ 
I 

000196



If yoq do not file a timely Response, the Petition may be granted without a Hearing, or, if a Hearing does occur, 
you may not be permitted to produce testimony or evidence. 

The case has been assigned Case No. T23~0075 

The case title is Willis v. Godwin Properties 

The analyst assigned to your case is Brittni Lothlen , who can be contacted either by 
telephone at (510) 238-6415 or by email at blothlen@oaklandca.gov. 

Please note that you are required to serve a copy of any documents flied with the Rent Adjustment 
Program on the other party ( or parties). You must file a Proof of Service with the Rent Adjustment 
Program together with the document(s) being filed indicating that the document(s) have been served. 

Property Owner Petitions that include more than 25 pages of additional documents with the petition 
are exempt from this requirement, and the owner may choose to not serve all tenants with those 
documents. If the Owner Petition indicates that additional documents exist that are not being served 
pursuant to this exception, a tenant may request a copy of the documents in their Tenant Response 
form or view the documents by scheduling a file review with RAP. If the Tenant Response form 
indicates that the tenant wishes to receive copies of all filed documents, the owner must provide them 
within IO days. 

All documents filed by either party are available for review at the Rent Adjustment Program Office by 
appointment only. If you wish to review the case file, call (510) 238-3721 to schedule an 
appointment. 

If y~~_have questi9ns Q!'. _need additional in:l:uunniluu, piea:se comact your assigned analyst. 

Thank you. 

Rent Adjustment Program 

-2-

000197



PROOF OF SERVICE 
Case Number: T23-0075 

Case Name: Willis v. Godwin Properties 

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the 
Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. Iain employed in Alameda County, 
California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, 
California 94612. • 

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of 
Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa 
Plaza, Oakland, California, addnssed to: • • 

Documents Included 
Notice of Remote Settlement Conference and Hearing 
Notice to Parties 
Copy of Tenant Petition 
Landlord Response Form 

Manager · 
Christina Nelson, Godwin Properties 
266 Adams Street Unit 205 
Oakland, CA 94610 

Owner 
Melanie Godwin-Rosales, Godwin Properties 
PO Box 2128 
Livermore, CA 94551 

Tenant 
James Willis 
260 Lee Street Unit 205 
Oakland, CA 94610 

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland's practice of collection and processing 
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection 
receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal 
Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of 
business. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true 
and correct. Executed on July 10, 2023 in Oakland, California. 

000198



Deborah Griffin 
Oakland Rent Adjustment Program 

.... =--
' 

I 
f 

000199



Housing and Community Development Department TEL (510) 238-3721 
Rent Adjustment Program FAX (510) 238-6181 

250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 CA RELAY 711 

Oakland, CA 94612-2034 

ZOOM INVITATION FOR RAP REMOTE HEARING 

T23-0075 Willis v. Godwin Properties
To the Parties: 

Your hearing scheduled will take place on August 22, 2023 at 10:00 am and will be held 

remotely through Zoom. 

You can connect to the Hearing without charge by downloading Zoom. You can also connect 

by using only a telephone. To dial in to a call, enter your dial-in number, followed by the 

meeting ID and pound key, then enter the password and pound key. 

Topic: 2023.8.22_Rent Adjustment Hearing Audio-Video_ T23-0075 Willis v. Godwin

Properties 

Time: Aug 22, 2023 10:00 AM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83277536469?pwd=cEFLVnhuMmUxczVMZG9zSlcyVDRRdz09 

Meeting ID: 832 7753 6469 

Passcode: 955902 

One tap mobile 

+16699009128,,83277536469#,,,,*955902# US (San Jose)

+16694449171,,83277536469#,,,,*955902# US

Dial by your location

• +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose)

• +1 669 444 9171 US

• +1 719 359 4580 US

• +1 253 205 0468 US

• +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)

• +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)

• +1 386 347 5053 US

• +1 507 473 4847 US

• +1 564 217 2000 US

• +1 646 558 8656 US (New York)

• +1 646 931 3860 US

• +1 689 278 1000 US

• +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)

CITY OF OAKLAND 

000200

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83277536469?pwd=cEFLVnhuMmUxczVMZG9zSlcyVDRRdz09


• +1 305 224 1968 US

• +1 309 205 3325 US

• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)

• +1 360 209 5623 US

Meeting ID: 832 7753 6469 

Passcode: 955902 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdwprzxuc0 

To download Zoom: 

On a smartphone: 

1. Go to the “App store,” “Google play,” “Android Apps,” or the “Play Store”

2. Search for Zoom

3. Download “Zoom” or “Zoom Cloud Meetings.”

On a computer: 

1. Open a browser (Firefox, Internet Explorer, Google Chrome, or any other web browser)

2. Search for “Zoom” in the search box; or type in “zoom.us” in the address bar

*In either case, you will be directed to the Zoom

website.Create a Zoom account.

If you have technical questions, I find the following link helpful in navigating Zoom:

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/115004954946-Joining-and-participating-in-a-

webinar-attendee-

Please test the link and download the Zoom application at least a day before the hearing. If you

experience any technical difficulties connecting to the meeting or to discuss your technology

access, please contact me immediately.

Cordially, 

Brittni Jackson 

City of Oakland 

Housing and Community Development 

Department 

Rent Adjustment Program 250 Frank H. 

Ogawa Plaza, 5th Floor Oakland, CA 

94612 
Main: (510) 238 - 3721 

Telephone: (510) 238 - 6415 

Fax: (510) 238 - 6181 

000201

https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdwprzxuc0
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/115004954946-Joining-and-participating-in-a-webinar-attendee-
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/115004954946-Joining-and-participating-in-a-webinar-attendee-


PROOF OF SERVICE 

Case Number: T23-0075 

Case Name: Willis v. Godwin Properties 

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the 

Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, 

California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, 

California 94612.   

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of 

Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa 

Plaza, Oakland, California, addressed to: 

Documents Included 

Zoom Invitation for RAP Remote Hearing 

Manager 

Christina Nelson, Godwin Properties 

266 Adams Street Unit 205 

Oakland, CA 94610 

Owner 

Melanie Godwin-Rosales, Godwin Properties 

PO Box 2128 

Livermore, CA 94551 

Tenant 

James Willis 

260 Lee Street Unit 205 

Oakland, CA 94610 

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing 

correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection 

receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal 

Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of 

business. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true 

and correct. Executed on July 18, 2023 in Oakland, California. 

______________________________ 

Brittni Jackson 

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program 

000202



CITY OF OAKLAND

 

  

 

 

 

HEARING DECISION 

CASE NUMBER:   T23-0075 

CASE NAME: Willis v. Godwin 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 260 Lee Street, Unit 205  

Oakland, CA  

DATE OF HEARING: August 22, 2023 

APPEARANCES: James Willis, Tenant 

Melanie Godwin Rosales, Owner 

SUMMARY OF DECISION 

The Tenant’s Petition is granted, in part. 

INTRODUCTION 

The Tenant submitted a petition on May 26, 2023, alleging the Owner is providing 

fewer housing services than I previously received and/or I am being charged for 

services originally paid for by the Owner.  

The Petition alleged the following decreased housing services: 1) ceiling leak; 2) 

broken window; 3) broken mailbox; 4) miscellaneous repairs; 5) unfinished 

kitchen and dining room; 6) unfinished living room; 7) unfinished bathroom; 8) 

bathroom leak; 9) unfinished bedroom; 10) elevator vandalism; 11) neighbor 

nuisance; 12) pet nuisance; 13) heating; 14) mold; 15) garage door; 16) pest 

control; 17) incorrect garage assignment; 18) kitchen electrical breaker; 19) 

security cameras; 20) bedroom walk-in closet; and 21) broken Garage-J door. 

No Owner Response was filed with the Rent Adjustment Program (RAP). 

DALZIEL BUILDING • 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, SUITE 5313 • OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 94612-2034 

Housing and Community Development Department 
Rent Adjustment Program 

TEL (510) 238-3721 
FAX (510)238-6181 

CA Relay Service 711 

000203



2 | P a g e

ISSUES PRESENTED 

1. When, if ever, was the Tenant given written notice of the Rent Adjustment

Program (RAP Notice1)?

2. Has the Tenant suffered decreased housing services?

3. What, if any, restitution is owed to the Tenant, and how does that impact the

rent?

EVIDENCE 

James Willis 

After being duly sworn, James Willis provided the following testimony: 

He moved into the subject property on August 20, 2022. The subject unit is a one-

bedroom, one-bathroom, which, including the patio, is 725 square feet and was 

advertised as such. The rent for the subject unit is $1,945.002 per month, and the 

payments are current. 

At the move-in inspection, the property manager, Christina Nelson, said all items 

that needed repair would be fixed within thirty days of moving in. All items noted 

at the move-in inspection were listed on the move-inspection report. The property, 

including the patio, is 725 square feet and was advertised as such. The monthly 

rent includes the exclusive right of use to the entire property. 

Upon move-in, they received a RAP Notice3 in English only. 

Decreased Housing Services 

Ceiling Leak 

The leak in the unit began on October 28, 2022, is ongoing and remains at the time 

of this hearing. There was one failed attempt to repair the leak.  

// 

1 Notice to Tenants of the Residential Rent Adjustment Program. 
2 The Tenant calculated that based upon his rent, he paid $2.68 per square foot to the unit.  
3 Exhibit A.  This Exhibit, and all other Exhibits to which reference is made in this Decision, were admitted into 

evidence without objection. 

000204



 

3 | P a g e  

 

Window 

 

Eight of the seventeen glass panels on the unit’s living room window are broken. 

The windowpanes were reported broken on August 26, 2022, and included on the 

property move-in inspection report submitted to the Owner. 

 

Initially, the request for compensation was $2,123.00 for the broken windowpanes 

based on personal expenditures for thermal curtains, three covers for each window 

frame without screens, mileage to retrieve the aforementioned items, and 30% heat 

energy loss. The broken window causes approximately 30% of the heat or energy 

used in the house to be lost.  

 

The Owner provided reimbursement for the window screens and mileage. 

The request for compensation was amended to $1,349.00, calculated using 6% of 

the total monthly rent4, or $116.17 per month for eleven- and one-half months. 

 

Broken Mailbox 

 

The mailbox has been and continues to be broken since August 22, 2023, and was 

reported on that date. No alternative mailbox or mailbox service was obtained.  

 

Initially, the request for monetary compensation was the amount of $246.00 for the 

broken mailbox. The request for compensation was amended to a total of $110.00, 

which includes $54.00, the yearly cost of mailbox services, and $50.00 for a stolen 

Amazon package. 

 

Unfinished Kitchen and Dining Room  

 

At the move-in inspection, the kitchen and dining room were reported to the 

Owner as unfinished and included in the report submitted to the Owner. 

Approximately 65% of the kitchen and dining room square footage is usable. 

 

Initially, the request for monetary compensation was the amount of $367.00 for the 

unfinished kitchen and dining room. The request for compensation was amended to 

a total of $608.00, calculated as 6% of the monthly rent for the square footage, 

which was unusable. The Tenant calculated the square footage of his unit, based on 

the unusable portion of the kitchen and dining room, which are estimated to be 134 

square feet for eleven and one-half months.  

 

Unfinished Living Room  

 
4 The total monthly rent for the subject unit is $1,945.00. 

000205



4 | P a g e

At the move-in inspection, the living room was reported to the Owner as 

unfinished and included in the report submitted to the Owner. Approximately 65% 

of the living room square footage is usable. 

Initially, the request for monetary compensation was $148.00 for the unfinished 

living room in his Petition. The request for compensation was amended to 

$1,026.00, calculated as 6% of the monthly rent for the square footage, which was 

unusable. The unusable portion of the kitchen and dining room are estimated to be 

226 square feet for eleven and one-half months. 

Unfinished Bathroom 

At the move-in inspection, the bathroom was also reported to the Owner as 

unfinished and included in the report submitted to the Owner. Approximately 66% 

of the bathroom’s square footage is usable for eleven- and one-half months. The 

unusable portion of the unfinished bathroom is estimated to be 40 square feet for 

eleven and one-half months. 

The request for compensation was amended to $182.00, calculated as 6% of the 

monthly rent for the unusable square footage for eleven and one-half months.  

Bathroom Leak 

The bathroom leaked into the wall beginning in October 2022. The Owner made 

repair efforts. The leak has been ongoing despite repair efforts in June 2023.  

After the seven-and-a-half-month delay in repairing the leak, the Owner offered 

compensation in the form of a rent credit for $1,653.27. The rent credit was 

calculated as 6% of the monthly rent for seven-and-a-half months to compensate 

for the time between when the leak was first reported and the repair in June 2023. 

The $1,653.27 credit was applied to the July 2023 rent payment. In July 2023, the 

total rent paid was $291.79.   

A relative who visited the unit viewed the bathroom, took pictures, and determined 

the leak was not repaired after the Owner had conducted the earlier repairs. Upon 

surface-level visual inspection, the bathroom leak appears to be repaired. However, 

there were leaking and wet pipes behind the wall panel. 

The request for compensation was amended to $1,699.00, calculated as $1,554.00, 

to reimburse the cost of relocation for the twelve days, $93.42, or 6% of the 

000206



5 | P a g e

monthly rent for the twelve days the unit was unavailable, and $145.42, or 6% of 

the monthly rent monthly from June 26, 2023, to August 13, 2023. 

Unfinished Bedroom 

At the move-in inspection, the bedroom was unfinished and included on the 

property move-in inspection report submitted to the Owner. Approximately 75% of 

the bedroom square footage is usable. The unusable portion of the unfinished 

bedroom is estimated to be 126 square feet for eleven and one-half months. 

The request for compensation was amended to $572.00, calculated at 6% of the 

monthly rent for the square footage, calculated as $1,554.00, 

Elevator Vandalism 

Beginning February 15, 2023, the elevator was observed to be vandalized by 

human urine and feces. This vandalism is suspected to be a result of continuous 

elevator break-ins. Negligence in maintaining and operating elevator door locks is 

alleged to have caused the vandalism.  

The first-floor elevator is only accessible with a key; however, the lock is not 

secure and is easily broken. Any key will work to open the door. The second-floor 

elevator door is locked but presents the same security issues as the first floor. The 

third-floor elevator door is not locked and has been accessed by non-tenants on the 

property. 

The building is indoor/outdoor, and people can access the second and third floors 

from outside the building without a key.  

The keys provided do not indicate a statement prohibiting duplication. 

The request for compensation was amended to $136.00, calculated at the Tenant’s 

hourly salary rate and time spent contacting the police department and filing 

reports. 

Neighbor Nuisance 

For 40 weeks, the upstairs neighbors argued, created a disturbance, and used slurs, 

violating his right to the quiet enjoyment of the subject property and an implied 

warranty of habitability. There were disturbances of domestic violence noise 

disturbances in the form of yelling, beating on the floor, and arguing.  

000207



 

6 | P a g e  

 

Harassment 

 

On May 20, 2023, the neighbors on the floor above his unit beat and talked through 

the floor. The conversation and noises were audible through the ceiling. The 

neighbors called him slurs and stated their belief that the Tenant reported them to 

the Owner.  

 

Domestic Violence 

 

The noise nuisance and his suspicion of domestic violence were reported to the 

Property Manager, Christina Nelson. Ms. Nelson responded via text message to 

contact the onsite manager. The police were not contacted for this occurrence. 

 

The police were contacted on two prior occasions for domestic violence noise 

disturbances in the apartment unit directly above the subject unit.  

 

The first incident was on September 8, 2022. An unknown party called the police, 

and police officers erroneously reported to the subject unit and were redirected to 

the unit upstairs.  

 

On September 10, 2022, the police were contacted about a domestic violence noise 

disturbance.  

 

The Owner could have prevented the loud arguing, yelling, and domestic violence 

noise disturbance by sending a notice to the neighbor in the upstairs unit to cease 

the noise disturbances. He sent both audio and visual evidence of the nuisance.  

 

The noise disturbances occurred at varying times during both the day and night. 

Half of the disturbances occurred during the day.   

 

Initially, the request for monetary compensation was the amount of $233.00. 

The request for compensation was amended to $168.00, calculated as 6% of the 

monthly rent multiplied by 40 weeks. 

 

Pet Nuisance 

 

The upstairs neighbor’s loud barking dog caused noise disturbances for ten days. 

Dogs, cats, fish, birds, and all other domestic pets and animals are prohibited on 

the property per his lease agreement. He believed his upstairs neighbor had the 

same lease and should not have been permitted to have pets. The Owner confirmed 

that his neighbor was not permitted to have pets.  

 

000208



 

7 | P a g e  

 

Initially, the request for monetary compensation was the amount of $553.00. The 

request for compensation was amended to $458.00. 

 

Heating 

 

At the move-in inspection, the gas heating unit on the property was reported 

broken on August 26, 2022, and included on the property move-in inspection 

report submitted to the Owner. 

 

The gas heater was repaired on April 26, 2023, and remains operable. The electric 

heater in the bathroom is operational.  

 

Three electric heaters were purchased and utilized to compensate for the lack of 

heating from the gas heater. The heaters operated on average sixteen hours per day, 

on most days, and as needed, depending on the weather. The electric heaters were 

utilized at nighttime during all seasons.  

 

Between August 26, 2022, and April 26, 2023, the utility bills totaled $3,727.00. 

The overall utility bills are higher now that the heater is operable. The cost of 

utilizing the heaters was not bifurcated from costs incurred by other electrical 

equipment used at the property. He also was not able to subtract days the heater 

was not used.  

 

Requested Remedy 

 

Initially, the request for monetary compensation was the amount of $4,903.00, 

calculated based on the utility charges of $3,727.00 between August 26, 2022, to 

April 26, 2023, the wattage for each electric heater, multiplied by sixteen hours per 

day at three different Pacific Gas & Electric Company rates, and the purchase cost 

of $213.12 for the three heaters. 

 

According to the Pacific Gas & Electric online statement, the average electric 

usage for the subject unit was $61.70 monthly from August 26, 2022, to April 26, 

2023, and $23.00 monthly from April 27, 2023, to the most recent bill.   

 

Mold  

 

Mold was present in the expansion gap between the bathtub and the floor in the 

bathroom. The mold was reported on August 26, 2022, and included on the 

property move-in inspection report submitted to the Owner. The mold was 

removed on August 21, 2023.  

000209



 

8 | P a g e  

 

The request for compensation was $1.00 because the mold damages are included in 

the unfinished bathroom claim.  

 

Garage Door 

 

A pipe leaked feces on the garage door and was reported to the Owner on 

November 14, 2022. The pipe repair date is unknown. The Tenant cleaned the 

feces on December 6, 2022, which took ninety minutes.   

 

A plumbing company was commissioned to repair the pipe leak. The feces leaked 

onto the garage door for twenty-two days. Although the garage was accessible 

during the twenty-two-day period, it had to be hosed off to wash the feces from the 

garage door whenever the garage was accessed. A water hose from Amazon was 

purchased to hose down the garage door.  

 

The request for compensation is $234.00, 6% of the monthly rental amount for the 

twenty-two days, 19.99 for the hose, and $62.34 for the cleaning costs. 

 

Pest Control 

 

Small (baby) cockroaches were seen outside the subject unit but within the 

apartment complex on February 9, 2023, and was reported to the Owner on the 

same day. The pest issue was resolved on July 21, 2023. Pest control suggested a 

door seal as a preventive measure to keep pests out of the property unit.  

 

The request for compensation is $631.00, calculated at 6% of the monthly rental 

amount for the 5.32 months and $9.90 for the cost of the door seal.  

 

Incorrect Garage Assignment 

 

The garage was incorrectly assigned and did not match the garage assignment on 

the lease. The incorrect garage assignment was reported on August 26, 2022, and 

included on the property move-in inspection report submitted to the Owner. The 

correct garage was assigned on April 2, 2023.  

 

Had the correct garage been assigned, time and money would not have been 

expended on reporting the pipe leaking feces and the subsequent clean-up. 

Additionally, the garage door broke twice.  

 

A considerable amount of time was spent meeting with repair companies for the 

incorrectly assigned garage.  

 

000210



 

9 | P a g e  

 

The request for compensation is $631.00, calculated at 6% of the monthly garage 

rental amount for the 7.32 months, the amount of time they could not access the 

assigned garage.  

 

Kitchen Electrical Breaker 

 

The kitchen breaker, microwave, microwave outlet, and hood fan were broken. The 

issues were identified at the time of move-in and partially repaired on October 3, 

2022. The partial repair caused other electrical issues in the kitchen area. All 

electrical was repaired on April 7, 2023.  

 

The request for compensation is $1.00 in nominal damages as the kitchen breaker, 

microwave, microwave outlet, and hood fan damages were previously included in 

the Unfinished Kitchen portion of his claim.  

 

Security Cameras 

 

On November 23, 2022, it became apparent that the property's security cameras 

were broken and reported to the Owner on the same day. The security camera 

repairs were completed on July 3, 2023.   

 

Personal deliveries were stolen. The local police department was contacted for the 

property thefts. Because the cameras were inoperable, police investigative efforts 

were compromised. 

 

The request for compensation is $21.00, calculated based on a  Forbes magazine 

article published in 2023, which detailed that camera monitoring systems range 

between $10.00 to $50.00 per month, using an average of $30 per month, divided 

between all units on the property to arrive at $2.00 per month, per unit. The 

cameras were inoperable for the subject unit, $2.00 per month multiplied by 7.29 

months.   

 

Bedroom Walk-in Closet 

 

On August 26, 2022, he discovered the broken bedroom walk-in closet. This matter 

was reported on August 26, 2022, and included on the property move-in inspection 

report submitted to the Owner. The walk-in closet repairs were completed on 

October 3, 2022. At the move-in inspection, a thirty-day timeframe for repairs was 

agreed to. The repair timeframe on the closet was exceeded by eight days. The 

request for compensation is $81.00, calculated based on 6% of the monthly rental 

rate, for the unusable 28 square feet of space.  

 

000211



10 | P a g e

Broken Garage-J Door 

On February 16, 2023, the Garage J door was broken and reported to the Owner on 

the same day. The garage door was never fixed. Access to Garage-I was issued on 

April 2, 2023.  

The garage assigned as stipulated in the property lease was Garage-I. Garage-J was 

inappropriately assigned at the inception of the tenancy. 

Garage labeled I was used with difficulty. It was a struggle to lift the one-hundred-

and-sixty-pound door or ask for assistance lifting the garage door. On days the 

garage door could not be lifted, the garage would not be used.   

The Owner issued a $50.00 rent credit for April 2023. 

The request for compensation is $42.00, calculated at 6% of the monthly rental 

amount for the eleven-and-a-half months the incorrect garage unit was assigned. 

Quality of Life 

The inconvenience of all the damages mentioned above reduced the quality of life 

for Tenant and his partner. The total compensation requested for all the damages 

totals $13,457.00. 

Move-in Inspection Report 

He no longer has a completed copy of the move-in inspection report. The Property 

Manager initially provided him with a copy of the move-in inspection report.  

He had a copy of the move-in report in his property unit on a table. The report 

could not be located after the Property Manager completed repairs at the subject 

unit. He was informed that she had a copy in her vehicle; however, the vehicle was 

burglarized, and the move-in inspection report could not be located after that.   

Melanie Godwin Rosales 

After being duly sworn, Melanie Godwin Rosales provided the following 

testimony: 

She served her Response as indicated on the proof of service on June 26, 2023. She 

filed the Response at 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza. It was unclear if the Response 

included proof of payment of the Rent Adjustment Service Fee, compliance with 

the rent registry, and whether the business license was attached.  

000212



 

11 | P a g e  

 

Lease 

 

The lease was prepared and signed by the Tenant in her presence. She was unsure 

if she provided the RAP notice in the three required languages but confirmed it 

was provided in English. She never received the move-in inspection report from 

the Property Manager.  

 

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

 

When, if ever, was the Tenant given written notice of the Rent Adjustment 

Program (RAP Notice5)? 

 

The Rent Adjustment Ordinance requires an owner to serve the RAP Notice at the 

start of a tenancy5 and together with any notice of rent increase or change in the 

terms of a tenancy.6    

  

The Tenant’s testimony that he was not given a copy of the RAP Notice in Spanish 

or Chinese at the inception of the tenancy is undisputed.  Moreover, the testimony  

Accordingly, the Tenant was not given written notice of the RAP Program at the 

inception of his tenancy.   

 

Has the Tenant suffered decreased housing services? 

 

Under the Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance, a decrease in housing services is 

considered to be an increase in rent17 and may be corrected by a rent 

adjustment.18  However, in order to justify a decrease in rent, a decrease in housing 

services must be either the elimination or reduction of a service that existed at the 

start of the tenancy, the loss of a service that is required to be provided by either 

law or a contract between the parties, or a violation of the housing or building code 

which seriously affects the habitability of the Tenant’s unit.   

  

There is also a time limit for claiming decreased housing services.  If the decreased 

service is the result of a noticed or discrete change in services provided to the 

Tenant, the Petition must be filed within 90 days after of whichever is later: (1) the 

date the Tenant is noticed or first becomes aware of the decreased housing service; 

or (2) the date the Tenant first receives the RAP Notice.  

Where the RAP notice has never been given, a tenant can be granted restitution for 

rent overpayments due to decreased housing services for a maximum of 3 years 

 
5 Notice to Tenants of the Residential Rent Adjustment Program. 

000213



 

12 | P a g e  

 

from the date the Petition was filed.6  The evidence established that the Tenant was 

never given a RAP notice.   

If the decreased housing service is for a condition that is ongoing (e.g., a leaking 

roof), the Tenant may file a petition at any point but is limited in restitution for 90 

days before the Petition is filed.20  Since the evidence established that the Tenant 

did not receive the RAP notice at the inception of the tenancy, the Tenant is not 

limited to restitution for 90 days before the Petition was filed.  

  

To grant a tenant’s claim for decreased housing services, an owner must have 

notice of a problem and a reasonable opportunity to make needed repairs.  

 

Decreased Housing Services 

 

Window 

 

The evidence that eight of the seventeen glass panels on the unit’s living room 

window are broken and have been since August 22, 2023, when it was reported on 

that date, is undisputed. Furthermore, the testimony of the Tenant that the broken 

windowpanes were reported broken on August 22, 2022, went uncontradicted by 

the Owner. The Tenant testified credibly that the items reported at the move-in 

inspection were to be repaired within 30 days, or approximately September 22, 

2022. Thus, the Tenant is entitled to a 6% rent credit, $116.70, from October 2022 

through December 2023. The Tenant is entitled to an ongoing rent credit of 6% 

until the window is repaired.  

 

As the Owner provided reimbursement for the window screens and mileage. The 

request for reimbursement of the same is denied.  

 

Broken Mailbox 

 

The evidence that the mailbox has been and continues to be inoperable since 

August 22, 2023, and was reported on that date, is undisputed. Thus, the Tenant is 

entitled to a rent credit from October 2022 through December 2023. The Tenant is 

entitled to an ongoing $4.50 rent credit until the mailbox is repaired.  

 

Unfinished Kitchen and Dining Room  

 

The evidence that the kitchen and dining room were reported to the Owner as 

unfinished and included in the move-in inspection report submitted to the Owner 
 

6 O.M.C. Section 8.22.090(A)(3)(a) and Appeal Decision in Case No. T12-0332, Sherman v. Michelsen 

 

000214



13 | P a g e

on August 22, 2022, is undisputed. The Tenant’s testimony that the unusable 

portion of the kitchen and dining room are estimated to be 134 square feet is 

undisputed. Thus, the Tenant is entitled to a rent credit for $359.12 per month from 

October 2022 through December 2023. Thereafter, the Tenant is entitled to an 

ongoing rent credit for $359.12 until the kitchen and dining room are repaired.  

Unfinished Living Room 

The evidence that the living room was reported to the Owner as unfinished and 

included in the move-in inspection report submitted to the Owner on August 22, 

2022, is undisputed. The Tenant’s testimony that the unusable portion of the living 

room is estimated to be 226 square feet is undisputed. Thus, the Tenant is entitled 

to a $605.68 monthly rent credit from October 2022 through December 2023. The 

Tenant is entitled to an ongoing $605.68 rent credit until the living room is 

repaired. 

Unfinished Bathroom 

The evidence that the bathroom was reported to the Owner as unfinished and 

included in the move-in inspection report submitted to the Owner on August 22, 

2022, is undisputed. The Tenant’s testimony that the unusable portion of the 

bathroom is estimated to be 40 square feet is undisputed. Thus, the Tenant is 

entitled to a $107.20 monthly rent credit from October 2022 through December 

2023. Thereafter, the Tenant is entitled to an ongoing rent credit for $107.20 until 

the bathroom is repaired. 

Bathroom Leak 

The evidence that the bathroom leaked into the wall beginning in October 2022 

and that the Owner attempted repair was undisputed, as was the evidence that the 

Owner offered compensation in the form of a rent credit for $1,653.27.  

Likewise, the uncontradicted evidence established that the Tenant was required to 

relocate for twelve days to allow for repair of the unit. The Tenant’s undisputed 

testimony was that the cost of relocation was $1,554.00. Thus, the Tenant is 

entitled to a rent credit of 1,554.00.   

Unfinished Bedroom 

The evidence that the bedroom was reported to the Owner as unfinished and 

included in the move-in inspection report submitted to the Owner on August 22, 

2022, is undisputed. The Tenant’s testimony that the unusable portion of the 

000215



 

14 | P a g e  

 

bedroom is estimated to be 126 square feet is undisputed. Thus, the Tenant is 

entitled to a $337.68 monthly rent credit from October 2022 through December 

2023. The Tenant is entitled to an ongoing $337.68 rent credit until the bathroom is 

repaired. 

 

Elevator Vandalism 

 

There is no dispute that the elevator was observed to be vandalized by human urine 

and feces. The Tenant’s testimony is that this vandalism results from continuous 

elevator break-ins. The Tenant alleges the Owner is negligent in maintaining and 

operating elevator door locks and is alleged to have caused the vandalism. 

However, vandalism is an intervening criminal act over which the Owner has 

limited control. To justify a decrease in rent, a decrease in housing services must 

be either the elimination or reduction of a service that existed at the start of the 

tenancy, the loss of a service that is required to be provided by either law or a 

contract between the parties, or a violation of the housing or building code which 

seriously affects the habitability of the Tenant’s unit.  The Owner’s failure to 

prevent criminal vandalism is insufficient to establish a claim of decreased housing 

services. Thus, the Tenant’s claim is denied.  

 

Neighbor Nuisance/Harassment/Domestic Violence/Pet Nuisance 

 

Neighbors are an unfortunate but common problem faced by urban apartment 

dwellers. If an owner is told that some tenants are disturbing others in the building, 

the Owner’s choices are limited. They may first try to resolve the situation through 

discussion. If that fails, eviction is the only lawful option. 

 

O.M.C. 8.22.300, the “Just Cause for Eviction” Ordinance, states that an Owner 

may not recover possession of a residential rental unit unless there is “good cause.”  

One such “good cause” is that a tenant “has continued, following written notice, to 

cease to be so disorderly as to destroy the peace and quiet of other tenants at the 

property.”7  Therefore, to evict a tenant for disorderly behavior, an owner must file 

an Unlawful Detainer action and meet the standard of proof outlined in the 

Ordinance. The Tenant has not proven by a preponderance of the evidence that the 

neighbors' behavior has risen to the level where the Owner would probably prevail 

in an Unlawful Detainer action against them. Therefore, this claim is denied. 

 

Further, this claim is essentially a loss of quiet enjoyment of the Tenant’s unit. A 

California Court of Appeals considered the authority of the San Francisco Rent 

 
7 O.M.C. Section 8.22.360. 

000216



15 | P a g e

Board.8  The Court decided that the jurisdiction of administrative agencies is 

limited to those claims that are quantifiable in nature and specifically held that the 

loss of quiet enjoyment is not such a claim. (Larson, at p. 1281).  

Heating 

The evidence that the gas heating unit was reported to the Owner as broken and 

included in the move-in inspection report submitted to the Owner on August 26, 

2022, is undisputed. The Tenant’s testimony that the unusable portion of the 

The gas heater was repaired on April 26, 2023, and remains operable. The electric 

heater in the bathroom is operational.  

Thus, the Tenant is entitled to a rent credit of 3% of the monthly rent, or $58.35 

per month, from October 2022 through April 2023, when the unit was repaired.  

Mold 

The evidence that mold was reported to the Owner and included in the move-in 

inspection report submitted to the Owner on August 26, 2022, is undisputed. Thus, 

the Tenant is entitled to a $1.00 monthly rent credit from October 2022 through 

August 2023, when the mold was repaired.  

Garage Door 

The evidence that a pipe leaked feces on the garage door for twenty-two days and 

was reported to the Owner on November 14, 2022, is undisputed. The Tenant 

testified that a plumbing company was commissioned to repair the pipe leak and 

that the repair date of the leak was unknown. To grant a tenant’s claim for 

decreased housing services, an owner must have notice of a problem and a 

reasonable opportunity to make needed repairs. There was no evidence that 

repairing the leaked pipe in twenty-two days was unreasonable. Accordingly, the 

Tenant’s claim is denied. 

Pest Control 

The evidence that Small (baby) cockroaches were seen outside the subject unit but 

within the apartment complex on February 9, 2023, and reported to the Owner on 

the same day was uncontradicted. There was no testimony that the infestation 

breached the subject unit. Accordingly, the Tenant’s claim is denied. 

Incorrect Garage Assignment 

8 Larson v. City and County of San Francisco, 192 Cal. App. 4th 1263 (2011) 

000217



 

16 | P a g e  

 

That the Tenant was assigned the incorrect garage was undisputed. However, there 

was no evidence to establish that having access to a particular parking garage 

decreased housing services. Accordingly, the Tenant’s claim is denied. 

Had the correct garage been assigned, time and money would not have been 

expended on reporting the pipe leaking feces and the subsequent clean-up. 

Additionally, the garage door broke twice.  

 

Kitchen Electrical Breaker 

 

The evidence that the kitchen breaker, microwave, microwave outlet, and hood fan 

were broken was reported to the Owner and partially repaired on October 3, 2022, 

which is undisputed. Thus, the Tenant is entitled to a $1.00 rent credit per month 

from October 2022 through April 7, 2023, when all the electrical was repaired.  

 

Security Cameras 

 

On November 23, 2022, the security cameras were reported to the Owner as the 

property was undisputed. There was no evidence that the security cameras were 

operable at the inception of the tenancy. Therefore, the Tenant’s claim is denied.  

 

Bedroom Walk-in Closet 

 

The Tenant discovered and reported the broken bedroom walk-in closet. On 

August 26, 2022, and included on the property move-in inspection report submitted 

to the Owner, was undisputed. The walk-in closet repairs were completed on 

October 3, 2022. At the move-in inspection, a thirty-day timeframe for repairs was 

agreed to. There was no evidence that the repair timeframe on the closet, which 

exceeded eight days, was unreasonable. Accordingly, the Tenant’s claim is denied.  

 

Broken Garage-J Door 

 

The Garage J door was reported to the Owner as broken on February 16, 2023, 

which is undisputed. As an alternative to repairing the door, the Tenant was 

provided access to Garage-I on April 2, 2023. There was no evidence that the 

timeframe in which the alternative garage was provided was unreasonable. The 

Owner compensated the Tenant for not having access to the garage. Accordingly, 

the Tenant’s claim is denied.  

// 

 

// 

 

// 

000218



 

17 | P a g e  

 

What, if any, restitution is owed to the Tenant, and how does that impact the 

rent? 

 

As indicated above, the legal rent for the unit is $1,945.00 per month. The Tenant 

is entitled to restitution for the overpayment of rent for decreased housing services 

through December 31, 2023.  

 

 
 

The chart above indicates rent overpayments for decreased housing services valued 

at $24,925.39. Restitution is usually awarded over a 12-month period, but 

extending the restitution period is proper when the Tenant is owed 1281.51% of 

the monthly rent.9  The restitution period is amortized over 65 months to allow for 

credit of the ongoing decreased housing services. The restitution amount is 

$383.47 per month.    

  

Therefore, the Tenant’s monthly restitution amount is subtracted from the current 

legal rent of $1,945.00, less the rent credit for ongoing decreased housing services 

in the amount of $1560.88. After 65 months, the rent will revert to the current legal 

rent.   

 

// 

 
9 Regulations Section 8.22.110(F) 

Window 1-Oct-22 31-Dec-23 $1,945.00 6% $116.70 15 $1,749.54

Mailbox 1-Oct-22 31-Dec-23 $1,945.00 $4.50 15 $67.46

Unfinished Kitchen and 

Dining Room

1-Oct-22 31-Dec-23 $1,945.00 $359.12 15 $5,383.85

Unfinished Living Room 1-Oct-22 31-Dec-23 $1,945.00 $605.68 15 $9,080.22

Unfinished Bathroom 1-Oct-22 31-Dec-23 $1,945.00 $107.20 15 $1,607.12

Bathroom Leak relocation $1,945.00 $1,554.00

Unfinished bedroom 1-Oct-22 31-Dec-23 $1,945.00 $337.68 15 $5,062.42

Heat 1-Oct-22 30-Apr-23 $1,945.00 3% $58.35 7 $404.77

Mold 1-Oct-22 7-Aug-23 $1,945.00 $1.00 10 $10.00

Kitchen Breaker 1-Oct-22 7-Apr-23 $1,945.00 $1.00 6 $6.00

- - -
$24,925.39

$1,945.00

$24,925.39

1281.51%

OR OVER 65 $383.47

Service Lost From To  Rent % Rent 

Decrease

 Decrease 

/month 

No.  of 

Months

 Amount 

Overpaid  

TOTAL LOST SERVICES

VALUE OF LOST SERVICES

MONTHS BY HEARING OFFICER IS

RESTITUTION

MONTHLY RENT 

TOTAL TO BE REPAID TO TENANT

TOTAL AS PERCENT OF MONTHLY RENT

AMORTIZED OVER MO. BY REG. IS

+ 

+ 

+ 

I 

000219



18 | P a g e

ORDER 

1. Petition T23-0075 is granted, in part.

2. The base rent for the subject unit is $1,945.00.

3. The total overpayment by the Tenant is $24,925.39 for past decreased

housing services.

4. The Tenant’s rent is stated below:

Base rent $ 1,945.00 

Less restitution $    383.47 

Less ongoing decreased housing services $ 1,530.88 

Net Rent $    30.65 

5. If the Owner wishes to, they can repay the restitution owed to the Tenant at

any time. If they do so, the monthly restitution decreases when the Tenant is

provided restitution.

6. When the Owner repairs the broken window, and upon property notice in

accordance with Section 827 of the California Civil Code, the rent may be restored

by $116.70.

7. When the Owner provides a secure mailbox, and upon property notice in

accordance with Section 827 of the California Civil Code, the rent may be restored

by $4.50.

8. When the Owner repairs the unfinished kitchen and dining room, and upon

property notice in accordance with Section 827 of the California Civil Code, the

rent may be restored by $359.12.

9. When the Owner repairs the unfinished living room, and upon property

notice in accordance with Section 827 of the California Civil Code, the rent may be

restored by $605.68.

10. When the Owner repairs the unfinished bathroom, and upon property notice

in accordance with Section 827 of the California Civil Code, the rent may be

restored by $107.20.

000220



 

19 | P a g e  

 

11. When the Owner repairs the unfinished bedroom, and upon property notice 

in accordance with Section 827 of the California Civil Code, the rent may be 

restored by $337.68. 

 

12. Nothing in this order prevents the Owner from increasing the rent according 

to the laws of the Rent Adjustment Ordinance and the State of California at any 

time, at least 6 months after the Tenant is served with the RAP Notice in English, 

Spanish, and Chinese. 

 

13. Nothing in this order prevents the Owner from increasing the rent according 

to the laws of the Rent Adjustment Ordinance and the State of California at any 

time, at least 12 months from the last rent increase. 

 

Right to Appeal:  This decision is the final decision of the Rent Adjustment 

Program Staff. Either party may appeal this decision by filing a properly 

completed appeal using the form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The 

appeal must be received within seventeen (17) calendar days of electronic service 

or twenty (20) days if served by first-class mail. If the last day to file is a weekend 

or holiday, the appeal may be filed on the next business day. The date and service 

method are shown on the attached Proof of Service. 

   

      
Dated:  November 28, 2023  Élan Consuella Lambert 

  Hearing Officer 

  Rent Adjustment Program 

 

000221



 PROOF OF SERVICE 

 Case Number T23-0075 

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the 

Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, 

California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, 

California 94612.   

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of 

Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa 

Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to: 

 

Documents Included 

Hearing Decision  

 

Manager 

Christina Nelson, Godwin Properties 

266 Adams Street Unit 205 

Oakland, CA 94610 

Owner 

Melanie Godwin-Rosales, Godwin Properties 

PO Box 2128 

Livermore, CA 94551 

Tenant 

James Willis 

260 Lee Street Unit 205 

Oakland, CA 94610 

 
I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing 

correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection 

receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal 

Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of 

business. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true 

and correct. Executed on November 30, 2023 in Oakland, CA. 

 
______________________________ 

Brittni Jackson 

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program 

000222



CITY·OF OAKLAND F'urf.:...-:r:iL . • • leilmcnl 'Pm_ll.illDTI du i;- ~-mmp. 

RF.NT ADJiUSTMENT PROGRA'-1. 
~ O Frank H. 9ga1;'.'a .P!aza, Srute SJ 1 J 

C1TV or OAKL.A D 

Oak.I~ CA.94612-0243 
(s rn) 23 s:-3 .21 
C Kolray_!S~ 711 
~~ aklandt:a: l:lQ /"RAP 

APPEAL 
.Appella:nfs Na me 

;nt'\ . 
&d.w -~ O.i\\•-.. p ~ (2.n.) C,\ \o, J ---ROwner □ Tenanil: 

P;roperty Add~ss (Inc.flit~ Unit Number) 

;)_\&:) U?-e. ~ ~,Los ,O atJQfv\.d.. 1 C rt- 9Yb1· O 
,._..... __ 
Appell an I's Mru ling Address- {For r-ecalpt ,m ru:rdoe,-) Ca~N'Un1ber 

QO \:>LJx ~ \ag 1~ - C071 S 
u~--- ~} Cf\ c,·ys.s. wte,of D~c\510:n a(Pp(f.81ed 

~\-.;l~~ ~> 
Name of RG_pre:s.enlati.ve fi·f cmry) Representative;'$. 'Mailing A.ddre55 (For 

mottoes) 

- -

P ea5E! S!eh~-~ -Yo.ur ;groarrnl(.s) for tiilppe.al from the, 1st be:tow~ As pan: of the appeal, an ,~xplan:aUon must 
be provided! responding to each groun(I for W'h'Ech ·you are ~a!l'lng. Eacsh g:round for appeal Usred 
belcw mdudes dir.ecii:oms as to what ·&'h.c'l!J'.I-d be J1ru::;ludoo In the, mi:ptc11nation. 

1) Themie,ar-e ma'lh1cle,ne,i;1I e~ ~ requiire t·hie Hearing Deel5l<on to be· rulP(!ated. (Pie~ ooa-dy 
e;1rpJam tire m8fh/dericBI ,~ ) 

2) .Ap;peiilirrg the. decis1nn for Ofle of the: grolfflds befow (req,w:red}" 

a) fSJ T:h-e decisdlon is m::ondstant wUh OMC Ctiapmr 8.:22, Renf Bosn:I Regula ·on$, or priw 
- dli?C~i'OTI5i ot· tlil-e Board. {1n your exptanatmn, you mus!' identify fire O:r:dfnartce. section, 
~ulatioo rxpr:iorBoard dccisfon(sJ a:nd describe how the d8s¢{mon· ls lnoorrsfmt:mt.) 

b) :□ Tlit,e. decll5;J'on •~ ·1nui::onsJiiS'rent with de.cis~ns. [$sued by othM Hearing Offlcar.s .. (In your 
e-x;p/>Bn - ti.on you must identiijrthe prlof' .inoonais:.ent decision 8ml expf a.m J1aw ~ ddCJ-shri .i...;;; 

moo.nsismri ~) 

c) □ The ·d~Ci$ion raises a necw pofic;y iss1Je that ha'S-run been dei..ided by 'lhe· !Board. (m' your 
expl;ao.atioo, you must provfde a ama-iloo statement of the i.sstle ,m-ci ·why the Issue sho ,IftJbe 
r;Ieoided in your tevor.) 

d) J('The decision ·idol ates f2de:nd,. 'Sh.m, a.- local l&w .. (In· yow- ·e:xp~~tion, yoi.r ml1st provide. a, 

detiitllsd 5'aremem as to what law 1s violated)' 

e) p{The d~dsion Is not supportad by subsmnHal evlderu:ie,. {In w.ur e~~nalron, you mu.st 
exp/sin wny the aeci~ron ra· not supporled by .substantial evidence .found fn the- case f'G.CO!'d.) 

f "1!,-.w.:d•111111wy rn, ~ 

000223



f) ·r;J ·1 ·w:as denied a sl!lfficle111,t opportunity to Pfl'5,'enl my cialm or ·respc.nd to thei patitioner'-5 
"c)aJm. Un your explanation, you muat de.scribt:f how you were denied tt.ie ch~nre to .d~nd your 
,r::krims and what avid~ y.ou would mrve pwsentad Note ·that a· heminy is ,:mt required in eve,Y 
casa Sutttmay issue a ootisron V'Jithoul a hearing ff sufticienl fads to· make- ,-the ., ecisiDI) are not 
in ·WSP!Jte. ) 

g) □ The d:e~slon denies tu Ownl3r a fair ,arum on lbs ~ fn,ve!!lttnent. {You may .appem ,oo 
lhJ:s; groorrd· ooiy whet) JiOllrund~ymgpe~ ~~,on~~ return daim. Y:ou mus.t spf::icilically 
state why J,70,fl he've been, cleniea a fatif return amt a~ the ~rot.dB.ions_ mppomti!J your_Giaim~) 

h) □ 00-.e.r. {Jn .¥QUI" exp'Ja;natfonr you must-ettBch· a rieWfled explanatkm of }'GUl'. qroumls tor.~w.,e.a~) 

Suppol"tin,g1 documents (in .amntton to this form) must n.o:t ~d 25 pages:m,-.and mu~ ber •. eei~d by· 
ttie RB-Tit Ad]ustmenfPrro.gram1 a:tan:g with a, pmof of ~erv c~ on the ·opposing party, ·wilhin _1.5, day,s, of 
W~ filing of"ttiis daeument qnty tha 'fii:ts . 25, ~g.es 'Of subirruss;ans from e.ach party WJII b,e 04nslderedf by file 
Board, st1hjeci ro RieguratfQins 8.22.01 Q(A)(4 ). Pf:e~ number artaGh&d pages ooQ~utiveJy;. N~r of 
pages .attacha;d:d. .:1 •• . • 

• "·You m S1 .s&:rve a copy· of yom; a~al on Hile oppos.f:ng partles,, or your 3P;peiili1: may ba df:ll!lffllS-s.ed. ,., 
I ,de(;fare under p~rnan,,· of perjury- 1o1nder tl1e, lai&s, of the: St~ of caJ.lfornia fha.t 011 [eru,q 14 1 2~ 
I pfaricedacopyof'ltus foITT1, .and a11 attacnad pag~s, in ttie United .states m.lu1 ,ordapasited it with auomrrten::fal 
c:arri:er, uslrig a seMce at least as expedltifous as ·fiirst-class- mait. wtth ali p-ostage or cheiig.es •• lty prepaid 
addressed to each oppeslng par:ty as foflows~ 

u ........... 
&alilLWiill. 

Mar.es, 

tiiml. 

w \_\' . - -
·· \C)·. I -e. - ~.;Jo-S 

rvlAI\. f:ojct.__ 
SIGNATURE of AAPELLAN Qi" DESfGNATED REPRESENTA nve DATE 

~ fan1J111)· 'TIJ. ~ 

000224



GODWJN PROPERTIES 

D,eam'bill" 8, 2:D.2 3 

City of Oakliandl 
Ren Adjiustment Prngr.am 
2 5.0 F'ran];:: H O,ga1.~ Jl.aza. ·S:te 5313, 
Oakfancl·CA 94512 

This is n supp~e:rnent to the apj>¢al form. al ta clued fur :rasie #T23-[i)075. v.V wuuW 
.like· to -app~I this d ed:sion for tli •• • fhll.m.ving reaso,:ns; 
tJ The deciswa ls inoons·•stent wfdl 'R,ru1t lkiard Re1m1·atfo11£ ~~'""llla□on 
.8.22.U9{~ (~ provides ·thait own.er may fUc a :respOR:.'j:ie to a petition and provide· 
;ccrw.1n tnforma:liorn to the Ren Boar:,i in snpport of ~t response. I0V11l.CT Mdanie 
Rosal~s. tlinely:..sub,rn,tted • he· .required d~.rnmentaltion buL l:!he 'be;:uingoffice:r did 
riot co-nsider·H staling; that oo respmri..'ii~ wa.~5 filed. A prnrif of ~e:rvic.-e·oft:he respan!if! 
·is. attaehed showing proper and timely response. Regµlatlirni 8.22.010{.E . [3l{e): and 
1(:aUfomi.a. Gownunenl Code 11Sll ,prn,vid.e in pertinent part that each party s.haU 
have the :right to rebut evidenoo: sub~ttr;!_d a,~ln$t lhat party and to subrnit ·~xJ1i'hJ't$_ 
The-heartng··omccr .n:fu.se_d to amsirler any evidelilce pnwi(led. by Owner to rebut 
claims by Tenant cm grounds that Iilo resp:t'mse: ·w.1s filed when i.~ had been. This is a 
vi.c;d:atioii o;f RLegu.latmo.r!LS :ai~rJ CaUfornii21 Gmrernrnernt Code h'i t;:r;vo aspects: fu ' t, 
evirl.ence to 'rem.It i dearly allowed un 2.22 .. 010(E)(3) e) and settmd1 i t 'f~ 

m~tly un.j'ust and an ab~!? ,of due p,r,o,·e.ss. t-.o· ~ • w tQ ·er.r.ternin ·th~ ~uhrni:ttcii 
nspon$e. 
2.) Th,e d~t;lsjon YWLiltd :IFed,;e:raL SJ:akand Loral -Law_ The ded~iorn violates 
Federal, State and Lof'...ail L:aiw eo,ncernmg du.e ,Process.. lh:e United Stares 
Co,nsti.t11.1.t:ioo /unmllrlmoots Sand 1.4 pmvidie l:hatrio perso1".L shall be deprivedo:fUfc,.. 
'li'herty;: o.r p.roperty 'Without due p.roces:s iof law. California Sta:m Co1nsdtu nion Se~tion 
7 silllirady provfde.s tlmt no person shall be denied life~ liberty, or ,property without 
due JH.·nc12ss of t2w nor- d1 nied equr.1J pmt~tJ'n of :tile ta-ws. O'!h'l"Jler l"laS denied durtJ 
process by .l!\Ot aUow~ng suhmissif:M'l of her re.s;1nlr,ise and1el.':lribits th~reto. Had :the 
he~ring e.x:a:miniF~r allowed ]otrodiurtion of owner response in-ild tcsti1P1CHiYr the 
F12otJ.rd would Tcllect that the RAP notic,e ,:,Yith all. three .Lang~,es ,VilS indeed 
provided. to thee tenc1nt.at 1ease inoeption. TMs-iwouJd.iin and of .its6lf,greaUv rem.med. 
the· da:rmiges awarded by limiting time to -90 days :ra:ll:bel" fha1·1 the enti Eil:l! ten; ~'Y o!I" 
15 .rm.:inlh:~. 
s J The 111.ec si:Ql!I s not wppmrted ·by mbstantia~ ,emtlence, suhstnntiia] mC!ans 
:i:;jgni fkan't; -:tad i mp!:l-lftallt more than Heeting and, foundahon. As set forth in mo,i;c 
detail in. fue- iippeal respon.se, there was nD .re.liable evidence provid!~dl. by· ten;;l!nt .a.s 
to amm.mtof arrea .affected a·s n wen , !.lfif•eb-uued .oy· ownec berause th,e l!eanng 
u:ffi.cer wuu M :not ,dlow rehutta:1 •ev:Idem::e. N o.evidenre. was heard vc:Htcem!.ng 
proper valw1:ti01. ,of decr(.-as,e 111 ~rvk~ 

4), The Q,vpcrwu dep;j,ed Qu;porL,wil.Jr: t:9 Q·,:apop.d LoTenaint'.s Cl,sl~m- lJ·emng 
o:ffirer refused to alSow ms:~.mc:J•n)' hy the .c:i,wn • r and :n:..'"fusied to ooDs..f der the 

000225



.rers.:pon·se. to d1a2 ttfian petition. Owner was shut down in a'FI ef'" orts to reb1L1.t 
\UlSillpported a]legatJorns., of Petitioner~ F,or a:u ·reascu1s. sill!t ~urth .above., t:h,e decision. 
sho-iald 'be overruied and·resll!bm[tted for new hearing so, th.atOr,merls affordtd 
pr,oper opporlunity to :re but claims made hy petitioner. 

Had hear;, ng examin-er :reVJfiltved respmase and allowed testimony by· o,W11er the 
dectsion would • e m~nifostly differen as forlow.,;;: 

. Repgtitt,;r cted1ts. The hearing d,eck-ion as: duplf.cat,~-0 the' rent ,cre.;li Jn 
cereain are-o.s- For example tbe. nmar1t ts (>ffer"ed a re11t C:1['12d1t fol" .• h~ir 
windi::Jw and heate ".,. in ad d"ition to ,ai r ent credit fuJ' living room "'unfintsihed 
·work;" Both the heater a:ad window are in the livin_g l"OOm and were If st'Cd 
'i!.ndc'r ·•unfinished work" on ti, c tenca~ PEl'titiO:n. This is: a d!upli care credit 
and. we~d like lhe credit fo:r unfinished livilffl r,oo.m. to be reamvodl or reduced. 
The h eater· and Vii ·ndow are the largest itenis in thbi spare. The ·remaining 
items outside the window and .heater~ wern a screen, cJip and a. dirty l\lrn ce. 

The hearing d.ectsion ;nvatd~ th~ tenant $1554. for the bath.room lea~ 
~utl ng ma . we. offerE:!d lliem._$1,653.27. We ·diditf o.ITer. them th.ts. a edit.., bat 
a l'rt~l;liy gave the t:emmts, this. de-dit11Jnd rtrl llm their ~ut accord ngl.y. The· 
ac.i::;m.mttng is settled Oli1 'tilts :m~tter. ''Jile' d Uke this: amo1,1,nt removed. 

2. ]uflated Unusable Lhrln: SiLJaoe.. The tenant: is being :a,v.n·ded. for 486 total sq_ 
~ of ousable space and that 1s _ oe true al all Specific 11eparrs listed on his 
petiti.cm should be , he basis fur eimbu rsement arm th-e .nmt. b oard sho ld 
dete:rmi'lile 'livhat :percentage that i s. h:. appears the bearing de~10:n was based 
on the tenam:s: arbitrary pe..rt-:einta-ge per nmm be tesa fi~ lavj th at th hearing.. 
regar,dle-ss o, whethef" lliat is a true determination of unused Uving· spaiiJe Qr 

not. 

Ttmese are th • jtems below 'that 'thl1l! t.enan listil::!d under '\t.n.finiish.ec'.il work'' 
along. with the tenants d.etern'rinati n of 1Jnusa,b e ~111ace_ 

Kitch.en/Dming, room, 134 sq ft: l'sE:ed ais uinusable: Backsplash m.1ssi.n • 
caulking: Ciibinet ]a clie-s: Semen andl clip - co-mrAe.ted • 

Livh1g room . . 2.26 listed as 11Tt1us..:thl 12 sq ft: Oni:i: .scr-een and dip - ,comp'le·te!d; 
Wfnd O"i,v doesn ·i; dose,. F rn'.iJ:aut: l«fl wn.;h.:alil,, c.t{!'an:r:!:c;l "an~ repaired. April l .2U.23 

Bedr ooma 126 Uste.u as, U!Dli15atde sq ft. Screen and clip, completeti1 
Blind, romp!et~d: Transition strip, ·c;omple-ted. Pain sp;lotchcs 

We ane disputi 11,g that 486' sq ft ofl.Mng s_paoe is· uousa hie, .a~ well as the 
ov,e.rlapp,irrg re • dedits. 

000226



3 

3-.. RAP No tire. I w;.is questioned about the RAP :rnntke, Ior whicb we always 
attach to -every ]ease ~r~d tt is a:tt:tthed .here, \\'ith the te ,ants signattn•,es and 
dated_ l was confused and dtd ti r~iz.e J oould. add tlie attachment durtn,g_ 
the hear.Eng. nor did ] tbrnk.aibaut it once I was: told 1 oou~dn't tcs.ti lfy. • he • 
tenant tes-ified 'hat e- did not :r,'=ce"Eilt~ !Lb~ RAP nod re i:n 3 hn~gu.ages and 
then proceeded to show our Gom'vin Properties RAP addendum. which .he 
p~sted in n the ch3t.. That do-cwncn.t be pasted ""rds ?Jot the· RAP rtoti ce btn: a 
dn~rocnt our- t.:ornpauy adds to ,r liease, ac.knowled:gi.ng-the: RAP program .. 
The offi ctal IRA.P mrti-re the t:e.t1a11t.i;;; ·Tec_e:iived is ,~~ac.h~d ,;,,nth.s~gn.a~~-S.. 
dated 8/20/2022. 

4. mas andl [neg ru:1.lity. The heartng Si~rted. off with ·notificatton that not only d d 
~e :ren b n'.:i rd nut r-ecei.ve my respoi-100, whic-.h ·~ras maUed on th n, , \\\l'llth. 
pT.O:Of of serv.ic-eJ and i t attacbed., bu.t ~-as bar.rmg me fr.om testifymg dn:nng 
the beanng;. The hearf n ~-ufficer d.aJmed I wits: deni<ed ftorm lestifying becau~~ 
my RAP r ,cspon.se 11Aras not. rece1ved. The tenants :receiv-.-i?d theirs. ] had a 
seooodl hearl~g 'the following '!iveek ar1d ~vc:ryone 'rereive-d their topy i:f5 we1l 
this w·as untust and bLlScd to say itbe least r was never n::dd, nor was it 
¥l.Iitteu that J wo.u d be denied to testily. l :sat f.or- 5 hours while the cnau.t 
was al.Jo veii to speaka:nd lwais 4em,ed tl\at right [ wa only abl!e o cross 
e-xemine, • ot an easy thiing when . .l hav-e never "c:rns.s exammcd! al]yone lbefuFe· 

Upan cross examining, l was denied asking questi:0:i:,s th.at were pertine1u't to 
the cas_e.. The ..hearing officer a1su led the petitioner during my cross 
examination..] asked, hart items in the ki.tdmn or. living 'rQOm, bedroom,, etc 
were aot11sable, hut when ,c:!ballenged by the temn1t, the hearing offirer:. 
cssenil:i.ally led me into Itot asking the qu:es,tion. When ] tried tn r,e ftt ~ the 
[Petition where the t:enan- listed e·ach ft.em as ·n:usable- i~ wch mom, ~ 
re er.ence to show that the unusable- sp;:l'CQ- wa~ far less than he sa1d, I w:as 
tola by the IJ.caring of.firer, that tke petiti-a,r:a d.irn wa~'t p~rt of the he.:ni)1g._ 
J ems the tenant liis,red. as brokea u:r uofinished In thei peti't;lon wasn"t 
rei vant? This question wa~ rel eva1l to· show the _itmusaJJle. space wa:.. for less 
than was listed. 

S. La:ck of Due.Prncess. n~s, -was aul a fair heiirlng 'by any meatliS. 1 was not 
aUowerl t<1 :t: - _ 'Jy, 5'(3t :rol'" S hours ·'W'hile the tien.aut testi.Eied and then ,ws 
s~ lcmc,ctt when trying tn crnss examine. H~.;I ·m been ab]e to testify., ·m -would've 
sid.id U1-e • v.in.tl(}W palilcs wer-"' never broken, b'Ut '7 of·iCl!ie i.7 m· so panels ,wan· 
dos~ pt':OJltel']&, mere mfilimete· ;51 ef space was: 1clit open. There ,~ete no 
broken parv,e.s. T.h,e heater was not broken ho • li:l!idlil't work as efficiently a'.'; 
l.he teoaot liked. T also nev!:T .c:aw th~·.b • rh1g officer's. . are. "Fb12y h;;Ed heir 
ca era o!fthe enfuetime I find this very 11,11nprofess:ianal and questionable. 
My he.airing- a week later showed the officer's fac-e dearly_ 

000227



Sinre il:he: hearing, we've tried) to Mio access tc tbe unit to, check the le.ale; 2ud replace 
llle w.mdow and we.re denied. access \!l.illess· we cr,edit'ed 11:be tenant Jo.r repai rs. 
However fue tcna,rtt: ha~,;: re -eq tJy told us: the leak Is coi'lttain.,~. 

T e \i\i':indow has hce:n replaced with a brand new window:, however e ht:!it.1 to 
co tact the city twice-to ask for more time because, me tenant denied \IS access 
fo!l"d;ng . s; to.serve rum a 3 d • n.o-tk:e to cease. 

·Do:s:metic: or not,.'Wie _have no problems goi:TIJ;rin ,an taking rare of the$e l te!tns arJ.d 
hav~ lri,~d to several times, buttihis i!rnn. ab ~nd.anU:i,t fnf13tecff. am-61mt of 1,1I1usable 
$p.;;11r;;e. 

We appc--.al l:ibe 1lmlti;::e decf.s[on aii:ld request a1JQl:her heating •. wtJ,r,:rc we c.1 re able to 
t,c..stil'y fully, where our. :rights .are oot wminish,ed due to papcn'forkan4, Mihere -we 
can reasooab]y come up with a more reasonable percentage .. as these app ar to b~ 
basioo. on.an arb"tr.rrrypercentage o space the temmt came OJ) a.ntl the hoard 
willfugiy agreed \'l:LUl, f aissu.me vftihout: inspecting ll:he 1:.utit tbemse'hir,es. 

As.an Oakland la'ridJ ord, ope-rating fu the city for oveir 40 1,~ars1 1 -ii."ail hones ly say 
this is the most .1wful experience we ve. ever had. ~ rnctic d:es_ign,ed to s:flenc.e our
voke· and use'i:nconst.:q.1,1<.:lil tial: .U:e.ms.. tik.e not receiving Ui1y re~paose. a!,li a w-ay to 
c.<1:u-ell testimony and deoo;~e, wh.ile brer listing the tenants petitioo as ''undisp11t00,.. ms 
bad busin~. w :e. r~1 we were not ;gh,eT.J, due process, per .federal .andi Ca H fornia faiw. 

Ve ha'lle al:\-...ays t rusted and l!Jnder· :ood tb.e aeed. for the Rent Progr-am an~ have 
been u:pstandutg owners. fo,r many years. but this ,rurren.'lt: situation is a blatan aibuse 
o·f ~n overall good sys • m desi,gtretl lo assFst tenants aJJd ~ bndiords in check. 
r!hms is not the ·way fur Oakland ranters and ow ,e rto come to b~tte'r ~enns and 
work whh each othe:r~ 

:Sinc.ei--el. , 

ihr,{ZVJ~ 
•. elruue Go~n-RosaJcs 

Godwin Properties 

Attach.tmmts: 
1. o :r ong:1 aam res_prn:l!se to tbe pentioilii~ ·plus proof of .service~ dated 6/26/23 
LA.du~] RAP .s~gned handout, not new ~~dCl'.l·ce, it was, brought up durl:ng the 
hearing, l r!Lpage.and signatm:c·_page, signed 8/20/22 
2. 'f e:n(!nt maintenance requc.stsr wi'th . cma1 items listed. for ... 111 Yf. 1isti c.::tJ wo.rk". Also 

o new er.ri~ence tenantMsted i1U tbe~e i,tems ·n their o:ngmal petJtiQIJ. 

000228



CITY OF 0,-\f(L .d~D 

CITY ,OF OAKLAND 
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRMI 

So .ffilnk .H. O~a Pl'~ smm 53 B 
Oaklaod, -CA 94612~!24:l 
(510) 238-:rni 
CA RcffiY Scrv~ 71 I 
WV ·-w%~ .·_ &p.,1QY1'1!AP CA.SE Nrn-fflfilt.'T -

PROPERTY O·W 1ER .RE1SP01NSE 
T·O TENA.NT PET TIO.N 

---

Pfaae ·mg Qiiltfhls fotd ;n cnmpW"'1, BB· wu S!D'· ~ fil:J'a, fomti k>- -pqnd·to. lim ~ • ~fli';!i;),r! yob ~ - By' 
~ -tins raspo,. $9 mm,--and a~ng f1 Zn Im ~ !iirrf\61 fr:,r-JIJinr}. yoo liliN iJ8.ar1,1e1o~ate , the ~ting. ~r.rum to 
~vfda·the rquiP:ad ~tian ffl<i!Jil' mstrlJ jn-~'l'.l~nse ~ ~ ' ocdQfayed. ~ "'Tm;i<Jr.tanl fmaa1't,iatian ~'{i(Jing Ft ' 
Y(ilUT' ~se· O,ir tire hm;,s,ge of·~~ fa.rmwe-.lr~ lOOltJrJmg film(/~ and ho :v lo conmd-the Reril 
lf~t P'rograf.,1 r~ ""1:ifh· qua~ Adar1irnal ~ is aJaa,.~~e ~1'1 tliB RAP~ ·CONTACTAl(OIJSiNG 
COUNSELOR TO' RIMliWY:OUR ~ l:JeFOREWSMlrnNG, To~ mll ~ enuill &'-~· crw -

Rantal: Yrr1t .lnf,o,rmafion -

Sf ng e• fflfl'll • 
□ Cooifcmf. • 

Ni : r of w Q'l11,p!'O~: _IS_•~• ____ _ 
.-lilb Apartroom, . .IJCOOI:, « !il'lll!!. t,.W(lll'!K: Date aoquir&d pro,~: _ J __ • _Q)S_. ---.....,,_· ·-~---

Tenant 1~mulion 

•. • m. o~'f:Ofl.w P,ell' . _niar(s}: ""'-_,r...lll~~__,.,1,-........21t....:::::.....2:.,J.:.1....L-.!..q..::.....Jt;~---:!1£.:5..L!--:....!.~ ~~l;.!.....:::I...ll,---

Cmte elilifliltfs) moved into r;oom unit b 1f l.Yel J L ima1' rain.amount :s: ,. 9\.fS t:slare tenanaf~ 
cwmnt oo II nt'2 

Pro:pe~ 10w;ur;· Repl/8Rntative ~~Jt er .~ R~ t,. DI ktfun,ay ;No,rt-;e;'tkillll8Y 

/2b.jgJ o i 
rht~roe Last~ FIIITlf,O~ (" any} 

M,;fjljng~-~---------"'..a;,,:··i)""-'. -s-'i\~~__,- -~----------~-~--- ~ - ~ 

Page ·· of4 

000229



• Cmd, 
,Sii:liciaa_ ftl_ ~ 

1 

□ 

n. 

rty, ·oo fescei:'11 home. lil!:IQ·profil 
tJh daa~j 

2. 

000230



RESPONSE TO TENA.Kr 
·'-

P,ETITl'O 

Use- !tt!!· ohatttil tiemw w: n:DOn!i1 m·~ -aJiO\Jndl sbilad m: ~ Tiesn.t nw .. Ent6'-,oor ~ -or:r ~ cklm m me 
~p'l1Ql0 ~r-$.1 .below. ~ msy .attacft~~-~ ~othef,~ ~ m,r ~ lr"O!D" 
p~lO!Ji8fhBr"~1~~e:r1r,itm.. tfJ!'O!J·.~rn.on,,~,:~~-~ Cffhf5~ -u.:ztat.e1(1ID"~ 
~i a .Sii!~ ;st;i~ ~ fu. ~ fum_ 

-

A. 
Untawftd Rent lnc~e1s} 

-

Q;imtJifBfe-;Wsmcoon· ' ff aflhegro,mq. forthl!!'-~·p;e,,m··· f,all~~- A Ol"P U/tJ.iiifflarn'PeJifii" _ · , . tmy·, _. • _Ji · . I · · - «:In , . . _ : •. • · • , . llfl. 

IJat all r:ent Int aae, given wldiiin ttMt pairt·\llJve ,yeam,, :ttulirtg wffliittm m°'1 roamt ~ . 

~ ·~Rt: bat& ·l'e.tU ~OUM':e:iJ incr.easa= Oid ·~u~~~• ~fo(fn~ 
ghran :~ '~~:WQrtf:'. ~P Noll~ '!MttLU!IO (CPI,. hBn_~. Cill" 

Jrentmc:~· into~~ notl~ ~ ~ ~cj; 
~;i' 

r-rnm ld.-ilftNI. lmml'f:ld.l'uv); fiROMI Tb YES · ,NO -

, i $ □ □ 
$ $ a iJ ·I 

-

I $ $ □ □ 
-

1 $ □, I $ 
I 

□· 
,$ $, □ □ 

If thiii Temnt hiittan g; ~ : on etl!ilin" of.'.1ht? !fuJIIJwlng graunda,, yoo.r l!MpOnsie,i'n flle nau bolow or In .a 
H',P te .ab~ fife~ to 1nls icnn. 

T,i,~nt Peffl!:Olri, ~ dimeli~ 
{Ai, Temi.m did not ~11.re-llf®Qli neeiee. was: ~ 

iPfOPBnY sel:Wid. Mdlor·WM ,riot prCIOOBd w'l\h 
ttie ireQliimd RAP.form Wifiil.rent i~~). 

-

(li.3tl A ~ -1lgl!;fllcy ih8A. QWd.'tfite unit. 
-:!I~ h~ ~, fB't,~ ,or ,tltlil':ir:li ~ 
'i.i'.iolmions, 

B. I 0e·~reas~ Housing Services--

Com,c1ef.e tltiS. ~ if sny,af ffie ~ .fat :the 1~! Pelffim faJJ Mder Calegr.J,ry Boo~ T~t. ~. 

'f1e.naqt'P.dtl'on ~rounds OwnOi" R.N:pa~ 

'8,1) '"'i11:e !!llMl&"' m. pr,r;Piidi~ te~s) 'Wfltll '\'ewer 

').f f Q\\oct~ l g\i.P( ~UBiiiTl:g ~ce'.i ~r ~g i.Or ~ 
~ lly pakl!Whj'lhe:OTmer. 

($2) l T ii!i!W·. rtt[.si) [${,ejr,e? hf!flllg unlawfully ci\a_r,g~ :i:11 
u:imu· . 

C 
10ther. . 

Comp~· thr.s .secfon ifaY1yofli'l'S ~ (Of lh,Q, r~ fl'efton tart under C'~ C-.oo fht:, ien:sm'.A,ti!ian. 

TilmantPetltfQn Gmli..rlldi!J ~~ 

{C,:,f} Fffin1'1N&$ ncrl: ~i;a:;I ;t;Ifl,ar , prior Mm~ 
por»d tor ~r ~me.rahi,,. 

~ Omle.r ~ bBaed oo bract CC" l'flln.tne. I 

{C;].j, I T ~i!l \!IF 
. 

a1 ram .arno!Jil t :wz1:i; 11.lilJaWfuE 
becal;l$e· i'.1i'mef WM- n11c pe,~ M 1Jet .. 

rent" iilhout lirniSl!tNJn: (0.MC. § B,-4.(180 {C)~'-

P.;ge3of4 

000231



0WN • . · ; · J\ i}ff 
~· ~~ 

Crtec!C'ih:e bit.( ,beioW I _yau a-grree, to ha\re-RAP ~ and the QTI-[ER PAFCTYIIES; send you: d'acul'nlNl'B -1"81a~ to your-
~ erectir • i'Ci ly. r you ag!'t!a fD el'ectranic s.el'fldoe, the· ~ IOOV' se,nd. oertain ~me~ ,only 1e1edmn . . and nol 
tiy ·first eJasa 't - • 

JJt-ll'We QOM4!1t·~ ~eMntl notiDIIS ~ documQnts· ,in~ mallilr ·~mfhe.~P and·from. tne,01'.HER 
PAWfY.llES, 81~mcally the emad addmu(.es) 1~ In lhas. .~e-

MediaOOB ts ~11 optiorlal i;;iro~ o~ lb,y RAP to .~ssist parlil8s;c ·in "$efflln,g ttie lstiu:es: mlab!d 'fO • 1 ir R;-mt Ad.[,J~ent 
Cc;ffie .as U al~ to lb~· fMmaJ hll~ pl'liJcess. A ·mmMf fhctl patty _ ~ Wi'lhi ffie \Pl!:I~ p;·or h;i,fhe h - • .,g 
to oof.11 _i mmus] agmement li2lil oo teactJ@(i. Lf a. ~fflemest lie8d'led, ·1ne -paniu wilt -~ . .Ei Nn:dlng a~~ ana 
ti:lerc::wln notbe,s f~ hearing. H'·noseffienB'l s rem:ti~J tt'l&caSl,l!•Mlt g,o b ,a ftm'rtal tiearitig \f.Mh1 a Rent; 
MI slmen! Hearmti: Officf!t, who will fft~ i!;slfe a ,he1nidg decision. 

AiOl1 _,>II' only Mi ~uled W'.bwt! parttesaw,ee to mediate. Sign ib.erawn=you ~ to rnema 'on in y~casa 

to bave · · · • ; by· a 'Rent Atij~ ,Pmgnm ,Gmft· metf] :or . 
...... 

. tf ED:g;lfsti rs ru>L your p.ril't'ialiY langu~ you Jita'lle ·Hie ~ht to an inter?,r:etw In your prtma~ raoguag~led 2:1: • • e Rent 
MJu • • • . nt heating aru-J· m@d'•n ·sesstm. y;ou ~n requmst an ,nrarpl:i!~ by com,~' ttlls seciiM. 

□ t ~ -iillill :~r'rilue~ ln ·Hile f(lllowil;lg □ Span'ish ~r) 
m:m1,1ua;aat:my Rent•AdjmtmHt~-: □ ~ -(a:J:$.1· 

:□ Mendalihil fif fflffil 

49 a 
f'ropi:-rly ~ ~Ml!lro Temmt ~c 
Rm-. 16tl412.tfil 

Q OOI -----------

-END OF RESPONSE-, 

000232



t 
2) 
,3, 

9 

~- · , · . PRO 

' I 12-:024,3 

PRO F OF ,SERV C,E. 

a!JmllraDll!I 'CDl!UI- on ' ·-=ir:w:i-~ ~m - - iG8. 

SERVICli-form fa me pi!tmotl(') llemg _nmd' l'OQ,eimsJ UJQ1 

~...,.,e OF CEfom:r · - R,Q.P 

' ' -' ' ' ' ' ~ ' tm!N this:. farm fin • laten· 

- • · - ~ NSETOTEN - • .· .-
' -
I - - ' 

"""""'"'.,..., fa HBiS~SU nd CQ!rra.Q ---• onrkn·r.d, /omr .. '. -

_ t of 2 

000233



JQ 
~- 2 o.f2 

000234



,.. 

GODWIN PROPERTIES 

]t!l.lle. 21, 2tlZ3 

azy af OaldanJ 
,Rent .Ad]'ustm~t.l-•r,ogia!lll 
·250 ~Frank H Ogawai P!azai,, St-e 5313: 
Oakbuui. CA. 9.4612 

his is - supplementaj. docw:nen:t as _p.airt of om:" petition response enc!o~tL
addre-ssmg· onlr those ttems th:lt W@re·<Still pendh1:g a;t ah~ tirn·e of th..: petiti>on.. 

l'Wlll sa:y· that-akhCHJ.gh th~te-nantt im:ply~[~e:ms were lgoo,red for 7+ mJtJnt:hs1. 

hoth te~allts had access to ow- nta:itttenan1:::e ;port.al a111 d conunu.nicactng, ·via te):;\" with 
us th.rough th.at .sys~ from the t:fme they !thuved :tn.. Thls ·po.rbl ·was listed 1n !Oilll' 

lease~ as well as: attadied as. an a.d\dendum... With the exception cf a _•oouple of e:malli; 

we saw_ they did not ue th,e mainremn:iii;e po.rtm: to· .suhrntt .any of these "teqllie~-t5 
Witil Marcil 2023. 

]rem 1.. Baithroo:m:ceilingfoakwas fu111i1:d and repaicedl.from 6/16-23j ]iOughly.. Th.e: 
w-a.U wars cta.t. leak l'ql;:1irecl£'hret· li'Ocked, painted and dean~d As oompensailionj w~ 
offu:red the tenants~ their daily rate ofrent,·$MJ14 for the duratilo:n of the Fe:pa,tr; 
6/lS 1m'l:H cowpl«ion as well as 6% .off theh· rent fur 7.5 mouths due·to ·the dclay ta 
th~ repair. This l.'Orai is roughly; $875 ZS, J;iilllS at teas.ts days of rent at $:84.84~, • 
tobbng a-n esttmM@ of -11 g~J.45 -c(>mpe.arsatb~.n. 

On-site m~_ger stiU working inside the W11ittn- fix the faucet and rep at.- an 
additional l•takm tile ,cclli'ng. 'flus ~air is underway. 
j-1:1ttaohmeat 

:2. Heatillll!': viras jnspected ;-and. upaited m April 202-~ We credited a tot.ii nf $106.85 
to the teo.a.[l(tS. 

·.3 .. Wi.a.dow 11foeS:-n tfully close a:o(l we are pl':an:Dfilg;-'to· :rap1:aee it once the-batht-oom 
J"~~"'k k rep:aifr,ed_ 

4.. •• eed to talk to tenot. D,on.'tknow what this Is. 

S. Completed 

6. Tenants ·update,. pest companiy came blltt didn:'t get in ·to. sprn.y. We will .anange 
this;a~m. • 

000235



7'. Asking for update from die_ tenants. 

1, 2. In )lllifiilC!!'S S: 

13. Completed 

1'8/19 Addt.essed 

Any qu.estf-0ns, please call oat o:ffke a:t925/294-S86QI 

Si'ru:cr~Jy. 

r'fv)tZilJ~ 
Melanie Gadwm-Rosales • 
Godwin Properties: 

Attachement 1 

000236



---- ~liiiiilil ..... ---~ --~....,- ------~-- ......, _______ -- -- -- - ~~.,....j ~ - ·-- -------~ 

-~ ~------ - ---- - - - -----T-=--- =---

' . 
I • "'L - I - • ' 

...... 

000237



I 1 1 "- 1:1• 

.' • OAKi/.,,J\.ltJ, VIC:S ~il • rrs 

GI.Jett 

' lllalllit 
Will.SON Mlt:RY 1 ED.L 

lf,LiltilliilU ~ 

~~ 
••. I '1 

~.nt ~ 

000238



10. NO1TICE. TO TENAN:. S OF RES1ID,6NT A '-:. E ' ·_- 1 ADJ US ·, - E 

P - 10 , 

!l,t 

I ,!!I 

000239



X ~~aw:ro3i, 
LI?~l3,8,i!- If' liai:.lreas: ~:202.93.~ 

~lMJJ22 ~ PDT 

.X_~"f=tay-ooilm, 
Le_, IP Amtrel:i~, 7"°2.M'.:li 

~-t¥2il21: tO: 1:~m PO-

000240



CITY .OF OAKLA. 0 

TEL (5 )"231}3721 
:F'.AX !5 10.J 23 . 6 51 
TOO ( 61 OJ -:2 .... g :3254 

ll:L 

000241



Godwin Propertres 
'FO ~ :;,1-<8 • Lil=on:i, CA !;lll!S-51 

w si,~4-~660 

3, 

Oakland _Ren( _ Pgrm .. _M ult_ l an gage:___ pdf 

X .fuVLg< ~ 13tdao ,h 
L 1:1 IP Add~ 7:,202.9'-I.~ 

Ol!f21ll2022-{fg:~m FOT 

X ifmm! 'R~ ffitfu.~ 
il...m;i;m, Aili;!~ 7-J.202.!ilS.:~ 

~o.z, 1,i:,:t-1~ l?.DT 

000242



1t: . ·ack to sc-an::h resu s 

Service Request #11'97 1:d·t 

·oescripitiorn 
·----v Un m ishee W0 :k- Uv.tng Room. L iVing rocim 

wf ndow needs a screen aEld :screen hold e s. 

n dew does no fuMy d ose_ Count.eds misslng: 

a coun ertop. A m1rror is used • o .cover the .hole, 
Furnace w.as left: n clean. 

Created o:n:· 03/2.i /2023 
Cre ·tad by: James R. WfUrs 
Priarity.:. Normal 

Perm ii;s'ion 'lo e,-.ter: ¥es 

Recent Worik Orders for Unit 

DOpen 

PROPERTY 
Monte L 00 - 205 

OWN.ER 
Godwin Pmpe.rties-Wi lso • 

Acct 

RESJ.OE ·. T 
Jamos. R. wmis 

J 

1 Work Order -::t 

rn 

Job Descrip uin Print Text 

IJnfinishe,d' Work-Uving Room. LJvfng :room 'I.Vindo ~ needs a ·scraen 

~nd screen holders. Wifmjiow . oes not fully close. counter is Uwner approved; No 

misg,jng a countertop. A mirror is used to cover ,he hole, Furnace 
wa~ left u:nctean_ 

:&:SID.ENT 

Esti ITI ates [ FE.EDBAC·K ] Req es O ne Appmva l 

The~ are oo est1mat es at this time_ 

Roque-st fa;timat~ s) fmm Ven do or Ent~ r s Mes 

Vendor Trade 

No l:rade Assignoo 

000243



« Bae: . o search resuf s 

Service Request #119 16 1=, 1 

De.soripfon 
--, lJnfinis • ed Work-kil~henfilininig Area. Kitch~n 

vnndow rteeds ~ .sereeITT1 :t::rlirn:is-1 and screen 

clips. C!:l bi.n0try i .... mtcS::;lng, t~tches. Backspfash 

rs m1ssingr c<dulking. 

1Creat:ed one: 03/27/2023 
Created by.: James .. \IVillis 
!Priority: Normal 

Pe-rmimon to enrer: Vos 

Recen:1! Work Orders ro Umit 
0Open 

PROPERTY 
onte l ee - 205 

OWNER 
Godw; Praper es-WU.son 

Acct 

RESIDENT 

Jame .R. WTII' 

1 Work Q,rd.er 11 

E 

Job Des,cri ption 

. nfinish~~ Wor ~Kitchen{D.ining Ar ·~t Kit.then wtndow. -ieed~ 
screen, blind:s,J and ·screen clT:ps. C,abfnet ·y is misslng latches. 

Badkspt-ash is · ~si,ng_ caulking .. 

Text 

,owner approved: No 

~ESl!liJEiNT 

Emafl 

Estimates [ FEEDBACK ] Requost Owner Approva I 

Requ~st Estlmate{s) rnnn · ond or or En er Esti1 ate· 

Vendor Trade 

No Trade Assigned 

Portal Up foaded Images 

000244



I'( Back W search rnsu lt..c:;: 

Servrce 1Request #1199 Ealt 

,Description 
~ 7 Uni in.ished Work-Bedroom. Bed:r:oo- 1 wi'ndow 

needs- a scrfi!'.en, blinds, and screan cltps. • o 

tnmsi ion $trips ijt . edro,orn ~oli or dooot 
door. Hei:lroom door is also rnisaJ gned .and 

doesnit dose ro: Grl.y_ cemng p~.fnt spots are· 

incomplete. 

PROPERTY OWNER 

Created on~ 03/27/202.3. 
Crea~d by: James R( ViJ'ilm'S 

Plionty:: Normal 

P.ermis$.ion llio eater;. 'V,e,s, 

1R.ecent Wor.k O:rder51 fo:r Unit: 
OOpen 

nm t.:ee - 205 God • ' ro.pQrtie-s-WHGOn 
Acct 

RES~DE T 
James R. ill"s 

1 Work Order 

N I 

.Job Descrip kH1 

Uminlshed Work-Bedroom_ Bedroom window n:eeds a sere-en, 
blinds i and screen c:l!p::L No ·,rans· ion Strips at bedroom door or 
closet . ooF: Bedroom door ls also mrsal gned ~nd doesrft 010.se 

, roperly. Ceifing pa~nt :spa s a re. incomplete. 

Print 

Owne: , pproved:· No 

IRESIDSNT 

Email 

Estimates [ FEED.BACK ) Reques Ow ner Apprnva I 

rnere a1e no estimares at this time. 

Req ·cs stJm:ate{s) rom Ve-ndor ·or Enter Estimates 

Vendor rade 

o Trado Assigned 

Porta f Uploaded Images 

000245



« • ack to arch resu I s 

Service Request #119 8 Eait 

Descnption 
--7 Urntnis,hed WOilk-Ba nroom. Pa1htlng of al.h •. , 

ceilin. . an door le~ unfinished. ,o cauEk 

bet,veen froo r and . a htub. One towel rack is 
w£ak .and faulty. Bathroom he;;1t€r was left 
un:c1eaoed. !Jna:ble to use face boWel .s oppcr i n 

sink bee.a use th,a, I-eve bef"l.iind he fauce can' 

be lifted;, ·, he lever is. n shed wE·h the granfre_ 
Hooo fan n eds 'Cleaning an~ bugs .~.all from . he 
hoot.i tan r n o e sink, 

Created on: rJ3/27f:202 3 
Created by; James n_ wuris 
Pinortty: Ndnna1 

Pe1rm.1ssion to enter:;: 'Yes 

Recent Wo.r.'k Order.s-for . nit: 

0 OpC!n 

P·ROPERTY OWNER RESIDENT 
• ante Lee - 206 Godwin Properties-Wilson I James R. Wil i5 

Acct 

1 Work Order 

Job Description Pr:in Text 

Unfinished Wort-Bath room. Pain ing of waHs, cemng, and door left 
unfinished. No ca ullk be w. en oor and bath tJ b. One tov el rack fa owner approved: "o 
weak and . ulty. Bathroom heate was l.e unc1ea ned. Unable to 

RESUlENT 

Email 

u s,e ace bowel. stopper In sf nk because the lever behind the .iauoe-t can't be lff ed; ths lever Is 
·~teshed with he ~lilllll)it,e. Hood far, needs c1eahing and bugs fall o ~he hood fan in o the sJn 

Estimates ( P£EOeAcK ] Request owner Approv.aJ 

There .are no estimates a:t 'thls time·, 

HeQuest E:stim t~(s) rom Vt!ndo o.r Ent.er E Um.:i •es; 

Vendor Trade 

000246



Proof of service 
Case -IT23-0075 

I am a res idem ,of· ~he State of Ca;Hfurnia at least 1e~ghteen years of age. I am not 3J party to ·th·e 
R:esideniti;.11 f.t.ent Adjustmen,t Pro~ra:m case aisled above ram empfo-y~d ln Alamed'ai County., 

Tod..ay1 I s~rved the attacf.u~d documents listed] beiOW" lby placing a true· oop-y in the City of 
Li'1llermore post uffice mail colJ'ecrion, locaitcd· at 220· S .. !..iiwermott:l! Avenue, l..we,rm□T1e, CA 945·501, 

as. well as p, e:t=ing a true• copy at the O~1illjaolI!I R.e1n: Ad]ust.tll el'.lt Program office amp -off~ 

Documents Tm::1ludoo~ 

Hem1Flg d l!:i:slo:n 8pp'1!.ti! am;I s11.1pportiiin,S doc:um,ents 

City of Oak!tiu1d Rent .Adjustment Program 

250 Frank H 10g.aw~ PJa2a., ·Suite 53:13. 
Oa kla-ndl CA 94612~0.243 

Tenants· 

JamesWilUs 
200 Lee St #'2.0~ 

Oakland1 CA 94610 

Ancl 

Larry Brn:ac 
260 l!..ee· St ~:205 

Oakland, CA 945 O 

d dE!d<1.-e under penalty of pe:rj1.1ry u11der the: laws,oif'Uli·e State of Callfomia teat the. above iis uu~ 
an,d correct:. Exe<::,uted an December 141 2023 in Uvermore.,, CA 

Christian R ~ 

000247



.a 
~ 

F'J[X;!J;! 

'111~ v:: ;,nin.c, rr~f 
111,ot r '6 d """"'la, """' . . , 
From, !J) ',,A . ·c • 

0~ & 
til 
~ 

Rti:;i :93• 

p • 

~~ ~c,c:::P:J \J~-~ - ~ ,-
d'.·\e-J Lee ::,.: • • • _ ,-:# 
8a~C-.....::...l?t...L.· ~ L.:..:.....:~._,_.\J_~ -- •• 

000248



Revised January 10, 2022 

 

APPEAL 
 
Appellant’s Name  

☐ Owner    ☐ Tenant 

Property Address (Include Unit Number) 

Appellant’s Mailing Address (For receipt of notices) Case Number 

Date of Decision appealed 

Name of Representative (if any) Representative’s Mailing Address (For 
notices) 

 
Please select your ground(s) for appeal from the list below. As part of the appeal, an explanation must 
be provided responding to each ground for which you are appealing. Each ground for appeal listed 
below includes directions as to what should be included in the explanation.  

 

1) There are math/clerical errors that require the Hearing Decision to be updated. (Please clearly 
explain the math/clerical errors.) 

2) Appealing the decision for one of the grounds below (required):  
 

a) ☐ The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations, or prior 
decisions of the Board. (In your explanation, you must identify the Ordinance section, 
Regulation or prior Board decision(s) and describe how the description is inconsistent.) 

 
b) ☐ The decision is inconsistent with decisions issued by other Hearing Officers. (In your 

explanation, you must identify the prior inconsistent decision and explain how the decision is 
inconsistent.) 

 
c) ☐ The decision raises a new policy issue that has not been decided by the Board. (In your 

explanation, you must provide a detailed statement of the issue and why the issue should be 
decided in your favor.) 

 
d) ☐ The decision violates federal, state, or local law. (In your explanation, you must provide a 

detailed statement as to what law is violated.) 
 
e) ☐ The decision is not supported by substantial evidence. (In your explanation, you must 

explain why the decision is not supported by substantial evidence found in the case record.) 
 

CITY OF OAKLAND 
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 
Oakland, CA 94612-0243 
(510) 238-3721 
CA Relay Service 711 
www.oaklandca.gov/RAP 

For Rent Adjustment Program date stamp. 
 
 

 

CITY OF OAKLAND 

000249

James Ray Willis

James Ray Willis

James Ray Willis
James Willis, Larry Butac

James Ray Willis
260 Lee Street, Unit 205 Oakland, CA 94610

James Ray Willis
T23-0075

James Ray Willis
260 Lee Street, Unit 205 Oakland, CA 94610

James Ray Willis
X



Revised January 10, 2022 

f) ☐ I was denied a sufficient opportunity to present my claim or respond to the petitioner’s 
claim. (In your explanation, you must describe how you were denied the chance to defend your 
claims and what evidence you would have presented. Note that a hearing is not required in every 
case. Staff may issue a decision without a hearing if sufficient facts to make the decision are not 
in dispute.) 

 
g) ☐ The decision denies the Owner a fair return on the Owner’s investment. (You may appeal on 

this ground only when your underlying petition was based on a fair return claim. You must specifically 
state why you have been denied a fair return and attach the calculations supporting your claim.)  

 
h) ☐ Other. (In your explanation, you must attach a detailed explanation of your grounds for appeal.) 
 

Supporting documents (in addition to this form) must not exceed 25 pages, and must be received by 
the Rent Adjustment Program, along with a proof of service on the opposing party, within 15 days of 
the filing of this document. Only the first 25 pages of submissions from each party will be considered by the 
Board, subject to Regulations 8.22.010(A)(4). Please number attached pages consecutively. Number of 
pages attached: _____.   
 
• You must serve a copy of your appeal on the opposing parties, or your appeal may be dismissed. ● 
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that on            , 20        , 
I placed a copy of this form, and all attached pages, in the United States mail or deposited it with a commercial 
carrier, using a service at least as expeditious as first-class mail, with all postage or charges fully prepaid, 
addressed to each opposing party as follows: 

 
Name  

Address  

City, State Zip  

 
Name  

Address  

City, State Zip  

 
 

  

 
SIGNATURE of APPELLANT or DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE 

 
DATE 

 
 
 
  

000250

James Ray Willis
12

James Ray Willis
Melanie Godwin-Rosales, Godwin Properities 

James Ray Willis
PO Box 2128

James Ray Willis
Livermore, CA 94551

James Ray Willis
12/20/2023

James Ray Willis

James Ray Willis

James Ray Willis
December 20th.        23 

James Ray Willis
X

James Ray Willis



Revised January 10, 2022 

IMPORTANT INFORMATION: 

This Appeal must be received by the Rent Adjustment Program, 250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 
5313, Oakland, California 94612, not later than 5:00 P.M. on the 20th calendar day after the date 
the decision was mailed to you as shown on the proof of service attached to the decision. If the 
last day to file is a weekend or holiday, the time to file the document is extended to the next business 
day. 

• Appeals filed late without good cause will be dismissed.
• You must provide all the information required, or your appeal cannot be processed and

may be dismissed.
• Any response to the appeal by the responding party must be received by the Rent

Adjustment Program, along with a proof of service on appealing party, within 15 days of
service of the service of the appeal if the party was personally served. If the responding
party was served the appeal by mail, the party must file the response within 20 days of the
date the appeal was mailed to them.

• There is no form for the response, but the entire response is limited to 25 pages or less.
• The Board will not consider new claims.  All claims, except jurisdictional issues, must have been

made in the petition, response, or at the hearing.
• The Board will not consider new evidence at the appeal hearing without specific approval.
• You must sign and date this form or your appeal will not be processed.
• The entire case record is available to the Board, but sections of audio recordings that you want the

Board to review must be pre-designated to Rent Adjustment Staff.

000251



Form – Petition PoS – EN – 8.14.23              Page 1 of 3  

CITY OF OAKLAND 
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 Oakland, 
CA 94612-0243 
(510) 238-3721
CA Relay Service 711 
www.oaklandca.gov/RAP 

For Rent Adjustment Program date stamp. 

PROOF OF SERVICE 

NOTE: YOU ARE REQUIRED TO SERVE A COPY OF YOUR PETITION OR RESPONSE (PLUS ANY ADDITIONAL 
DOCUMENTS) ON THE OPPOSING PARTIES. 

 Use this PROOF OF SERVICE form to indicate the date and manner in which service took place, as well as
the person(s) served.

 Provide a complete but unsigned copy of this PROOF OF SERVICE form to the opposing parties together
with the document(s) being served.

 File the completed and signed PROOF OF SERVICE form with the Rent Adjustment Program together with the
document you are filing and copies of any attachments you served on the opposing party/parties.

 Please sequentially number all additional documents provided to the RAP.

PETITIONS FILED WITHOUT A PROOF OF SERVICE WILL BE CONSIDERED INCOMPLETE AND MAY BE 
DISMISSED. 

 a. First-Class Mail. I enclosed the document(s) in a sealed envelope or package
addressed to the person(s) listed below and at the address(es) below and
deposited the sealed envelope with the United States Postal Service, with the
postage fully prepaid.

 b. Personal Service. (1) By Hand Delivery: I personally delivered the document(s)
to the person(s) at the address(es) listed below; or (2) I left the document(s) at the
address(es) with some person not younger than 18 years of age.

 c. Electronic Service (DO NOT USE THIS SERVICE METHOD TO SERVE
PETITIONS OR RESPONSES TO PETITIONS.) I electronically sent the
document(s) to the person(s) at the address(es) listed below who have previously
given written consent to receiving notices and documents in this matter from the
RAP and from the OTHER PARTY/IES electronically at the email address(es) they
provided.

PERSON(S) SERVED: 

Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Email Address 

I served a copy of: _____________ (insert name of document served) and 
 And Additional Documents 

(write number of attached pages)   __ attached pages (not counting the Petition or Response served 
or the Proof of Service) to each opposing party, whose name(s) and address(es) are listed below, by 
one of the following means (check one): 
 

CITY OF OAKLAND 

000252

http://www.oaklandca.gov/RAP
James Ray Willis

James Ray Willis

James Ray Willis
T23-0075 Petitioners’ Appeal

James Ray Willis
Melanie Godwin-Rosales, Godwin Properties

James Ray Willis
PO Box 2128

James Ray Willis
Livermore, CA 94551

James Ray Willis
godwinprop@aol.com

James Ray Willis
X

James Ray Willis
12

James Ray Willis
X



Form – Petition PoS – EN – 8.14.23                                                                                                                                                                Page 2 of 3  

Name  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

Email Address  

 

Name  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

Email Address  

 

Name  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

Email Address  

 

Name  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

Email Address  

 

Name  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

Email Address  

 

Name  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

Email Address  

 

Name  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

Email Address  

 
 
 

000253

James Ray Willis

James Ray Willis
Rent Adjustment Program

James Ray Willis
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313

James Ray Willis
Oakland, CA 94612-0243 

James Ray Willis
rap@oaklandca.gov

James Ray Willis



Form – Petition PoS – EN – 8.14.23                                                                                                                                                                Page 3 of 3  

To serve more than 8 people, copy this page as many times as necessary and insert in your proof of service document. If you are 
only serving one person, you can use just the first and last page 

 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and 
correct, and the documents were served on      /     /_____ (insert date served). 

 

PRINT YOUR NAME 
 

 
       SIGNATURE        DATE 

000254

James Ray Willis
James Willis, Larry Butac

James Ray Willis
12/20/2023

James Ray Willis

James Ray Willis

James Ray Willis

James Ray Willis
12 20 2023



CASE NUMBER: T23-0075 Petitioners’ Appeal

A public records request (23-12288) was submitted to provide the Board with a copy of

the hearing recording sections that are highlighted in gray below.

Hearing Recording: (3 hours and 40 minutes)

https://us02web.zoom.us/rec/share/PASYB1FKhaXdaGGfAM4nauj4pp_oECte_DyisE1

Ni81LiAj7EW3eOuV8O_a2U_G-.0AE0E_ilJ2DZkSxm Passcode: %9030c.U

Grounds for Appeal

1) There are math/clerical errors that require the Hearing Decision to be updated.

Clerical Errors: 2.

Clerical Error 1-The move in date.

1. On page 2 of the HEARING DECISION under EVIDENCE and James

Willis, states “He moved into the subject property on August 20, 2022.”

2. The Petitioners moved in on August 26, 2022.

On page 1 of the TENANT PETITION form, under the “Rental Unit

Information” section, states “Move-in Date: 08/26/2022”

3. There is a miscommunication between the audio and transcript. At

00:11:45 when the Hearing Officer asked, “and according to the petition, you moved into

CASE NUMBER: T23-0075 Petitioners’ Appeal Page 1

He moved into the subject property on August 20, 2022. The subject unit is a one
bedroom, one-bathroom, which, including the patio, is 725 square feet and was 
advertised as such. The rent for the subject unit is $1,945.002 per month, and the 
payments are current. 

Rental Unit Information 

260 LEE STREET 205 Oakland , CA 94610 

Street Number Street Name Unit Number Zip Code 

Move-in Date: 08/26/2022 Initial Rent at Move-In : $ 1945.00 Current Rent: $ 1945.00 

000255

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__us02web.zoom.us_rec_share_PASYB1FKhaXdaGGfAM4nauj4pp-5FoECte-5FDyisE1Ni81LiAj7EW3eOuV8O-5Fa2U-5FG-2D.0AE0E-5FilJ2DZkSxm&d=DwMFAw&c=6ZboKdJzR8nZOqwBjhPnCw&r=aPiCIQWvhXEvrHeYr-t3eY1fB14HS0RysaOI7Deihrk&m=zcRTdVZ7T2edVNhWrpC1CWsoLfIAkTLU-fSkv2RrzgSoNllziRpBMm4G6mb5lNHu&s=soylr5yO1eEbNcSgX12E0JluInDsHunDCmYCopuUt0I&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__us02web.zoom.us_rec_share_PASYB1FKhaXdaGGfAM4nauj4pp-5FoECte-5FDyisE1Ni81LiAj7EW3eOuV8O-5Fa2U-5FG-2D.0AE0E-5FilJ2DZkSxm&d=DwMFAw&c=6ZboKdJzR8nZOqwBjhPnCw&r=aPiCIQWvhXEvrHeYr-t3eY1fB14HS0RysaOI7Deihrk&m=zcRTdVZ7T2edVNhWrpC1CWsoLfIAkTLU-fSkv2RrzgSoNllziRpBMm4G6mb5lNHu&s=soylr5yO1eEbNcSgX12E0JluInDsHunDCmYCopuUt0I&e=


the unit in August of 2022. Is that correct?” Zoom transcribed the date as “August 20

22.”

4. The Petitioners request the Board to please review transcript Line 113

and listen to timestamp 13 00:11:45.890 --> 00:11:53.470 section of the hearing audio

recording.

Clerical Error 2-The pest issue evidence summary.

1. On page 8 of the HEARING DECISION under EVIDENCE and Pest

Control states,

2. On page 15 of the HEARING DECISION under FINDINGS OF FACT

AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW under Pest Control states,

3. The Petitioner did not mention seeing cockroaches outside the unit at

any point in the evidence or during the hearing. The Petitioner mentioned during the

CASE NUMBER: T23-0075 Petitioners’ Appeal Page 2

Pest Control 

Small (baby) cockroaches were seen outside the subject unit but within the 
apartment complex on February 9, 2023 , and was reported to the Owner on the 
same day. The pest issue was resolved on July 21 , 2023. Pest control suggested a 
door seal as a preventive measure to keep pests out of the property unit. 

The request for compensation is $631.00, calculated at 6% of the monthly rental 
amount for the 5.32 months and $9.90 for the cost of the door seal. 

Pest Control 

The evidence that Small (baby) cockroaches were seen outside the subject unit but 
within the apartment complex on February 9, 2023, and reported to the Owner on 
the same day was uncontradicted. There was no testimony that the infestation 
breached the subject unit. Accordingly, the Tenant's claim is denied. 

000256



hearing that there were baby roaches, but did not see large, mother roaches. Vector

Control recommended the door seal as a preventative measure.

4. The decision to not grant the pest issue may have been made based on

a misunderstanding of what was said during the hearing or what Zoom transcribed.

5. The Petitioners request that the Board please review transcript lines

1321 through 1355 and listen to time stamps 02:26:29.340 through 02:30:09.570 section

of the hearing audio recording.

6. On the 87th page of the Tenant Petition Attachment, contains the

maintenance request for the Pest Issue on 02/09/2023 in the Owner’s online portal.

8. The Petitioners had to endure the pest issue for 5.32 months (162

days); that’s more than 5 times the 30 day reasonable time period to remedy this issue.

9. The upstairs tenant, in unit 305, had roaches as well.

CASE NUMBER: T23-0075 Petitioners’ Appeal Page 3

5/26/23, 3:50 AM 

This reguest was received on 03/16/2023. 
View details 
Reguest Cancellation 

RECEIVED 

BabY. Pest Issue 
Reguested bY. You on 02/09/2023 7:16AM 

Maintenance Reguest #1156-1 

This reguest was received on 02/09/2023. 

View details 
Reguest Cancellation 

Godwin Properties - Maintenance 

000257



10. Photographic evidence of pests within the unit was provided on pages

3-5 of the Tenant Petition Attachment and pages 11 and 12 of the Updated Petition

Attachment.

CASE NUMBER: T23-0075 Petitioners’ Appeal Page 4

NOTES: There are what appears to be baby roaches or wood bugs inside the apartment unit. 
Mountings were discovered inside the kitchen cabinets. There are also cracks/access points 
inside the wood of the kitchen cabinetry. Also, there are bugs that fall from the bathroom fan into 

4 

the face bowl/sink. Pest Control has not called nor visited the unit but there was a card hanger 
on the washroom door on Monday, 04/03/2023. (photo attached). They visited the property and 
treated the outside but did not call the Tenant nor come inside the Tenant's unit. Alameda 
County Vector Control Biologist visited the unit on 05/16/2023 and verified that the insects in the 
photos are cockroaches. Insect casings were located in the dishware kitchen cabinet. 
MAINTENANCE TICKET#: 1156-1; Photos attached. Attached photos to online maintenance 
portal. Communication with Property Manager, Christina Nelson and Property owner, Melanie 
Godwin-Rosales via email/text messages. 

000258



CASE NUMBER: T23-0075 Petitioners’ Appeal Page 5

choo&epatriotegmail.com 

4713 N. First Street#154 • Pklaaanton, CA BA566 
793 s. Tracy Btvd., #135 • Tracy, CA 9SJTG 

YourP11lr1ot1:;:::
1;:~+,~eu•~&::CCC,od=oy .. =", - 

,Z (,,(} lo, "zC 
Wt used the following matffl•~•I 

0; -½'.J 
ln thalollowlnga,...■ : 

_fL{.;'1:ft...-q 4aqr tf , .... 5 I 11SGbK1 

c r:~·1r177 f"r.1, ,;'::~ - .L--•-.1 

LENGTH OF TIME: 5.32 months/162 days 
STATUS: Complete. 

11 

UPDATE/S): Patriot Pest Management sprayed and laid traps inside of the unit on 07/21/2023. 
MAINTENANCE TICKET/S) #: 1156-1 ; Photos attached. Attached photos to online maintenance 
portal. Communication with Property Manager, Christina Nelson and Property owner, Melanie 
Godwin-Rosales via email/text messages. 
ESTIMATE/$): $631. 
Door insulation-$9.90. 
$1945 rent times 6% interest rate equals $116.70. 
$116.70 interest times 5.32 months equals $620.84. 
$620.84 plus $9.90 door insulation equals $630.74. 

5 

000259



11. The Petitioner also emailed videos of the pest to the Owner on

07/08/2022 and 07/10/2023 in addition to the photos uploaded to the Owner’s

maintenance portal 02/09/2023. Video evidence is not an accepted format file type for

submitting evidence to the online OakApp portal for the Rent Adjustment Program.

12. The $9.90 cost of the door seal was already included in the $631.

13. After reviewing all the pest issue evidence and the audio hearing

recording section, the Petitioners requests that the Board to grant the pest issue, in full

or part, portion amount ($631) on page 1 of the Updated Petition Attachment supporting

document from the OakApp portal.

2) Appealing the decision for the grounds below:

CASE NUMBER: T23-0075 Petitioners’ Appeal Page 6

Order# 
Order total 

Shipment details 

FREE Prime Delivery 

Delivered 
Delivery Estimate 

11 5- l ~L/ 5bl - /lb~L"I b 

$9.90 (1 item) 

Thursday, May 18, 2023 by 10pm 

HomeProtect Door $8.98 
Draft Stopper 36 Inch -
Adjustable Under Door 
Draft ... 
Qty: 1 

Sold By: wmwmwm 

Payment information 

Payment Method 
Visa ending in 9118 

Billing Address 
260 LEE ST APT 205 
OAKLAND, CA 94610-4211 

12 

000260



h) Other.

Others: 4.

Other 1-A request to reassess the Net Rent Amount from $30.65 to $0.

1. On page 18 of the HEARING DECISION under the ORDER section 4

states,

2. There is enough restitution to cover the $30.65.

Other 2-A request that the order includes a reassessment of the amortization

period, upon all completed repairs and proper notice.

1. If all the repairs become complete and upon proper notice in

accordance with Section 827 of the California Civil Code, the amortization period could

substantially decrease.

2. The overpayment could be readjusted to fit a 12-month period or closer

to a 12-month period.

Other 3-The Owner has not complied with the City of Oakland Mandatory Soft

Story Retrofit Program-Municipal Ordinance No. 13516.

1. “The City of Oakland’s Soft Story Retrofit Program works to save lives

by strengthening buildings with large ground-floor openings that are particularly prone to

collapse during an earthquake. The ordinance requires residential property owners to

strengthen vulnerable buildings with seismic retrofits.” The City of Oakland is lauded for

its efforts to enhance the structural integrity of buildings, ultimately safeguarding lives in

the event of an earthquake.

CASE NUMBER: T23-0075 Petitioners’ Appeal Page 7

11 Net Rent 1 $ 3o.6s 11 

000261

https://library.municode.com/ca/oakland/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT15BUCO_CH15.27MASEEVRECEMUITREBU


2. Municipal Ordinance No. 13516 came into effect on January 22,

2019—1,793 days or 4.91 years ago.

3. 260 Lee Street is currently classified in Compliance Tier 3 of the City of

Oakland Mandatory Soft Story Retrofit Program, despite having 15 dwelling units.

Compliance Tier 2 is designated for buildings with 5-19 dwelling units. 260 Lee Street is

categorized in Compliance Tier 3 instead of Tier 2 because it was reported by the City

of Oakland that the property meets the criteria of the Ordinance, but it was not listed in

Oakland's mandatory screening program of 2009-2010. The property received Tier 3

status since the property joined the list of buildings in the past few years.

4. Compliance Tier 3’s deadline, 02/21/2023, to perform mandatory

evaluation and submit initial affidavit of compliance (15.27.050 C. and E.) passed; 303

days/9.96 months ago. This also means that the remaining compliance steps have not

been fulfilled-

A. Obtain a retrofit permit or submit Target Story evaluation

report. (15.27.050 D.1. or D.2.)

B. Perform retrofit work and obtain approval on final inspection;

submit final affidavit of compliance. (15.27.050 D.3. and E.)

5. The List of Buildings for City of Oakland Mandatory Soft Story Retrofit

Program was last updated August 2023. 260 Lee Street has a blank status; that is

neither compiled nor exempt.

https://cao-94612.s3.us-west-2.amazonaws.com/documents/List-of-Subject-Properties-

as-of-Aug-2023.pdf The empty status signifies that action is required. The current

property owner must address the program's requirements.

CASE NUMBER: T23-0075 Petitioners’ Appeal Page 8
000262

https://library.municode.com/ca/oakland/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT15BUCO_CH15.27MASEEVRECEMUITREBU
https://cao-94612.s3.us-west-2.amazonaws.com/documents/List-of-Subject-Properties-as-of-Aug-2023.pdf
https://cao-94612.s3.us-west-2.amazonaws.com/documents/List-of-Subject-Properties-as-of-Aug-2023.pdf
https://cao-94612.s3.us-west-2.amazonaws.com/documents/List-of-Subject-Properties-as-of-Aug-2023.pdf
https://cao-94612.s3.us-west-2.amazonaws.com/documents/List-of-Subject-Properties-as-of-Aug-2023.pdf


6. On page 83 of 133 or page 1/7 of the Petition Attachments under the

Maintenance and Maintenance Requests section, the Petitioners submitted an online

maintenance request on 05/08/2023 to the Owner’s online portal regarding seismically

retrofitting the building.

CASE NUMBER: T23-0075 Petitioners’ Appeal Page 9

5467 LAWTON AVE 3 Exempt 

245 LEE ST 2 Exempt 
260 LEE ST 3 
264 LEE ST 2 Exempt 

265 LEE ST 2 Exempt 
275 LEE ST 1-NR 
276 LEE ST 2 

17 of 26 

000263



7. After contacting the City of Oakland Mandatory Soft Story Retrofit

Program and SPUR (San Francisco Bay Area Planning and Urban Research

Association), the Petitioners emailed the Owner on 05/08/2023 and 12/04/2023.

CASE NUMBER: T23-0075 Petitioners’ Appeal Page 10

5/26/23, 3:50 AM 

Skig to main content 
Hello 

James Willis 

• Home 
• PaY.ments 
• Maintenance 
• Contact Us 
• Shared Documents 
• Insurance 
• Proge!lY. Details 
• Account Profile 
• Help 
• Log Out 

Godwin Properties - Maintenance 

Property Address 260 Lee Street, #205, Oakland, CA 94610 Log Out 

menu 

Maintenance 

Maintenance Requests 

Reguest Maintenance 

RECEIVED 

Hello Godwin Progerties, 
The soft-stozy. building we reside in, 260 Lee Street, Oakland, CA 94610, has not been seismicallY. retrofitted. 
While connecting with Sarah from SPUR (the San Francisco BaY. Area Planning and Urban Research) 
Association, I was informed that the ci!Y. of Oakland has funding available for landlords to conduct these retrofits. 
Please see link below and glease look into this asag because there are deadlines and The BaY. Area is gast due for 
a major earthquake. There are 2 additional programs for funding at the bottom of the link's p...i!gg_,_ 
httgs://www.oaklandca.gov/news/2 023/grants-ug-to-13k-for-earthg uake-retrofits-of-soft-stozy.-homes 

&quested bY. You on 05/08/2023 6:03PM 

Maintenance Reguest #1230-1 

This reouest was received on 05/08/2023. 

000264



8. On 12/15/2023 at 12:13pm, the Owner emailed the Petitioner in

reference to the seismic retrofitting saying, “...we saved your email but have not looked

into this as of yet.”

9. “Given Oakland's location along the Hayward Fault, seismic

strengthening of buildings—known as seismic retrofitting—can not only save lives, but

also housing stock, better enabling Oakland to withstand the short- and long-term

effects of a major disaster.”

Other 4-The length of the amortization period poses a risk to the Petitioners’ well-

being and safety.

1. On page 17 of the HEARING DECISION the amortization period is 65

months (5.42 years).

2. The length of the amortization period of the overpayments would

require the Petitioners to remain in a collapsed prone building, risking their safety and

well-being.

3. The length of the amortization period presumes that the Owner will

comply with the Municipal Ordinance No. 13516 and thereby insuring the Petitioners’

CASE NUMBER: T23-0075 Petitioners’ Appeal Page 11

godwinprop@aol.com 
to Larry. me ..-

Hi James, we saved your email but have not looked into this as of yet. 

Melanie Godwin-Rosales 

Godwin Properties 

925/294-5860 

www.godwinJ;!roJ;!erties.net 

AMORTIZED OVER 
OR OVER 65 MONTHS 

Fri. Dec 15, 12:13 PM (4 days ago) 

000265

https://library.municode.com/ca/oakland/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT15BUCO_CH15.27MASEEVRECEMUITREBU


safety and welfare. As the Owner has not complied, the building is still prone to

collapsing during an earthquake.

4. The length of the amortization period also presumes that the Petitioners

will remain residents at the property for 65 months or 5.42 years.

CASE NUMBER: T23-0075 Petitioners’ Appeal Page 12
000266



Form – Petition PoS – EN – 8.14.23                                                                                                                                                                Page 1 of 3  

CITY OF OAKLAND 
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 Oakland, 
CA 94612-0243 
(510) 238-3721 
CA Relay Service 711 
www.oaklandca.gov/RAP 

For Rent Adjustment Program date stamp. 

PROOF OF SERVICE 
 
NOTE: YOU ARE REQUIRED TO SERVE A COPY OF YOUR PETITION OR RESPONSE (PLUS ANY ADDITIONAL 
DOCUMENTS) ON THE OPPOSING PARTIES. 

 
 Use this PROOF OF SERVICE form to indicate the date and manner in which service took place, as well as 

the person(s) served. 
 Provide a complete but unsigned copy of this PROOF OF SERVICE form to the opposing parties together 

with the document(s) being served. 
 File the completed and signed PROOF OF SERVICE form with the Rent Adjustment Program together with the 

document you are filing and copies of any attachments you served on the opposing party/parties. 
 Please sequentially number all additional documents provided to the RAP. 

 
PETITIONS FILED WITHOUT A PROOF OF SERVICE WILL BE CONSIDERED INCOMPLETE AND MAY BE 
DISMISSED. 

 
 

 a. First-Class Mail. I enclosed the document(s) in a sealed envelope or package 
addressed to the person(s) listed below and at the address(es) below and 
deposited the sealed envelope with the United States Postal Service, with the 
postage fully prepaid. 

 b. Personal Service. (1) By Hand Delivery: I personally delivered the document(s) 
to the person(s) at the address(es) listed below; or (2) I left the document(s) at the 
address(es) with some person not younger than 18 years of age. 

 c. Electronic Service (DO NOT USE THIS SERVICE METHOD TO SERVE 
PETITIONS OR RESPONSES TO PETITIONS.) I electronically sent the 
document(s) to the person(s) at the address(es) listed below who have previously 
given written consent to receiving notices and documents in this matter from the 
RAP and from the OTHER PARTY/IES electronically at the email address(es) they 
provided. 

 
PERSON(S) SERVED: 
 

 

Name  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

Email Address  

 

I served a copy of:    _____________ (insert name of document served) and 
 And Additional Documents 

(write number of attached pages)    __ attached pages (not counting the Petition or Response served 
or the Proof of Service) to each opposing party, whose name(s) and address(es) are listed below, by 
one of the following means (check one): 
 
 

CITY OF OAKLAND 

000267

http://www.oaklandca.gov/RAP
James Ray Willis

James Ray Willis

James Ray Willis
T23-0075 Petitioners’ Appeal

James Ray Willis
Melanie Godwin-Rosales, Godwin Properties

James Ray Willis
PO Box 2128

James Ray Willis
Livermore, CA 94551

James Ray Willis
godwinprop@aol.com

James Ray Willis
X

James Ray Willis
12

James Ray Willis
X



Form – Petition PoS – EN – 8.14.23   Page 2 of 3  

Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Email Address 

Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Email Address 

Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Email Address 

Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Email Address 

Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Email Address 

Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Email Address 

Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Email Address 

000268

James Ray Willis

James Ray Willis
Rent Adjustment Program

James Ray Willis
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313

James Ray Willis
Oakland, CA 94612-0243 

James Ray Willis
rap@oaklandca.gov

James Ray Willis



Form – Petition PoS – EN – 8.14.23   Page 3 of 3  

To serve more than 8 people, copy this page as many times as necessary and insert in your proof of service document. If you are 
only serving one person, you can use just the first and last page 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and 
correct, and the documents were served on      /     /_____ (insert date served). 

PRINT YOUR NAME 

       SIGNATURE        DATE 

000269

James Ray Willis
James Willis, Larry Butac

James Ray Willis
12/20/2023

James Ray Willis

James Ray Willis

James Ray Willis

James Ray Willis
12 20 2023



Form – Petition PoS – EN – 8.14.23                                                                                                                                                                Page 1 of 3  

CITY OF OAKLAND 
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 Oakland, 
CA 94612-0243 
(510) 238-3721 
CA Relay Service 711 
www.oaklandca.gov/RAP 

For Rent Adjustment Program date stamp. 

PROOF OF SERVICE 
 
NOTE: YOU ARE REQUIRED TO SERVE A COPY OF YOUR PETITION OR RESPONSE (PLUS ANY ADDITIONAL 
DOCUMENTS) ON THE OPPOSING PARTIES. 

 
 Use this PROOF OF SERVICE form to indicate the date and manner in which service took place, as well as 

the person(s) served. 
 Provide a complete but unsigned copy of this PROOF OF SERVICE form to the opposing parties together 

with the document(s) being served. 
 File the completed and signed PROOF OF SERVICE form with the Rent Adjustment Program together with the 

document you are filing and copies of any attachments you served on the opposing party/parties. 
 Please sequentially number all additional documents provided to the RAP. 

 
PETITIONS FILED WITHOUT A PROOF OF SERVICE WILL BE CONSIDERED INCOMPLETE AND MAY BE 
DISMISSED. 

 
 

 a. First-Class Mail. I enclosed the document(s) in a sealed envelope or package 
addressed to the person(s) listed below and at the address(es) below and 
deposited the sealed envelope with the United States Postal Service, with the 
postage fully prepaid. 

 b. Personal Service. (1) By Hand Delivery: I personally delivered the document(s) 
to the person(s) at the address(es) listed below; or (2) I left the document(s) at the 
address(es) with some person not younger than 18 years of age. 

 c. Electronic Service (DO NOT USE THIS SERVICE METHOD TO SERVE 
PETITIONS OR RESPONSES TO PETITIONS.) I electronically sent the 
document(s) to the person(s) at the address(es) listed below who have previously 
given written consent to receiving notices and documents in this matter from the 
RAP and from the OTHER PARTY/IES electronically at the email address(es) they 
provided. 

 
PERSON(S) SERVED: 
 

 

Name  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

Email Address  

 

I served a copy of:    _____________ (insert name of document served) and 
 And Additional Documents 

(write number of attached pages)    __ attached pages (not counting the Petition or Response served 
or the Proof of Service) to each opposing party, whose name(s) and address(es) are listed below, by 
one of the following means (check one): 
 
 

CITY OF OAKLAND 

000270

http://www.oaklandca.gov/RAP
James Ray Willis

James Ray Willis
T23-0075 Petitioners’ Appeal

James Ray Willis
Melanie Godwin-Rosales, Godwin Properties

James Ray Willis
PO Box 2128

James Ray Willis
Livermore, CA 94551

James Ray Willis
godwinprop@aol.com

James Ray Willis
X

James Ray Willis
12

James Ray Willis
X



Form – Petition PoS – EN – 8.14.23                                                                                                                                                                Page 2 of 3  

Name  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

Email Address  

 

Name  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

Email Address  

 

Name  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

Email Address  

 

Name  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

Email Address  

 

Name  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

Email Address  

 

Name  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

Email Address  

 

Name  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

Email Address  

 
 
 

000271

James Ray Willis

James Ray Willis
Rent Adjustment Program, Hearings Unit 

James Ray Willis
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313

James Ray Willis
Oakland, CA 94612-0243 

James Ray Willis
hearingsunit@oaklandca.gov

James Ray Willis



Form – Petition PoS – EN – 8.14.23              Page 3 of 3  

To serve more than 8 people, copy this page as many times as necessary and insert in your proof of service document. If you are 
only serving one person, you can use just the first and last page 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and 
correct, and the documents were served on      /     /_____ (insert date served). 

PRINT YOUR NAME 

       SIGNATURE        DATE 

000272

James Ray Willis
James Willis, Larry Butac

James Ray Willis
12/20/2023

James Ray Willis

James Ray Willis

James Ray Willis

James Ray Willis
12 20 2023



T23-0075 Petitioners’ Response to Owner’s Appeal

The Petitioners received the Owner’s Appeal to the Hearing Officer’s Decision via USPS mail on

Monday, December 18, 2023. A public records request was submitted to provide the Board with

a copy of the hearing recording for the sections that are highlighted in gray below. The audio will

be released under request 23-12361.

Hearing Recording: (3 hours and 40 minutes)

https://us02web.zoom.us/rec/share/PASYB1FKhaXdaGGfAM4nauj4pp_oECte_DyisE1Ni81LiAj7

EW3eOuV8O_a2U_G-.0AE0E_ilJ2DZkSxm

Passcode: %9030c.U

Introduction-

The Petitioners’ refute all of the Owner’s grounds for appeal below-

1. 2) a) The decision is inconsistent with the OMC Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations,

or prior decisions of the Board.

2. d) The decision violates federal, state, or local law.

3. e) The decision is not supported by substantial evidence.

4. f) They were denied a sufficient opportunity to present their claim or respond to the

Petitioners’ claim.

Issue 1 Presented by the Owner-

The decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations, or prior decisions

of the Board.

Issue 1 Response from the Petitioners-

T23-0075 Petitioners’ Response to Owner’s Appeal
1

000273

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__us02web.zoom.us_rec_share_PASYB1FKhaXdaGGfAM4nauj4pp-5FoECte-5FDyisE1Ni81LiAj7EW3eOuV8O-5Fa2U-5FG-2D.0AE0E-5FilJ2DZkSxm&d=DwMFAw&c=6ZboKdJzR8nZOqwBjhPnCw&r=aPiCIQWvhXEvrHeYr-t3eY1fB14HS0RysaOI7Deihrk&m=zcRTdVZ7T2edVNhWrpC1CWsoLfIAkTLU-fSkv2RrzgSoNllziRpBMm4G6mb5lNHu&s=soylr5yO1eEbNcSgX12E0JluInDsHunDCmYCopuUt0I&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__us02web.zoom.us_rec_share_PASYB1FKhaXdaGGfAM4nauj4pp-5FoECte-5FDyisE1Ni81LiAj7EW3eOuV8O-5Fa2U-5FG-2D.0AE0E-5FilJ2DZkSxm&d=DwMFAw&c=6ZboKdJzR8nZOqwBjhPnCw&r=aPiCIQWvhXEvrHeYr-t3eY1fB14HS0RysaOI7Deihrk&m=zcRTdVZ7T2edVNhWrpC1CWsoLfIAkTLU-fSkv2RrzgSoNllziRpBMm4G6mb5lNHu&s=soylr5yO1eEbNcSgX12E0JluInDsHunDCmYCopuUt0I&e=


The decision is consistent with the OMC Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations, or prior

decisions of the Board. The Owner did not submit all the required documentation. The Owner

was provided an opportunity to cross-examine the Petitioner’s Testimony and evidence

presented.

1. The Owner had the following opportunities-

A. To contact a Housing Counselor to review their Response before submitting.

On page 1 of the PROPERTY OWNER RESPONSE TO TENANT PETITION form states,

CONTACT A HOUSING COUNSELOR TO REVIEW YOUR RESPONSE BEFORE

SUBMITTING.

One page 1 of the IMPORTANT INFORMATION REGARDING FILING YOUR RESPONSE

information sheet states, CONTACT A HOUSING COUNSELOR TO REVIEW YOUR

RESPONSE BEFORE SUBMITTING

To make an appointment, email RAP@oaklandca.gov or call (510) 238-3721. Although the

Housing Resource Center is temporarily closed for drop-in services, assistance is available by

email or telephone.

B. Seek representation, Attorney or Non-attorney. On page 1 of the PROPERTY OWNER

RESPONSE TO TENANT PETITION form states, Property Owner Representative (Check

one):❑ No Representative❑ Attorney❑ Non-attorney.

C. Submit their Response and Proof of Service to the online OAKAPPS portal or via email.

One page 1 of the IMPORTANT INFORMATION REGARDING FILING YOUR RESPONSE

information sheet states, Although RAP normally does not accept filings by email or fax, RAP is

temporarily accepting Responses via email during the COVID-19 local state of emergency. You

T23-0075 Petitioners’ Response to Owner’s Appeal
2

000274



may also fill out and submit your Response online through the RAP website or deliver the

Response to the RAP office by mail.

D. Submit a Proof of Service to the Rent Adjustment Program with the Rent Adjustment

Program listed as a person served on the Proof of Service.

E. To submit any documents or evidence into record during the Hearing.

2. The Owner did not follow instructions 3) and 4) of the Proof of Service-

“3) Provide a completed and unsigned copy of this PROOF OF SERVICE form to the person(s)

being served together with the documents being served.

4) File a completed and signed copy of this PROOF OF SERVICE form with RAP together with

your signed Response. Your Response will not be considered complete until this form has been

filed indicating that service has occurred.”

3. Under the Case Details of the OAKAPPS portal, there is no submission of the Owner’s

Response and Proof of Service, provided from the Owner, prior to the Hearing and Hearing

Officer’s Decision.

4. The Owner admitted to not listing the Rent Adjustment Program in the Proof of Service during

their Hearing testimony. Please review the Hearing Audio Transcript Lines 73 through 78 and

listen to Timestamps 00:08:06.8900 through 00:08:26.219.

Line 73, Timestamp 00:08:06.890 --> 00:08:08.929

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: on the proof of service, who is listed

Line 74, Timestamp 00:08:09.670 --> 00:08:11.269

Melanie Godwin-Rosales: both of the tenants

T23-0075 Petitioners’ Response to Owner’s Appeal
3

000275



Line 75, Timestamp 00:08:11.520 --> 00:08:13.980

Melanie Godwin-Rosales: residing 2 and Unit 2, 0 5.

Line 76, Timestamp 00:08:14.720 --> 00:08:20.010

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: Is it your testimony that the rent adjustment

program is not listed on the proof of service?

Line 77, Timestamp 00:08:21.610 --> 00:08:26.219

Melanie Godwin-Rosales: I did not list the right adjustment program on there. I just listed the

tenants

5. The Owner was provided an opportunity by the Hearing Officer to submit any documents or

evidence into record during the Hearing. Please review the Hearing Audio Transcript Line 1833

and listen to Timestamp 03:22:45.810 --> 03:22:57.290.

Line 1833, Timestamp 03:22:45.810 --> 03:22:57.290

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: do either. Does either party have documentation

that they want admitted that goes to a point not previously covered.

6. The Owner was provided an opportunity by the Hearing Officer to cross-examine the

Petitioner’s Testimony and evidence presented. Please review the Hearing Audio Transcript

Lines 1600 through 1603 and listen to Timestamps 02:56:01.500 through 02:56:61.820.

Line 1600, Timestamp 02:56:01.500 --> 02:56:07.740

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: We are now at the portion where the and then has

finished his testimony.

Line 1601, Timestamp 02:56:09.040 --> 02:56:21.560

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: either because he had something he wanted to say,

or in response to my question. As a result of that, you now get to cross, examine him, which

means you get to ask him questions about anything that he said thus far.

T23-0075 Petitioners’ Response to Owner’s Appeal
4

-

000276



Line 1602, Timestamp 02:56:22.680 --> 02:56:26.479

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: Generally those questions start with, who? What?

When, where, how? And why?

Line 1603, Timestamp 02:56:30.120 --> 02:56:31.820

Melanie Godwin-Rosales: Okay.

Please review the Hearing Audio Transcript Lines 1831 through 1832 and listen to Timestamps

03:22:38.430 though 03:22:41.190.

Line 1831, Timestamp 03:22:38.430 --> 03:22:39.949

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: Have more questions.

Line 1832, Timestamp 03:22:40.260 --> 03:22:41.190

Melanie Godwin-Rosales: No.

Issue 2 Presented by the Owner-

The decision violates federal, state, or local law.

Issue 2 Response from the Petitioners-

The decision does not violate federal, state, or local law concerning due process. The Owner

was not denied due process. The Owner did not follow filing instructions and admitted to not

doing so during their testimony. The Owner was given an opportunity to submit the documents

during the testimony. The Rent Adjustment Notice along with the three languages was not

provided to the Tenant at the start of the lease, in the Owner’s Response to the Tenant’s Petition

mailed to the Tenant, nor included in the Owner’s Appeal. The Owner admitted in their testimony

that they did not have a copy of the Rent Adjustment Program notice on them during the time of

the Hearing as well. The Owner did not object to the Rent Adjustment Notice the Petitioner

T23-0075 Petitioners’ Response to Owner’s Appeal
5

000277



submitted during the Hearing that was provided with the lease and provided with the Owner’s

Response to the Tenant’s Petition.

1. The Owner did not follow filing instructions and admitted to not doing so during their

testimony. Please refer to “Issue 1 Response from the Petitioners” section “4.” on page 3 and 4

of this document.

2. The Owner was provided an opportunity by the Hearing Officer to submit any documents or

evidence into record during the Hearing. Please refer to “Issue 1 Response from the Petitioners”

section “5.” on page 4 of this document.

3. The Rent Adjustment Notice along with the three languages was not provided to the Tenant at

the start of the lease, in the Owner’s Response to the Tenant’s Petition mailed to the Tenant nor

included in the Owner’s Appeal. Although the Owner did not follow the filing instructions for

responding to the Tenant Petition, the Petitioners uploaded what they received in the mail from

the Owner to the OAKAPP online portal as “Additional Documentation” on 07-01-2023.

4. The Rent Adjustment Notice, without the three languages, was provided in section 10 of the

electronic lease on pages 20 and 21; and it was provided in the Owner’s Response to the

Tenant Petition that the Petitioners received in the mail. The Owner did not object to section 10

pages 20 and 21 of the lease when the Petitioner submitted it into evidence during the Hearing.

During the Owner’s testimony, they admitted to not providing a copy of the notice that is

required. They also said it was not in the packet they had during the Hearing. Please review

Hearing Audio Transcript lines 68 through 70 and listen to Timestamps 00:07:44.180 through

00:08:00.839.

Line 68 Timestamp 00:07:44.180 --> 00:07:51.810

T23-0075 Petitioners’ Response to Owner’s Appeal
6

000278



Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: Did you provide a copy of the wrap? Notice that you

provided to the tenant as required by your response.

Line 69, Timestamp 00:07:54.340 --> 00:07:58.749

Melanie Godwin-Rosales: I don't know. I thought I did, but it's not in. It's not right here.

Line 70, Timestamp 00:07:58.820 --> 00:08:00.839

Melanie Godwin-Rosales: Next in this packet I have.

6. The Owner did not object to the Rent Adjustment Notice the Petitioner submitted into

evidence during the Hearing that was provided with the lease and provided with the Owner’s

Response to the Tenant’s Petition. The Owner had two opportunities to object to the notice

submitted during the Hearing. Please see Audio Recording Transcript Lines 1944 through 1965

and listen to Timestamps 03:34:56.970 through 03:37:34.080.

Line 1944, Timestamp 03:34:56.970 --> 03:35:01.270

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: you don't dispute that. That's an accurate

Line 1945, Timestamp 03:35:01.410 --> 03:35:02.420

Melanie Godwin-Rosales: sorry

Line 1946, Timestamp 03:35:03.660 --> 03:35:11.769

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: you don't just view that the document placed in the

chat is an accurate representation of the wrap. Notice that was provided to the tenant in its

entirety.

Line 1947, Timestamp 03:35:11.810 --> 03:35:13.360

Melanie Godwin-Rosales: No, that's our notice.

Line 1948, Timestamp 03:35:13.820 --> 03:35:29.230

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: Alright. Let the record reflect that the the document

added into the chat. Appears to be a 2 page document. The first phase does have a title from

the respondents entity Godwin properties with their

T23-0075 Petitioners’ Response to Owner’s Appeal
7

-

000279



Line 1949, Timestamp 03:35:29.270 --> 03:35:41.680

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: with what presumably is their Po box. This section

is titled section 10. Notice to tenants of residential rent adjustment program, and it has text

Line 1950, Timestamp 03:35:41.870 --> 03:35:43.080

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: in the

Line 1951, Timestamp 03:35:43.210 --> 03:35:46.440

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: notice

Line 1952, Timestamp 03:35:53.540 --> 03:35:55.250

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: and

Line 1953, Timestamp 03:35:55.350 --> 03:36:00.759

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: towards the bottom of the document. It in fact

states

Line 1954, Timestamp 03:36:01.230 --> 03:36:27.280

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: and I quote Oakland charges landlords $24 per unit

rent program service fee. The landlord is entitled to get half of the fee parentheses, $12 in

parentheses per unit from you the $12 you pay for the annual fee is not part of the rent. But the

record also reflected the current rent adjustment program fee is $101 per unit

Line 1955, Timestamp 03:36:28.180 --> 03:36:30.929

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: the document

Line 1956, Timestamp 03:36:32.080 --> 03:36:36.130

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: put into the chat is partially blocked

Line 1957, Timestamp 03:36:36.310 --> 03:36:38.449

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: on my end by a

Line 1958, Timestamp 03:36:39.710 --> 03:36:53.079

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: weird image that I don't know what it is on the

second page has signatures of Lacy's listed as Larry, John Blu-tak, B. Utr. As well as James

T23-0075 Petitioners’ Response to Owner’s Appeal
8

-

000280



Line 1959, Timestamp 03:36:53.100 --> 03:36:59.109

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: Ray Willis. I do believe the block picture is

obscuring the date.

Line 1960, Timestamp 03:36:59.510 --> 03:37:02.280

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: I'm gonna mark the document

Line 1961, Timestamp 03:37:02.380 --> 03:37:08.720

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: as exhibit a do either of you have an objection to

that document being admitted into evidence.

Line 1962, Timestamp 03:37:09.630 --> 03:37:10.450

Melanie Godwin-Rosales: No.

Line 1963, Timestamp 03:37:12.660 --> 03:37:23.069

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: James, I'm assuming that you're Mr. Willis. I'm

assuming that you're not objecting to the document, as you put it into the chat. Oh, no, your

honor, I don't object to it. That icon is at the bottom

Line 1964, Timestamp 03:37:23.260 --> 03:37:26.849

James W: corner. That's the screen of the zoom call.

Line 1965, Timestamp 03:37:27.810 --> 03:37:34.080

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: Oh, got it okay. Exhibit a hearing. No objection is

admitted into evidence.

Issue 3 Presented by the Owner-

The decision is not supported by substantial evidence.

Issue 3 Response from the Petitioners-

The decision is supported by substantial evidence. Documented and oral testimonial evidence

was provided. The Petitioners provided nearly 200 pages of evidence. The Hearing provided

T23-0075 Petitioners’ Response to Owner’s Appeal
9

000281



3.67 hours of testimony, if the Settlement Conference had been included that would be nearly 5

hours of audio. The Rent Adjustment Program Regulations states on page 15, All oral testimony

must be given under oath or affirmation to be admissible. Documented evidence from various

third parties including, the City of Oakland Planning & Building Department-Code Inspection,

PG&E, USPS, Patriot Pest Management, California Apartment Association (CAA) and Oakland

Police Department corroborates the Petitioners claims. The documented evidence also showed

the Owner’s constant negligence when it came to responding to the Petitioners and repairs. The

Owner did not provide substantial evidence, refute any of the evidence presented in the

testimony, nor objected to any evidence submitted during the Hearing.

Issue 4 Presented by the Owner-

They were denied a sufficient opportunity to present their claim or respond to the Petitioners’

claim.

Issue 4 Response from the Petitioners-

The Owner was not denied a sufficient opportunity to present their claim or respond to the

Petitioners’ claim. The Owner did not follow filing instructions and admitted to not doing so

during their testimony. The Owner was given an opportunity to submit the documents during the

testimony. The Owner was provided an opportunity, by the Hearing Officer, to submit any

documents or evidence into record during the Hearing. The Owner was provided an opportunity,

by the Hearing Officer, to cross examine the Petitioner’s Testimony and evidence presented.

According to the Rent Adjustment Program Regulations, the Owner had these rights:

a. To call and examine witnesses

b. To introduce exhibits

T23-0075 Petitioners’ Response to Owner’s Appeal
10

000282



c. To cross-examine opposing witnesses on any matter relevant to the issues even if that issue

was not raised on direct examination

d. To impeach any witness regardless of which party called first called him or her to testify

e. To rebut the evidence against him or her

f. To cross-examine an opposing party or their agent even if that party did not testify on his or

her own behalf or on behalf of their principal.

4. Unless otherwise specified in these Regulations or OMC Chapter 8.22, the rules of evidence

applicable to administrative hearings contained in the California Administrative Procedures Act

(California Government Code Section 11513) shall apply.

The Hearing Officer never prohibited the Owner from asking questions. The Hearing Officer

prohibited the Petitioner from responding to one of the Owner’s questions because the question

presumed knowledge on the basis of the witness that they had not established. The Owner told

the Hearing Officer that they didn’t have any more questions on Line 1769, Timestamp

03:16:01.690 --> 03:16:03.339 of the Hearing Audio.

Please see Audio Recording Transcript Lines 1764 though 1782 and listen to Timestamps

03:15:16.250 through 03:17:18.150.

Line 1764, Timestamp 03:15:16.250 --> 03:15:18.489

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: So your question is.

Line 1765, Timestamp 03:15:18.620 --> 03:15:27.649

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: why, after providing written documentation to your

agent at the time of move in and inspection. He didn't then repeat his complaints.

Line 1766, Timestamp 03:15:29.910 --> 03:15:33.410

Melanie Godwin-Rosales: Yeah, not repeat, but send them directly to us.

T23-0075 Petitioners’ Response to Owner’s Appeal
11

000283



Line 1767, Timestamp 03:15:48.240 --> 03:15:51.639

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: The witness doesn't have to answer the question.

What's your next question?

Line 1768, Timestamp 03:15:51.860 --> 03:15:53.330

James W: Thank you, your honor.

Line 1769, Timestamp 03:16:01.690 --> 03:16:03.339

Melanie Godwin-Rosales: I don't have any more questions.

Line 1770,, Timestamp 03:16:05.170 --> 03:16:07.000

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: You can ask other questions.

Line 1771, Timestamp 03:16:08.470 --> 03:16:10.100

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: I'm not prohibiting you from

Line 1772, Timestamp 03:16:10.200 --> 03:16:17.190

asking other questions. Your question in it, the one that I'm pro the one question I'm prohibiting

Line 1773, Timestamp 03:16:17.310 --> 03:16:26.159

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: a response to presumes knowledge on the basis of

the witness that you have not established, which is.

Line 1774, Timestamp 03:16:27.570 --> 03:16:33.969

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: you had an agent there who communicated with the

tenant who executed a lease with the tenant.

Line 1775, Timestamp 03:16:34.660 --> 03:16:39.690

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: and your question is. why didn't he follow up with

you sooner?

Line 1776, Timestamp 03:16:40.890 --> 03:16:46.629

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: But you're in your question. In the facts, to your

question you outlined that

Line 1777, Timestamp 03:16:48.100 --> 03:16:51.960

T23-0075 Petitioners’ Response to Owner’s Appeal
12

-

000284



Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: at the point that he contacted you, he was

escalating

Line 1778, Timestamp 03:16:52.800 --> 03:16:57.040

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: the dispute from your agent to the owner.

Line 1779, Timestamp 03:16:57.620 --> 03:17:02.090

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: Your difficulties with your agent are not on the

tenant's burden.

Line 1780, Timestamp 03:17:03.880 --> 03:17:05.439

Melanie Godwin-Rosales: No, I agree with that.

Line 1781, Timestamp 03:17:05.460 --> 03:17:11.790

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: That's your burden, and what I hear you implying is

your agent

Line 1782, Timestamp 03:17:12.340 --> 03:17:18.150

Rent Adjustment Program - Hearing Officer: fail to live up to her duties? But I can't burn the

tenant. With that

Additional Response from Petitioners-

The Property Manager was not present with the Owner during the Hearing.

Owner does not have a Notice of Tenant Protection Ordinance (O.M.C. 8.22.600) posted in a

common area on the premises.

The Owner has violated the Tenant Protection Ordinance (O.M.C. 8.22.600). The Owner has

engaged in the following conduct-

1. Disruption of services to the rental unit.

2. Fail to perform repairs and maintenance.

T23-0075 Petitioners’ Response to Owner’s Appeal
13

-

-

000285



3. Fail to exercise due diligence when completing repairs (ex. unreasonable delays) or

follow appropriate industry protocol.

4. Abuse the owner’s right of access to the rental unit.

5. Remove personal property, furnishings, or any other items without the prior written

consent of the tenant.

6. Influence a tenant to vacate through fraud, intimidation, or coercion.

7. Interfere with a tenant’s right to privacy.

Owner continually refused to submit a completed Rent Adjustment Proof of Service Form; they

generated their own version for the Owner Appeal instead of using the correct form.

The Owner’s Appeal wasn't double spaced. According to the Rent Adjustment Program

Regulations 8.22.120 A.4. on page 16, says that arguments must be legible and double-spaced

if typed.

Pages 17 through 22 were not included in the Petitioners’ claim nor was it included in the

Owner’s Response to the Tenant Petition that the Petitioners received in the mail. Pages 17

through 22 appears to be something only the Owner has access to; it is not the same online

portal the Petitioners have access to.

The Petitioners have not ever had any contact with Larry W. Godwin (Owner’s Verification

signature) listed on pages 5 and 8 of the Owner’s appeal. Melanie Godwin-Rosales is listed as

the Lessor on the lease only.

The Petitioners have not ever had any contact with Mary Wilson (the person mentioned on the

business tax certificate and business tax renewal) on pages 13 and 14 of the Owner’s Appeal.

Conclusion-

The Petitioners refute all of the Owner’s grounds for appeal. The Hearing Officer’s decision was

not inconsistent with the Rent Board Regulations. The decision does not violate federal, state,

T23-0075 Petitioners’ Response to Owner’s Appeal
14

000286



or local law concerning due process. The decision is supported by substantial evidence. The

Owner was allowed sufficient opportunity to present their claim and respond to the Petitioners’

claim.

The Owner and their Property Management company-

1. Failed to complete all repairs from the move-in inspection submission, within 360 days of the

Hearing.

2. Failed to complete all repairs within 147 days after entering them into their online

maintenance portal.

3. Failed to complete all the repairs following the filing of the RAP Tenant Petition within 87 days

of the Hearing. The Owner had 35 days to respond and 87 to complete the repairs before the

Hearing.

The Owner and their Property Management company, in addition to all the other venders, have

been in and out of the unit within 360 days prior to the Hearing. Even while the Petitioners had

Covid, the Owner and their Property Management company still felt entitled to inconvenience

Petitioners’ lives after their failure to repair all the issues within the 360 days. The Petitioners

were promised the completion of repairs 30 days after move-in (9/25/22); the Petitioners agreed

to that. When the Hearing took place, it had been 360 days, that's 11 times more than what was

agreed to.

Petitioner Willis’ mother died unexpectedly on 05/26/2023, hours after completing the petition’s

submission. The Petitioners have not been allowed the space to properly grieve Willis’ mother’s

passing. The Owner and their Property Management company have not allowed the Petitioners

the space to live without constant repair interruptions. The Petitioners were not allowed the

T23-0075 Petitioners’ Response to Owner’s Appeal
15

000287



space to fully recover from Covid before the Owner’s Property Management company entered

the unit.

The Petitioners have not been allowed to enjoy the premises they were entitled to provided in

the lease. The Owner and their Property Management company have not allowed the

Petitioners to work from home, uninterrupted. The Owner’s Property Management company

entered the unit without proper notice on numerous occasions, damaged property, removed

personal property, invaded the privacy of the Petitioners and took unauthorized photos inside

the unit. The authorities were contacted and police reports were filed.

The Owner never returned any of the Petitioners' calls from August 2022 until December 2023;

that’s 16 months. The Owner began returning phone calls once each party received the Hearing

Officer’s decision. If the Owner’s responses had been more timely, had been more considerate,

had been more well-organized, the appalling degree of dysfunction and resulting distress the

Petitioners suffered these last 16 months would have all been justly avoided. The Owner and

their Property Management company actions are the root cause of why we are at this point.

The Owner and their Property Management company manages hundreds of units in the East

Bay-Oakland, San Leandro, Castro Valley and Livermore. They have 3 multi-unit residential

buildings in Oakland-260 Lee St., 266 Adams St. and 301 Perkins St. There are 18 Rent

Adjustment Program cases, on record, that involve the Owner and/or the Property Management

Company. Four cases happened within the past year; all with the same grounds-fewer housing

services/failure to repair.

There were many parts of the Owner’s Appeal that were not factual and not supported by any

evidence. The Petitioners decided to only refute the Owner’s grounds for their appeal, without

T23-0075 Petitioners’ Response to Owner’s Appeal
16

000288



addressing the accusatory statements made by the Owner towards the Petitioners. All of the

Owner’s accusations towards the Hearing Officer were false. The Owner’s Appeal is

inconsistent with their oral testimony during the Hearing.

T23-0075 Petitioners’ Response to Owner’s Appeal
17

000289



Form – Petition PoS – EN – 8.14.23                                                                                                                                                                Page 1 of 3  

CITY OF OAKLAND 
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 
250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 Oakland, 
CA 94612-0243 
(510) 238-3721 
CA Relay Service 711 
www.oaklandca.gov/RAP 

For Rent Adjustment Program date stamp. 

PROOF OF SERVICE 
 
NOTE: YOU ARE REQUIRED TO SERVE A COPY OF YOUR PETITION OR RESPONSE (PLUS ANY ADDITIONAL 
DOCUMENTS) ON THE OPPOSING PARTIES. 

 
 Use this PROOF OF SERVICE form to indicate the date and manner in which service took place, as well as 

the person(s) served. 
 Provide a complete but unsigned copy of this PROOF OF SERVICE form to the opposing parties together 

with the document(s) being served. 
 File the completed and signed PROOF OF SERVICE form with the Rent Adjustment Program together with the 

document you are filing and copies of any attachments you served on the opposing party/parties. 
 Please sequentially number all additional documents provided to the RAP. 

 
PETITIONS FILED WITHOUT A PROOF OF SERVICE WILL BE CONSIDERED INCOMPLETE AND MAY BE 
DISMISSED. 

 
 

 a. First-Class Mail. I enclosed the document(s) in a sealed envelope or package 
addressed to the person(s) listed below and at the address(es) below and 
deposited the sealed envelope with the United States Postal Service, with the 
postage fully prepaid. 

 b. Personal Service. (1) By Hand Delivery: I personally delivered the document(s) 
to the person(s) at the address(es) listed below; or (2) I left the document(s) at the 
address(es) with some person not younger than 18 years of age. 

 c. Electronic Service (DO NOT USE THIS SERVICE METHOD TO SERVE 
PETITIONS OR RESPONSES TO PETITIONS.) I electronically sent the 
document(s) to the person(s) at the address(es) listed below who have previously 
given written consent to receiving notices and documents in this matter from the 
RAP and from the OTHER PARTY/IES electronically at the email address(es) they 
provided. 

 
PERSON(S) SERVED: 
 

 

Name  

Address  

City, State, Zip  

Email Address  

 

I served a copy of:    _____________ (insert name of document served) and 
 And Additional Documents 

(write number of attached pages)    __ attached pages (not counting the Petition or Response served 
or the Proof of Service) to each opposing party, whose name(s) and address(es) are listed below, by 
one of the following means (check one): 
 
 

T23-0075 Petitioners' Response 
to Owner's Appeal

Melanie Godwin-Rosales, Godwin Properties

PO Box 2128

Livermore, CA 94551

godwinprop@aol.com

X

17
X

CITY OF OAKLAND 

000290



Form – Petition PoS – EN – 8.14.23   Page 3 of 3  

To serve more than 8 people, copy this page as many times as necessary and insert in your proof of service document. If you are 
only serving one person, you can use just the first and last page 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and 
correct, and the documents were served on      /     /_____ (insert date served). 

PRINT YOUR NAME 

       SIGNATURE        DATE 

James Willis, Larry Butac

01/03/2024

01/03/2024

000291



CITY OF OAKLAND 

DALZIEL BUILDING• 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, SUITE 5313 • OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 94612-2034 

Housing and Community Development Department 
Rent Adjustment Program 

TEL (510) 238-3721 
FAX (510) 238~6181 
CA Relay Service 711 

Housing Residential Rent and Relocation Board (HRRRB) 

APPEAL DECISION 

CASE NUMBER: 

APPEAL HEARING: 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 

APPEARANCES: 

123-0075, Willis v. Godwin Properties 

January 2.5, 2024 

260 Lee Street, Oakland, CA 

Appellant/Owner: 
Respondent/Tenant: 

BACKGROUND 

Melanie Godwin-Rosales 
James Will is 

The tenant filed a petitionon May 26, 2023 alleging decreased housin~ services. 

RULING ON THE CASE 

The hearing officer partially granted the petition. The hearing decision granted 
decreased housing service claims for window, mailbox, unfinished kitchen/dining room, 
unfinished living room, unfinished bathroom, bathroom leak relocation, unfinished 
bedroom, heat, mold, and kitchen breaker. The hearing decision granted a total of 
$24,925.39 of decreased housing services amortized over 65 months. 

GROUNDS FOR APPEAL 

The owner appealed the hearing decision on the following grounds: 

1. The owner submitted a response, and hearing officer unfairly denied the owner 
opportunity to submit evidence on the ground that the owner failed to file a 
response. The owner attaches a response that the owner states was signed on 
June 26. The owner also attaches a letter to RAP dated on June 21, 2023. The 
owner also testified at the hearing that the owner submitted a response 

2. The regulations in ·existence at the hearing give each party the right to rebut 
evidence and to submit exhibits. 

000292



3. The hearing decision's decreased housing service awards were duplicative and 
awarded rent reductions for decreased housing services that covered the same 
habitability issues. 

The tenant also appealed the hearing decision, arguing that: 

1. the hearing decision contained inaccurate statements of fact 
2. The amortization period should be modified closer to a 12-month period to net 

out the entire rent instead of the 65-month amortization period in the decision 
3. The owner failed to comply with seismic retrofit program 

BOARD DECISION 

After parties' arguments, questions to the parties, and Board discussion, Vice 
Chair Oshinuga moved to: 

1.) Remand the case back to the Hearing Officer for a limited hearing on the issue of 
whether or not the owner filed the owner response. The parties are to be allowed to 
submit evidence (including testimony, documentary evidence, etc.) 

2.) If it is found that the owner did file a response, the Hearing Officer is to have a 
new hearing on the matter. The owner should be allowed to submit their response, 
plus attachments, that was served to the tenant, and to give testimony based on the 
owner response. The Hearing Officer is to render a new decision on all issues 
contained in the petition. If restitution is awarded, the Hearing Officer is to apply 
O.M.C. section 8.22.090.a.3.b and limit the restitution period to 90-days for any on
going decreased housing services. Neither party should be allowed to submit 
additional documentary evidence. 

3.) If restitution is awarded that requires amortization, the amortization period should 
not exceed 12 months, unless the Hearing Officer finds that extraordinary 
circumstances existed to warrant a longer period, as stated in section 8.22.11 O.F in 
the RAP regulations. 

4.) In the event that the Hearing Officer does not find that the owner filed the 
response and if a new hearing is not held, then: a.) the Hearing Officer should 
tecalculate the petitioner's restitution award using the 90-day period for any on~going. 
decreased housing services; b.) the amortization period should not exceed 12 
months, unless the Hearing Officer finds that extraordinary circumstances existed to 
warrant a longer period, as stated in section 8.22.11 O.F in th.e RAP regulations and; 
c.) the Hearing Officer shall reconsider th~ finding that the cockroaches were not in 
the petitioner's unit, given the photo and testimonial evidence on the record, and 
make a finding as to whether they were in the unit and to determine any subsequent 
awards. 

2 

000293



Member J. deBoer seconded the motion. 

The Board voted as follows: 

Aye: 
Nay: 

D. Ingram, C. Oshinuga, J. deBoer, K. Brodfuehrer 
None 

Abstain: None 

BRIANA LAWRENCE-MCGOWAN DATE 
BOARD DESIGNEE 
CITY OF OAKLAND 
HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND 
RELOCATION BOARD 

3 

March 11, 2024 

000294



PROOF OF SERVICE 
Case Number T23-0075 

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the 
Residential Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, 
California. My business address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, 
California 94612. 

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of 
Oakland mail collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa 
Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California, addressed to: 

Documents Included 
Appeal Decision 

Manager 
Christina Nelson, Godwin Properties 
266 Adams Street Unit 205 
Oakland, CA 94610 

Owner 
Melanie Godwin-Rosales, Godwin Properties 
PO Box 2128 
Livermore, CA 94551 

Tenant 
James Willis 
260 Lee Street, Unit 205 
Oakland, CA 94610 

Tenant 
Larry Butac 
260 Lee Street, Unit 205 
Oakland, CA 94610 

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland's practice of collection and processing 
correspondence for mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection 
receptacle described above would be deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal 
Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of 
business. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true 
and correct. Executed on March 12, 2024 in Oakland, CA. 

000295



l!WtAA /4uewtc,,,-~:Mf& 
Briana Lawrence-McGowan {Mar 12, 2024 \.a:,; OT) 

Briana McGowan 

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program 

000296



Housing and Community Development Department    TEL (510) 238-3721 

Rent Adjustment Program    FAX (510) 238-6181 

250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313    CA Relay 711 

Oakland, CA 94612-2034 

NOTICE OF REMOTE SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE AND REMAND HEARING 

File Name:   Willis v. Godwin Properties 
Property Address:  260 Lee Street 205, Oakland, CA 
Case Number:  T23-0075 

The Settlement Conference and Hearing will be held remotely, on Zoom, a free 

application for audio/video conferences.   

The Hearing Officer will conduct a Settlement Conference to attempt to resolve this matter unless 

the owner is seeking an exemption. If the Settlement Conference is not successful, the Remand 

Hearing will begin immediately after the Settlement Conference. The Settlement Conference or 

Remand Hearing (if there is no settlement conference) will begin on: 

Date:  June 4, 2024 

Time: 10:00 AM 

Place: REMOTELY via Zoom 

You will receive the Zoom invite prior to the hearing date. Please make sure the Case 

Analyst assigned to your case has your updated email address to assure timely 

communication as the Rent Adjustment Program office remains closed and staff is 

working remotely. If you do not have an email address, please contact the Case Analyst by 

phone to discuss best ways to contact you. 

Submitting Evidence 

If you wish to submit other documents in addition to those submitted with the Petition or 

Response form, you may do so by emailing the documents to the assigned Case Analyst and 

serving a copy of the documents on the other party. Documents must be received not less than 

seven (7) days prior to the scheduled Settlement Conference and Hearing date and must be 

submitted together with a proof of service indicating that the documents were served on the 

other party. There is a proof of service form on the RAP website that you can use for any 

documents you serve. See Blank Proof of Service Form. Documents submitted later (or without 

a proof of service) may be excluded from consideration.  

We request that all documents you submit be numbered sequentially, but submissions of more 

than 15 pages must be numbered. Please black out all sensitive information, such as bank or 

CITY OF OAKLAND 

000297



credit card account numbers and Social Security numbers. The Hearing Officer can also use the 

official records of the City of Oakland and Alameda County Tax Assessor as evidence if 

provided by the parties for consideration. If you do not have access to email, the documents may 

be submitted to the Case Analyst by mail. 

Request to Change Date 

A request for a change in the date or time of the Settlement Conference and Hearing 

(“continuance”) must be made on a form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program, which can 

be found at the Rent Adjustment Program website: Request for Continuance. A continuance will 

be granted only for good cause and the Hearing Officer will issue an Order granting or denying 

the continuance. 

Hearing Record 

The Rent Adjustment Program makes an audio recording of the Hearing. Either party may bring 

a court reporter to record the hearing at their own expense. The Settlement Conference is not 

recorded. If a settlement is reached, the Hearing Officer will draft a Settlement Agreement to be 

signed by the parties. 

Representatives 

Any party to a Hearing may designate a representative in writing prior to the Settlement 

Conference or on the record at the Hearing. 

Interpreter 

The Hearing must be conducted in English. The Rent Adjustment Program will provide 

interpreters if it is requested on the petition or response forms or in writing in advance of the 

Hearing. Any party may also bring a person to the Hearing to interpret for them. The interpreter 

will be required to take an oath that they are fluent in both English and the relevant other 

language and they will fully interpret the proceeding to the best of their ability.  

Failure to Appear for Hearing 

If a petitioner fails to appear at a properly noticed hearing, the Hearing Officer may, in the 

Hearing Officer’s discretion, dismiss the case, subject to the petitioner showing good cause for 

the failure to appear. If the respondent fails to appear at the Hearing as scheduled, the Hearing 

Officer may either issue an administrative decision without a Hearing or conduct the Hearing 

and render a decision without the respondent’s participation. 

000298



 
 

Housing and Community Development Department TEL (510) 238-3721 
Rent Adjustment Program FAX (510) 238-6181 

250 Frank Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313 CA RELAY 711 

Oakland, CA 94612-2034 

 

ZOOM INVITATION FOR RAP REMOTE REMAND 

T23-0075 Willis v. Godwin Properties  

To the Parties: 

 

Your hearing scheduled will take place on June 4, 2024 at 10:00 am and will be held remotely 

through Zoom. 

 

You can connect to the Hearing without charge by downloading Zoom. You can also connect 

by using only a telephone. To dial in to a call, enter your dial-in number, followed by the 

meeting ID and pound key, then enter the password and pound key. 

 

Topic: T23-0075 Willis v. Godwin Properties Remand Hearing 

Time: June 4, 2024 10:00 AM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 

 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85943638511?pwd=UExsd044M3VXYkt5RENTWUk4OWg2UT09  

 

Meeting ID: 859 4363 8511 

Passcode: 521636 

 

One tap mobile 

+16699009128,,85943638511#,,,,*521636# US (San Jose) 

+16694449171,,85943638511#,,,,*521636# US 

 

Dial by your location 

• +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 

• +1 669 444 9171 US 

• +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 

• +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

• +1 719 359 4580 US 

• +1 253 205 0468 US 

• +1 507 473 4847 US 

• +1 564 217 2000 US 

• +1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 

• +1 646 931 3860 US 

• +1 689 278 1000 US 

• +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 

CITY OF OAKLAND 

000299

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85943638511?pwd=UExsd044M3VXYkt5RENTWUk4OWg2UT09


• +1 305 224 1968 US 

• +1 309 205 3325 US 

• +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

• +1 360 209 5623 US 

• +1 386 347 5053 US 

 

Meeting ID: 859 4363 8511 

Passcode: 521636 

 

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kbnrnf9U7e   

To download Zoom: 

On a smartphone: 

1. Go to the “App store,” “Google play,” “Android Apps,” or the “Play Store” 

2. Search for Zoom 

3. Download “Zoom” or “Zoom Cloud Meetings.” 

 

On a computer: 

1. Open a browser (Firefox, Internet Explorer, Google Chrome, or any other web browser) 

2. Search for “Zoom” in the search box; or type in “zoom.us” in the address bar 

*In either case, you will be directed to the Zoom 

website.Create a Zoom account. 

If you have technical questions, I find the following link helpful in navigating Zoom: 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/115004954946-Joining-and-participating-in-a- 

webinar-attendee- 

Please test the link and download the Zoom application at least a day before the hearing. If you 

experience any technical difficulties connecting to the meeting or to discuss your technology 

access, please contact me immediately. 

 

Cordially, 

 
Brittni Jackson 

City of Oakland 

Housing and Community Development 

Department 

Rent Adjustment Program 250 Frank H. 

Ogawa Plaza, 5th Floor Oakland, CA 

94612 
Main: (510) 238 - 3721 

Telephone: (510) 238 - 6415 

Fax: (510) 238 - 6181

000300

https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kbnrnf9U7e
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/115004954946-Joining-and-participating-in-a-webinar-attendee-
https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/115004954946-Joining-and-participating-in-a-webinar-attendee-


PROOF OF SERVICE 

Case Number: T23-0075 

Case Name: Willis v. Godwin Properties 

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the Residential 

Rent Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, California. My business 

address is 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California 94612.   

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of Oakland mail 

collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Oakland, 

California, addressed to: 

 

Documents Included 

Notice of Remote Settlement Conference and Remand Hearing 

Zoom Invitation for RAP Remote Remand Hearing 

Manager 

Christina Nelson, Godwin Properties 

266 Adams Street Unit 205 

Oakland, CA 94610 

Owner 

Melanie Godwin-Rosales, Godwin Properties 

PO Box 2128 

Livermore, CA 94551 

Tenant 

James Willis 

260 Lee Street, Unit 205 

Oakland, CA 94610 

Tenant 

Larry Butac 

260 Lee Street, Unit 205 

Oakland, CA 94610 

 
I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing correspondence for 

mailing. Under that practice an envelope placed in the mail collection receptacle described above would be 

deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal Service on that same day with first class postage 

thereon fully prepaid in the ordinary course of business. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true and correct. 

Executed on May 09, 2024 in Oakland, California. 

 
 

______________________________ 

Brittni Jackson 

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program 

 
 

000301



CITY OF OAKLAND

 

  

 

 

 

REMAND HEARING DECISION 

CASE NUMBER:   T23-0075 

CASE NAME: Willis v. Godwin 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 260 Lee Street, Unit 205  

Oakland, CA  

DATE OF HEARING:   August 22, 2023  

DATE OF HEARING DECISION: November 28, 2023 

DATE OF APPEAL HEARING: January 25, 2024 

DATE OF APPEAL DECISION: March 11, 2024 

DATE OF REMAND HEARING: June 4, 2024 

APPEARANCES: James Willis, Tenant 

Larry Butac, Tenant 

Melanie Godwin Rosales, Owner 

Christian Rosales, Owner’s Witness 

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY OF THE APPEAL DECISION 

A Hearing Decision in this case was issued on November 28, 2023, which granted 

the Tenant’s Petition.  The Hearing Decision found that the Tenant’s housing 

services were decreased.  The Hearing Decision granted the Tenant restitution in 

the total amount of $24,925.39 over 65 months.  

The Owner appealed, arguing that the Hearing Decision is inconsistent with OMC 

Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations, or prior decisions of the Board on 

December 14, 2023.  

DALZIEL BUILDING • 250 FRANK H. OGAWA PLAZA, SUITE 5313 • OAKLAND, CALIFORNIA 94612-2034 

Housing and Community Development Department 
Rent Adjustment Program 

TEL (510) 238-3721 
FAX (510)238-6181 

CA Relay Service 711 

000302



 

2 | P a g e  

 

The Tenant appealed, arguing that the hearing decision contained inaccurate 

statements of fact, that the amortization period should be modified closer to 12 

months to net out the 65-month amortization period in the decision, and that the 

Owner failed to comply with the seismic retrofit program. 

 

An Appeal Hearing was held on January 25, 2024.  The Board remanded the 

matter back to the Hearing Officer for a limited hearing on the issue of whether or 

not the Owner filed the Owner’s Response form.  The Appeal Decision stated that 

“The parties are allowed to submit evidence (including testimony documentary 

evidence, etc.). 

 

The scope of this Remand Decision is limited to parameters outlined in the Appeal 

Decision. 

 

EVIDENCE  

 

Melanie Godwin Rosales 

 

After being duly sworn, Melanie Godwin Rosales provided the following 

testimony at the initial hearing: 

 

She served her Response as indicated on the proof of service on June 26, 2023. She 

filed the Response at 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza. It was unclear if the Response 

included proof of payment of the Rent Adjustment Service Fee, compliance with 

the rent registry, and whether the business license was attached.  

 

Lease 

 

The lease was prepared and signed by the Tenant in her presence. She was unsure 

if she provided the RAP notice in the three required languages but confirmed it 

was provided in English. She never received the move-in inspection report from 

the Property Manager.  

 

The Respondent, Melanie Godwin-Rosales, was duly sworn and testified at the 

appeal hearing as follows: 

 

“No, I didn’t think I needed to” when asked if she intended to call a witness to 

testify. Additionally, she did not provide any additional documents for the Remand 

Hearing.  

 

000303



3 | P a g e

As part of the appeal filing, she submitted a copy of the Owner Response form 

with attachments. The lawyer on the Board, Vice Chair Oshinuga, told her at the 

appeal hearing they could see her appeal submission in the online portal. 

The appeal included a page that page shows the service of the RAP Notice in all 

required languages as required “Oakland_Rent_Pgrm._Mult_Language_.pdf” and 

this document was added to the appeal and was not included in the original 

response. 

The subject property has 15 units and is held in a Trust. They obtained a business 

tax certificate and paid the RAP fee for the subject property.  She is an employee 

of the Owner of the rental property and is the property manager for the subject 

property and became a certified property manager years ago. She did not know 

about the online portal for RAP Petitions.  

She said she put the response in an envelope, put a stamp on it and Chris mailed it. 

Then she said she could not remember but that usually Chris seals and mails things 

for her.   

She testified that she responded to a petition in 2014 and 2020.  Previously she was 

able to drop off her response.  She was unaware of any additional steps required to 

respond.  

She is aware of the rent registry requirement. She was unaware of any requirement 

to provide documentation of her compliance with the rent registry requirement. 

She provided no documentation of her compliance with the rent registry 

requirement.  

She did not obtain a certificate of mailing when she submitted the Owner's 

Response.  

She did not include the RAP Program on the proof of service and would never 

have considered serving the city, or the RAP Program. She did include the RAP 

Program when serving the appeal on her proof of service. She was unable to 

explain why she did not include the RAP Program when serving the appeal but did 

not include the City when serving the response form. 

The lawyer, at the appeal hearing, told her she did not have to serve the city at the 

same time the Tenant was served.  

Christian Rosales is the maintenance supervisor, oversees the managers, and has 

been with the company for over 20 years. He mailed the responses for the Owner. 

000304



 

4 | P a g e  

 

She didn’t think she needed him to testify, and he was not present at the start of the 

hearing. 

 

She invited Mr. Rosales to join the remand hearing to testify about mailing “the 

envelope.” 

 

On cross-examination, she testified: 

 

She is not a relative of the witness, he is her husband.  

 

She did not know how many pages the appeal response was, even though she said 

she did not include the additional languages because she was limited on pages. 

 

She believes that she met the requirements for filing a response. When she 

completed the original response to the petition, she included the addendum that she 

prepared, not the RAP Notice. In the appeal, she attached the document about the 

multi-language RAP notice.  She did not include that document when she 

completed the Owner Response form. She did not include proof of rent registry 

when she completed the Owner Response form that was served on the tenant.  

 

She did not know that there was a requirement to provide documentation of the 

rent registry until she was told during the original hearing by the Hearing Officer.  

She did not file proof of the rent registry with her appeal. She admits that at no 

time did she file any documents that confirm the property was registered, either 

with the original Owner Response form provided to the Tenant or with the Appeal 

form.  The Owner Response form she completed was revised on 9/14/2022, her 

form does state that she is required to provide evidence of registration with the rent 

adjustment program, so she did not provide that.  

 

The proof of service for the Owner Response form was signed by Chris Rosales.  It 

was mailed in a manilla envelope, she believes she put a stamp on it and, she 

believes it was put into a mailbox at a post office, not inside at the counter.  She 

calculated the postage by weighing the envelope and printed the stamps from 

stamps.com.  She did not review her account to determine the amount of the 

postage.  She thinks it was approximately five or six pages, and maybe one or one 

and one-half ounces. 

 

She thinks her Response was either lost in the mail or lost at the Rent Adjustment 

Program but did not take steps to follow up with the piece of mail. She did not 

contact the postal service, she did not open a claim, she did not file a complaint, 

and did not call customer service.  She did not follow up in any type of way. 

 

000305



 

5 | P a g e  

 

She came to the hearing prepared to offer a compromise.  She thinks the amount of 

unusable space was grossly inflated and was ready to offer a rent credit of 25% for 

the entire year because there were items in every room that required repair and was 

willing to offer a rent reduction, in the amount of $100.00 per month, until they 

vacate the unit.  

 

She admitted she was trying to explain why there was an error and that she didn’t 

give the exact RAP Notice required. She was under the impression that the appeal 

hearing decided her response form was filed and she would get a chance to present 

evidence that she was not allowed to present at the first hearing. 

 

She admits that the tenants are entitled to credits, for the repairs not completed. 

 

 

85 minutes after the hearing started, the Respondent’s witness joined.  

 

Christian Rosales 

 

The Owner’s witness, Christian Rosales, was duly sworn and testified as follows: 

 

He mailed the response to the rent board.  He signed the proof of service. He 

mailed that on June 26, 2023, as far as he recalls, he mailed it when she gave it to 

him.  He received the envelope sealed from the Owner.  

 

He read the document he signed.  He signed the proof of service. He did not put the 

documents in the envelope.  The envelope he received was sealed. He walked into 

the post office, in Livermore, and put it in the oversized slot.  He put one envelope 

in the slot. He doesn’t remember who the envelope was addressed to and said it 

could’ve gone to the Court or the Rent Board.  He did not remember mailing an 

envelope to the Tenant.  If he was given something to mail, he mailed it. 

 

He estimated that at least twice he mailed things in the case but wasn’t able to 

remember when. He remembers mailing things in the summer and in the winter. 

He thinks it was one envelope each time.  

 

Upon redirect, the witness said he wanted to testify for her.  He replied in the 

affirmative when asked if he received envelopes to mail to the Tenant and the Rent 

Board with her responses in June.  Over many years they have served lots of 

documents and it’s also possible he put the documents in the envelope.  

 

 

000306



 

6 | P a g e  

 

James Willis 

 

The Petitioner, James Willis, was duly sworn and testified at the remand hearing as 

follows: 

 

He objected to the submission of new evidence by the Respondent, as he was 

instructed that no new evidence was allowed.1  

The Petitioner disputed that he uploaded the Owner’s Response. He stated that he 

uploaded a response to what the Owner sent to him, in response to his petition. 

In his response, uploaded it to the database and stated that the Owner’s Response 

was not in the database, in July 2023.  

 

The response he received listed the person who attended the hearing and the 

remand hearing as the Owner’s Representative.  He received the proof of service, 

signed by Christian Rosales. The response he received is 14 pages, inclusive of the 

Owner Response form.  He did not receive any evidence of registration with the 

Rent Adjustment Program as provided in O.M.C. Section 8.22.510. 

 

He did not receive the RAP Notice in 3 languages, at the inception of his tenancy 

as required.  He only received it in English, added as an addendum to the lease.  

 

The document that says it is the RAP language in multiple languages was added 

when they filed the appeal. He did not receive that document with the Owner’s 

Response. 

 

She did not meet the filing of requirements because she did not provide any 

evidence of rent registry, and despite her claim that she was unaware of that 

requirement, she became aware at the first hearing, when asked by the Hearing 

Officer.  She doubled down and said that everything was included except that.  

At the appeal hearing, his testimony included that the Respondent was provided an 

opportunity to enter what she mailed into evidence and that she was not prepared 

to do so not having everything she claimed she mailed at the time of the original 

hearing.  

 

Melanie is supposed to be the General Manager but is unable to answer basic 

questions about operating the business. This process has been drawn out and 

frustrating.  The Owner has failed to make timely and prompt repairs.  The move-

in inspection report disappeared from our unit, and they claimed to no longer have 

a key to our unit. 

 

000307



 

7 | P a g e  

 

Between the filing of the petition in May and the hearing date in August, there 

were over 80 days to make repairs, and none were undertaken. He did receive an 

apology, but the apology didn’t repair anything. 

 

The Respondent claims she was denied due process, but at the appeal hearing, was 

the first time the Respondent even claimed that it was lost in the mail.  She also 

stated that at the appeal hearing, she had no proof that she mailed it. 

 

During the appeal hearing he pointed out, to the City Attorney, that on the City of 

Oakland’s website he reviewed a guide that stated as of April 2023, if the RAP 

Notice was not issued in 3 languages, the restitution could go back as far as three 

years.  

 

At the appeal hearing the Tenant pointed out that the remand hearing gives the 

Owner yet another opportunity to prove she mailed the Owner Response form.  He 

also pointed out that the Owner did not provide any evidence that she mailed the 

Owner Response form to the Rent Adjustment Program.  Additionally, he pointed 

out that the Owner has failed to provide any evidence that she registered her units 

as required to have any Owner Response form accepted for filing. 

 

DECISION ON REMAND 

 

When, if ever, was the Tenant given written notice of the Rent Adjustment 

Program (RAP Notice1)? 

The Rent Adjustment Ordinance (Ordinance) requires an owner to serve the Notice 

to Tenants of the Rent Adjustment Program (RAP Notice) at the start of a tenancy 

and together with any notice of rent increase or change in the terms of a tenancy.    

Effective September 21, 2016, Owners are required to provide the initial RAP 

Notice in the following languages: English, Spanish, and Chinese.     

The Tenant’s testimony that he was not given a copy of the RAP Notice in Spanish 

or Chinese at the inception of the tenancy is undisputed.  Moreover, this testimony 

is supported by the Owner’s testimony where she admitted she was trying to 

explain why there was an error and that she didn’t give the exact RAP Notice 

required.  Accordingly, the finding that the Tenant was not given written notice of 

the RAP Program at the inception of his tenancy, remains unchanged.  

 

The Tenant pointed out that the City of Oakland’s website provided a guide, for 

Tenant’s; when he reviewed it as of April 2023, it stated that if the RAP Notice 

 
1 Notice to Tenants of the Residential Rent Adjustment Program. 

000308



8 | P a g e

was not issued in 3 languages, the restitution could go back as far as three years.  

Additionally, the current law states:  

If the decreased housing is ongoing (e.g., a 

leaking roof), the tenant may file a petition at 

any point but is limited in restitution for three 

(3) years before the petition is filed and to the

period of time when the owner knew or should

have known about the decreased housing

service.

Many of the decreased housing services were listed by the Tenant at the time of the 

move-in inspection and provided on the move-in inspection form to the Owner’s 

Representative at the time of move-in.  Accordingly, the owner knew or should 

have known about the decreased housing service. The law currently allows for 

three years of restitution regardless of ongoing decreased housing services.  

Notwithstanding, current law, or that the Tenant was not properly provided a RAP 

Notice at the inception of the tenancy, the Appeals Decision is limiting the 

Tenants’ restitution to 90 days before the filing of the petition. 

Did the Owner file an Owner Response form? 

The Rent Adjustment Ordinance (Ordinance) states that in order for an Owner to 

file a response to a tenant petition or to file a petition, the owner must provide the 

following: evidence of a current City Business License, evidence of payment of the 

Rent Adjustment Program Service Fee, evidence of registration with the Rent 

Adjustment Program, and evidence of service of written notice of the existence and 

scope of the rent adjustment program on the tenant in each affected covered unit in 

the building prior to the petition being filed.  

At the initial hearing, the Owner testified that she filed the Response at 250 Frank 

H. Ogawa Plaza.  She was unsure if the Response included proof of payment of the

Rent Adjustment Service Fee, and whether the business license was attached.

At the initial hearing, and the remand hearing, the Owner was adamant that she 

met the requirements for filing a response. She also clearly stated at both the initial 

and remand hearings that she did not provide any evidence of registration with the 

Rent Adjustment Program. Moreover, at the remand hearing the Owner testified 

when she completed the original response to the petition, she included the 

addendum that she prepared, not the RAP Notice. 

000309



 

9 | P a g e  

 

The Rent Adjustment Program did not receive an Owner Response form from the 

Owner before the initial hearing. Evidence of registration with the Rent 

Adjustment Program and evidence of service of written notice of the existence and 

scope of the rent adjustment program on the tenant was not attached to the copy of 

the Owner Response the Tenant received.  Moreover, the Owner admitted that she 

attached an addendum but not the RAP Notice to the Owner's Response served on 

the Tenants and that with the appeal, she inserted a document that was supposed to 

show she served the RAP Notice in all three languages. She provided no evidence 

that the claimant was provided the RAP Notice in all three languages at the 

inception of the tenancy.  

 

At no point to date, has the Owner provided evidence of registration with the Rent 

Adjustment Program as required.  

 

Moreover, a review of the rent registry online portal, on July 19, 2024, shows that 

the Owner did not complete the 2023 or 2024 registration for the subject property 

as seen below: 

  
 

Initially, the Owner’s witness and husband testified that he mailed one envelope in 

the summer of 2023.  He testified the envelope was sealed and he dropped it in the 

mail, and that he mailed the response to the rent board on June 26, 2023, as far as 

he recalls, by going into the post office, in Livermore, and putting the envelope in 

the oversized slot.  He seemed clear when stating he put one envelope in the slot 

but didn't remember who the envelope was addressed to and said it could’ve gone 

to the Court or the Rent Board.  But then, he stated that he did not remember 

mailing an envelope to the Tenant. The witness seemed clear that he mailed only 

one envelope.  

 

However, on cross-examination by his wife, the witness replied in the affirmative 

when asked if he received envelopes from her to mail to the Tenant and the Rent 

Board, which had her responses in June.  He reiterated that he wanted to testify to 

help her and that over many years he has served lots of documents. The witness’s 

Cases 

@ Export to Excel C Search ... Q 

Case Number Created On Entity Case Type Created On T Updated Date T Status 

RR2024-25227749 APN: 010078801500 Rent Registry 03/29/2024 01:57 AM 03/29/2024 01'57 AM Reg istration Open 

RR2023-2346683 APN: 010078801500 Rent Registry 04/05/2023 10:21 AM 03/29/2024 01:58 AM Reg istration Not Submitted 

10 v items per page 1-2 of 2 items 

000310



 

10 | P a g e  

 

testimony that he served her responses to the Tenant and the Rent Board conflicted 

with his testimony that he received the envelope sealed.  Likewise, the witness’s 

testimony, on cross-examination contradicted his initial testimony that he mailed 

only one envelope.   

 

Evidence Code Section 780 states:  [T]he court or jury may consider in 

determining the credibility of a witness any matter that has any tendency in reason 

to prove or disprove the truthfulness of his testimony at the hearing, including but 

not limited to any of the following: 

 

(a) His demeanor while testifying and the manner in which he testified. 

(b) The character of his testimony. 

(c) The extent of his capacity to perceive, to recollect, or to communicate any 

matter about which he testified. 

(d) The extent of his opportunity to perceive any matter about which he testifies. 

(e) His character for honesty or veracity or their opposites. 

(f) The existence or nonexistence of a bias, interest, or other motive. . . 

(h) A statement made by him that is inconsistent with any part of his testimony 

at the hearing. 

(i) The existence or nonexistence of any fact testified to by him. 

(j) His attitude toward the action in which he testifies . . . 

 

Accordingly, after considering the above, in light of the testimony of the Owner’s 

witness and husband and that the Tenant acknowledged receipt of the Owner’s 

Response, it is found that he did mail the one envelope to the tenant and that the 

Response was not sent to the Rent Adjustment Program.  

 

Nonetheless, had the Owner Response Form been sent to the Rent Adjustment 

Program as received by the tenant, it would have been incomplete. It is well 

established by Rent Adjustment Program procedures that to be complete and 

considered filed, a response by an Owner must include the following: the owner 

must provide the following: evidence of a current City Business License, evidence 

of payment of the Rent Adjustment Program Service Fee, evidence of registration 

with the Rent Adjustment Program, and evidence of service of written notice of the 

existence and scope of the rent adjustment program on the tenant in each affected 

covered unit in the building prior to the petition or response being filed.   

 

Here, the Owner did not provide evidence of the evidence of registration with the 

Rent Adjustment Program, and evidence of service of written notice of the 

existence and scope of the rent adjustment program on the tenant in each affected 

covered unit in the building prior to the petition or response being filed.  

Additionally, the Tenant’s testimony that he received the RAP Notice only in 

000311



11 | P a g e

English remains undisputed. The property remains unregistered, as shown above, 

and by admission, the Owner did not provide a copy of the RAP notice with her 

response, only her addendum.  Accordingly, it is found that the Owner did not file 

a response.  

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

Has the Tenant suffered decreased housing services? 

Under the Oakland Rent Adjustment Ordinance, a decrease in housing services is 

considered to be an increase in rent17 and may be corrected by a rent 

adjustment.18  However, in order to justify a decrease in rent, a decrease in housing 

services must be either the elimination or reduction of a service that existed at the 

start of the tenancy, the loss of a service that is required to be provided by either 

law or a contract between the parties, or a violation of the housing or building code 

which seriously affects the habitability of the Tenant’s unit.   

There is also a time limit for claiming decreased housing services.  If the decreased 

service is the result of a noticed or discrete change in services provided to the 

Tenant, the Petition must be filed within 90 days after of whichever is later: (1) the 

date the Tenant is noticed or first becomes aware of the decreased housing service; 

or (2) the date the Tenant first receives the RAP Notice. 

Where the RAP notice has never been given, a tenant can be granted restitution for 

rent overpayments due to decreased housing services for a maximum of 3 years 

from the date the Petition was filed.2  The evidence established that the Tenant was 

never given a RAP notice.   

If the decreased housing service is for a condition that is ongoing (e.g., a leaking 

roof), the Tenant may file a petition at any point but is limited in restitution for 90 

days before the Petition is filed.20  Since the evidence established that the Tenant 

did not receive the RAP notice at the inception of the tenancy, the Tenant is not 

limited to restitution for 90 days before the Petition was filed. 

To grant a tenant’s claim for decreased housing services, an owner must have 

notice of a problem and a reasonable opportunity to make needed repairs.  

// 

//

2 O.M.C. Section 8.22.090(A)(3)(a) and Appeal Decision in Case No. T12-0332, Sherman v. Michelsen, now 

codified in O.M.C. Section 8.22.090(A)(3)(b) 

000312



 

12 | P a g e  

 

Decreased Housing Services 

 

Pest Control 

 

Upon review of the Appeal Decision the undersigned has reconsidered the finding 

that cockroaches were not in the petitioner’s unit, given the photo and testimonial 

evidence on the record, and finds that the Tenant is entitled to a 10% rent credit, 

$194.50, from January 2023 through July 31, 2024.  The Tenant is entitled to an 

ongoing rent credit of 10% until the infestation is deemed resolved.  

 

What, if any, restitution is owed to the Tenant, and how does that impact the 

rent? 

 

As indicated above, the legal rent for the unit is $1,945.00 per month. The Tenant 

is entitled to restitution for the overpayment of rent for decreased housing services 

through January 31, 2024. 
 

 
 

The chart above indicates rent overpayments for decreased housing services valued 

at $34,52851. Restitution is usually awarded over 12 months but extending the 

restitution period is proper when the monthly restitution amount would exceed the 

legal rent, therefore, the restitution period is amortized over 18 months to allow for 

VALUE OF LOST ERVI CES 
Senice Los:t f ticMll. To Rent %Rent Decrnas.e ,o. of Amowit 

Dect--ea.s,e Imondi Overpaid 

Windo,v 1-Jan-23 31-Jul-24 $1,945 .00 6% $116.70 19 .$2,213.78 
I\failbox 1-Jan-23 31-Jul-24 $1,945 .00 $4.50 19 $85.36 

Unfinished Kitchen and l -Jan-23 31-Jul-24 $1,945 .00 $359.12 19 $6,812.46 
Dining Room 
Unfinished Li\in_g Room 1-Jan-23 31-Jul-24 $1,945 .00 $,605.68 19 $11,489.67 
Unfinished Bathroom 1-Jan-23 31-Jul-24 $1,945 .00 $107.20 19 .$2,033.57 
Bathroom Leak relocation $1,945 .00 $1 ,554.00 

Unfinished bedroom 1-Jan-23 31-Jul-24 $1,945 .00 $337.68 19 $6,405.74 
He.at 1-Jan-23 30-Apr-23 $1,945 .00 3%1 $58.35 4 $22828 

Mold l -Jan-23 7-Aug-23 $1,945.00 $LOO 7 $10.00 
Kitchen Breaker 1-Jan-23 7-Apr-23 $1,945 .00 $LOO 3 $6.00 

Infestation 1-Jan-23 31-Jul-24 $1,945 .00 10% $19'4.50 19 $3,,689.M 

RESTITU 
LYRB"\lT $1,945 .00 

TOTAL TO B-E REPAID TO TB }\1 $34,528.51 
TOTAL AS PERCBW OF . iONTIIl. Y RE • 1775.24% 

A?vt:ORTIZED OVER IO. BY REG. IS 
OR OVER 18 fONTI:IS B-Y HEARiiN"G OFFICE $IJHS.25 

000313



 

13 | P a g e  

 

credit less than the full rental amount. The restitution amount is $1,918.25 per 

month.   Therefore, the Tenant’s monthly restitution amount is subtracted from the 

current legal rent of $1,945.00.  
 

Amortization 

 

The Tenant appealed, arguing, in part, that the amortization period should be 

modified closer to 12 months to net out the rent. The legal rent for the subject unit 

is $1945.00.  In the Hearing Decision, the Tenant was awarded an ongoing rent 

credit for $1,530.88, per month, for ongoing decreased housing services, leaving a 

maximum of $414.12 for restitution.  Accordingly, the restitution was amortized 

over 65 months according to O.M.C. Section 8.22.110(F). The appeal decision 

states the amortization period should not exceed 12 months.  However, restitution 

over 12 months would be more than the rent for the subject unit. As the 

undersigned lacks statutory authority to direct the Owner to make payments to the 

Tenant, restitution is amortized over 18 months. Whereas the Tenant is entitled to 

rent credit for ongoing decreased housing services of $1,724.50, that amount is 

reduced to $387.37, as ordered by the Appeal Decision. 

 

ORDER 
 

1. Petition T23-0075 is granted. 

 

2. The base rent for the subject unit is $1,945.00. 

 

3. The total overpayment by the Tenant is $34,528.51 for past decreased 

housing services. 

 

4. The Tenant’s rent is stated below: 

 

Base rent $ 1,945.00 

Less restitution $ 1,918.25 

Less ongoing decreased housing services $    387.37 

Net Rent $        0.00 

 

5. If the Owner wishes to, they can repay the restitution owed to the Tenant at 

any time. If they do so, the monthly restitution decreases when the Tenant is 

provided restitution.  

 

6. All prior findings, awards, and orders remain unchanged.  

 

000314



14 | P a g e

Right to Appeal:  This decision is the final decision of the Rent Adjustment 

Program Staff. Either party may appeal this decision by filing a properly 

completed appeal using the form provided by the Rent Adjustment Program. The 

appeal must be received within seventeen (17) calendar days of electronic service 

or twenty (20) days if served by first-class mail. If the last day to file is a weekend 

or holiday, the appeal may be filed on the next business day. The date and service 

method are shown on the attached Proof of Service. 

Dated:  August 1, 2024 Élan Consuella Lambert 

Hearing Officer 

Rent Adjustment Program 

000315



PROOF OF SERVICE 

Case Number: T23-0075 

Case Name: Willis v. Godwin Properties 

I am a resident of the State of California at least eighteen years of age. I am not a party to the Residential Rent 

Adjustment Program case listed above. I am employed in Alameda County, California. My business address is 250 

Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 5313, 5th Floor, Oakland, California 94612. 

Today, I served the attached documents listed below by placing a true copy in a City of Oakland mail 

collection receptacle for mailing on the below date at 250 Frank. H. Ogawa Plaza, Oakland, California 

addressed to:: 

Documents Included 

Remand Hearing Decision  

Manager 

Christina Nelson 

Godwin Properties 

266 Adams Street Unit 205 

Oakland, CA 94610 

Owner 

Melanie Godwin-Rosales 

Godwin Properties 

PO Box 2128  

Livermore, CA 94551 

Tenant 

James Willis 

260 Lee Street, Unit 205 

Oakland, CA 94610 

Tenant 

Larry Butac 

260 Lee Street, Unit 205 

Oakland, CA 94610 

I am readily familiar with the City of Oakland’s practice of collection and processing correspondence for 

mailing. Under that practice, an enveloped placed in the mail collection receptable described above would be 

deposited in the United States mail with the U.S. Postal Service with first class postage thereon fully prepaid in 

the ordinary course of business. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the above is true and correct. 

Executed on August 01, 2024 in Oakland, California. 

_________________________________________________ 

Brittni Jackson 

Oakland Rent Adjustment Program 

000316



,---- - --------------------~-
crrt OF OAKLAND 
RI!, ·T ADJll~,: · NT PROGRAJ\J 
25'0 l!-~ k H.. O,gawa ~~ ' wte= 5313 
i _~ k~CA ·94612-024 
(5 10) 23,3---37:i I 
Cl\ R,elay Setvi;;;;e 1' L 1 
,.,_ • ..,..w ,S1[]!,;J1311dca .g.oviRA P 

APP ,AL 

hrr ~ · clii•~l.nJi::i,I I 'rQ_w;,m ,d -&n.ra:ip ·. 

Ap,pella_nfl':& 'Nairn.~ 

t,1 ·wi B Owner □. Teinamt 

• Property A1d-dni!$S (lncih.t-de. Unlt Numbert 
60 I A±: Strodt 2(11 

faod. C_ '?- fi tiff' 

Appsllantrs, MaJ ng Addmss tFor rec,Jpt of notices) 
' God- .in p Klf!O:r1k: ~. 

~a.Humber 
T2J.-OO::i'S" 

P.O. Box2 28 
I ..i 'i"'!;Tml f,' 94$:51 c.:21J;S D.ate of Deci'.tsion ilP,peiiJed 

A~iN l. 2004 

N,.._ ... ... .C! 1"1·.,.p· ...,,..._...4_J=ve lif anrv·) 
~ 1p1 ■ :J111 -. if.JI~ if'\,.i.-.,. . I flii:,;,,tr.,~l 'II WIW '1 _ 1.,1 Rep1,e,,filtatlvd's Mailing Addf'@n (:Fo.r 

l!IOtlces) (.11 u I i;:lj. , lftillZJ) 

Bumhnm ~" 
2-125 lli;,.k Grove 'Ri'md, S,.Jit:: · WS 
W~Jmn l-~ CA 9>1,59'8 

P-k;!aae sefec.t your ground(s} for ·a,ppea, from Ille L1st befow~ As pad of Oie appeal1 an eJllplainatton mum: 
be p rovl ded 1,aponding to each ,ground for wihitt:h you are appealirig. Eacti .g,round for a1pp-eal: listed 
below lncll!fd9s diNiciio:ns as to what shoml'.d be rn.(.lludM!I in the expl~n•ation, 

'ii t here aw. mathl'Cl.18ilical em:11ra that ~equf're tile fl ear.ing Dec:is:ion to be updated. (~a,se- cJearty 
explain Ure ma!Ncloocal f!!fTOJ'S.) 

2) Appealir.g ·tbe decision for one· of me. grounds below {reqU:ired): 

b) 

c) 

d) 

ml The deciswn is lntomslstent with OMC OJlapier: B.:2Z R.ellt :Board Reguhruons, or prior 
dtu:kim,s of" th~ Board .. (In YQl1r e,;rp/af1ff ,on. you must" identify r1re Orqimmoe sectron, 
Regulation Of .¢or Board doci.siori(s) arnf-desaibe. how lhB d~Sf'.riptkm is .inoonsislent.) 

D Tile· decis on is inCOllsistent with decisions ~ued by othe Hearing Offl·C$~ (In yout 
eXJ]}an-mian. you must icJt:rnti(y me p onr:- f n~ s-;"istfmt d'-eq!.'ion J;!rn:f {f'Afi/9in haw 1h19' d~sion PS 
inconsistent •. 

D Tim decision .raises. a new pali:cy :issue flla,t has n:ot been decided by the BoaTt;I. (f n your 
expfan,aficm, you mIJSf: provide a· cmta,7ad staktmet11: at the· issuff and wl,y the iss~e shawd ~ 
dedded ,n yorn-·f,i:wnr.i , • 

~ The ~dlslcm vlohites. feC,eraJ,~ state, 01' local --- ,(In your 9Xp/anaUoo., you mmt provide fJ 
dctoikd :3U!io:Jnerjf ~a J.:c. wh:ot k3w riS vid.o{!!s=d,;) 

□ l be decision -s nm S1Jipported by sub.s1antial &vidA!!nce. ,(In your exph;1t1£.1 ticm, J(OlJ mt.1$'' 
a11:pk:;J.in why the, decision is ,rot s-upported bv $Vb_sl.$.lnlim evi(Jenoo found ;n the· case record. ) 

000317



f) I wa5 ~ni'ed a s.ufm;.ielillt opporumity to present my t.laim o:r respoml to. thtt petitlon&r'.s, 
c!laim.. Vn yatJt ,expliJnatinn, flta must· ~e how yon ~'\ltfm -denie,d he chance to defend _vou 
cl-aims and LIVhat evidence you vromd hall€ presented_ Note that a hearing is m>f °mquirad fn 91llJ.f1/ 

c-e.s:e. Staff may f~ a decisi.oo Without a heart® ff sUftJJ;i.ent f gets to make .the rJeG!sfafl are not 
in dispute ) 

g) □ The declsion denies tile ·Owner a fai retu,m on the Qwnefs inv,&sbmmt ( Yoo may a,o.pea,· oo 
trosgroliffli.oo/y wnpn 1}00f"l1nm;riyingpmitioo ~smsedoo·a fuirmfum cfainJ_ Y,oo FntJsf speoifiaaJJy 
.state why you have beM aemed a raiF ,emm. andat.rach Ure· cafCLJ1at1bns suppartmg your claim.) 

h) ~ Other. ,(In your exp!,a,mlirm, ycm mus~ .BJt/ftCh a detm7ed explanation of your grounds for appeal.) 

Supporti1ng documents (In addition to this. font:1) m,ust not exceed 25 pages"' an.· must ba llf;!!C$ived by 
the- ,Rent Ad]UStn'llent Pn:igram~ .alon: w"rth a proo,f ef senrfce on the o»p0$ing party~ withim 15-day$ of 

the- tiling of 'Chi& doe1,1in.eml .Only the. ffi' -· 25 pa,ges of :a1,;1bm_· .. ~ from party will - -~ idered b, he 
Board. subjeot to Reglllaliomf 8.22010(A)~4}. Please rtumber a(tarJhed pagest;unsooutively . 

., You must serve a cop~ ,of yoo . appeal on the opposi:ng parties,,, or your ,appeal1 may be, dlsmisg,ed_ • 

I wM>d a copy of: e VF d. \ Eb ' Cb Onsert rn,me ofcioa.rmen &en,ed) 

' Aa,d ~ ~ \~ °7',_;e~ \ ,. if::rp ~ ~\'f ~ i6h P~f Y,~ ~.~to~~~~• ·. 
aru:I write ru.rmtier of attached' pages) _altach...d} page 5: (tlO.t' co~ng tha Ap~J , ~arm or the Proqf ~ 
SeJVicel.to e,actJi opposing part¥, Whose n.ame(s) .and adcdres~(e-s) ~H3' li~ted 'be'.10-.111 by one of i lowing 
rn &l:1111 s ( ll";hac:k ,ODS~'. 

H!ilDJ!i:l 

!Ii $:. First-C'3ss Mail . ! endOsed the dtX;UJ • ent(s) in a :sealed emvebp,e ·or pat age addressed to 
Ule person(si lj!rted 'be:lo-w· and at-the a_d'dress(es) below :and ,~epooitl5d the se::aled errvelo:pa w.i th 
lhe Uni!ed states Posts Service, • • 'tihe postage fully P'B.Paid.. 

0 . b. Peraonal .~rvka:, (1) By Ha:nd De livery: I pers1onally deilivere'd ·lhs docurnernt(s) to the 
perso ~, at ffi.e addr~s(e5) liSted beaow: ·or (2) I l eft the d.ocument{sJ at the addrese.{esJ wit h 
some person no younger than 18 y-ears :in age. 

□ G. .Eleciron i"c. Se .riGe.. I clecin:m_ic.ally ser'Jl 1he docU1mient(s) to ~ pecson(S} at the address(es) 
hsred h!31ow who have previously given mtrtttM ,consent to reoei\lmQ notices and drn::ume,ms: m 
th • rn:attrsr fmm tne RAP • , from the OTHER PA.RTYJIES efecironically at the ema:11 
address{es} they provided. 

k mr;iJ. \.v i,i~ 

J\ddrus :Th(!, I ~ fi~llili:t •.¥:i(t5 

:CJ~. State 2111:!l -~tJ -~ tj lo --

.Em~H l!U.ldress jn 1 l 1) Hi:i'...g IIDlit ,com.· 

. 

f:wmt Llm)· Bi:ira,:: 

Agg,:ess l OO l.QI;: ~ I l' :ZO ::,; 
' 

-

~Eb:1 alilfs:: jjgg 0!J~ , r: . !l}4(.I ~ 

000318



Ema;il ,Addreg. 

I ecfare n r ~natty of per:j,ury und • the laws of ffle. State of Caloo.mfa 1hat· the fOl'e'.Qrnng is true and coITBCt, 
and tlle documerds. w-ere• s.eTV'ed or11 ,j: · 1/ ;:?~l'.lnssrt daW served). 

~------.J~ 

IMIPORTANT INFORM.A TION., 

This, AppeaiE must be· ~ceived by Ule Ren1t Adjustment Program, 250 Fra-''k Ogawa Plaza Su[te 
531·3 Oakbnid, Call tor Ja 946-12,. nt latmr than 5:09 P.M. on the 20th <::a!etu:hu day after the date 
th& decis,lon was ,mailfed to you as ·:s awm m1 the proof of servic-e• attached to ffile decislmL if 
la'& day o ·fUe i;s, a -wee~~nd or oliday, ·lhe fim@ to file, the document is e~ed to. the nexit bus.ijne,ss. 
dary. 

• Ap,P.eal~ fited lat,e wtth~ gi:,~ cause. will lae dismi-s.se . 
You mu$f praYiide ,all, the inf<orm~n ~ujffld. or 11.oor .ff .peal canaot be processed and 
may be dismissied. 
Any· ,~sponse to the appeal by the· responding party :mus,t be received by the Rent 
Adjustment PlO:gra:m, along •wffll, a p: oof ot seNice •On appealing palily within ~(I dlays af 
!Servwe ,M the service o' Die .appe.al ff the, party was per,~otually ~e,rved. lf Die respon,d:lln.-g 
p-ilnJ was seived the ,appeal t,y· maH., the pa~· must fl.le ltie res[POl'ise wffl'lii>n 35 dap of i: e 
date 'l!he a,ppe.; , wa,s mam led to lhem. 

.. Thero iS no f□m, for the resp se. but the .enfire response is r it:ed to 25 pages "Or ress. 
The Board will not con~ider new d~1ilms:. All cl:aims:, except jurisdictional issues, must hav,a- be.en 
moo·e:in the pe.tr on, response, or--atth.e hea~i 

"' The· Board .wiQ . ·ider new evid ce at tti.e appeal hear:i(Jg wlthour • pacific approval 
•· You must.sign and dale is.forn:i ~r~ur appeal will not. be processed_ 
• The easer reoord is av.ai1able. t·o .the :Board, but S.eelJOi"I$ of aydio recordings that yol!J. v a·- t th BO.ard 

to review mU:St be· pre-<lesiQn.at.M to Ren' Adj $1Jnent Staff_ 

000319



GODWIN PROPERTIES 

City ofOakfoJod 
Rent Adjustment PL-ogr=am 
250 Frank H Oga,wa J'fa.2a., Ste 5313 
Oalfurml. CA 94-61.2 

Thls LS .a supplement to the appeal ttJnn, ;;itta~hed for rasc #T23-007 5. We would 
like.to ap-pm1 this decision for the -~ollow.in_g lt'Ca."30TIS: 

1. O,amt! wa:-i again \mied due- prni[iess an? lack of beming on the l 'l1Ei!rits. 

Owner's eviden;c:e ~qwing th"il. MP form was properly provided fa, t,enan ~nd ro 
Bv,ard for hea ring was ignored and·denied ad.m· ssibiUty. HeaFiag offil!:er 
demonstra:ted bi21S against owner -by ac:a1$ing owneif' of not understanding the 
proc-~ss whidh proress is not fully explarinoo. in the Rent B'Oard • ow li era, ure. 
T~-ere is ro mention of the need for c:ertin rate of maiHng to the rent board jn_ the 
O'NJlel"' respons,cr packet. lndQi~~i, in virttw..Ur. .;I II. j.l.ldici.a I f.l r administrative heari g~ ,:1 

proof o -l)E'.:1rvi(~ or certlfi.c:ate of ma_ilmg is provided to the judi~a t o ffi.cer shoi.ving 
surv i c;:e on the o _p,pos.ing :p~, not the judicial officer or ad.mitJ isl'.ratrve age 111cy. 

2. Owner submitted eyi,d1ene:e vi:a the app_eat .including the RAP mulH-fangaage 
dm:umcnt,. tho Mn;t Boards' own doctunent pdf, sign d by botb tenants- on their fir~t 
daj" of tenancy; "fh~. 'h r.:an:ng ,off;k~!r" !mprn J1Cir"ly di mtssen: a 11,d ignored the· ~;taghed. 
Pil.L~ :inoo,rrectTy·~sserting lt was mdy labclcd as a hyp~Unk.. 

Th,e tenant tied. a.bou.t signing.the RAP .notit-e. His signature on th.c ,~ocum.ent 
demonstrates. same and terumt's claim...:,;:- to contrary .are no. :!iUpporta.bfo. 

3-_ Own~rprovided..a wifuess, statin,g: h e ~ed., th. m.igina.! response: ·Lu Lhe .. 
rent board in lune 2U.2J. The ,hea~ng ,o:ffk~ ·impmpedy dis :rttsser;l. 'lli,e·wimess 
d:.rlming unsubstantiated bia:s·.arrid deme311or and not upon. any defedt with·th,e 
testtmony- o mailing. 

4. • ·be hearing offic,er. .agafn demon~t a-atfld bias and hos Li Ii 'Y ?.g.iii n.st Q1,;vner ·by 
~kin§ opeD ended. ,que:sd001..1i rcg,a.ir-dtug'V!l"ha:;: L5 needed ro n m l ru-~i\111.:~;:, ! H Oahl.,;.utu. 
implying 0'111.!lHff did not nnd cl"Str.linid h,ow operate a b1..!l:siness. Thfa \-V-d.S not 
:relevant to the inquiry and inflamrnarory. Owner idencificd p:rt .'(:isdy what is 
nc,~dedi.to operate~ business; in O~klamJbu.t ·t,estimony was dismis.~ed as. decision 
pr~;des that "U,Ylh?r docsu'tknow how to--ru:n a'bus,t · ess ia Oat)and"'. 

The abcnre claim .is insulting. riclini tous ;;ind fa ls;e_ An er~-vncr'-s fiurib]e· o.r fat".k of 
uiad-ercimnd"ug af thc·r<::-pot18$ :Pr<)l~'i!-;;izl\t in thfa s:ftus.ti,ofi :t ia1;:l,. of.- ceirtifi'C.lte of 
mail~~ oIJ a rent board rn-spo-nse, is not iradkatl'!le of '"under.,;; ta.ndt ,g how . :o run a 

I 
000320



bqsfn-ess m qa~d . td argue. since 0-wuer has not had tu me ;J petition r,esponsc 
S,lllii:C 2014, we v,e:ry much .know how t_o n.m a hus.io.ess in. Oakhrnd, otherwise: wd d 
have nml□ple petitiQllS- e_ach ye r, 

The-tenant Hed about ou1· tot.al pen • oos: as we-11 and daimm.1 we have 'had 18. We 
have had ooly 1. petition priar ·to this caw. in 2014, ·where, ~ response was actually 
n~e4 1:h~ o,ther in 2020 w.as dismissed due re covid, a_s wc.Il as- ar:mtlu;!:, d ismfa:"ial 

the owne.rs did.n~t even lmow about 

s. Thie d-msJom. ts PJU SMDP:ftrted. by subsq.ntial eyidence. Substantial u1.eaos 
s-1,gnifican aind hnp,o,rtaut more than fleeting, As s:et forth in mote detail in tbe 
appeal responsiei there wa. no 1eliab1e-,evfdeni;:e provided by wmu1'la:s l o·amou.nt of 
area alleiCted O wn(!t was denied ~ue prore~s and abilityto re~pond as hi}iUing 
offi.oer 1 cfuscd any re:b'u ru! e:vid~~lt!l!, No, ,evide-nc:1? wais heard concerning proper 
valuation of d,ec:rea;se h,. r i,rn;,c:, 

0- The Owner was verbaPv abnsed and .J,gsu) ted by petttioner withootahiHty 
to de(eodo.oe5:e1f: Petiti.Qner went on a tirade,. verbally inslm •~ 'the owner- for well 
~ver sev~ral min rtes and when trying ~-0 d efe!lid. thernselv~s:, owuer wa·s denied this 
by the h5:rring officer, stating "'·It's: n'o per tinent to, the: case. oops I gu.ess. I let this 
om~ go uff the rail!'('_ Ulilprofes~fonal • 

7-_ DecrfilOD is lmoonsist:ent with Rent Hoard Repla1tious. The decision 
·fni;or:rect]y imposes: a-requirement of registration with.rent t-e-gistry at ti, u~ of i·n it:iill 
response in ]u11e 2023. Rent-registrations. and tees were not due until july ~ 02.3 and 
tin.ls sh?ttld apt be a ba r fur- participation in the proress. 

lhad he(11:rmg examineF r,eviewed response and aiUm,ved testimony by own~ th 12. 

d,ect.sion tvou.l;d be manifestly <lifferent as • oHows: 

• l. Re·pet itive ·C;i:ed its. The hear.~g decision has du_pLitated the r-ent credit in 
ceria.tn .a~s- r-91~ exarnptc_,. tlh! t,e 1;an1; L,;; offered a rc·n t t;,r:e,djt fu.r ·their 
• •. i ndow aintl t.ie~b:!f", i rJ ;;_,iddif!.lm to :a .r-~111t ~~ ~di I,. fo[" Jl,;ing .mom .. unfinis:1100 
work." Hoth the bea1terand window are in the living mom and wer.e-1 iSi<F;:d 
under "'unfinf~u~d W(')I'k'' on the 'l:ettani.S pe'tition. This is <1, dupr~te credi 
nd w~•i:t Ei.ke--the.~dt. for- u:nfir:1f.sl11:id livrng room o be rem~vedor" reduced. 

The he 1;1ter and ~Ild{_r1.1v aretihe l:a r,ges:lt: items: i 11 thi:s space. The re:maining 
i 4;: mi::i· ,,H.d:::iJ:di;: ihc;: ·wir:n~ow l!.l._m-9. h,;::ts i;,r;;:: rr- 'liVC ~ ll :,,u;:;r,¢:CU·, clip ;iuid a di:,~fui:-nace. 

The hearing deds.fon -aw.rrded the temu1t- : 15;i4 for the oo.thrnoro leak,. 
stating that we offered them l,6S3.2?. VJ/e rudn't offer them this tru<lit., hut 
ah'e'fl<ly gave tbi? te.nants th~~ c~d11:·mtd credited th{:f.- nl t acoortling.ly, 'fbe 
acco.uitting i.s s-ettled on ·this matn? -. We'd Like this •,,uncmnt rmnq~d-

000321



2. JngJp:ectly dc:$crih@ '.:Un · sabl!c Lmng.Spact"- ~e tenant :s heing a~ardcd 
for.186 tot.ail sq. '.ft of unusable spa.ce a:TJ d: that .-snot true a .aill!. Specific repairs 
listoo. on nis petition shquld he the basis for rehnb rsemenr and th.e .rerr 
'bmrrd shirmld •• dctern:iin€-what pen::eotage that is. ]t appears the hearing 
dedskm was based on:the tenants arhitrary· ven::entage per room. he testified 
\Yi.th at file: heariing,, regardless of whether that rs a true eterinunation of 
unusaid .livt.ng.~pace :OF 110· 

'J'f;Ee~c -arL:?: thi2 i~- heJo,-v di~t t.be ten h . I istet:~ tu'l.de:r '"1mfinishr0d ,.vor-11' 
ah:mgwjtb the tenant's determinmfion of unusable spare. Ther~ was·.no 
mu1sable Uving s.pa£€-_ 

IDtchen/D.ining Foom, 134. q ft dai'mc-d as 1.rnu hie and is :libsolutely 
r iaccurate. The ass.elilion. is ha.\;ed on. missing I) cat:111 lung from the 
backsp~asb which doc:i no in any way mnder the $pace uoas3:ble. Rep-ai • 
co npl•e:ted August 2023• 2) a .fm¥ mis.sin,::· cabinet latches wbidh did no 
p1.revent open and dose or l!IS(L Re-p~ir oomp~eteci. August .2023 ; -3) Window 
scr ~ • n and •clip. These w,ere repaired by the teoon and h c 'Wl:IS .alr,~ dy 
p:rov ded c011pe11ts;a:tion1_ .H.e: ,~~ .P QVid : 36.9ii6 in r~t ci-edits in August 
202 3 based on tenan.t ,calculations. 

Liv ng .room. 2 26-sq .ft claimed unus.a ble· again absolutely ln,a:o:;urate. The 
:a-ss€'rti.on is based on l) a Ql.issi.ng er-tom wi· .dow screen and dip. Tbi_ d~d 
not render .spac~ usable..: Repair cotnpleted August 2023. 2) ,claim that a 
window do12sn' close- This was .repa'i'tied, in September 20:23; 3) claim £ti.at 
f1i:m.aic:e left: m1d.ean_ Tirrs did not rrire·li'\eD use of spac:e or the.furnace_ It was: 
cJeaoec:laod r'epaked April 2U23 

.Bedroom,, 126 -~4- ft da.cmed as w1·f1.11~ble ~g~in ab.white :y inac:eu:rat12.. Th is 
;;:i.~ ertlun js based oo a_ i) • mi:ss'it1g lNi'n.•q_,DlA7 screen and clip, that d:id! m.H 
prev.ent use of window. Thi.s ·wmpfoted in Aug~ of 2023, 2] missing 
transition wbidi does not affect us.abrlily o • cai·J1et. Comp letcd August ·2023 . 
. 3) A missing blind whfch doe.s 1not affect usability. of wmndow. 4] daimed 
.r:11.ai:nt :splotches w.htch ts uor.-a habitability issl!.lc.and does not affect usability 
,!)f the unit.. 

Acc-01·d11,gty, we ~pute. that 413'6 sq .ft of li ting s.pace• ts. urrnsabie, as wen as 
tbii; O' Jf;dappici.g, l '!tml cn,wl . 

·3.. BAf....fio.f.t1E: ~J\Yllel!' , ras rqu tioncd a bo1.1rt • e RAP notice, whi.th :s al 'l,¥ays 
attad ed. to every lill!ase as w.as ·i 1:11 tin~: c:1rcumsta:nce_ 'ft ind ided the tenants 
signatures aad vra;s dated. 1· \vas confused and di.du· realize l couid add the 
altachment,dw-.·ngl he he;rring, nor did l thinkabout i once1,; ·'" told] 
,oouldn" testify. The tooanl tcstilled that he did not receive the RAP notiir-c 'in 
3 k11i1gu..a0e!'.. .:1~d th~n piro-t:cc.dod to- show o w- God'"'in !Properties RAP. 

addend.mn1 wbirt:b he pa ,ed in~o tl ·e· chat. Tha docuruen.t he ~ was not 

000322



the RAP noitk:e bmii.t ;a docu:ment our mmpany adds to the lease .acknowledging 
!the MP program. The official RAP notice lh.e tenants .Feceived i;s attached 
with si~atures~ dated 8/2-0 /2ifJ22-

4__ Bt.15 and .fnc{mality_ The hearing s.carted off with :notlificati.on that not only did 
the -en'-board not reee·~ve rn.y· resp 011se1 w.hldi was ,mailed! cm time; 'wifh 
proof of service, .md :was attached. but tha.t the h(..--ari:ng· officer w.as barring 
Own~ 'from testifying during the: hear.in~ The hearing officer d,.,1.intecU was: 
d,e~d ttom testify mg be.c-.au.se my RAP response w~s ,not received. The 
~nan ts: f.coo:wed theirs .. ] 11:ad a se:cimd hearing the fu11m,ving li'llf!Ck and 
everyone rer.:efoed thek oopy as well. I.bis was l:lnjust and biased to ~ay ~he 
}east_ J was. nevel:" toJd, nor v'l.i"'aS: 1t \t\lI"itten that I woutd be denied to tes,tif.v- 1 
s~t r or S hourswhik ·the wuant ,...,,as all,:Jwed to .spem k and r v.ras de 1 i,e-d th.at 
light. ] was OJlly abl~ to cross ~ .J'.l'.!ltl'l:P.1 not an easy thing when 1 ~a!'l..ie ne r 
cross examined. anyone b;i;fore. 

Owner wmr·furtheF denied due _p:rocm.""S by being prohibited from asking 
t1ues:tions !fu,at we:re-pe.rtinentto the case during the remand bearing. Th~ 
hearing oflii.-er st t-ed il ~sn't per tiuen.t, but anowetj. the petitioner tQ berate
tbe o,wri ~• a.'"'id gn ori ,and o~. If tthis: c:asc was :simply about whcthE:1 the O'!Mll2t 

1nailed something,, \i hy was th,e psetiti.cu:iier al lowed to insult and use time 
making co pfain -s,? 

, 5. ,Lark Of Du·e Process. This. '-vas-not· ~ fafr hearing by any n1.e-an,s_ All i:!v:f d.en·oo 
w~ denled based oo bi·a:s: reasons. The: Un t d States. Co.nst.iluti'.QljJ i tJiJ.d 
CM LKrC fa Co ~n~nti,on, A.rtid 1, s ~rnon 7 . prmrlde~'tnat a.]11.1:rs;on n1ay uot 
b~ de,p,Iived of Ii ft; Hb12rty or proJl~ without due process of faw or de1 ied 
equaJ protection of tlu~ bws: 

Due prnc-e.ss requires: an op port.um[;}' to be heard, a n:eutr,;1:l arbiter, ao 
o_pp-orti:rni t:,v trrmake a'Nld pfa1 plb"e:~ntation. a meal]S of presenting evidence, 
an op,portu_11 ity • ,Qttn}.!jsr-if:!karoi~e-ti..r' ,~,::.:;.ses or m re..~po,od to vi:n'itten miJence: 
among other thlngs. Tnese wer. .specifically deni~d by· th't! hearl1~g. i:Jffica 
who dienlted owner'·s ability to b 12 hearn by· hamstringing what evidence could 
be. ~nsider~ by refu~ng to ~loi.\o" _prop er ,anrJ fuJl crnss~nOJtion of thie 
p~enration ,Q' • the tenant,, by-refusal to allow owner.- tn -add.rf".:Ss wri't::ten 
c·vid'ence through testimony :and d-0cumentatiml, and by a hearing offioe who 
upunly diSpJ- yeti ho:s.tiUty to'Wn.rids tbe owner_ Ult lm;":1,~!Y, government,.'=l ! 
actors including admi111strative b0cnTds vio]ate tlu.e process vvhen they 
frus "ate th~. fain1e..-.s of tl:!,e pm:--t.:H:e~dlngs_ The op<:'r&tlon ot' the bearing 
_ .mack:;; of a la ck n.f'fu:nda:m(!'ntal fairneBs and equity m allowing the 0, mer to 
pre~ent .relevant, pmbin~ ~d matcl1a1 evidence. 

It should b~ ot be ove-rlookcd tha.t the stakes. here a re sign ifican:t ,md the 
c:Jaimed i..musaJ;t.le space dalrn V~"-1)' l-unu.ou:;. .• ,md :::.p~dou.:-.. Thu c.nd rn:'.iult ,uf 
the qeci~on as it sta.Qds is d.laJ the ten~ot is ess.entfuUy awarded 18 months, a 

000323



ycarr--.and~-hal:e of fre-e re, • t, and assertion :that. 'the l.!1 nit h3d essentially no 
value for 19. rn.oni:hs based on miss m,g wiir dow ~. transitio a di_Pi and! 
cabine catch. Th.us ia due p.rnress .:anc1ly.s1.s, the: deprtvatlon of due pto11.'iess bci 
owner here ts ;s1gntfktmt. 1'he· -owner sh-011 ld rightly have th·e -ability t a • 
ilddr~s each of the cla.i"rns. lt is fundamenta]Jy a depr\r,ition ofdue prnr.css: 
fur the hearing offire lu deny <ick1Ji~sibi lity of evidence on point and then 
da:tm a:!;> Q. basi.s fur decision that d et'e li\laS a tack of the ve,y Ea!vfrkmi:::e 
rn bmitted. 

We appeal the ,entire decision a.nd req~- that t he hca'rtl"q; response, h e a11X:epted, 
the RAP ho rice- he ~ :ceptt!d; per required by the Ren B,oard and tha lh~ her!ring 
deci.sit11itl be: r~•evailuirted..to 90 days per unit issue and that the 1nflah":d un tl:,;~ bk,1 
spare ·ne: ,,i~ter.e-d Llo r.efil,~ct tbe a,,d:ua] damaged or affected tl3ern 

& an O.:dd;:md lanirnm•,d~ ~r'ating in tb:e ajty tor over 40 years, this tactic de.~ign ~d 
~u, s.ilem .. -e o rrvoice ,u1:d use incon.~eqaential ltc~'l, :a.li1 a way l.o quell res Imony and 
, eoo ~. while la~er listio,g the tenant's petition as: "'undisputed:"' Under the ai:.:.tiuns by 
the bea:riT1gofflc-cr, owne-r w.as-Mt provided dne proc-ess or equal.-pI1otection under 
f{:!dicJ·a1 or CaUfo;rr,f ~ law. 

We have a !ways. 'tr' • -.~1 .;,,a.nd .under.stooti the need f91:" the Rent Program ru1d bal-'.e 

bean u.pstmding orN11e:rs • Qr manyyears, lbut thiscuff'ent situa't:ioo is a blatant ,ahus~ 
,of ao ... o-verall good syst em des: gned tQ ,assi:n tenants and keep landlords in check 
"fbi:s is not the w~y for Oakfand rente,'5 an(j oWTieir.s to oome to beU-er terms aodl 
T,voHc ·.,,.vnh each o he,r. 

Sittf;ere1y, 

((½/) Yln~ 
Melanie God:w.in-Rosal~ 
-GQ~w· 'IP roperties 

Attac:hments: 
1. Our odgitra l response ~o the-petition. plllS pF,oof of serritl:1, dat~d 6j26/23 
2 .. J\ct.uaJ ~ signed. handout~ not new evidence, i t was bronght up during the 
heill:"il!J!:, . l pc.1!¥:,tf.S, :i;i~uttd 6/ Z0/22 1 lrn.:iud Llll.J:l: ;:,,;t;n::tm:shul uf,-..ignaw~ pJtge .in ]ease. 

s 000324



CITY OF OAKlANO 

CITY OF OAKL.AND 
RENT ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM 
?,SO Fr:ank H_ Oga.~ ~ Suite 53 .I J 
Oakl-alild~ CA 94612--0243-
(5'10), 238-372 I 
CA ~ay &nriee 7.11 

.-=:.::..:==~·iry dco,1qv(RAP 

F llir Rm.Ad~~~~ 

CASEN11MBER T ----

P:ROPERTY ,OWNER RESPONSE 
TO TENANT PE ITION 

::=tw.ttblli rorm u ,;omm~~yqu -S;Rn· u-.~~:to~tou~ TL'!'lltID:·~~ ~ - B;' _ 
.• . - 01is ~ :foiln ,~ $11.tih'it#ing1 m the -~ -m;ie tw ltJilt/J. you~ be able ro partfcipafe ~ too treanng, HiJJare m. 
~de; the~ ~;man 1r).!J1 :IWUft m :,atJr ~rme befflg rtYflCled orde~ &.-u "Jmpfli@_r;;t ~tfJfioo ~dmfl 'Fi.UmJ 
Y(.ltlJ!" Re~· 12n tne last~ Of this ~ -fw:monJ•~~ ~filing·ill'Ji!1'n:~ ~ how '1Ji ~ ~e Rent 
A~ P~f:R;AP'J liil:i6r ~~-~~is &lS1a< av.~ M tJm RAP-~ CONTACT A 11-0USJNG 
COI.INSEl.OR ro RBnEW¥0M .~82FORE~ Wmaks M ~~fl~~ OO'l -

\RemtA_l ,Unit tnfQml~ 

~Name 
d05 
Un ·ro.m~ 

Oal&md. CA 9½tnl() 
ZlpQxla 

Ty.peQfun {:s) 
( c&o.!\: (lfflj!) ; 

Sin a · 
□ Goodamit.· 
~ Apa~ .r,qam. or~ 

~-ofuolft;.onip~-- _·1 s_-_· --~
~a~uedpmpe:ity: _ ___J_·~(rl)-_5 __ -----

Tanandnfomi~n 

Wan, cl'Tmant Petttia.t'lfi(:,.): ~~!!..L.l~....,d--~~LLL---(...~~--!a,___..J::.~...J.,,;!:::t-~~~...:i....--

Date tefl3i'!t[1.} !'110¥tild ii:dn~umre b 1f LplJ L In 

P.rQDGrtyt OWner l\e.~e ~ ooliJ:· Ne. Rep~~ 0 ~ □ Noo-sttomey 

- lafhi' R5)4 }'o J 
--- - --

Last Name FTl'i'lilf.Orgariizmioni ,(jf ~ 

. Me -~ ·s- ,Q ✓V'."> .,. 
.. g ...:: 

----~- ---~ Email: _______ _ 

:Page 1 of 
000325



T9 r~ a ·R~ to a T.cnsnt PeUtion~ ~ pr,ape.r1,yoMiffi"mr.m.t· ~ oo fl)8' ~ ~la and d.tr.iit 
~~tafiica ottxJmf)li:~ .. ~ OwneF ~es thlll: ar-s ~ ~ .tJmaf<! ~ct1• . . ,.-:· m9: 
~b.l'ow ~ lii/1 tesCOOS!'~ ~~ ma_y limit fUUf ~ In me ~.Mg. 

D Paj~f. of Jbml Adjustment Pmgrmn 
1 
j'f:.' ~ ra:e !(".RAP Fee")' 

a ~ Qi1he reQuiJrOO _Cit)' lmti 
-~9ed[· NQ:tf:CETO "l'E~ CF 

TH . RESIOl;t,mAL RENT 
AD.P.J$TMB4T P.ROGRAM" ("RAP 
t.Jot~1 ,a , . Wriants 

~ 

Attscb • ~cf S"Dd da$d ~iY. af~g RAP Nalib9 ~to~( 
A~ ttl'tu,ni( i!i) ,a,r. aheck mr:t ~OOI!/ bcM~. I 
_la. rfin;tprov~ lemlrit{s)wilh h,~ ~on {dB!&}! ~2(..o /,2 7 .. 
□ I tla.\le-rte:'i!E!f ~ :s RA>P Noooe.. -....: 
□ 1 do nm mi3W ff a AAP Natict was. av.er. tP.rnvi'd'ed'. 

ll j1'.Ju~ltdl ltie1·#ie ~~·Is,ex.em¢·:tmm me·R:m:Jt·A~.Niilmt~(p~ls a.we. §.B..22.!130). -check 
l!:',lilc/l~ beloW-#:tat'.iSttreelQimed.~of~- Atittdi ~~~.cwilh y;aur~ tmr», If 
yi,u ,oooot:t.r-...tfrnany~~;(Q~~:R">T~P-ljifiooll~~oo-rJtt,~~-

l:J. ·n--.i!!l !llillf I!!:, a s:ingle4amjty· ~ noe or ~m ~ by tt:IO• COB!B: Haw'.kimt ~ 1:-'ouslr\Qi ~ {.CNII Cioi;te 
11~-M..fiO., et :seq-.}. II e1iimlng this~ ,YZNJ" n·n1.st -~dw lollmwng ~ -.Attach.a~~ 
if IMP-Ci88S'4Plf-

Did me: r.moc: ·rsnantl!Nw ~ tia~mg g9.i,en ,a ~ tc quit (CMI -Code :Sec&iil 19«;)?' 
2. ma the nrnor ~mm? . :ve -~ be'iag~·~ :e l'IDl:U;:e of reim -~ (Ci:v15 ·Code Secfloo 82.7}? 
,3.. 'Wal!i 'Ifie pd()t ~ -~ · f(ll" Gtllle'1 
.JJ_ At the J:i!'Mrtfm iPri9r h!mmm ~-~ 'lhar;e ,eny ~~ 'liicla:tfoN of ooJl:i;lili'lg h.oosin:;. :F.i151 or ~~i~ 

~ filnit.or ,b . 7 
5.. he: IIJ1l\it 1.e'.~~ alieniibfn.. meamrng it.can bE!' $01t1:scpar.afE.l:J' fiom .any .o(hti' um on 1M p,aroef!? 
a Didi lhe pemto.rili'ng enant.hii'il'e: ~when he;~ rnow:d im? 
7. 11lhcnmi'E re: -acmdmr:r • , ~ldlyou:p~ ii? lf:sm: 1) From 'MKJm?2.) Did y,au ~ lho ·anfu'e.·m.n"1df~ 

□• Ti~ ~rorm.t iii: ~ llltd, ~ , -or~ by :a!~ 

of'Qaklarid ~.em ~ ·Otizifla~ (A.ttaoo ~k} 

Th.0J 1tm· wes .n~y ~ :&;.'W ~ , .a ~ ,Oif~nq on Gm"" a:tte; Jarnaaff 1. 1983.. (.AttacD copy .of 
Getfmcate d ~ J • • 

□ TJ)e urat ila, mi a :b~ridin1.1 fllrti!. w;is. 11Jn.t1,,i i,_,.1y mlliNI ..i ~ a ~ fu;m"I RA'!" ~ on slib5fflnc.lE!f tenabrlM!ft-on. 
(A.ftsich' Ci'.lj)'.V d CeditlcalB af~~:J • 

□ Tmi Wiill! r-s. an ~~l:IOOlill lrt a. ho:sJ;liral, oon-ui,.nt,, Rlc;l'JBStely; ~ doo care [facility,. ~esoo:.rd ooine-. OOftl~ 
hi,iw_foc 1he-~ ~ or ~ owned ant!!· ~,t,y an ~~r btstirutxm. (Attacb ~ 

-~ :0~:R~to Temmt ~ 
R.= • 00/]4./2,022 

Pa.ge-2 of4 
000326



R'ESPONSE TO TEI ANT PETITION 

Vff' b · 9J'.lmfll We fp r:gpond to me· Ql'@Hl§, §taMin ~ Tgnant Nfflon. &ref'}"OJh''~ 00 eavh· ~in' e, 
iiipPP.Jpl.1.'l[Q ~(s) ~- Yo m.,y .s:lfach.myo'rxurn9m'!;; ~s., ora~rf.mgitxe !!!Ii'~ ·m-at --~ 100T 
~ t~N Mf.h·your,~ i'O.mt JI'~ need mQm' sp809, ~,ad~ cqpit:s.r,J'thJs~, OJ" .sfliml' yotJi" ~$8 
Sna61 ~.'n fmNt.~rxl m:thk; wm. 

~ if.tiu11r¢ C&Ul ~ 
giwnrtoti'ffetlf ~w.m: 
rent 1n~: lrim.effK't 

FROM 

$ 
$ 

' $ 
s 
$ 

TO 
$ 
$ . 
$ 
$ 
$ 

D~·j'.ou~,,s 
~o"With·~ 
~(:lij-~Rnt 
~ 

1l'1B:i NO 

□ □ 

□• □ 
Cl □ 

u u 
w~ fi18nt ~tiQ\n Ia b!med uo e-Jlhff of'ltlS' ro11owmg· ~-- q1e yaur ~nsei in- the- s,paee, ml'J;M or it. 
, . ~f&S' sh:eet atte-eti.ed to ilhls; :fOlrn.. • • 

(~ Tenam.d~:l not~·~ri.~.waa,oo 
pro,pefif ~ andfor WM' tu ldiidwifu: 

e: rreqtJimd RA? ·lii:mJ with IW'fl ~t). 

~A.3) - A ,~~ ageti~ l:u : , ~ ~ ' .~ 
uiiaus.hea ~. •• , art~.1mt1i·oo QCOe 
"\®'.lmt'kma-. • , • 

B .. 
DeGreaaed Hb~-lng Services· 

) ThE:: mffl!!r18 providing~}, w.ltl1 ~ 
t 11:i1:J$in91 !581fw:ibel ai"ldfor dla~ • r ~ 
omgrlfl.;t,21y pa,"rl ror Jri' ttie O'Wlilffl'_ 

~J T~ • tsrare.· ,t~lly·~for 
utilities: 

Qthet 
c _ 1,-i - - - - ---- ---- ---- -

. 

o.n.lr'R~· 

Camplttia /ms~ ff ,H!'JY .o hg, ~ fur Jhe T~·AJilmorl ti 1;rndcrC~ Coo~ ~Pi1rlfiofl. 

(y1) f.teni ~ ni;,,'I: ~ a:lmr a •ir:u1ot· renHn~ 
permti .fur -cspru,A ~nm 

{CS) imwnr' 1~-" l!1:Sl1: al1l!IOO:IU wa-$ ~ 
~~fffl ·r.~ -~i)EI~~ ;~ 
r=rt wltbiM· an (0.M.C-. §, 8.22Jl80 (C).l 

> • 

Page3·of'4 
000327



~ declei& under :PeP.eltf of, , " ~ · to the Jmvs etthe-~ of'Califomia tlm ~mg Mva ~Id m 
this.R1~.se .;s :tru& • • s • & ~es.~ to the .~ iafa ~ Wp1es or me adgmws. 

~~~~~ ... ==- =-- t /z, l1-?, 
Dtr.e, 

·c1ieck ~ box bektw if y.oo agree. to have RAP staff. and th~ OTHER PABTVnES ~d you documi,t1m. ra , . d. to you 
ease erec::trm1a[y .. If' yoo agree to ~ic seriVI~ 1ne ~P ~ sand •~o dbw~ts can1y • ecm>nfCally aoo 11ot 
br fimt dass mail 

it- uwe:-.gmsent _m ~kmg ~c• , : . • documents In ti'ufli ~ from the RAP anc1· hm th.e oruER 
PARTY JES, •klmoft1cally ;it the ema a&hess(-M)1 ~eel In· ttlls niapomo. 

• • i.ab r.s-.2n. .aptiormt ~ss offered by .RAP'tc :E1Ga~tm:i - rties in settllng-:l:h1i: issues ,refsted w, 1a-Ren:t .Adj~n·, 
,case as ar,' .attemam.t.e to Him .~ heating pgeess.. A fflm'IE!!di ihod .parfy will 'IV!Jrk -wilh fue pairdes prir;11r to ·(ha tlei!riflQ' 
to .sei rf a l!ll!JWBI ag · • men.t can, be. lleaC~- 1~ a seffiel'fii:lntt ~s ~ed the, ~ • :~n. a ~l'liCH!19 agl:Bfliner~l and 
-~ -• . I not be a folfMJ l'tflrmg. H oo sett!ermmt. $ reacfla1, the ,ca·se _· m go to a fmmal hemtig wffll a Rant 
M jusmt(!!'ll rlearfng oimer. vmo·wHIUJBl'li isStle·a tiear!il1i!l i:ifesislon. • '' 

:M&dia~n Wi: f only be .a .. , erJLnM if bottrpattiesa,~ to metjjate.. S"qJ~ belO'W' if yo:u agrree to medrataon in y ·. r CM~. 

Ii Engliah Tur not yom primmy !anguage!. ye~ have 1:1:ilB. to. • m~tw ~n JQW- pliimary lang~imad eit ~ Rent 
Adju • . nt h~g aod met:aiation sa.sskin. You am request an i~fer by completing If •. Si/lCOOn. 

19 Q 
~ (m.71 · ~to T~ 'l:'ei:itra 
~ . 09Jtwm 

□ ~~- ~ 
io Csntooesa! m·*m 
a ~rin r•,~~i 
□ OO!er.---- ----~ --

-END OF' RESP,ONSE~ 

Pa,g;e4of 4 
000328



Cfr¥ OF OAJ{LA • D For RmtAd~t Pmyui d·· ~ -

RENT ADJUSTM:El'fr "PROGRAM 
"2:SO Fl"",lmk H.. ·Ogawa P sza,. $o:it~· 5313, 
Oakland, CA 94612--02 3 
(510) 2.Jt-3721 
CARcla;y ·~aw-cei 1U 

d~,r 

P·ROOF O SERVIC·E 

N01T1E: YOU ARE REQUIRED if,Q :SERVE A _C:,OPY OF YO R. IRESPOHSe (PLU.S .ANY 
ATTACH effS) QN "l"HE TENANT'.(:S) PRIOR TO FWING, YOil!JR ·JtE:BPON8i= WffH ftAP. 

1) U:re tffls PROOF OI=SERVl(;Efam; folndicafe·'tm d8ta andrnmm~rof·sannce·,Mdthe~on.(s} ss.rvea. 

2) Ncm: Etrlsil' is~ . - fulm of.~ ~ -{}IJ a p.Mfy of' .e wtfD.on ll1f" ~sef)IJ~ . . ro me O(d!nam;:t;t. 
~) ~ -a· comp,,etsd .copy of '!hi$ PROOF OF SERWCE fQm1 i~ lhe ~s} being--~ .tog,elher ~ffih ffte 

dbcume~ bemg ~ • • 
4) Fi/f; a-:romptetea eopy of this PROOF F S'ERVlOE fOflll' wHi) RAP .tog&thwWifh your~ .. Your 

Respmrse rt trot be considered com~ um.i this fiilm ha.Jj·:tffie.'1 ms,, indicEi~g 1ha/. -lj"~ ~ ~ 

On •. • followi • · date: Q ~ «J'\o f;;)·?J I served .a copy of (ch90k 811 thal apply}· 

~OPE&.TY OWNER RESPONSE ·m •TENANT PEm'IO~ r;,I s L.attadled pagas. 
{numoor of pages atl.ached m Re~onse not counting the Response toon or PROOF .OF 
SERVICE} 

~ Olhem:: __ ...___,, ____ ~---------
by • _, fo ow.lng means (checkoneJ: 

Ju United state& ~.alf. I enclosed Ula d~ent{.s) In a sea ,enve ope or pa~ addr~sed to tne 
person(s} [IS/ted belo.w and et·lhe addr.~es) below and deposf..ed' the seated envelope with lhe 
United Sltat@s.P-o.s.tal SewiCQ, With ttle pc:ata~ fu'lty p~id- • 

□ P~r•u•I ServwQ. I personally delivered. ttte dooument{~) to the Pf!l'aOn(s.) a: 'tioo addJess('G"S.) 
Hsteo ool\ow o.r I the dooumertt(s,) atttte eddress{e$) IM1h ·s-otne· . rso • no.t _y,ounger than· 1i 8 
years Gf.:a9!'•-

PER.SON S SERVED: 

Nmne 

Address 

7 
Page.1 of2 

9 JO 000329



~ JD. 
ffll(lcf o.r~ 
'Rev. j\"l.i1'lfill 

Page i of2 

000330



~ ~ -~ A4jE¥metn 1'~ $!001 t'RAF"} ill:!ii Eimits. fLlli!t_ • • - _ 10\~~~ ·a2~ o,ft],c. ()i.~ tntl 
MlmJtjp:il_~)"~ oo..it:m. ~ 1 r~ tl:i\E ~ Wl~ • , ."it ~-re l 9fil_ fm:~imfc~~ oo • 

if:i'"wu-Ul!ll.15: lirC ~ ~t:ru::it too Ml i:dl'f • 
~ -C!fli ~ l"O'ia:)' •~ ~ ,r1 ~ ~~ ~oolh~ RAP fot~ i;,::mt:~ ~ H ~ i. lht::! 
~-wil -~ ~ ~("(.t'f. ~ ffl' . 1i:»'i"Cd. ~~.,.·-· • , 'fro~~ iodi:ii=:captm! 
~-~~~int~~ i1 o=c:s. ·~ ~ f)~«;re;m.~~~-(IVM-e." ~ ¢~ ~ 
;t:an.u:i • ~ ~ ~~'l¢t:'.ihi:t:i-~1fle~ ~ ·oami~mJlft~liJtil)'~~ I~ y~ 
~ -:s. ~ ~;.:o-nMeft_ ~ ~ m· ~ ~ ~~-~ lilr: Q!-,lni:f."s; p!.Zti~ Yoo do:mJt~ 
:t(p ffie:},~OWO ~ • • • • ··- • 

Co ~ a: lttat~: YC!'a = 51c: ii1 ~la<lil ~ - RJ\P (Ci. :.ioin~r.m ~~ ~ i~"t 
~~~~~~ ~Q,--~ :a~~Y°':~;tllh~ .~~ ~ ~ ) -~~ ~~-(~;~~ 
-ci'1tlit)1li.lltir;:~c0f~_.rt:iG~ ~mt,(li'1Mt'11!:t ~ ~ ,iddJ! Tai NDtice'{o :]:\i;:ru:;it1F~ ~~ of rea 
~ ~ (;2 ~ ~ d~9f _ .: n_~ Of ~ r i@L~m !lt,; Ntiticeiflli.. T~ wa tj.i!:gr,,'1311 nitn 
the ~dimil~ lf-~<mo-n(:!r6l oor '¢ ~ N~1.r(l; Tl:!il.al!i";..:t~~.; i!iE~ -011. 

'L~:r,,~"O~ m:mt. fi:fi; i!I. ~ '11,-hlirn mn~·r.w:, ~ Ii!~ :tirS8. ~ Uli:s ~WT~ 
ln{Pl!Q"im~t'.I allill ~ ~ • s::1<T :a-va;I&'ij]1;:'fi,om ~ EtAP doc:rp-~ officc.a:uboe.Ho.~ ~ 
~:z:so Fttmk Ft~ Pl~ 6ffi.fIOtM', ~ ::iniil m 
,~~.Mt4':<,11RL~~ ~ ~ llA4f ~tc;J::mrri,: 
r~~ m1L ~ -)'{)'-' ·~ · ~~r ~ ~b ftiC: ~ -icx:r=~fil.i:;·;;i.pctitioo_ 

·:in11t: !~tfil.ltds. ~fillll II did n« p,,1,-1.1ac rn~)[OUi'will-Oiw,; id1!: ... oo_~~ ·ai.t-.·~ 
~~mum~""°~ of"~e. • • 
~~~ ley-;: ~ -i;:n.-rtmk ~(ne·.b.1:-C,.;:i~ for IB.vi-criOCI On;i~ ariiE ~~i:it~ 0~.C- ~E) 
Mlic!:iillitiut ~~-·:or M~ Im.~ wm:... f'm-·m~ ' fgr.JJ:r;:::;~-~ w-AA'r,~~ 
,O.a::1dm:u!l ~~~~-Rent~~ F-cc: ~ 1:1~ ~ ~-If~fa. ~ ~IIJ-:!o ~~-
~ B-~ Ill 2d; rndf' nt tbd'eedh:imrymr.. "f mmbim w~dad 1.:nn. ~ oo!- reqU.'11E-lho~ ,i,i 
k~ -~ . Qt<""Ule {L-E.. 
~ am' -~~[!I[!:~ ('.'J.P07 ro ~~~~'i.Q_.:$1,y Twr~_w ~ -~'IC 

~I~~~ i:Iit ~~ 'l'!C:ti?. ~.l¢~i# w ~ ~1,y~,(O.M.C 
-t.2i.~ (q~ ~ -~No. ~~-e-~tq . _ ~ _ • _ , _ . 

• Tili,!: '(I~ _ . 1$ mt~cdro set k-Itl~L® ~an 1'1li:s: mm; wimJcJ.:i timi~~,{:.<!.A.~ ~ 
PQ[$~iliil'~~~-A~ Ad}c tr"~ Ismt ~ ,:o;~ 'c1E • • hi:11.t.~ ,f.1,uJ~~~ 
'{lie-~~~ 1!""~~~ ~ ~ "Q,~ - ~-

T - - ' - • - ' I.QSllBE 

.. ~~.,. ~ :~).lS~L~ ~;( ,'1111 m~_~,~ _ _ _, 
- • r.;,,uf,}:ria; ;i,......,.. .-.i'i") u;_ n t: N,Oi! _ _ . . ,tr l!,,:,uJ ~::1n:l: rmt1-lilllok:mz rt5 
~~ • m.rmf '!>' !J:.,l!,j.l ..g._ mm::b ,d . _ - . _ :i;:s-~,, 

• -n.......Ar ;..,,;i;., ......,. l!il _,.,,- li:l ;..,o.:- .fr'i~ .turU!iu&'. ;.~ l1ll'CI :l(ic~ 

ra.1'utao ~ -
I Add~ n;202.93:.'!r::l 

~OU □9:5/ilpm pli)if 

-

9. ~moro o '65: w 
Q & AOOENDtJ~ KC 
,AqR-t ENT~.E 

1 , »o11CE TO 
• J V.,.l: 

M 

11 .. GP ,.;Main!~ ·::ti_e, tc 

__p,;l_t 

1 rn. 

,IC • 
000331



li.~A U\S lNQlll!LL"IIQ$. n 1...rn:uGI-J.:\MA. ,oE ~ .t:t,i &. ALQU.U.EJit 
RL'illDl:~C,CAL 

- ~ - ~ . I~ d.:: -~..,, !;Ii J«r,:ilcr-~ ~ID(!M~,-, R:.,µ>J ;,;,>C liciil';I ~ 
, - ($'!?i' i.i~l<iJ,d (C;ipi!u.b~rJe:!C~r.:..,r1· 1J:iatrI,;,~)' · i:u.m!!n!a.l!:ll)'fflfl.dlt~ 
n:o.id,alks: r~~l.(;s;- tq;.:,l .G:llt'IJ:D!iti:3 . ~&:i tm. 0 FE.i rru.s. ~ E!:$ ~;~ 
c~ ~ a: 1.i Q'ncin a. d?I w . 

• A.jlllrtiridd l "d:o-·: ~ ¢C'll!lT7, 11 • Ft\fJ!'i!l:llrio·~~~ -~e'.l ll\N"~:'iID<fO 
~ m cl ,11lq1t"li;:cqv-0.~ . ot qi$'1ll ~ ~ J ~ im d i~ ~ •Cln 
~1\Wli Ji:r.,; ~!!t$ mi. -~ 1i1er "'Jil.11 i ii~~- till!~ ~i-@ ~tI:1.1 'JI 
'-ill1Qel~~~ ~~~~"e;je- - lf.e=""W:,·eis:ir()Ji~l!>~-Dit 
1_tq_ ·1«s&:a ilspi,it:s,dt qQC u.'l (111)¢.jila.Jr..:i;ac-~ ~'ill!!on~ r:r m ,i!>ll'1!:llll1: :l'GD.;iiu 
~~~~~~~di l '!l¾,. U~•- ~.i ,utzcl_.rum;:;ul'Qm d ikr 
~o ~o ::t_ki ~ ::1~ N,:z, ~ indl;i,>cns.ible: 'lJlPf •_ ~ ,poo;me m~ 
~L 

• G&~ tfi:lp t11~m1.- • Iott ~cr.··~r.:p-=tut !IGJ.~ _. ,;£11:APi-...~l;;ir 
0 at:!1:1ti:!11:l:i!Ki~ cl.nlqullm:-4:lbrdfsmihuci" &M!R':ief s;ea \ ,J • P::uudi:pu:t'm- ai ,d 
.a'\qµiL ,,f . ~:uni! ~n • u;:1~o12odc~ili.i.s F -i:-~ • ~d'cl:.ir~de~ 
, d~111 -,.;, f•~~im~esidA'WS':!!.li tmqp.ilmM~Ji~~ 1 
~ d l'.l,k,-~ _ ""~) dl- •Uil, pli:o:IZ! ~ litl dfas: i1 ~ -,It, lb. r~ "'-'-~ .(r(!f ~.,- .. ~~o:. 

.- • cl, ' l:q.,=i .~ A,...-l, ..,:. itilpi (11;1 moo:..~ ~"'S" • . C'-"l'dll • _ loo:. ~ il.iJwr,:ri> en.c l :ol;piik,; 
·,r,e1: PJ'IUJl'..ot!M n~ -.r~ I.IS(;. A • . :o. ,f.i;;yr.'!nu:z, ,.1 ~ui l:aik, ~~ms.;£:ia'i~ .!Cffl!':!i 
~ui'm ,,,.,;licTwd. i!!!]: p'li:iro d (90),cf"i;u: 'l ' rk) [:,, (r;dcu;ft '~- Kl}IIN"~~Cl=!D 

{'1-,,~ _' Tqs ~ a~i!Kr:sa. ~~,y f~lari(q;.~f;::s,= hi M'"~-~- ,.ri,_P' -~cl 
~ .<ic • ·W~J:c \l'oi,jc,r ' ~l)Frci;: Jll.,~ -if'~ li!/1 1P Uf:OO iw;ituc: 

' .,, . ,. • . ·n •• • , ,.. :nmcn· • , ~ • 

- ~ • . -~,;:-m-~ :;a.:..,11cr-; ~w,z(lquk«rn·d:am,u::,,,:>~~QUC! 
~W; : ~ S-'i,t!I __ ii:mi.r_ , ~ y _ - 11?11:dkr~ ;:iila.d1:;:li1',. ·- = &fomrEme!IUf; 

-~~ii..'-= i;,!hs,,dc,1mao,_d ~i;:i rl!::11.i~ ·-- .-
- ~~CC!!bul13- ~- ~,if,.((h • rl:1'1:~~J:19'"~J y , - _n Q.~E.!!::1:} 

a,,,;, lirnt lllll~~ :_ _;,_·: ..... ~....,, . ~h.-~~:~ ' ~b[oo~~ :·..r.11!1..(d( • 
.,. ..... .... ~,.--.-n ~ ·~-,..-- .. • .... • .. 

~ -
.. Qi,.l&.i!d 'l:¢!ffiuh~.l.i!;!i • f;\d',:- ,kuidcl.~ i,!,c;lelql,l la:',t;Rdil.P:iv:r-= 

~,r~\_;~~~ ....... ~•J...s. . -~-~~ ---..~:..at-ru, .n.1,,~-~-'½""":~ ... &. l"!'!""l I ~ - • • ~ --

'.i l . 6?'. illt efliirlQ'!. . ~II" I , 

1' 

-A'tCEPT~NC:E . .., r: 

000332



• 
i 

• 
i 

~ 

Pl~ ' 

,oo,Ot:~U 
1 "(,lfl,ifJ .r ~L .. ~~l * r1ril1t;hm a~· 

~ 
-~ 

Mtiffl~, 

#Jlu.~1,P~ ..... 

tmt-lP'tJ 

!t:;fii~) -jJl 
• 

'4).J •• 

t~Y4'N,!,\ inifiH~!)"JllUlt~tfl'.U❖ rt-e'ilt ~s:i.ef 291'--372l. ®itiJil~ 
• • '-~ o~ did ,,~ ~iA dispQlll!llt:·4'11 11~~G'i. SI~ t1ru1 ~~ ~"'r,.11 (!lli» a~:Ji7J~ 

~ <bi. ,i....- - -_ F - --==. -~ S-J:,g3-d zP ~ -_ • ik~•;!.!. 7:I2'!1..,. " ❖ • ~ -' ~ • ""' · , "~ """' ""' r, • ' - I I ..... l)S!;!0!2,(;i~ ...... "'"'r I . ' 

\,,a*~ ' ' -· 

I , v.'; 

H n 

1'4. "· 

A C-:C E P.:f A·N-C E 

<'iii';.. 

a---
~ 

000333



o BID.l 2 e • Li'I. _ ore, c.;i, !3456il 
Q2~ ":224.-5S61} 

1.3 
Oakland_Rent_Pgrm __ Mu[t_Lanugage_.pdf 

X ;fmruw i?ay OOJJUt· 
L IIJS,""11A 

P Ali:i~ : ,3.202.!:G~ 
00l2.ll'2002 . . m POT 

-
I ~j~ ,. 7310• 'Foa.9;?! 

f.ZW~z.i fD:L • Pll)T 

000334



EVIDENCE & APPEALS

Rent Board Training January 2025

Deputy City Attorney Braz Shabrell

000335



TIMELINE FOR EVIDENCE SUBMISSION

Petition & 
Response forms

Hearing Appeal

• Additional
evidence
submitted up
to 7 days prior
to hearing.

• Evidence
submitted with
petition/
response.

• Mandatory v.
permissive.

• Oral testimony

under oath,

cross-

examination,

rebuttal. New

evidence only if

good cause.

• Judicial

notice;

property

inspection

• Supporting
documentation submitted
within 15 days of appeal;
responding party within
30 days.

• No new evidence unless
good cause, failure to
respond.

000336



EVIDENCE REQUIRED 
WITH PETITION OR RESPONSE

(OMC 8.22.090)

Tenants

• Completed petition or response form

• For petitions contesting increase due 
to code violations (8.22.090A4d)→
copy of citation 

Landlords

• Current City business license

• Payment of RAP fee

• Service of RAP Notice prior to 
petition being filed*

• Compliance with Rent Registry 

• Documentation supporting 
justification for increase or exemption

000337



IMPACT OF INCOMPLETE OR UNTIMELY
EVIDENCE

• Petition or Response may be deemed

incomplete and dismissed

• RAP may issue an Administrative

Decision

• Owner Response dismissed if filing

requirements not met

• Evidence not served on other party or

not timely filed may be disregarded.

• Non-responding party prohibited from

calling or examining witnesses or

introducing oral or written evidence and

is limited to cross-examination unless

good cause for failure to file response

000338



HEARINGS
(OMC 8.22.110)

• Determine facts

• Witness testimony

• Weigh conflicting evidence

• Due process (opportunity to be heard)

Purpose

• Opportunity to call witnesses, present
exhibits, cross-examine, rebut evidence

• Formal rules of evidence do not apply

• Oral testimony must be under oath

Procedure

000339



JUDICIAL NOTICE

• Hearing Officer may take “official notice” of “any generally accepted 

technical or scientific matter within the agency's special field, and of any fact 

which may be judicially noticed by the courts[.]” (Gov’t Code § 11515)

• Laws, Regulations, legislative acts, official documents, common knowledge.

000340



HEARING OR ADMINISTRATIVE 
DECISIONS 

• Must be based entirely on evidence placed into the record. (OMC 

8.22.110D3)

• Hearing Officers must make written findings of fact. (Regs OMC 

8.22.110F1). 

• Hearing Officer weighs witness credibility, burden of proof, availability 

of evidence, direct versus substantial evidence, etc. 

000341



• Appeal is based on the record as presented to
Hearing Officer. (OMC 8.22.120B4).

• Board generally should not consider new evidence.

• Exceptions: good cause for failure to respond or
appear at hearing, or evidence “could not have been
available” at Hearing Officer proceeding.

APPEALS

Party makes proffer of evidence (this is what I would have presented if
given opportunity)→ Board determines if evidence is significant and good
cause exists.

REQUEST FOR APPEAL 

000342



BOARD SHOULD NOT SOLICIT OR ASK 
PARTIES ABOUT EVIDENCE OUTSIDE OF 

RECORD, INCLUDING TESTIMONY

PARTY ARGUMENTS ≠ TESTIMONY

000343



EVIDENCE ON APPEAL

New evidence not in 
record

“Good cause” 
evidence re: failure to 

appear or respond 

Party demonstrates 
“could not have been 
available” at hearing 

proceedings

Party makes “proffer” 
of evidence (i.e., this is 

what I would have 
presented had I been 

given an opportunity”).

If good cause and 
evidence is sufficient, 

Board may remand for 
consideration. 000344



STANDARD OF REVIEW

• Hearing 

Officer 

findings must 

be supported 

by substantial 

evidence. 

EVIDENCE → FINDINGS → CONCLUSION

000345



STANDARD OF REVIEW

Hearing Officer

• “Preponderance of evidence.”

• Party w/ BOP must convince HO 
>50% chance what they’re saying is 
true. 

• HO weighs evidence, including 
credibility. 

Board

• “Substantial evidence.”

• Reasonable person could come to 
same conclusion.

• Appellant has burden of 
presenting evidence and 
demonstrating it was not 
substantial. 

000346



JUDICIAL REVIEW 

• Decision must be supported by 

findings, findings must be supported by 

evidence. 

• Court may overturn decision if 

findings not supported by substantial 

evidence in light of whole record. 

• Deferential.

000347



QUESTIONS?

000348



1 

  CITY OF OAKLAND  
Rent Adjustment Program 

MEMORANDUM 
Date: November 26, 2024 

To: Members of the Housing, Rent Residential & Relocation 
Board (HRRRB)     

From: Oliver Luby, Deputy City Attorney 

Re: Appeal Memo in T23-0075, Willis v. Godwin Properties 

Appeal Hearing Date:       December 3, 2024 

Property Address: 260 Lee Street, Oakland, CA 

BACKGROUND 

The tenant filed a petition on May 26, 2023, alleging decreased housing services. 
A hearing was held on August 22, 2023.  The hearing officer determined that an owner 
response was not filed and partially granted the petition.  The hearing decision issued 
on November 30, 2023, granted decreased housing service claims for window, mailbox, 
unfinished kitchen/dining room, unfinished living room, unfinished bathroom, bathroom 
leak relocation, unfinished bedroom, heat, mold, and kitchen breaker. The hearing 
decision granted a total of $24,925.39 for past decreased housing services amortized 
over 65 months, consisting of: 

• $1,554 for bathroom leak relocation;
• $58.35/month reduction for heat (7 months);
• $1.00/month reduction for mold (10 months);
• $1.00/month for kitchen breaker (6 months);
• various monthly reductions (6% or less each totaling $1,530.88/month) for six

different decreased services from 10/1/22 – 12/31/23 (15 months each).

The owner and the tenant appealed.  The owner’s appeal stated that a response
had been filed, that the hearing officer unfairly denied the owner the opportunity to 
submit evidence regarding the petitioner’s claims, and the Rent Regulations gave each 
party the right to rebut evidence and submit exhibits.  After the Board heard the appeals 

000349



2 

and issued a decision, the appeal decision was served to the parties on March 12, 
2024.   

The Board’s decision remanded the case back to the hearing officer for a limited 
hearing on the issue of whether or not the owner filed a response.  The decision further 
directed that, if it was found that the owner did file a response, the hearing officer must 
have a new hearing on the matter, for which the owner would be allowed to submit their 
response and testify based on the response, and render a new decision on all issues in 
the petition.  If it was found that the owner did not file a response, the Board’s decision 
directed that the hearing officer reconsider the cockroaches finding.  Whether or not it 
was found that the owner filed a response, the decision directed that the hearing officer 
(1) apply the 90-day limit on restitution from OMC Section 8.22.090.A.3.b and (2) limit
any amortization period to 12 months, unless the hearing officer found extraordinary
circumstances existed to warrant a longer period, as provided by Rent Regulation
Section 8.22.110.F.

RULING ON REMAND 

After a remand hearing was held on June 4, 2024, the hearing officer issued a 
remand hearing decision on August 1, 2024, finding based on testimony that the owner 
mailed a copy of the response to the tenant but did not mail a copy to the Rent 
Adjustment Program.  The hearing officer further found the owner failed two additional 
requirements necessary in order to file a response, (1) evidence of registration with the 
Rent Adjustment Program1 and (2) evidence of service of written notice of the existence 
and scope of the Rent Adjustment Program on the tenant (RAP notice).  The hearing 
officer determined that the owner did not satisfy the RAP notice requirement for 
purposes of being able to respond based on testimony from the tenant that the RAP 
notice provided at the inception of tenancy was only in English, not also Spanish and 
Chinese.   

After noting the direction from the Board’s appeal decision to limit restitution for 
ongoing decreased housing services to 90 days before the petition was filed, the 
hearing officer disregarded the direction, declaring that the lack of RAP notice at the 
inception of tenancy eliminated the 90-day limit.  The remand hearing decision granted 
a total of $34,528.51 for past decreased housing services amortized over 18 months, 
consisting of: 

• $1,554 for bathroom leak relocation;
• $58.35/month reduction for heat (reduced to 4 months);
• $1.00/month reduction for mold (reduced to 7 months);
• $1.00/month for kitchen breaker (reduced to 3 months);

1 The Hearing Officer determined that the owner failed to register with RAP by reviewing the rent registry online 
portal. 

000350



3 
 

• various monthly reductions (6% or less each totaling $1,530.88/month) for six 
different decreased services for the changed time period of 1/1/23 – 7/31/24 
(increased to 19 months each); 

• a new award of a 10% reduction ($194.50/month) for cockroach infestation from 
1/1/23 – 7/31/24 (19 months). 
 

The hearing decision noted that extending the amortization period past 12 months to 18 
months was proper when the monthly restitution amount amortized across 12 months 
would exceed the lawful rent. 

 

GROUNDS FOR APPEAL 

 The owner appealed the remand hearing decision on the following grounds: the 
decision is inconsistent with OMC Chapter 8.22, Rent Board Regulations, or prior 
decisions of the Board; the decision violates federal, state or local law; denial of 
sufficient opportunity to respond to petitioner’s claim; other. The owner’s complaints 
about the remand hearing decision include:  

 the hearing officer ignored the owner’s proper filing of the response;  
 the hearing officer improperly disregarded the owner’s witness regarding filing of 

the response;  
 the hearing officer demonstrated bias and hostility towards the owner;  
 the owner complied with the RAP notice requirement; 
 the decreased housing service awards were not supported by substantial 

evidence, included duplicative awards, and did not reflect rent credits already 
provided by the owner or repair dates from 2023;  

 the rent registry requirement for responses did not apply at the time the response 
was due;  

 lack of due process. 
 

ISSUES 

1. Was the remand hearing decision’s finding that the owner failed to file a 
response with the Rent Adjustment Program supported by substantial evidence? 

2. Did the remand hearing decision follow the correct law regarding the applicable 
limitation on restitution for ongoing decreased housing services for the period 
prior to the filing of the petition?   

3. Were the hearing decision’s decrease housing service awards supported by 
substantial evidence? 
 
 
 

000351



4 

APPLICABLE LAW AND PAST BOARD DECISIONS 

I. Conduct of Hearings (Regulation 8.22.110.E)

A. Prior law

E. Conduct Of Hearings Before Hearing Officers
1. Each party, attorney, other representative of a party or witness appearing at

the hearing shall complete a written Notice of Appearance and oath, as
appropriate, that will be submitted to the Hearing Officer at the
commencement of the hearing. All Notices of Appearance shall become part
of the record.

2. All oral testimony must be given under oath or affirmation to be admissible.
3. Each party shall have these rights:

a. To call and examine witnesses;
b. To introduce exhibits;
c. To cross-examine opposing witnesses on any matter relevant to the

issues even if that issue was not raised on direct examination;
d. To impeach any witness regardless of which party called first called him or

her to testify;
e. To rebut the evidence against him or her;
f. To cross-examine an opposing party or their agent even if that party did

not testify on his or her own behalf or on behalf of their principal.
4. Unless otherwise specified in these Regulations or OMC Chapter 8.22, the

rules of evidence applicable to administrative hearings contained in the
California Administrative Procedures Act (California Government Code
Section 11513) shall apply.

B. Current law effective 12/5/232

E. Conduct Of Hearings Before Hearing Officers
1. Each party, attorney, other representative of a party or witness appearing at

the hearing shall complete a written Notice of Appearance and oath, as
appropriate, that will be submitted to the Hearing Officer at the
commencement of the hearing. All Notices of Appearance shall become part
of the record.

2. All oral testimony must be given under oath or affirmation to be admissible.
3. Each party shall have these rights:

a. To call and examine witnesses;
b. To introduce exhibits, provided that the party provides the exhibits to the

Rent Adjustment Program and serves copies to the other party not less
than seven (7) days before the hearing unless the party has good cause
for late filing;

c. To cross-examine opposing witnesses on any matter relevant to the
issues even if that issue was not raised on direct examination;

2 The changes made to Rent Board Regulation Section 8.22.110.E included the addition of subsection 3.g, which 
codified precedent from past Board decisions (see T02-0404, Santiago v. Vega). 

000352



5 
 

d.  To impeach any witness regardless of which party called first called him or 
her to testify;  

e.  To rebut the evidence against him or her;  
f.  To cross-examine an opposing party or their agent even if that party did 

not testify on his or her own behalf or on behalf of their principal;  
g.  A party who fails to file a timely response to a petition is prohibited from 

calling or examining witnesses or introducing oral or written evidence and 
is limited to cross-examination, unless the party has good cause for failing 
to file a response.  

4.  Unless otherwise specified in these Regulations or OMC Chapter 8.22, the 
rules of evidence applicable to administrative hearings contained in the 
California Administrative Procedures Act (California Government Code 
Section 11513) shall apply. 

 
II. Decreased Housing Services Petitions and Restitution Period (OMC 

8.22.090.A.3) 
 

A. Prior law (applicable when petition filed) 

3. For a petition claiming decreased housing services:  
a. If the decreased housing is the result of a noticed or discrete change in 

services provided to the tenant (e.g., removal of parking place, 
requirement that tenant pay utilities previously paid by owner) the petition 
must be filed within ninety (90) days of whichever of the following is later:  

i. The date the tenant is noticed or first becomes aware of the 
decreased housing service; or  

ii. The date the tenant first receives written notice of the existence and 
scope of this Chapter as required by Section 8.22.060.  

b. If the decreased housing is ongoing (e.g., a leaking roof), the tenant may 
file a petition at any point but is limited in restitution for ninety (90) days 
before the petition is filed and to the period of time when the owner knew 
or should have known about the decreased housing service.  
 

B. Current law effective 12/19/23 
3. For a petition claiming decreased housing services:  

a.  If the decreased housing is the result of a noticed or discrete change in 
services provided to the tenant (e.g., removal of parking place, 
requirement that tenant pay utilities previously paid by owner) the petition 
must be filed within ninety (90) days of whichever of the following is later:  

i. The date the tenant is noticed or first becomes aware of the decreased 
housing service; or  

ii. The date the tenant first receives written notice of the existence and 
scope of this Chapter as required by Section 8.22.060.  

000353



6 
 

b.  If the decreased housing is ongoing (e.g., a leaking roof), the tenant may 
file a petition at any point but is limited in restitution for three (3) years 
before the petition is filed and to the period of time when the owner knew 
or should have known about the decreased housing service.  

 
C. Past Board Decision (T18-0438, Martinez v. Carino) 
Board remanded case to recalculate restitution period to end as of the date of 
the hearing, rather than the date of the hearing decision. 

 
III. Amortization Period for Rent Adjustments (Regulation 8.22.110.F.4) 
4.  The Hearing Officer may order Rent adjustment for overpayments or 

underpayments over a period of months, however, such adjustments shall not 
span more than a twelve (12) month period, unless longer period is warranted 
for extraordinary circumstances. The following is a schedule of adjustments 
for underpayment and overpayments that Hearing Officers must follow unless 
the parties otherwise agree or good cause is shown:   
a.  If the underpayment or overpayment is 25% of the Rent or less, the Rent 

will be adjusted over 3 months;   
b.  If the underpayment or overpayment is 50% of the Rent or less, the Rent 

will be adjusted over 6 months;   
c.  If the underpayment or overpayment is 75% of the Rent or less, the Rent 

will be adjusted over 9 months;   
d.  If the underpayment or overpayment is 100% of the Rent or more, the 

Rent will be adjusted over 12 months.   
 

IV. Owner requirements for response to tenant petition (OMC 8.22.090.B.1) 
 
A.  Prior law (applicable when petition filed and response due) [Bold added for 

emphasis] 
 

1.  In order for an owner to file a response to a tenant petition or to file a petition 
seeking a rent increase, the owner must provide the following:  
a.  Evidence of possession of a current City business license;  
b.  Evidence of payment of the rent adjustment program service fee;  
c.   i.  Evidence of service of written notice of the existence and scope of 

the rent adjustment program on the tenant in each affected covered 
unit in the building prior to the petition being filed;  

ii.  After July 1, 2023, evidence of registration with the Rent Adjustment 
Program as provided in O.M.C. 8.22.510 for each affected covered 
unit in the building prior to the petition or response being filed;  

000354



7 
 

d.  A completed response or petition on a form prescribed by the rent 
adjustment program;  

e.  Documentation supporting the owner's claimed justification(s) for the rent 
increase or supporting any claim of exemption; and  

f.  Proof of service by first-class mail or in person of the owner petition or 
response and any supporting documents on the tenants of all units 
affected by the petition. Supporting documents that exceed twenty-five 
(25) pages are exempt from the service requirement, provided that: (1) the 
owner petition form must be served by first-class mail or in person; (2) the 
petition or attachment to the petition must indicate that additional 
documents are or will be available at the Rent Adjustment Program; and 
(3) the owner must provide a paper copy of supporting documents to the 
tenant or the tenant's representative within ten (10) days if a tenant 
requests a paper copy in the tenant's response.  

 
 

B. Current law effective 12/19/23 
 

1.  In order for an owner to file a response to a tenant petition or to file a petition, 
the owner must provide the following:  
a.  Evidence of possession of a current City business license;  
b.  Evidence of payment of the Rent Adjustment Program service fee or 

evidence of exemption from the fee;  
c.   i.  Evidence of service of written notice of the existence and scope of 

the Rent Adjustment Program as required by Section 8.22.060 on all 
tenants in covered units affected by the petition or response;  

ii.  After July 1, 2023, evidence of registration with the Rent Adjustment 
Program as provided in O.M.C. Section 8.22.510 for each affected 
covered unit in the building prior to the petition or response being 
filed;  

d.  A completed response or petition on a form prescribed by the Rent 
Adjustment Program;  

e.  Organized documentation supporting the owner's claimed justification(s) 
for the rent increase or supporting any claim of exemption; and  

f.  Proof of service by first-class mail or in person of the owner petition or 
response and any supporting documents on the tenants of all units 
affected by the petition. Supporting documents that exceed twenty-five 
(25) pages are exempt from the service requirement, provided that: (1) the 
owner petition form must be served by first-class mail or in person; (2) the 
petition or attachment to the petition must indicate that additional 
documents are or will be available at the Rent Adjustment Program; and 
(3) the owner must provide a paper copy of supporting documents to the 

000355



8 
 

tenant or the tenant's representative within ten (10) days if a tenant 
requests a paper copy in the tenant's response.  

 
V.  Consequence of failure to give RAP Notice (OMC 8.22.060.B) 

 
Evidence of Giving Notice. When filing an owner's response to a tenant petition 
or an owner's petition for a rent increase, the owner must submit evidence that 
the owner has given the notice required by this section to the affected tenants in 
the building under dispute in advance of the filing. When responding to a tenant 
petition, the owner may allege that the affected dwelling units are exempt in lieu 
of providing evidence of complying with the notice requirement. If an owner fails 
to submit the evidence and the subject dwelling unit is not exempt, then the 
owner's petition or response to a tenant's petition must be dismissed. This 
evidence can be a statement of compliance given under oath, however, the 
tenant may controvert this statement at the hearing. An owner's filing the notice 
in advance of petition or response prevents the owner's petition or response from 
being dismissed, but the owner may still be subject to the rent increase forfeiture 
if the notice was not given at the commencement of the tenancy or within the 
cure period set out in Section 8.22.060(C). 
 

RECOMMENDED OUTCOME 

In determining the owner failed to file a response to the tenant petition (which 
prevents a party from introducing evidence, pursuant to longstanding Board decision 
precedent, currently codified in Rent Regulation Section 8.22.110.F.3.g), the remand 
hearing decision provided that the owner did not satisfy the rent registry requirement, 
however, the text of the requirement notes that it not apply until July 1, 2023, which was 
after the owner’s proof of service of filing the response that the tenant acknowledged 
receiving.  The response form that was used by the owner in June of 2023 even lacked 
a section for indicating compliance with the registry requirement.     

Nevertheless, the remand hearing decision further found that the owner did not 
file the response to the tenant petition with the Rent Adjustment Program.  While the 
owner met the response requirement of providing evidence of provision of the RAP 
notice per OMC 8.22.090.B.1.c.i. (OMC 8.22.060.B provides that such evidence need 
only be a statement under oath, such as indicating on the response form under penalty 
of perjury that the RAP notice was provided), the hearing decision found that the 
owner’s evidence was controverted by the tenant’s testimony and that, therefore, the 
requirements for being able to respond were also not met. 

 In addition, the remand hearing decision noted yet disregarded specific direction 
from the Board decision indicating that the law applicable at the time of the petition and 
original hearing (OMC 8.22.090.A.3.b) limited restitution for ongoing decreased housing 
service awards to going no farther back than 90 days before the petition was filed.  

000356



9 
 

Instead of applying the correct law, the remand hearing invoked current law which was 
adopted December 19, 2023, which allows restitution for ongoing decreased housing 
service awards to go back up to three years before the petition was filed.  The remand 
hearing decision also stated that the 90-day limit did not apply because a complete RAP 
notice was not given at the inception of tenancy.  No such cessation of the 90-day limit 
(now the 3-year limit) exists in the Rent Adjustment Ordinance and the remand hearing 
decision appears to be confusing the tenant petition deadline in OMC 8.22.090.3.a for 
noticed or discrete decreased housing services (the petition deadline is unlimited if no 
RAP notice has been filed) with the restitution limit for ongoing decreased housing 
service awards in 8.22.090.3.b. 

 Applying the 90-day limit based on the May 26, 2023, petition date limits 
restitution for ongoing decreased housing service awards in this case to beginning no 
earlier than February 26, 2023.  Had the Board decision’s direction been followed, this 
would have resulted in all of the monthly awards in the original hearing decision being 
changed from beginning on October 1, 2022, to beginning on February 26, 2023, 
reducing the amount of the awards accordingly. 

 Furthermore, the Board decision directed that, if the hearing officer found the 
owner did not file a response as required and no new hearing on all issues was 
conducted, the hearing officer was only to (1) recalculate the restitution based on the 
90-day limit before the petition, (2) revise amortization based on the requirements in the 
Regulations, and (3) reconsider the cockroach infestation finding, based on the 
evidence in the record.  While the hearing officer did (2) and (3), the remand hearing 
decision also provided various adjustments to the restitution awards, including 
decreasing three awards by three months each, increasing six awards by 4 months 
each, and entirely revised the dates for each of the ongoing awards (in the original 
decision, most of the awards were for the period of 10/1/22 – 12/31/23, whereas these 
periods were changed to 1/1/23 – 7/31/24 in the remand hearing decision).  No 
explanation is provided in the remand hearing decision for these changes.   

Both decisions also issued awards well past the date of the applicable hearing, 
which assumes facts not yet established and contravenes Board decision precedent.  
Since the remand hearing did not include submission of additional evidence regarding 
the ongoing decreased housing service awards continuing, there is no substantial 
evidence supporting that the end dates noted in the original hearing decision should be 
lengthened.   

Accordingly, the Office of the City Attorney recommends that the Board remand 
the decision to:  

(1) reverse the finding that the owner failed the required response requirement of 
providing evidence of compliance with the rent registry, since this requirement did not 
apply in June of 2023; 

(2) revise the decreased housing service awards to (a) begin on February 26, 
2023, and end on August 22, 2023 (the date of the original hearing), except for the heat, 

000357



10 
 

mold, and kitchen breaker, which had different specific end dates, and (b) pro-rate the 
amount of the award for partial months (February and August 2023);  

(3) reconsider whether amortization longer than 12 months is appropriate under 
Regulation 8.22.110.F.4, given the reduction in the decreased housing service awards. 

000358


	DRAFT Agenda- February 13, 2025
	HRRRB-Full Board Regular Meeting Minutes 01.09.2025
	HOUSING, RESIDENTIAL RENT AND RELOCATION BOARD FULL BOARD REGULAR MEETING

	DRAFT T23-0075 Chronological Case Report 1
	T23-0075 DRAFT Chrons & Case 
	2023.05.26 T23-0075 TENANT PETITION (1) (2)
	2023.5.26 T23-0075 PROOF OF SERVICE (1) (2)
	2023.07.01 T23-0075  SUPPLEMENTAL DOCUMENT TO PROPERTY OWNER'S RESPONSE TO TENANT PETITION (1) (2)
	2023.07.01 T23-0075 GMAIL - INCOMPLETE MAINTENANCE ISSUES (1) (2)
	2023.07.01 T23-0075 GMAIL - TRESPASSING (1) (1) (2)
	2023.07.01 T23-0075 GMAIL - UPDATES-UNIDENTIFIED MALE, UNIT 302…SECURITY CAMERAS… (1) (2)
	2023.08.14 T23-0075 Updated Petition Attachments Tenant email submission (2) (2)
	Tenant email submission_T23-0075 2023.08.14.pdf
	PROOF-OF-SERVICE-08_14_2023.pdf

	2023.07.10 T23-0075 Remote Hearing Letters (1) (2)
	2023.07.18 T23-0075 Zoom Invitation for RAP Remote Hearing (1) (2)
	2023.11.30 T23-0075 Hearing Decision (2) (2)
	Willis_ (002).pdf
	1 Proof Of Service_RAP1 (46).pdf

	2023.12.14 T23-0075 Owner Appeal (2) (2)
	2023.12.18 T23-0075 Owner Certificate of mailing for appeal (1) (2)
	2023.12.20 T23-0075 Tenant Appeal (1) (2)
	Completed Appeal Form.pdf
	Mailed Signed Proof of Service to RAP.pdf
	T23-0075 Petitioners’ Appeal.pdf
	Mailed Unisigned Proof of Service to Other Party.pdf
	Electronic Proof of Service to Other Party and RAPHearings Unit.pdf

	2024.01.03 T23-0075 Petitioners' Response to Owner's Appeal (1) (2)
	2024.01.03 T23-0075 Pettioners' Response to Owner's Appeal.pdf
	POS T23-0075.pdf

	2024.03.12 T23-0075 Appeal Decision with POS (2) (1)
	2024.05.09 T23-0075 Notice of Remote Settlement Conference and Remand Hearing Zoom Invite (2) (1)
	3 Notice of Remote Settlement Conference and Hearing_RAP_3_V2 (12).pdf
	Zoom Invitation for RAP Remote Remand Hearing_T24-0075.pdf

	2024.08.01 T23-0075 Remand Hearing Decision (2) (1)
	Binder3.pdf
	Willis remand decision - updated.pdf

	ProofOfService (27)..pdf

	2024.08.17 T23-0075 Owner Appeal Submitted (2) (1)

	Evidence 2025 (1)
	Appeal Memo T23-0075 Willis v Godwin Properties - 12.3.24 Panel(3387954.1) (002)



